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if appropriate.
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Lendlease Group today announced its results for the year ended 30 June 2020. Attached is the
2020 Annual Report, including:

= Directors’ Report

= Remuneration Report
= Financial Statements
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Chaiemnan’s

Report

Itis impossible to present our year in
review to securityholders without first
acknowledging COVID-19 and its impacts
on the regions in which we operate and
our stakeholders including our people,
securityholders and customers.

The pandemic has reshaped most aspects
of society. Governments around the world
quickly responded to help shield their
citizens and economies from the worst of
the virus's effects. This was, and continues
1o be, an entirely appropriate course of
action. In a similar vein, the Board moved
dacisively to tackle COVID-19 related
risks — including the health and safety

of our people, our customers and the
communities in which we operate, as well
as our operations and our balance sheet.

A Board subcommittee, which was formed
in March 2020, had primary oversight of
the Group’s response to COVID-19,

Health and Safety

This past year has reinforced that the
health and safety of our pacple, and
those who interact with our operations,
is Lendlease’s number one priority. This
year the Group recorded our lowest
incident frequency rates for both Critical
Incidents and Lost Time Injuries since we
began reporting these metrics.

i this st a
construction worker tragically passed away
in hospital from an infection contracted
following surgery after a critical incident
on one of our sites in Kuala Lumpur. This
provides a strong reminder of why we
have such an unrelenting focus on health
and safety. Our sincerest condolences are
extended to the deceased worker's family
and colleagues.

Financial Result

Lendlease reported a Statutory Loss after
Tax of $310 million, as $368 million of costs
previously flagged in February 2018 refating
1o the exit of Engineering were brought to
account. While disappointing, the Board
remain confident that exiting Engineering
and focusing on our Core business s in the
best interests of securityholders.

Qurfirst half Core profit of $308 million
was followed by a $212 million loss in the
second half of the year. Distributions to
securityholders reflect the distribution of
54 per cent of first half earnings, 30 cents
per security, and the distribution of Trust
earnings in the second half of 3.3 cents
per security.

The Board moved decisively to tackle COVID-19
related risks — including the health and safety of
our people, our customers and the communities

in which we operate.

Arange of measures were implemented in
the second hatf of the year to strengthen
our financial position. This included raising
$1.2 bilfion of new equity, arranging
additional debt facilities, reducing
operating costs and reviewing project
expenditure. The equity raising provides
additional fiexibility and capacity to
continua the defivery of our development
pipeline while pursuing further investment
opportunities. The equity was allocated
48.4 per cent to Lendlease Corporation
and 51.6 per cant to Lendlease Trust.

This ailocation will enable the Group to
continue to implement its strategy of
conducting its active business in Lendlease
Corporation, while holding its passive
assets in Lendlease in an efficient manner,
and will provide the Trust with additional
capacity for invastments to grow recurring
earnings within the Group’s overall
portfolio

his tenure, Colin made an outstanding
contribution, including oversight of the
Board’s long term renewal and succession
strategy and Board performance
assessment His depth of experience in
strategy, sustainability and governance

has helped shapa Lendlease’s position on
these eritical issues. On behalf of the Board,
I thank Colin for his unwavering support.

More broadly, | am confident the Board
has the right mix of skills, experience and
diversity to govern Lendlease in the best
interests of all our stakeholders.
Executive Reward Strategy

In this challenging year, the Board has
considered a number of factors when
determining remuneration outcomes

for our CEO and senior executives.
While the business performed well during
the first nine months of the year, the dual

The Group entered FY21 in a strong
financial position with cash and cash
equivalents of $1.6 billion, undrawn
debt facilities of $4.2 billion and gearing
of 5.7 per cent.

Board Renewal

During the year, we continued to focus
on our program of Board renewal and
appointed two new Non Executive
Directors, Margaret Ford OBE and
Robert Welanetz.

However, given the disruption caused by
COVID-19, including continuing global
travel bans and ongoing time zone
challenges, Margaret has elected 1o
step down from the Board. Margaret will
continue to assist the Lendlease Board in
respect of the Group's Europe operations.
in an advisory capacity. Margaret has
expressed a willingness o re-join the
Board once the COVID-19 restrictions
have significantly subsided.

Robert, who brings significant
international experience in our core
sectors of Development and Investments,
continues to serve as a Non Executive
Director and will be standing for election
atthe Annual General Meeting.

After more than eight years of service,
Colin Carter will retire at the conclusion of
our 2020 Annual General Meeting. During

pacts of COVID-19 and accounting
for the costs associated with exiting
Engineering, resulted in a statutory loss.
On this basis, no short term award in

Lendiease Annual Report 2020 Overview —@

Sustainability

At Lendlease, we have a fong and proud
history of achieving numerous sustainability
firsts. This continues to be the case.

Following deep engagament across our
entire business, including with the Board
and Global Leadership Team, Lendlease
has committed to two bold new
sustainability targets. First, market feading
carbon targets to meet our vision 1o

live in a world warmed by no more than
1.5°C. Second, we are aiming 1o create
$250 million of social value by 2025.
While recognising these new targets will
be difficult to achieve, we beliave they are
worthwhile striving for, as our leadership
position on sustainability continues to be
a key competitive advantage.
Commitment to First Nations Peoples
The Board is also proud of the way we
support and implement the principles

of the UN Global Compact. Our Elevate
Reconciliation Action Plan (RAP) is one
way we demonstrate our operational

relation to financial was made
to the Group CEO or senior 0

human rights, and

Based on the achievement of non financial
metrics that support long term value
creation, the Board recognised the efforts
of the CEO and senior executives via a
Deferred Equity Award vesting over two
tranches in FY21 and FY22. The Board
considered that the recognition of the
performance in this area, albeit at a
reduced quantum from prior years, to be
fair and appropriate as these contributions
position the Group for success in FY24
and beyond. Further detail on the Board’s
deliberations in this regard is provided in
the Remuneration Report.

Risk Culture

After extensive internal consultation

and testing, Lendlease’s Risk Appetite
Tolerances were approved by the Board
Risk Committee. These provide guardrails
to assist management in aligning
Lendlease’s appetite for risk with our
decision making and review processes.
They also provide a mechanism to identify,
manage and report on risks through the
lifecycle of projects and investments.

The strength and maturity of our risk
framework was evident in recent months
as we navigated through the initial phases
of COVID-19.

peoples’ rights.
It outlines our commitment to First
Nations Peoples, acknowledging their
unbroken connection to country and
creating respectful relationships that
provide opportunities for equal social
and economic outcomes - this aligns to
our purpose, and is vital to meeting the
expectations of our people and those of
key relationship customers.

Looking to the Future

Finally, | would fike 1o thank my Board
colleagues and the entire Lendlease team
for the extraordinary effort they have
made in steering Lendlease through one of
the most turbulent times in living memory.
Importantly, while we have responded
comprehensively to the challenges that
COVID-19 has thrown at us, the team
have continued to lay down the strategic
foundations that position us to create long
term value for securityholders.

Hlattnmn Hedine
—

M J Ulimer, AO

Chairman
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2020 will be a watershed year in history
with the impacts of COVID-19 likely to
reshape society for years to come. | start
this report by recognising the unwavering
support and commitment of the people of
Lendlease; to each other, our customers
and to the strength of our organisation.
Our people have drawn on the resifience,
adaptability, focus and care that have long
been hallmarks of our business to steer
usthrough an extraordinary operating
environment.

While Lendlease delivered a disappointing
financial result for the year, wa made
substantial progress on our strategic
agenda including growing and converting
the development pipeline, achieving
important planning milestones and
creating new invastment partnerships to
suppont projects moving into delivery.
We made significant inroads into
positioning the organisation at the
forefront of sustainable development.
This included investment in people,
process and technology which has laid
the foundation to better enable and fast
track the delivery of ous pipeline to meet
the needs of changing urban landscapes.
Health and Safety

Tragically, a construction worker was
seriously injured in a critical incident

on a project in Kuala Lumpur where
Lendlease is the construction manager.
Ha subsequently passed away from
complications following surgery.

On behalf of Lendlease, | extend my
heartfelt condolences to his family,
{riends and colleagues.

Itis difficult to call out positive
achievements given this tragedy, but |
do want to thank the commitment of our
teams which has enabled us 1o reduce
critical incident and lost time injury
frequency rates to their lowest levels
since we began reporting these metrics.

As COVID-19 set in, an extraordinary
sffort was made by ourteams 1o keep our
people, and those who interact with us,
safe and 1o support the continuance of
operations, This level of focus was applied
across all businesses and locations,
through adjusting office and site-based
working arrangements and quickly
introducing new policies, education and
support for employees and customers

as restrictions and social distancing
protocols became first lines of defence
against the virus.

Lendlease’s ability to deliver transformational urban

precincts with a focus on financial, environmental

and social outcomes is being recognised globally.

This has resulted in significant growth in the
development pipeline to more than $100 billion.

To support our people, Lendlease
launched a Hardship and Wellbeing Fund
with grants to help cover expenses for
employees experiencing hardship during
the pandemic.

Financial performance

The Group's Core business generated
Profit after Tax of $96 million, Earnings
per Security of 15.9 cents and a Return on
Equity of 1.5 per cent. The Core business
was adversely impacted by COVID-19.

Qur performance in the second half of the
year was down significantly across the
Core operations. A solid Core operating
EBITDA in the first half of $628 million
was followed by a $65 million loss in the
second half as the Group experienced

a substantial deterioration in operating
conditions.

The Group reported a Statutory Loss after
Tax of $310 million for the year ended

30 June 2020. Engineering exit costs of
$368 million after tax, along with

$19 million of goodwill impairment
relating to the anticipated completion of
the sale of Engineering, ware expensed.

Progress on converting opportunities
across our urbanisation pipefine was
hindered. The impact across our
construction projects was greater in

our international regions, particularly in
cities where mandated shutdowns were

While our financial performance was
curtailed, we achieved substantial growth
in our devetopment pipeline, established
new investment partnerships and
extended existing partnerships.

Wherever we operate, Lendlease has
continued its partnership approach with
governments by responding 1o the public
health and economic crisis presented

by COVID-19. We provided practical
support, including surge capacity plans
10 extend hospital infrastructure as well
as accommodation to frontline workers
and food and other supplies to the most
vulnerable members of our community.

We also shared our safety standards
10 help make construction sites across
our operations globally, COVID-safe.
We acknowledge that our government
partners have adopted the same approach
and recognised the crucial role of the
property and infrastructure sectors in
the aconomy. The Group accessed wage
subsidy support in markets where it was
offered. Further details are set out on
page 160 of the Financial Statements.
Strategy
“The cornerstone of the Group's strategy
s to create value through the best urban
precincts in key global gateway cities.
We have demonstrated over more than
two decades our ability to deliver major
isation projects, and together

The Group's i
portolio was impacted by declining
real estate values.

We implementad a range of measures

1o strengthen the financial position

of the Group. Costs were reduced along
with the reassessment of capital and
project expenditure. The issuance of new
equity and the arranging of additional
debt provides the Group with the capacity
1o managa through a potential sustained
downturn and positions the Group for a
market recovery.

with our integrated business model and
placemaking skills, have created a point
of difference few can match.

A demonstrated track record of superior
outcomes for placemaking, sustainability
and connectivity has helped us in our aim
to be the global urbanisation partner of
choice and has underpinned the strong
growth of our Investments platform.

Two new major urbanisation projects
with a combined estimated end value of
$37 billion were added to the pipeline
during the year. The unlocking of these
and other opportunities across our
targeted gateway cities has resulted in
the development pipeline more than
doubling over the last five years 1o above
$100 billion. This includes a portfolio of 21
major projects across nine gateway cities.

Lendlease Annual Report 2020 Overview —@

Creating value for future generations
Wa aim 1o tackle the climate crisis head on.

We launched two new ambitious targets:
o be 2 1.5°C aligned company and

to create $250 million of social value

by 2025. These were developed after
extensive analysis and consultation with
clients, partners and employees. They are
our call to action and will be a measure
of our success.

We have set market leading carbon
targets to meet our 1.5°C aligned
commitment. Net zero carbon scope 1
and 2 by 2025 and absolute zero carbon
by 2040 will be challenging but will
inspire our next generation of leaders
and we believa can be achieved while
delivering client and shareholder value.
Outlook

While the duration of the impacts of

the pandemic is uncertain, the Group
entered FY21 in a strong financial position.
Business resilience and adaptability are
critical to navigate the uncertainty the
world still faces. We have a tremendous
team and an outstanding pipeline of
projects and are well placed to drive high
quality earnings growth and pursue new
opportunities as we emerge from the
current economic challenges.

On behalf of the Group | again thank our
employees, along with our investment
partners, securityholders and financiers for
supporting Lendlease throughout the year.

o

Stephen McCenn

Group Chief Executive Officer
and Managing Director



$37 billion

Two major urbanisation
projects secured
in London and
San Francisco Bay Area

Listed

Lendlease Global
Commercial REIT in
Singapore

Milano
Santa Giulia

New investment
partner to deliver the
$4 billion* project

Safety

Record low Critical and
Lost Time injury rates,
sadly one fatality

@

Two

Investment partnerships
established to deliver
One Sydney Herbour?
and the Victoria Cross

over station development

c.$4 billion

Paya Lebar Quarter
completed

TCFD®
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1
48%
Increase in

development pipeline
to $113b

©®

#1

Ranked fund in GRESB®,
with four funds ranked in
the global top 10

@

Australian
first

Barangaroo South named
Australia’s first carbon
neutral precinct

#1 70%°
Ranked infrastructure Four climate scenarios .
contractor for Australian devglo!:ed apd published . |n€:rease n
Department of Defence in line with TC_FD residential funds under
recommendations management
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-Our VISION:
. To create the
. begt places

Qur values

Respect
Be dedicated to

relationships.

Integrity
Be true to our word.

Innovation
Be challenging in our
approach.

Collaboration
Be one team.

Excellence
Be exceptional

in everything we do.

Trust

Be open and transparent.

Londlsase Annual Report 2020 Our Business —@

Guiding what we do

Our vision and values guide averything
we do. We strive to create some of the
world's best places, places that people
love and want to experience.
Ourintegrated business model,
encompassing Davelopment,
Construction and Investments, enables our
vision. We develop inner city mixed use

retirement, retail, commercial assets
and social and economic infrastructure.
Our Construction segment delivers.
project management, design and
construction services for the Group’s
pipeline and for external clients across
arange of sectors. With our investment
platform and co-i
strategies, we can orchestrate the funding
10 make the vision a reality.

This powerful combination of capability,
1ightly aligned to our vision and values,
allows us to shapae cities and connect
commuaities. We believa it delivers
great outcomes for our customers and
the communities wa serve, inspires our
people and provides sustainable growth
for our securityholders.



Our

=>strate

To Create the
Best Places

th‘? 'cornerstone of the Group's strategy
is-to!crente the best urban precincts in
key global gateway cities.

The ability to defiver major urbanisation
&pmj?e\slhmgh our integrated business

model, together with our financial strength
qu‘;xrong track record, provides a point

of difference we believe few can match.

More than two decades of experience

creating large scale mixed use urban

iprecincts has enabled the Group to

‘deepen its expertise and sophistication
to become, in our view, the preeminent
urbanisation specialist. It has also
underpinned the strong growth of our
Investments platform.

The success and vibrancy of our
completed precincts is testament to our
capability. This demonstrated track record
of supericr outcomes for ptacemaking,
sustainability and connectivity has helped
us achieve our aim to be the global
urbanisation partner of choice.

gy

Opportunities have been unlocked
across our targeted gatevny cities, with
1he urbanisation platform ccmprising a
portfolio of 21 major projects across nina
gateway cities.

An important component of the strategy
is the capital efficient land management
model where land is typically drawn
down in phases and parments linked 10
development activity. It is designed tc
withstand market cycles.

The outcome is an urbanisation led
strategy focused on global gateway
cities. These cities have attributes that
are typically more resilient through
property cycles and attract more global
investment capital. They often contain
sites well suited 1o regeneration and
infrastructure upgrades and play to

our strengths.

End to end capabilities across all aspects of real estate —
from concept and planning, to design and delivery through
to funding and imvestment nanagsment — generate
superior econoimic, social 2nd environmental outcomes.

s

LT p e Y

Our strategy is supported by a strong risk
and

which requires robust safety and
inabifity standards and a
approach to capital allocation.

Our stratagy must evolve to remain
successful.

The foundations of a global platform for
growth are being assembled to accelerate
the delivery of our development pipeline.
This involves enhancing our operating

While the development pipeline is
expected to be the main source of growth
for the Investments platform, we will

look for other growth opportunities that
leverage our ability to add value.

Aonce in a century pandemic is having
a profound impact globally and it is

100 early 1o gauge its lasting effects.

It may result in the acceleration of
existing trends such as online retail and
a deterioration of housing affordability,
but ially a reversal in some others

structure by an wide
approach to facilitate production ata
greater scale.

A key component of the pipeline
acceleration is our aim to lead digital
disruption in the construction industry.

such as densification in the workplace
and demand for inner city living.

Business resilience will be critical to
navigate the uncertainty that may persist
for some time. Our urbanisation led
strategy with its mixed use capabilities
is uniquely placed to adapt to prevailing
market conditions as opportunities arise
across a range of property sectors.

Lendlaase Annual Report 2020 Our Business —@

A global platform combined
with local expertise across
targeted gateway cities
enables us to deliver the
most value and create the
best places.
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Disciplined
Portfolio
Management to
Maximise
Securityholder
Value

The Development segment
comprises activities across
urbanisation, residential and
retirement communities. and
infrastructure development.

Financial returns for the segment
are generated via:

« Development margins

+ Development management fees
» Origination fees

Our capability

Placemaking is the capability that sets
us apart to realise our vision to create
the best places. We create environments
where people consciously choose to

“These, combined with patience,
thoughtfulness, experience and humility,
lead 10 achieving great outcomes.
Urbanisation

Lendlease’s core strategy is focused on
urbanisation in targeted gateway cities
and we aim to be the urbanisation partner
of chaice. Securing major urbanisation
projects where the breadth of our skills
can be applied is where our competitive
advantage excels.

Our integrated model is fundamental in
delivering these projects. Working with
Development, our Construction segment
provides design and delivery excellence,
while Investments attracts investment
partners for financing.

Qur first major' urbanisation project

was secured in Mefbourne almost two
decades ago and still offers a substantial
residential pipeline. This is typical of the
type of project we look to secure: long
dated; capital efficient; whole of precinct;
and spanning multiple property cycles.

In recent years we have

Lendisase Annual Report 2020 Our Business —@

Development opportunities across our
Australian retirement portfolio have

been boosted with approvals for unique
developments at three villages, including
a new concept, muli generational village
adjacent to the University of Wollongong.
Our development expertise in retirement
was recently extended to Shanghai where
we are delivering an initial ¢.850 senior
living homes.

In the US, our Military Housing portfotio is
expected to offer periodic redevelopment
opportunities.

Infrastructure development

We provide infrastructure development
services for Public Private Partnership
projects in Australia. Financial
arrangements, and transactional and
other advisory services, are delivered in
the capacity of sponsor for projectsin a
range of sectors, predominantly in social
infrastructure. The Sydney laternational
Ce tion, Exhibition and i
Precinct was one such project.

our urbanisation platform via targeted
international gateway cities. They include
projects in London, Milan, Chicago

and the San Francisco Bay Area. These
projects form part of a portfolio that
comprises 21 major projects across nine
gateway citios.

Being awarded these projects from both
public and private sector clients is a
strong endorsement of our expertise. Our
sustainability credentials have been critical
in the selection process, with consistent
feedback that the integration of all aspects
of inabi ithin our i

FY20 Development
segment highlights

Development pipeline of $113 billion:

$99 billion urbanisation

$14 biflion communities

Secured two major
urbanisation projects:

Waterfront, London:

dwe!l by being sensitive to a
needs and the elements that attract its
members to an urban location.

Effactive place design requires active
engagement with partners who provide
input as co-creators and is informed

by an understanding of their vision and
aspirations for the urban space they
will inhabit.

Managing the entire development process
is essential for success; from securing
land, creating masterplans, consulting
with authorities and communities, through
10 project management, sales and leasing.

A willingness to undertake ambitious
projects, to challenge the status quo,
and collaborate with a range of partners
o generata the right solutions are key
elements in our approach.

capabilities resonates strongly.
Our urbanisation pipefine is set to

produce more than 56,000 residential
units and more than 50 i

¢.11,500 homes

San Francisco Bay Area project:
€.15,000 homes

buildings over a ¢.25 year horizon.

‘We expect our development activity to
accelerate over the medium term as our
‘secured pipeline progresses through
planning and into defivery.

Completed Paya Lebar Quarter - *
Singapore's newest lifestyle precinct;

Retail mal!

Three Grade A office towers

and
For more than 50 years we have created
and delivered new suburban itie

429 residential apartments

They ranga from inner urban villages to
large scale, masterplanned communities
with integrated town centres. We have
17 active projects in key population
growth corridors that are anticipated to
deliver approximately 47,000 individval
land parcals.

3. Projects wi i o

billion. 2. Remoining estimatad
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Disciplined
Portfolio
Management to
Maximise

Securityholder
Value

The Construction segment
provides project management,
design and construction
services across a wide range
of sectors.

Financial returns for the segment

are generated via:

* Project management and
construction management fees

« Construction margins'

and product knowledge with strong
customer relationships 1o create places
that are innovative, sustainable and
commercially viable.

A successful project is more than just the
delivery of buildings. An integral element
is our flexible approach where our team
of industry experts work collaboratively
with the client to identify, plan and deiver
what is important for them.

A significant proportion of repeat business
is atestament to being a trusted and
strategic partner.

Our risk management processes have
evolved from decades of experience.
Disciplined origination and diversity
by client, contract type and sector are
hallmarks of our approach.

Substantial derisking takes place prior

o commencement of construction.
Production and programming controls
monitor and manage delivery, while a
rigorous commissioning process is applied
for a smooth transition to the client.

Areas of expertise

We are one of Australia's largest
construction companies and in 2020

we were named the top infrastructure
contractor forthe Australian Department
of Defence.

In the US, we have been ranked the
L

Our capability

Our construction capability is showcased
in the places and structures we create —
workplaces for some of the world's
largest organisations, vibrant retail
centres, residential apartments, including
affordable housing options, state of the
art hospitals, and other buildings of civic
and social importance.

We have defivered construction projects
around the world for more than six decades,
creating thousands of buildings. And
projects defivered by businesses acquired
by Lendlease span mora than a century.

Woe are recognised for creating innovative
places that stand the test of time and we
have been entrusted to create and restore
iconic buildings that shape city skylines.
It's a legacy of which we are proud.

The Lendlease approach

The Construction segment combines

the benefits of global scale and the rich
heritage of corporate knowledge with a
localised capability, capacity and network
to deliver high quality projects.

Specialist design and project
management teams combine deep sector

1ol y
for 20 consecutive years.

Across Europs, we are

Londlease Annual Report 2020 Our Business —@

‘Wa expect future built form environments
to ba increasingly tied to precincts anc’
hubs. The experience and knowledge
gained from the delivery of the extensive
urbanisation pipeline strengthens our
ability to be a partner of choice.
Innovation

We use our scale and capacity to
innovate and lead disruption in the
construction sector.

Qur investment in smart design and
advanced manufacturing has improved
safety, sustainability and efficiency, and
has created exciting architectural and
sustainable solutions.

We have innovated in the manufacture
and use of engineered timber in Australia,
and now use the product across our
global business. We have also developed
other product solutions across supply
chain, prefabrication and modularisation.

We are developing stronger digita!
capability 1o enhance our construction
business. This is enabling us to simulate
all aspects of construction from design to
structural integrity to system performance
and user preferences. We expect this to
lead to a faster pace of innovation and
productivity across the business.

FY20 Construction
segment highlights

waell placed to participate in the integrated
delivery of the region’s ¢.$50 billion®
urbanisation pipefine.

Our Asian business has speciafist
expartise in the [ife sciences, education
and telecommunications sectors. In Japan,
we have delivered more than 75,000
telecommunications towers and rocftop
antenna sites.

C i roleinL 'S

Construction backlog
revenue of $14 billion

Well diversified by sector and client

$7.5 billion of new work
secured including:

Curtin University School of Design and
Built Environment, Perth

integrated model

Our Construction segment typically
designs and delivers the built form for
our urbanisation pipeline.

A shared vision generates superior
outcomes for all stakeholders. For
example, design iterations running

in parallel with planning lead to more
creative, cost effective and timely
solutions to meet occupier and
investmant partner demand.

Paya Lebar Quarter is an example of
where our delivery expertise and the
certainty we provide to partners

on long dated prajects is an important
component of our offer.

HMAS Watson Redevelopment
Delivery Phase, Sydney

4 Hudson Square, New York
Completed projects

Wasley Place, Melbourne*

60 Martin Place, Sydney

Paya Lebar Quarter, Singapore
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The Investments segment
owns and manages property
and infrastructure assets.

Financial returns for the segment

are generated via:

* Fund and asset management fees

« Income and capital growth from
ownership interests

Our world class asset craation capabilities
focus on placemaking to create vibrant
and diverse precincts. Buildings that
respond to the needs of occupants
typically outperform over the long term.

Since FY14, our funds under management
has more than doubled. The majority

of that growth has been generated

from the completion of assets across

our urbanisation projects. The recently
completed Paya Lebar Quarter in
Singapore has contributed $3.3 billion

of funds under management.

Further growth is expected to continue
aover the medium term as the urbanisation
pipeline converts into investment grade
product. We expect our residential for
rent product to be a strong contributor to
this growth.

Demonstrating our highly regarded funds
and asset management capability, we
taunched the $1.5 billion Lendlease Global
Commercial REIT in Singapore. The REIT
was seeded with the Lendlease developed
313@somerset retail centre and three
office properties adjacent to our Milano
Santa Giulia project.

Maintaining strong alignment with our
investment partners, we have $2 billion

Our capability

For decades we have been managing
funds and assets for some of the world's
largest money managers including
sovereign wealth funds and large public
and private pension funds.

‘Our expertise spans many property
‘sectors across both unlisted and listed
property trusts and mandates. We have
deep relationships with 150 institutional
investment partners.

We offer a research led investment
capability supported by active asset
management with leadership in
sustainability a critical element to

our approach.

The key point of difference for our
Investments segment is the high quality
and sustainable product we create
through our integrated model, which
offers investment partners diverse, long

tarm investment choices on a global scale.

Funds management

Our global funds management platform
manages $36 billion of investments,
predominantly across the office and
retail sectors. We also have a burgeoning
residential platform.

of in our funds platform.
This also provides a steady source of
income for Lendlease.

Asset management

We have been managing retail centres
across the world for more than 50 years
and currently manage retail and office
assets valued at more than $15 billion.

Our asset management capability
enables us o create places that thrive
for the long term.

We continually revitalise our assets to
stay ahead of industry trends and deliver
optimal customer experiences. The
introduction of digitat tools throughout
our global retail portfolio, such as the
Lendlease Pius App in Singapore, has
provided our malls’ customers with

the latest access to many benefits and
provided new opportunities for our
members during COVID-19. Digital
technology has also been key in
communicating with more than 3,100
retailers within our Australian retaif
portfolio, providing a seamless customer
experience.

Residential

In the US, we manage a $13.6 billion
Military Housing portfolio, which
provides a steady and high quality
source of earnings.

Lendlease Annual Report 2020 Our Business —@

The portfolio comprises ¢.40,000
residential and more than 12,000
lodging units across 50 Military Housing
communities.

‘We have long term agreements with the
US Department of Defense to manage
these estates for military personnel and
their families. The Group added residential
for rent to the asset management platform
forthe first time.

Retirement Living

One of the global trends that drives our
strategy is the ageing population.

‘We are one of the largest owners,
operators and developers of retirement
living communities in Austrafia. Our
footprint extends nationally across
72villages and offers a range of
accommodation options including
premium resort style living and a variety
of standalone units and apartments.

Wa draw on our significant placemaking
and asset management skills to provide
a strong sense of community for our
€.17,000 residents.

Other investments

Lendlease's other investments include
telecommunications assets and an
aquity interest in the US Military
Housing portfolio.

FY20 Investment
segment highlights

Funds under management
of $36 billion - 2% growth

Launched Lendlease Global
Commercial REIT, Singapore

Completed Paya Lebar Quarter,
Singapore - $3.3 billion funds
under management

Introduced a new investment partner
to the platform ~ investment in
Milano Santa Giulia

Awarded c.$2 billion multi sector
mandate in Australia®

1. Fig December 2019, 2.
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or more than six decades

@@have been at the

refront of projects
{73t have become the
Sinerstones of cities and
Scofnmunities.

Our objective is to leave a positive legacy

forfyture generations and build a respected
— .

Brand. Our ethos demands continual

re-evaluation of past achievements to

Q@}nnwmive solutions that redefine the

Benchmark of best practice.

‘Ot integrated business model has

evolyed to focus on urbanisation in key

gateway cities. The first long dated

and farge scale mixed use project we

secyred was Victoria Harbour in 2001,
<Th€ 30 hectare precinct, bounded by
n’ue}'ana River and Victoria Harbour,
infydes kilometres of public waterfront

‘prémenade incorporating retail,
EEcommerCial. residential, leisure and

cmmunity faciites tha cater for
( {hopsands of people.
G]\ V) peop

“Thé‘ongoing management of precincts

nd assets is just as critical as their
( de’ngery. Our ability to positively impact
alians of the property and construction
lifacycle creates health and safety benefits
for all those who construct, maintain,
and interact with our precincts. Through
L ourihvestments platform, we value our
fidyciary role for institutional investors and
Cige;umem partners, and our experience
iddep. We launched Australia's first
real estate investment trust in 1971.and
lsince that time we have fosterad trusted
ratationships with key global investment
pariners - offering them tailored real
estate investment solutions.

For more than two decades we have been
sefining and developing cur placemaking
expertise. Our credentials are highlighted
by the numerous development and
sustainability awards attained and the
overwhelmingly positive feedback we
receive from those who live, work or visit
our precincts.

Maelbourne:
Viettin Hurluur

VN 20 25 v

i 22 20 .
£ RN
75
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Being chasen as the development partner for
transformational projects by both public and
private sector clients is a strong endorsement
of our urkanisation capabilities.

Singapore's newast lifestyle precinct
The complation cf Paya Lebar Quarter
{PLQ) this year marks the culmination of
afour year jourr.ey which has delivered a
2.$4 billion busiaass and lifestyle precinct
for Singapore.

Bid in joint venture with the Abu Dhabi
Investment Authcity (ADIA) in 2015, the
four hectare site wias originally avacant pict,

Going forward, we have a eritical
role to play in the ongoing success
of the precinct, providing extensive
asset management services. We have
attracted a number of Si

The PLQ precinct

A bustling pedastrian friendly
precinct with & rich cultural heritage:

83,000 sgm of Grade A office space

across three towers

- Home to key Singaporean
and mutti national corporations
including Lendlease’s Asian
headquarters

and multi national corporations to the
precinct, as well as more than 200
leading retailers.

We are the fund manager for the

by
anew commercid hub.

Dalivered througn the integrated business
model, Paya Le'ar Quarter showcases

at $3.3 billion and have a 30 per cent
interest.

Paya Lebar Quarter showcases our

our ability to create a
safe and sustaingble mixed use city
precinct. It featu-es some of the highest
sustainability ratngs achievable and

has been recogn sed for showcasing
exemplary safety standards and innovation.

in large scale
urban regeneration projects, while
tapping into our local expertise of
operating in Singapore for more than
45 years.

OEOO®

which is valued 429 resic’

Retail mz} featuring more than
200 stor-es

~ Leading ratailers and alfresco dining

tial apartments

across thvee towers

- Directaaccess to shopping and
lifesty® amenities and transport

Community spaces including
public p aza, playgrounds and
roof gardens



Throug h
dhe best
Mcﬁccre capability is placemaking.

‘We aim to design places that are vibrant
and authentic. They are crafted and
thoughtfully curated to help people feel
safe, belong and thrive.

We view placemaking as a collaborative
process that enables physical spaces

10 meet people’s needs and resonate with
their aspirations. The places we create are
meaningful, appealing and enduring.

creating
places

By doing this, we create value for all
stakeholders.

Bringing 1ogether design and living
metrics provides a framework to assess
ing. This alsa pravides a method

is our it ag
and a commercial imperative for us to
remain the partner of choice. Not only is
it key to sacuring projects and attracting
capital, we see it as our responsibility
and the legacy we will leave for future
generations.

Great places are accessible and
convenient; activated and sociable;

and genuine and

1o identify pricrities and inform investment
decisions.

Understanding the histery of the land and
precincts we reinvigorate is fundamental
1o curation of place. Acknowledgement
and genuine respect for heritage provides
context and enhances place creation.

Lonoon: Imarnasenal Cuarter Lemdon

The Wellbeing Capital —
International Quarter London

Adjacent to the 2012 London Olympic
site, International Quarter London (IQL)
anchors the transformation of the district
into London’s newest cultural quarter and
a desirable place to live and work.

Inspired by Stratford’s rich cultural
heritage and nurtured by its Otympic
legacy, QL has been designed to
encourage movement, interaction,
engagement and creativity. It features
state of the art workspaces that promote
wellbeing and i i

Londlease Annual Raport 2020 Craating Together —@

We create place by responding to the
common interests of all stakeholders,
enlisting bold thinking and applying a

visionary approach.

Connected Comimunity —
Yarrabilba

In Q 's South East, we are

as well as a varisty of outdeor meeting
spaces in the precinct’s three acres
of parklands.

In the public realm, plant life and foliage
are being chosen to efiminate the need
for chemical pesticides, and pollination
by insects is being encouraged 1o reduce
airborne allergans. A variety of bird
species are being targeted for inclusion in
a biodiversity strategy that recognises the
psychological benefils of birdsong.

IQUs lasting contribution will be the
richness of the social, economic and
individual wellbeing it helps create
amongst all who visit.

eOO®

building a complete community from
the ground up. Drawing on a fich and
diverse heritage, Yarrabilba, or ‘place
of song' in Wangerriburra/Bundjalung
language, is set 1o become home to
more than 45,000 residents.

More than a quarter of the 647 hectares
will become parkland, sporting fields

and nature sanctuaries, all linking to the
surrounding bushland rich in history.
Residents will benefit from a lively, heatthy
lifestyle provided by easy access to

green open spaces and innovative leisure
facilities that offer a balance of community
and nature.

Yarrabilba offers an inspiring new address,
where peopte are given the opportunity to
grow and prosper. It is a fresh new place
that residents feet proud to call home.

O®

Syoney: Butangamn Seauth

The Streets of Barangaroo —
Barangaroo South, Sydney
Barangaroo South introduced six new
streets, lanes and walkways 1o the city,
‘each taking its name from an historical
aspect of the site and showcasing a very
distinct purpose and personality.

These streets became the heart of
placemaking for the precinct. Home to a
highly curated mix of cafés, restaurants,
bars and retail stores, they also act as
public thoroughfares, places 1o eat and
meet, and a civic canvas for a diverse
program of events and activations.

Innovative collaborations with the City of
Sydney, local community groups, artists
and commercial partners anhance the
place by continually introducing diverse
and inspiring experiences within the
precinet that are accessible 1o all.

®®
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From client to partner To successfully deliver a project of Understanding before the shovel hits the
this scale, we have assembled a cross ground how a project will look, feel, work

G T . - Lendlease prides itself on building long functional team of experts to explore and impact the environment will simplify
. term partnarships with institutions, solutions to same of the industry’s most interdependencies in the decision making
PN landowners and investors across the globe.  rocing mattars, such as lack of affordable  process and allow us 1o achieve a more
) This has been no different with Google. housing, i ith ion, and ive, safer and efficient approach
3+, ‘What b traditic i i creating opportunit: hway 1o the life of the projects.
Whether it's urban redevelopment fhat bagan a2 raditlona) clent service 9 opportunfty pathways: project
. . o relationship to help build Google's Devel t grounded Moreover, the built environment wa create
projects, nation building HQhas evolved and, in 2017, we expanded  Development g a5 2 result of thess insights willcreate
infrastruct h as hospitals o Pl ‘:’h"‘{mkw"" g in di n solutions more tailored and adaptable toits
es within their pro ings !
infrastructure such as hospita o ihe SonFrancnco oy e, Aromuing  WTohe projcts may be grounded in U661 11 explorng thse new approzchos
. and universities, or fostering long twoyear consuhtancy helped us n being  the physical world, it is undeniable that i our i .
» locted as th forrad will power a of human experience with a more affordable,
. P selected as the preferre ation w hurnar ce
a ' l e rl I’ l term investment relationships, we ot 1 it ndonment s patfour o Plve et e
. H of residential, retail, hospitality, and across all our prejects we wil arness This is an extraordinary opportunity for
create lasting legacies through sacated o e e hres tis potenal and seec o recogrise Lenleace, and st he begining of
H . major cities in the Bay Area. e significant advantages it may offer is important partnership as we help
collaborative partnering. ’ 4 in building more lvable, efficient and Google realise their vision for mixed use
sustainable communities. communities.

@OO®
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&E_u_sted partner for the
wwstralian Department
AL

Q;Defence

e .
waere named the top infrastructure

icontractor for the Australian Department

f Defence in FY20.
During the year we were selected to
complete several large new contracts
including the delivery of training fac
at HMAS Watson, the Navy's principal
navigation training facility in Sydney
Harbour, and new facilities to support
the operation and maintenance of
offshore patrol vessels at HMAS Stirling
in Western Australia.

@O®

Providing critical health
infrastructure

In the past decade, we have proudly
delivered more than 50 public and private
hospitals and health related projects
across Australia.

Our expertise was recognised by the

Q and NSW with

‘Unlocking on
underutilised
riverside location
in London

Leading UK housing
association, Peabody,
selected us to jointly
deliver 11,500 homes

at Thamesmead
‘Waterfront in London.
The 250 acre site is
currently undeveloped
and benefits from
2.5km of river frontage.
The project will
rejuvenate the exisling
town centre and create
new cultural, community
and commercial spaces.
N

N7
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Birmingham: Burnanjtain Swithbctd

Transport enabled
development opportunities
in London

We have been selected as the preferred
development partner by Birmingham City
Council to deliver a $2.8 billion urban
quarter incorporating more than 2,000

he

the awarding of two significant projects:
the Caboolture Hospital redevelopment,
which includes design and construction

of a five storey clinical services buikding to
increase hospital capacity; and the main
works contract to build the Prince of Wales
Hospital’s new Acute Services Building,
part of the NSW Government’s $720
million Randwick Campus Redevelopment.

@O®

d a new site for the city's historic
Bullring retail markets.

Birmingham Smithfield will be a short

walk from the new High Speed 2 (HS2)
terminus station. Phase One of HS2 will link
Birmingham to London, and the line will
terminate at Euston Station, adjacent to the
site of our $10.9 billion urbanisation project.

PO®
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Investment partner
relationships

Qurinvestment partners have unique
access 1o Lendlease’s leading development
capability and pipeline, with investments
focused on generating sustainable, long
term returns.

Throughout the year we progressed several
initiatives with investmant partners.

In Milan, we introduced PSP Investments
10 the platform through a 50/50
partnership to develop Milano Santa Giulia.
The $4 billion urban regeneration project
is expected to deliver more than 2,500
residential units, 124,000 sqm of office
space and 108,000 sqm of retail, leisure
and entertainment areas. The first phase of
the partnership will develop ¢.50,000 sqm
of office space across two buildings, which
are already c.85% pre leased.

In the residential for rent sector, a further
two buildings at Elephant Park were

put into delivery under our existing

UK Residential Investment Partnership
with CPP Investments. In the US, our
partnership with First State Super
committed to developing 2 further
residential butlding at our Southbank
urban regeneration project in Chicago.
Wa launched the Lendlease Global
Commercial REIT in Singapore and listed
on the Singapore Exchange. The REIT was
seeded with the Lendlease developed
313@somerset retail centre and three
office properties adjacent 1o our Milano
Santa Giulia project.

We were selected by TCorp, the
investment and financial management
partner of the New South Wales public
sector, to manage a ¢.$1.5 billion
diversified property portfolio. The
mandate has subsequently grown to
include an additional asset and is now
valued at ¢.$2.1 billion.

@e®

Anises mpression

A step closer to Milan’s
new innovation ecosystem

Working collaboratively with the Arexpo
SpA Group, planning consent was
received for Phase One of the Milan
Innovation District, a 100 hectare mixed
use redevelopment set to regenerate
the site of the 2015 World Expo. Dubbed
a‘real city in the city’, the precinctis

set to become a world leading science,
knowledge and technology hub.

Separately, transformation of the broader
precinct has begun with work uaderway
on the Galeazzi Hospital. Following an
international competition, a design has
been chosen far the Human Technopole
- 2 new building for scientific research.
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By e ’ I 7 TEF i g7 Promoting diversity in construction industry employment

Increasing participation of under in jon is a Lendlease
social sustainability focus area. This year, the Lendlease Foundation expanded its
construction industry employment barrier reduction program in Chicago with the faunch
of 2 new funding partnership with HIRE360, a worlorce development organisation made | _ P
up of construction industry wide partners. endlease support for

HIRES60 acts 25 a hub for job candidates seekingto start careers through apprenticeship  \UStralian bushfire recovery

(;: O I ' | - 5 R i) Rl g ¥ & . " i 1raining programs in the building trades, offering a one stop shop for job seekersto receive  In response to the devastating bushfires
C 4 ‘ 3 y B mentoring, enro! in training, connect with trades employers and other support services. in Australia, the Lendlease Foundation
5 3 As of Aprit 2020, the funding has benefited 54 job seekers including high numbers of worked with partners to directly support

women, minorities and veterans. All 54 were either accepted into or in the process of
applying to and pursuing an apprenticeship program at the time of service provision.

‘communities in need immediately and for
the long term.

Lendlease and our employees from
around the world helped raise more than
$1 million 10 assist the Australian Red
Cross in i ities most
affected by bushfires. Working with our
partner, Landcare, plans are underway to
identify i ployt i
projects tied to the support and recovery of
communities affected by bushfires as part
of the Lendlease 2020 Community Day
later this year. In addition, ten Lendlease
Community Grants have been allocated
to help bushfire affected community/non
profit organisations.

@e®

Two For Tea And A Chat
COVID-19 has had significant impact

on our Retirement L 3
opportunities for social interaction and
connection. In response, we developed

a national program designed to better
connect residents isolated by social
distancing requirements. The program
included ‘Two For Tea And A Chat’ weekly
calls to participating residents from
Lendlease employees and volunteers.

Our employees’ children have also been
encouraged to send letters or drawings to
residents as a thoughtful surprise.

Lonoon: Sitvartcenn Orwiys

personal use o

A place to call home -

Community consultation — The partnership is commifiedto
Siigertown Quays oy sl g Foesbops s sndome i
nd Elephant Park development process. initiative grounded in the belief that

Cs?gaging with the community is an As well as providing high quality homes, everyona needs a place to call home.

infpdrtant part of Lendlease’s approach jobs and business opportunities, Elephant The aim of FutureSteps is to empowar

10 urban regeneration and the creation Park is centred around a park, providing a vulnerable people by partnering with

of thriving, sustainable communities that new graen public space for the Elephant established not for profit organisations

‘ara-rich in cufture and context. London’s and Castle community. To ensure the park 10 boost the avaitabifity of quality

Silvertown Quays and Elephant Park reflected local aspirations, we provided accommodation and support servicas,

exemplify this approach. the opportunity for those who live in, work and by investing in targeted skilling,

Silvertown Quays wil provide thousands " O Vit Elephant Parkto inputto the training and jobs programs.

of new homes and non residential park's design. FutureSteps has awarded close to

spaces for commercial, retail, hote! Both projects have initiated a range of $200,000 in grants and provided more

and community use. The Silvertown activities 1o ensure consultation and than $170,000 in kind to program partnars

Partnership, a joint venture between engagement including workshops, public via skilled volunteering and procurement

Lendlease and Starwood Capital, aims exhibitions and site tours, open days, savings. We will continue to expand

1o create a place that is innovative walking tours and digital communications. FutureSteps with revenue from our

and environmentally sustainable and Australian residential business.
will provide tangible benefits for the

Tocatcommurity fot thelong erm @O®®




By looking
into the fut

)
~Digital twin technology combines
‘geometry, physics and process o create
a digital rehearsal of the built world.
‘While this technology has been around
since the early 2000s, its application in
the construction and property industry is
relatively new and facilitated by advances
in the Internet of Things and increased
cost affectiveness.
Inthe past year, we have accelerated the
development of our digital twin capability
and expertise. Our goal is 1o drive disruption
inthe property and construction industry
to deliver better outcomes in safety, cost

and time savings, risk management and
sustainability, We have taken a leading
role in championing this technology
through partnering with government,
industry and academia. This has included
becoming a founding member of the
Digita! Twin Consortium, a global group of
users working togsther to accelerate the
digital twin market and demonstrate the
value of technology. Chaired by Bill Ruh,
CEO Digital, Lendlease, the consortium
includes companies such as Ansys, Dell
Technologies and Microsoft.

Accelerating

digital twin adoption

in the property
and construction

We have also partnered with the NSW
Department of Customer Service

10 establish the NSW branch of the
Digital Twin Consortium, Through the
NSW Government spatial twin, we are
collaborating to share anonymised data
across public and privately owned spaces
and building assets.

This will provide NSW with insights that
help improve planning and decision
making in the development of new places
within the state. It will also enable access
1o critical data for our first responders in
the event of an emergency.

OLE®

Carbon neutral -
building a better world

We are committed to creating
strategic resilience across our business
and addressing the climate impacts of
our business with greater focus and
direct action.

In line with our Carbon Target and
building on our Australian construction
business’ achievement of net zero carbon
in FY19, we have commitments in place
for assets representing more than $12
billion in Gross Asset Value to operate

at a net zero carbon basis by 2025.

In December 2019, ous business signed
up as the first property and infrastructure
company to become a member of the
ResponsibleStee! initiative, which aims to
drive low to zero carbon steel solutions
for our supply chain. Also at the end of
last year, Barangaroo South was certified
by the Commonwealth Government as
Australia’s first carbon neutral precinct.
Qur carbon neutral innovation
achievements were also recognised this
‘year with selection as a finalist in Fast
Company's Best World Changing Ideas
APAC category for our holistic efforts

1o change what we create and how we
create it to be carbon neutral.

@O®®
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New digital mentor
technolcgy supports
project management
excellence globally

Key to thriving in our
industry is the ability
to anticipate and even
initiate technological
disruption.

An important digital technology initiative
that has begun roll out at Lenclease is
the One Lendlease Interactivedigital
mentor platform, or ‘OLi’ as it s more
commonly known. Its purpose is to help
us more consistently deliver projects

via an endorsed Lendlease Way so that
customers experience the same high
quality products and services oelivered at
scale anywhere in the world.

OLi integrates all traditional project
management steps into the process and
digitises the full project lifecycle, from
business development and origination
1o delivery, asset management and
potentially divastment. Once fully
rolled out, this global too! will connect
our people with our best practice
Knowledge Gateway, pre populate digital
templates, systematise the irvestment
committee process, and automate team
task management, Additiona! future
capabilities will include project team

ion space, project mobilisati
and resourcing tools and a dynamic
approval system that adjusts 1o changing
project characteristics.

@O®
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Area f locus

Material issue

Qur five focus
areas of value
creation

How we delver value
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Thay underpin our ability to create

- ecor omic, safe and sustainable
cucomes for our customers, partners,
escwityholders and the community.

We measure our
success by the

posit va outcomes
we ganerate through
five focus areas.

Value created

\JFilz we approach our focus areas with
& innovative mindset, our decisions are
supported by disciplined governance and
s ranagement.

How we measure value

>

)

SG
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Hzalth
and Safety

Operating safely across our
operations and projects.
Maintaining the health and
wellbeing of our employees
and those who engage with
our assets and sites.

We zre cormitted to the safety of our people and those w0
interact wr h our assets and sites Through our Glsba Misimum
Reqtirements (G /IRs) we opersta to  consistant s'andaid across
all operaticns. Thase GMRs ext«ad to physical sa’ecy anc feople’s
men-al heath anc wellbeing. ~

Operating se¥ely helps paople feel valued B
and caredtfo,, and fundamentally makes

us more consistent, reliab.e and efficient 1

in everythngwe do.

Percentage of projects with no critical indidents: A critical incdent i= an
event that has tha potantial to cause death or parmanant disaility. This 's 2k
indicator unique to Lendlease.

Critical Incident Frequency Rate: A Lendlease indicator maasar’ n; tlerata =
of critical incidents.

Lost Time Injury Frequency Rate: An indicator and industry standard
measuring a workplace injury which prevents a worker from retJming to
duties the next day.

(8

Delivering securityholder retums.
Maintaining strong capital

management to support ongoing
investment in our future pipeline.

We dbliver "eturn : to ou- securityholdars and zdoot = prud-ent
approach to capital managemert with a view to r an:ainng a
strong bafasce shaet throughor market cycles.

Margins, fees and ownership raturns across
Development Construction and Investments.
Our Portfoilo Managemen: Framework sets tange:
guidelines “or how we marage our portiolio.  *

Return on Equity: The annual Profit after Tax attributable to avarage
securityholders’ equity throughout the year.

Earings per Security: Profit after Tax attributable to securtyhaklers divided .
by the average aumber of securities an issue during the year. E
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Qur
Custorrers

L ling our

and responding to changes in the
market. Designing and delivering
innovative, customer driven
solutions 10 win the projects we
want to win and uhtimately deliver
1he best places.

a process of conti i based cr
customer insights and actions id 2atified through ma-ket res2arch.
This approazh alsc consiszently measures customer 3s tisfzation
and advocasy.

Evolves ou aility to imprcve the customer
experiance, b ilding our brand and reputation,
enabling us tc win more work and grow our N
business. Cusomr feedback also provides grester
insight i and i
opportunities.

Customer satisfaction and advocacy tracked: Measured at theredioral and _
business unit level and reported regu!arlym our. Globa! Lezdership Team.

Action plans are in tha customer.
experience, supporting the delivery ard growth of our developmient pipefine,,
construction backlog and funds under management.

&

F%°)

Our Fzople

Attracting, devaloping and
retaining diverse talent. Ensuring
we have the right capability
across the organisation to delivar
results for all stakeholders.

We atract, Ceveloo and retain diverse talent by builcitg a zulture
of colbboration and continuous [2aming, where suzcesses are
recognised ar.d people are rewardad. We invest in dewelof
leaders and <apab’ities to drive cur success.

Capable and rotivated people committed 1o =

the Iong term =uccess of cur busmass Eﬂscllve
slznning and

support business continuity and can reduce riste.

Diversity of theught and experience can suppor:

innovation, tnewledge sharing and better decisen

making. *

_ female representation across our business.

Retention of key talent: The organisation benefits from itsinvescrent™n &
leaders and key workforce capabilities.

Succession strength: Demonstrates depth of capable talent. readno

progress into leadership roles.

Leadership positions held by women: Demonstrates our brcader -
commitment to diversity and inclusion, and our objective of inc-eating

i

Sustaimakility

Managing and optimising our
performance in the context

of challanges facing the buitt
environment, including climate
change and social pressures
such as population growth and
housing affordability.

As a signatosy to the United Natiams Gicbal Compact, ve are
committed te: the continuo.s improvement of our gperatioas.
We intagrata strategies ta mitigats the impact of clrace
change. For exampe, as a developer Lendlease is cormnittec
1o the ereatian of rred green

and precinct: and dimate resilien- ommunities. W2 aimta
deliverinclusve, healthy and adartable places that zen thrive
through change.

in linability enhances

our brand a1d ’s a competitive differentiator. it =
also provides more cpportunities to partaer with
governments, iavestors and the private sector
who are placing increasing importance around
Environmen-al 3ocial Governance (ESG) mattere.

" targets and the tangible examples of the ways in which we zre ad

o, and reporting on our progress towzrds our surtaiaatility

our sustainability imperatives:

Carbon Target: We are a 1.5°C atigned company: Es
~ Net zero carbon scope 1and 2 by 2025

- Absolute zero carbon by 2040

Social Target: Create $250m of social value by 2025.




FY20 has reinforced that the
Elth and safety of our people,
n

C those who interact with
operations, is Lendlease’s
number one priority.

GI[L 3year of unprecedented events, wo
recorded improvements across a number
@ fkie)y indicators.
Performance metrics
-ACTOss our organisation we have seen
Critfal incident and lost time injury
frequency rates at the lowest rates

Tecorded since we commenced reporting
on these metrics, with the percentage

[—ofoperations without a critical incident

\Sonsecutive year. These results are
1gstament to the dedicated focus of
ourteam"

eratlons without
C/ntlcal Incident'
Oy ——=
Crio. I

@Eical Incident

Frgguency Rate
iy

wis | GEl

@m -90 per cent or above for the fourth

Health
and Safety

These key metrics were trending towards
new record low levels prior to COVID-19,
which impacted the end of the financial
year. Maintaining these low frequency rates
during the COVID-19 period demonstrates
the diligence of our operational teams

in retaining a focus on workplace safety

in the midst of applying a range of new
workplace practices and protocols,

Fatality
Despite a si

1n addition, an online learning module
was developed as part of our mandatory
fearning requirements. This module
addressed the revised ways of working
and directed our people to support
services available to those whose mental
health has been affected.

Objectives and targets
In support of Lendlease’s ongoing
commitment to health and safaty, we

performance across a wide range of
safety metrics, it is with much sadness
that we report a fatality on one of our
operations during FY20.

Tragically, in September 2019, a

construction worker was seriously

injured in a critical incident on a project

in Kuala Lumpur where Lendlease is the
manager. While

Loy

Q

st Time Injury
Frequency Rate®

from surgery in hospital, the man
an infection and

arange of
targets to be applied from FY21to help
re-affirm our purpose when it comes 1o
health and safety, as well as establishing
a broader range of key performance
indicators.
To coincide with this revised approach,
updated Global Minimum Requirements
(GMRs) will be released in FY21. The
GMRs are the global standards we apply
10 environment, health and safety across

passed away.

We extend our deepest sympathies to
the family, friends and colleagues of the
deceased worker.

COVID-19

The onset of COVID-19 resulted in

all our ions and the updated
standards will be the fourth edition of the
GMRs since first released in 2008.

The Lendlease view is that a place

that cares is a safe place to work.

To demonstrate how this approach is
applied through the lens of our operations,
we have aset of in

across

1. A Critieat Inci that coued, or had

in the scope of our health and safety
objectives. In response 1o the pandemic,
we developed a range of global standards
addressing project shutdown protocols,
pevsonal screemng 101 people amerlng our

[
Dnitanindicator niaueto Lendease. 2. The

COVID 19 spemﬁc personal protective

Critical Inciden
tapraddas o oftonces por 1000,000, hours
3. Tho Lost Tim Injury Fregquency

(u
1,000,000 hours worked.

and protocols in
the event of confirmed cases.

line with our core values.

In future reports we will supplement the
incident frequency rate metrics already
provided in this report with a wider range
of health and safety metrics that have a
greater focus on feading indicators.

The broader range of leading and lagging
indicators will provide a more rounded
approach to health and safety as well as
the resulting performance.
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Eliminating work at height
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The Osbome South Development Project (OSDP) in South Australia involvad the
assembly of a collection of targe scale industrial facilities - the largest of which sozns

187m long, 87.4m wide and standing 50m high.

In bringing together innovation and safety, the project team was able t develcp
techniques to assemble the walls and roofing structuras at ground level — withtre
vertical elements then raised into position mechanically, andthe roof structure then
undergoing strand jacking o be fifted into position.

Meticulous planning resutted in thousands of hours of work at height being eliminated

and the results were widely acknowledged by the client, the Australian Department

of Defence.

Revised constructicn methods

The 17 storey towers and town homes that
comprise 845 Wast Madiscn in Chicago
ncludes 586 residences.

During the planning and construction
phases of the project, a number of
substantial changes to locally accepted
construction methodologies were applied
that provided significant benefits 1o the
project and the workers involvad.

The project has adopted revised methods
for erecting interior core platforms and
elevator shafts, revised structural formwor<
systems, and altered the approach 1o the
fagade of the building — all with the intent
of delivering safe yet productive outcomes.

Traditiorally high rise projects have their
amenities on the ground floor. We have
designed an innovative so'ution to
provide fully furctioning facilities that are
transferred fioor to floor as the structure
takes shape "0 support our workers.

The workers on the project have provided
the uMtimate compliments:

“Never thought there weuk: be
a full restrocm :ota'ly plunted,
heated, and with proper
sanitation on a warking, deck”
Tradesmen

“If | could work on a grojest
like this throughou- the rest of
my career, | wouldtake it ma
heartbeat”

15 Year Pipefitter
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g Our approach to financial perfformance
“The-Portfolic Management Framework
(Fr?)vidss struzture and financial
My "

Cdus;.phne across the operating segments
of Blevelopment, Construction and
Investments. 1t is designed to maximise
rjsk adjusted returns for securityholders

nd'deliver vlue for our customers.

G-gmbining the three operating segments
[§verages the competitive advantaga of

@qﬁ? jptegroted model, enhancing valua
for/our securityholders, partners and
(heﬁommunily. This has included award
Winping and innovative design excellence,

=the/dreation of better public places and
Superior sustainability solutions.

Financial strategy
The-Portfolio Management Framework is

1\ e~:‘:ore of our financial strategy.
‘i framework sets target guidelines and
iSdesigned to:

« Maximise long term securityholder
value through a diversified, risk adjusted

p%rtfoﬁo
1 @evemge the competitive advantage of

(i integrated model

¢/Qptimise our business performance
E!alive 10 the outlook for our markets

g ©on a long term basis
-o-Provide finanzial strength to execute
'B‘U‘rslratssy. maintain an investment
G gride credit rting, and capacity to both
bsorb and respond to market volatility.
The‘ §roup is currently reviewing the
Vrary;e\;l‘ork in conjunction with the
rategy review. The revised framework
will be provided in FY21.

Financial

How we measure financial performance
When measuring financial performance,
vse focus on Return on Equity and
Earnings per Security to measure the
returns we achieve for our i

Portfolio Management
Framework

The Portfolio Management Framework
outlines target returns at a segment level.
These returns are used to derive a Return
on Equity target within the 10 to 14 per
cent range, and Earnings per Security
used to make distributions within the

40 10 60 per cent payout ratio target.
FY20 - equity raising

On 28 April 2020, the Group

announced the launch of an equity
raising via an institutional placement

and Security Purchase Plan (SPP) to
eligible securityholders. The Group
raised $950 million via the institutional
placement and $260 million via the

SPP at the offer price of $9.80 per new
security, resulting in the issue of a total
of 123.4 million new fully paid ordinary
stzpled securities.

Detailed financial performance

and outlook

For detailed information on our FY20
financial performance as measured under
the Portfolio Fi

Maximising long term
securityholder value

1. Capital allocation

Focused on gateway cities

referto the Performance and Outlook
section on pages 76 o 89 and the
Financial Statements on pages 142 to 205.

Australia 50-70%

International regicns 5-20%'
Business model

Integrated model synergies

Target EBITDA mix:

Development 40-50%

Construction 10-20%

tnvestments 35-45%

3. Target returns

Group ROE 10-14%

D ROIC 10-13%*

Construction EBITDA margin  2-3%

Investments ROIC 8-ti%r

4, Capital structure

Investment grade credit rating

Optimised Weighted
Average Cost of Capital

Target gearing® 10-20%

5. Distribution policy

Payout of earnings 40-60%

Capital management discipline

1. Per region. 2. Thraugh cycls target bazed on
rofling three to five year timeline. 3. Gearing
it tototal 2ot h
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Qur customers range from

individuals to the largest
government, investment and
o/porate organisations.

Successful customer relationships depend
Con bur ability to understand what is
Arfy important to customers and then

@elivenng ‘what they want.

'Customer experience research
OUér the past three years, our global

E=custbmer experience research program
nzs‘been embedded across all regions.
Thé'program helps us understand how
customers perceive their experiences
with us and identify where we can
impove. It also guides decision making
Gclstomer experience improvement

[_nll'\lng and new product and service

aevelopmenl

Cﬁrmo , approximately 25,000 customers
participated in our customer satisfaction
(C “SAT rating) and loyalty (NPS rating)
research an increase of approximately

( mu) ercent on FY19. Notwithstanding
me & impact of events such as the
CGVID 19 pandemic, Brexit and the

bushfires, our

Qur

Customers

small upward NPS result for B2C and small
downward movement for B2B, with C-SAT
remaining steady. Overall C:

Customer snapshot’

results saw a small downward movement
in NPS. Investment Management had a
solid increase in NPS and small positive
increase in C-SAT.

Customer experience foedback clustered
around relationship performance, service
delivery and product quality. Strength of
relationships drives trust and provides

a buffer in difficult times. Highly skilled
employees embed confidence in the

200 million

Retail visitors annually
(approximate)

110,000

Residents in US Military Housing

whilst having a
cultural fit can provide a strong input into
driving elements onnm akey driver
of customer for

471,000

B2B customers).

Customers also highlighted the
importance of having customer centric
service delivery and communication
processes to keep them informed, resolve
problems and respond effectively in
atimely manner. Product quality, and

a positive experience with Lendlease
products, gives

Residents across apartments
and communities® (approximate)

17,000

Retirement living residents
(approximate)

and is a key factor in future

and advocacy. The ability to “go the extra
mile and add value (beyond price) results

1hi year remained steady and positive.
The-Development portfolio results saw a

justifying their purchase/
|nvestman( decision.

Customer experience
improvement initiatives

Each year across Lendlease a range
of customer experience improvement

initiatives are implemented to improve
customers’ and residents’ experiences.

Customer facing digital portal

In the UK, in collaboration with the Global
Residential Practice, a customer facing
digital portal is being developed and
progressively implemented to improve the
customer experience by enabling tailored
communication with the customer. This
wiil empower customers to do what they
want, when they want and interact more
easily with Lendlease all the way through
their journey.

Military Housing Privatisation
Initiative (MHPI) Customer
Care Program

Our US Communities business launched
a customer care program with the vision
10 provide outstanding customer service
1o communities where military families
five, work and thrive. The program is
based on a commitment to six pillars: to
provide Safe and Healthy Homes, Quality
and Consistent Service Experience,
Communication and Education,
Organisationat Culture of Caring, Sense
of Community, and Sense of Value. As a
result, we have successfully identified and
are implementing new ways of listening
toand engaging with more than 110,000
residents in over 40,000 homes.

At the centre of our resident engagement
strategy is our intent to establish a
Resident Advisory Board (RAB) in each
of our Army and Marine Corps/Navy
communities. These RABs are designed
10 give residents the opportunity

1o directly work with local property
management teams to help shape their
community, express their concerns,
share their ideas and suggestions, and to
work directly with them to develop and
implement effective solutions.

Retirement Living

connecting residents

The Australian Retirement Living business
launched a new free app called Lendlease
Together, designed to help residents feel
more connected to their community, keep
informed and easily access their friends,
family and the village management team.
Using the app, residents and their family
and friends can access the latest village
news, wellbeing ideas and resident stories
as well as video chat with loved ones.
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COVID-19 drives customer
rewards program innovation

Our Singapore shoppers’ rewards program
and app, Lendtease Plus, launched several
new COVID-19 stimulated offets in FY20
12 the program’s approximately 128,000
members. This included new fcod delivery
special offers with partners GrabFood,
foodpanda and deliveroo, designed 1o
support custcmers who did not want to
Isave home and provide indirect support
1o participating fcod and beverage
retailers. Members could also donate
reward dollars to Willing Hearts, a local
meal delivery charity supportirg people in
need during the COVID-19 period.
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Our people are the greatest
contrlbutors to our success
( enable us to fulfil our vision
create the best places.

Aswe continue to grow our influence
(Qmemmmnzw,me way we work is
l4udting. Together with our partners,
wieaim to deliver large scale projects
fa’&ér by drawing on innovation,
sharing,

Our People

Our target retention rate for key talent
i5.90 per cent or higher across all talent
programs. This year we achieved a
retention rate of 91 per cent.

In FY20, our pipefine of successors for key
leadership roles, along with the number of
fomales in our succession poo!, increased.
For sanior executive positions, we have a
targat of three unique successors and in
our FY20 talent and succession review,
75 per cent of senior executive positions
met this targe While the number of unique
s d d, the readiness of

[—and-our diverse and capable
Ourambmon is to create awork
—envifonment that:

» Values and cares for its people, with
safety and wellbeing our priority

-Has inspirational leaders who others
@ 43pire to emulato
b

Isteam oriented, inclusive and diverse

+~Fosters a unique culture that balances
innovation, knowledge sharing and risk
‘management.
Cl':‘o\.'.upponmese ambitions, our people
rgtegy has focused on developing
l’ea/devship excellence, codifying and
@s a[ing knowledge globally, creating
a ccnsmamly positive employee
‘experience, and developing and deploying
&ounalam globally.
(Re‘l?lopmg and deploying key talent
As e scale of placemaking increases,
Wae-continue to invest in developing
ixcapability of our people to deliver.
C'rm i investment is across all career stages,
rcrﬁ_ilv global graduate program to
our Construction Director Program and
Urbanisation Project Director Program.

/e-currently have 404 of the brightest

new,graduates across our four operating
Creg}ons in our Globa! Graduate Program.
Noi/ in its fourth year, this program

erses the graduates in Lendlease
practices to accelerata their careers and
bulld lasting knowledge and relationships.

To deliver the best places we need

the best leaders on our projects. We
continue to grow our expertise in project
and construction delivery. In FY20, we
had 39 senior leaders participate in our
Construction Director Program and
Urbanisation Project Director Program.

those successors has improved.

Succession strength’

 In ou- most recent People Survey, we

achieved a significant increase in the
effectiveness of leaders as measured
by thair direct employees. Improving
the effectiveness of our leaders remains
akeyfocus for us as we deliver our
global pipefine.

Workforce management

With 5 focus on preserving jobs and
reducing costs, a number of workforce
management actions were implemented
in resoonse to COVID-19.

Working with a set of globally consistent
princizles, leaders tailored their plans and
actiors based on the situation in each
location - in some cases accommodating
site specific requirements and accessing
support where it was

sN
s | m

Fr20 75%

Leadership positions
held by women?

3
-
~
w I
The employee experience
Listening to our people helps us to
create an environment and experiences
that support our employees. It provides
an environment where our people are
recognised and rewarded for living our
values and building the culture we need
10 create the best places.

We continuously communicate and

engage with our people in designing and

evolving the way we work o foster greater
ise wide i i

learning and open and transparent
dialogue.

As part of this open dialogue, we measure
the effectiveness of our leaders through
Our People Survey, conducted every six
months. During the year, we embarked
on a targeted Leadership Excellence
Program to build leadership capability.
This focused on direction setting, leading
effective teams and regular and open
communication.

availale. This enabled us to implement
workfcrce management actions that our
peopls understood and were relevant to
their lacal experience.

The range of actions include reduced
pay far a temporary period without
acorrasponding reduction in hours,
reducad hours of work, furloughs and
stand downs and, in a limited number of
cases, tedundancies.

3. Fordl sanior executive posltions, we have a target of thres unique succesaors. Wo defie this
mare

acrozs
including executive fevel roles.

is
oftevels in 10 Lendlease Career Job Framewark,
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Wellbeirig.
o

Mental Health First Aid

Lendlease has long had a focus on the health and wellbeing of its people and developed
a holistic framework and initiatives to promote and support this focus. Since 2014,
Lendlease has partnered with Mental Heafth First Aid (MHFA) to help our people identify
and support mental health in the workplace. In FY20, we trained 186 employees and now
have more than 1,850 trained MHFA Officers globally.

To expand our support of mental health in the workptace, we launched the MHFA
Leaders Program with more than 400 leaders completing the training, The program aims
o provide our people leaders with the tools and skills to support employees with mental
health issues.

Mental health support is part of the wider Lendlease health and wellbsing framework and
for the sacond year wa hava been certified as a ‘Heatthy Workplace' by the Global Centre
for Haalthy Workplaces.

Knowledge
sharing

To better codify and share our global
intellectual property (IP), in 2019 we
launched two ‘Practices’; Urbanisation and
Residential Development,

These practices bring together a
community of senior sector leaders
and subject matter experts to develop
specialist sector IP that is available to
anyone in Lendlease.

Direct guidance from practice affiliate
members, as well as access to expert
validated knowledge, boosts cur peoples’
professional development. It also protects
our IPif an individual leaves the business.

Joining 2 practice as an affiliate member
is an aspiration of our most accomplished
subject matter experts. It is recognition
of a person’s abilities, commitment to
and i

Attracting future talent
Since the launct: of our Globa! Graduate Program four years ago, we have welcomed
924 of the best and brightest students 1o our organisation. Our two year program offers
a breadth of experiances designed to accelerate learning and readiness of graduates.

Itisan not only for the grad

1o our knowledge sharing culture.
Our practices clearly articulate the
expectations of our affiliate members
and foster the behaviours that are key to
Lendlease maintaining our position as an
industry leader.

represented groups in our industry.

Health and wellbeing response
to COVID-19

In response to COVID-19, Lendiease

putin place a range of measures across
our global operations to support our
people’s health and wellbeing.

Hardship and Wellbeing Fund

The Lendlease Rardship and Wellbeing
Fund was established 1o support team
members impacted by COVID-19 who
need short term help to cover the essentials
and expenses of everyday life. This includes
things like a mortgage or rental payment,
groceries, utilities and medical expenses.

Online programs

With most of our office based employees
working remotely due to COVID-19, we
were able to adapt our suite of health and
wellbeing programs to be delivered online.
The Roadmap to Wallbeing Program covers
nine topics themed around Productive
People, Performance Stamina and Positive
Connections. They are offered as one hour
bite sized workshops, short toolbox talks and
ten minute digital learning modules that can
be accessed at any ime from any device.

Leader webinars focused on equipping
our leaders ta support their teams as well
as a range of additional services such as
an online doctor service, maditation and
movement programs.

to learn but also for the organisation to
learn. Along with their formal learning pathway, we engage them in projects to create
innovative solutions and enhance operations across the crganisation.

Our entry level talent program is also an opportunity for us to focus on bringing a
diverse range of candidates into the organisation. In the past three years, we have
achieved a 50/50 gender balance globally, which builds a pipeline of talented women
for future leadership roles. We will continue to focus on providing opportunities to under
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Net zero carbon scope 1and 2 by 2025

Absolute zero carbon by 2040

=

—_——

Sustainability

@ptroducing our new
@s))ustainability targets

@#rvision is to live in a world warmed by no more
@tban 1.5°C and to be responsible for creating

=mgasured social value on the journey.

We are excited to launch these targets. They are our cail 10 action and will be our measure

of success as we begin the next chapter of our sustainability story. We are acutely aware

that these targets will be difficult to achieve - and believe it is this challenge that makes
@(x‘erﬁ worthwhile striving for. We look forward to working with and learning from our

Clieits, partners, tenants and supply chain as we create the pathways towards achieving
1h€se targets and supporting industry transformation.

Q@)ommitting to transformation

. . - L
Sustainability has always been a priority e . i g O

@fg’hpnﬁease. We have a long and proud To Create the Best Places . - Y i ad
Hisfory of leading the evolution of the

! built form to be more sustainable, with
umerous sustainability firsts achieved.

As a15°C aligned company, we aim

T Qune 2019, " g pany, we Taking action together
nJine , wa announced our new i totackle the climate <risis head on o 0 !
@éus‘xémahimy Framework fooungosr | ITIPeTatives while delivering cliont and sharcholder  With atarget as ambitious as ours, we What 15°C aligned means
offdrts on three global imperatives to value, maintair ing our employee need to collaborate with others. We are To combat climate change we need
deliver on our sustainability objectives and value proposition and honouring already working with our suppliers and o minimise global warming. 1.5°C
Cr_»glp'in achieving our vision to create the our sustainability legacy. Achiaving advecacy groups to develop multilateral is a reference to the level of global
best-places. 2zero emissions will bs approached fesponses to emissions in the buit warming we hope 10 help limit the
As the business has impl ted thi o by setting short, mecium and long environment. world 1o, based on pre industrial levels.
s the business has implemented this new T e ? : ) N
strategy, we realised we need to act faster : @ ee) S‘ term goals, addressing our immediate This year we announced our partnership Due to the amount of greenhouse
& 9y ' Focus Area: 8] - emissions activity, ar.d fostering indusry i

-a5-an industry to transform how wa design,
Zanstruct and manage the but form.
(Induslry collaboration is key to achieving
1hé4ype of radical change needed in our
sector. This includes changes such as

electrification of buildings and equipment,
isation of materials

Environmental

RESOURCES AND CUMATE
MATERIALS ACTION

NATURE AND
POLLUTION

participation and partnerships to help

raspond 1o wider, indirect emissions.

The following five steps are required to

achieve our target:

*. Create a decarbonisation investment
strategy in 2021

with ResponsibleSteel, becoming the
first property and investment company

10 join the initiative. ResponsibleSteel
brings together many innovative steel
suppliers and manufacturers, parinering
1o reduce emissions across the supply
chain. We also intend to play a similar role

gases (such as carbon) already in
the system, even with our bast
efforts, the planet is set to warm

by 1.5°C (it has already warmed to
1°C). With no change to current
practices, the planet wilt warm by
over 3°C, which will catastrophically

gy ¢ :
ardThe eradication of waste to landfill - Focus Area: \ér E«D 2. Phase out dissel and gas in our in advocating for low carbon cement. impact the ecosystem and lives.
all while maintsining our commitment to Social c " operations 9 Wa are also working in our gateway Cities The Paris Agreement is striving for
using our work as a platform for creating ECONOMIC COMMUNITY . 1o respond to the evolving demands of less than 2°C warming. The term
social value for those who live, work or PROSPERITY INCLUSION WELLEEING 3. Use 100% renewable electricity a zero carbon economy. After almost *1.5°C aligned’ is a commitment to
visit the places we create. before 2030 a decade of work in partnership with take actions to raduce our emissions
We have committed o two new Governance 4, Collaborate with supply chain partners the NSW Government, Barangaroo to the levels required to limit global

sustainability targets, aligned to our
framework and sustainability imperatives.
The targets have been set after
consultation and deliberation with clients,
partners and our employees.

o set pathways to zero carbon by 2040

5. Collaborate with our tenants and
residents to transition to renewable
electricity by 2049

South became Australia's first carbon
neutral precinct.

warming 1o 1.5°C.



Assessing shared value partnerships beyond
project and asset obligations

Using industry accepted methodology

Qur Corporate Social Value Target is
intended to demonstrate our corporate
Qéo itment to ereating social value in the
e
Corfimunities in which we operats, above
ngbeyond what we are requiredto do at
G@?ﬂgjem or asset level.

Thisiarget will account for our investment
in our corporate led, shared value
1[} partnerships. It is based on achieving
an-average 1:5 social value return on
vegtment, primarily via our Lendlease
@\ﬂdation. but also through other key
business initiatives such as FutureSteps.
[Work is underway 10 deploy new metrics
and data collection at the asset and
project level to allow us to expand this

target to include the social value we
create at that fevel.

We have also commenced work with a
naumber of social value evaluation experts
1o help develop industry accepted,
simplified, yet robust, social value
assessment methodologies 1o evolve

the social sustainability narrative beyond
philanthropic spend, to one of social value
created and the muttiplier of shared value
partnerships.

Partnering to increase the value

Key tothe success of our new social value
target is the shared value partnerships,
we will continue to establish and foster
via investment from our Lendlease
Foundation. Through our partnerships

we have been able to both deliver

and receive social value outcomes for

our communities, as well as our own
employees, who get to interact with

our partners in various ways, including
through volunteering.

It is incredibly rewarding to work with
partners on important social agendas
aligned to our Sustainability Framework
and even more exciting when we can
bring partners together to amplify
impacts. An example of this approach was
the use of Lendlease Foundation funding
at the start of the COVID-19 lockdown

to support The Pure Group, a social
enterprise that runs our Barangaroo café.
They were able to stay operational for a
period, employing staff to use our facilities
to prepare 4,000 meals that were then
shared with another partner, OzHarvest,

who delivered the meals to charities in
need. We have also been able to offer
-employees the opportunity to help pack
OzHarvest hampers for deployment to
charities around Australia.

What is ‘social value
measurement’

While there is no universally
accepted definition of ‘social value
measurement, it is essentially

a process to understand how
much positive social change has
occurred and can be attributed

10 the activities undertaken by an
arganisation. An assessment of
“social value' should account for the
many facets of fife that may affect
an individual's wellbeing, including
but not limited to: economic
circumstances, environmental
issues, education, physical and
mental health, and employment.
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Hindsight

Syonay: Barangarias

Alook back at the
20% by 2020 targets
(FY14 to FY20)

The Group's performance against the
2020 targets has fluctuated over the

past five years. Endorsed in July 2014,

our flagship 20 by 20 sustainability goals
included a 20 per cent reduction in
energy, water and waste sent 1o landfill for
our operations' by the end of FY20.

The targets were ambitious for the time
and aimed at driving meaningful change
across the organisation, as evidenced by
numerous initiatives that have made a big
impact to our energy, water and waste
performance over the years. There have
been a aumber of key lessons learned,
which we have applied to the drafting of
our new targets and metrics.

1n July we retired our 2020 energy, water
and waste targets.

Global Real Estate
Sustainability
Benchmark (GRESB)
leadership

FY20 was the fifth year in the past six
years that APPF Commercial has attained
1he prestigious number one global GRESB
ranking. Remarkably, the Fund has grown
ts net lettable area by 23 per cent over
the past six years, while simultanecusly
reducing its carbon footprint by

39 per cent.

Three other Lendlease funds achieved top
10 global rankings in the 2019 GRESB:

Lendlease International Towers
Sydney Trust (Towers Two and Three
and International House at Barangaroo)
- third globally overall and third in

the office sector (across listed and

unlisted funds)

* APPF Retail - global first in the retail
sector (across listed and unlisted funds)
and fifth overall

* Lendlease Sub Regional Retail Fund

- global third in the retail sector

(across listed and unlisted funds) and

tenth overall.

Locally across Australia and New Zealand,
APPF Industrial was ranked first in
industrial (unfisted) and Lendlease’s Asian
retail funds came first, second and third
place for unfisted Asia retail funds.

FY20 Performance (as at Q3)

Energy® - 20% reduction

Investment in new, more efficient assts, retrofitting of older assets and the development
of faster construction methods over the past five years has helped the business achieve
its 20% energy (intensity) reduction.

Water® - 6% reduction

Investment in efficient water fixtures and use of non potable water for construction
purposes has hefped the business reduce its water (intensity) use. Water intensive
tunnelling projects and challenges retrofitting older assets limited our ability to reach our
20% geal.

Waste® - 22% reduction

‘With most waste from our ion activities, i reuse pathways
(e.g.: recycled glass for road base) and partnerships with our suppliers to reduce
packaging, has helped the business reach its 20% reduction {waste 1o landfill) goal.

1. Energy Gona i it i on i wasts
il 2. The above i i i

ond willbe




@acknoMedga the increasing
sxpec\a\lons on businesses o address
“médern slavery risks in global supply shai is.

Er@ inating modern slavery from ou supgy
Sisisa ‘goat we take very serioudy.

‘We'intend to submit a Modern Slavary
&Smemem in 2020, covering our gicbal
operations.

Ou} supply chain risk initiatives Fava
tbieh a risk based approach, premcting
ccnslstency and standardisation ac ‘0ss
goﬁm:smess and have included:
°-lmplemenllng a new global Suppiier
Code of Conduct (available on
Lendlease.com) setting out our
of suppliers, J

nd their supply chains across @ 1ang3
C?fxareas including health anc safety,
stibtainability, human rights ard modarn
Slavery. Embedment into business

processes, including within majcr
standard contracts globally, is undlerway

= Adoption of Ethics Point, a ¢lobzl
platform for employees and suppliers
1o raise concerns around imoraper
conduct. This platformis access:ble n
local languages

Developing a modern slavery r's< heat
mapping tool to identify glodalisuppder
categories and associated products
against countries with elevatec risks of
modern slavery

« Convening regional Modern Slavery
Communities of Practice, focusing on
implementation of modern slavery risk
mitigation initiatives and capacity building

» Conducting modern slavery
awareness training sessions and
developing a Modern Slavery Guide
for our employees, providing practical
guidance for mitigating modern
slavery risks

« Active engagement in business forums
on industry level responses to modern
slavery risks, including UN Global
Compact Natwork Australia's Modern
Slavery Community of Practice, Achilles
Building Confidence Communny af
Practice in the UK, and Sustai
Supply Chain Schools (UK and Auslmlla)

Working with key Global Supply
Chain partners and critical equipmen(

Lendlease recognises tackling modern
slavery successfully relies on strong,

10 their
supply chains and their supplisrs in
more detal.

We acknowledge the economic impact
of COVID-19 will have a disproportionately
adverse impact on vulnerable worker
populations. Awareness of this risk

and internal knowledge sharing on risk
mitigation measures e.g. for migrant
workers and responsible disengagement
principles (where we needed to pause)
has been a specific focus for our regional
Modern Slavery Communities of Practice
during this period.

open with our suppliers,
our people, and other key stakeholders.
Given the breadth and complexity of
our global supgy chains, our efforts will
require a phased, muhi year approach.

Elevate Reconciliation &
Action Plan (RAP)
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Reconciliation Australia has extended our current
iliation Action Plan to

and we have again been invited to submit an ‘Elevate”
level RAP in recognition of our continued leadership
and proactivity in delivary in this area.

‘We will release the new Lendlease Reconciliation
Action Plan 2020-2023, titled ‘Country, Truth and our
Shared Story, in late 2020.

Providing cultural engagement and
learning opportunities for Lendlease
employees

Promoted reconciliation through our
sphere of influence by activating our
projects, offices and assets in celebration
of National Reconciliation Week 2020 and
NAIDOC Week 2019,

6,030

Lendlease employees in Australia have
completed face to face or online cultural
awareness learning since FY12.

Increasing the number of Aboriginal and
Torres Steait Islander people directly
employed at Lendlease

Pivoted RAP actions in FY20 due to
‘COVID-19 by developing a COVID-19
o RAP Response Plan including a greater

1 /o focus on support and retention of existing

—— Lendlease Indigenous employees.

Of Lendlease Australian employees Updated our tadigenous Talent Strategy

identify as and Strategy under the
teadership of newly appointed identified
Indigenous managers.

Increasing procurement activity with
Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander
businesses

128 $55.3m

Spent in FY20 with registered and
cenrtified Indigenous businesses.

Supply Nation businesses engaged
(registered and certified Indigenous
businesses).

First Nations design in
placemaking — Darling Square
Commissioned by the landowner, Place

NSW (State
and Lendlease, ‘The Canopy’, by
Aboriginal artist and Head of Design for
Bangarra Dance Theatre Jacob Nash,
arose from a vision to reinvigorate a piece
of urban infrastructure and share stories
of Aboriginal culture with the public.
The installation has beautified the area
and attracts people to gather and use tha
previously dark Pier St Underpass that
divided sections of Darling Harbour.

Lendiease Building ~ local and indigenous engagement

In February 2020, our team commenced the staged hand over of the $495 million

New Air Combat Capability facility at RAAF Base Tindal in the Northern Territory. The
completion of this facility will support the arrival of Austratia’s cutting edge F-35A Joint
Strike Fighter aircraft. Through this project, Lendlease awarded 64 per cent of the total
work packages to Northern Territory businesses, representing some $242 million injected
into the Territory's economy.

Through 2 bespoke Indigenous work training program developed by Lendlease, the
project also 10 local with an eight per cent
Indigenous workforce participation rate and three subcontracts, valued at $27 million,
awarded 10 Indigenous companies.

The Pier St underpass art installation
represents the three constants that have
always been here: the land the antwork is
on, the Wangal and Gadigal clans of the
Eora Nation in Sydney that care for this
country, and the night sky above us.
The night sky depicted evokes

primal ideas of creation, dreaming,
wonder and home, and it holds stories
about our place in the universe.

It showcases how First Nations' cutture
and design knowledge can unite us and
connect people and place.
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Risk

Our approach recognises the
nature and level of risk we are
willing to accept to achieve
our strategic goals and key
performance targets to create

securityholder value.

‘We continue to focus on aligning Board
and management to drive informed and
consistent decisions, achieving effective
and efficient allocation of capial and
resources, providing an understanding of
rigk limits, context to identify, report and
manage risks, and creating a culture of
risk awareness and accountability.

Our risk framework remains unchanged
from a governance perspective, and

Internal audit

Formal processes provide supplementary
assurance to operational businesses.
External audit

Formal, independent regular raviews.

Policy and procedure

Board approval process

The Board has matters that are reserved
forit ination under the risk

continues to mature, i by
arobust three lines of defence modal.
The ‘Voice of Risk’ roles we added in FY{9
continue to mature, providing further
independent assurance within each
region with alignment as a group being
coordinated through the Group Chief
Commercial and Risk Officer and Group
Head of Risk and Insurance.

The strength and maturity in the structure
has been well evidenced in recent months
as we navigate through COVID-19,

A mature crisis management framework
and appropriate business continuity

plans are in place through all regions and
functions, providing a stable platform on
which we can continue to operate safely
and plan strategically.

Structure

Board Risk and Audit Committees
Review the effectiveness of the Group's
enterprise risk management system

and seek assurances that material risks
are identified and appropriate risk
management processes in place.

Group risk function

Liaises with regional CEOs and risk
specialists on business specific and
enterprise wide fisks in order 10 assist the
Group’s businesses o further develop their
risk management processes are in place.

appetite of Lendlease, and further,
under the Limits of Authority. The Board
approval process is set up so decisions
and commitments of a predetermined
magnitude require Board approval,
thereby supporting sound governance
and continued alignment with strategy.
Investment committees

Investment committees are in place at
regionat and Group levels in order o
assess and approve potential projects/
commitments.

Limits of Authority

Limits of Authority are in place to outline
matters that are specifically reserved
for determination by the Board and
those matters that are delegated to
management.

Risk tools

Risk management platform
Lendlease uses a risk management
platform throughout all regions

to allow consistent risk identification
and assessment.



Risk governance

=

—/
E ( Specific examples of how risk
govarnance and management have
Evolved in the reporting period
Cinaude the implementation of some

grdrlular risk appetite principles

and tolerances in key areas of risk.
These focus on areas such as Jatent
ﬁdﬁ(yﬁnns, contamination and existing
Cslln);:mml risk. Further development
‘ot risk appetite will continue to

o73lve in other granular areas of our

lenterprise risks.

Each region continuesto have a

@irdCtly appointed ‘Voice of Risk’

executive who is part of each Regional

e

[Gadership Team.

Importantly, these individuals do not

have P&L accountability, nor are they
@eﬂ:‘\,’nﬂhs risk function. They are

independent and are mandated to

halienge both the business and the

risk-function on genuine matters of
g strategic, tactical and operaticnal risk.

and management

Three lines of defence

( Board and Committees )

1 1

( Global Leadership Team )

Regional
Leadership
Teams

Business
Integrity

Internal External
Group Audit

Audit

Functions

Second line of defence Third line of defence

First line of defence

ss Operations

©

1t line of defence —
onsibilities

e

;econd line of defence -

assurance measures

Third line of defence -
independent processes

( Identify ) )( Assess )) Qﬂs‘u‘;:‘:‘eg > ( Monitor ) > ( Report )

Individual business units are the first line of defence responsible for identifying, managing
and owning their risks. These business units have the appropriate tools and interaction
with the various Group functions to execute business responsibilities effectively.

Stage gates

Across our property and construction operations, the conversion and delivery of projects
is governed by a number of ‘gates’ utilising proprietary and in house developed systems,
as follows: Business development pipeline. 1. Project go/no go. Protect conversion
process. 2. Commit to pursuit costs. 3. Authority to submit to customers., Submit
proposal. 4. Changes to initial proposal. Execute contract. 5. Authorisation to proceed.
Delivery. 6. Regular project reviews. Review lessons learnt. 7. Implement for new projects.
Stage gates are underpinned by business unit milestone views/health checks and
portfolio reviews during delivery.

G G Gy G (o)

Group functions involved in the second line of defence include corporate risk and
insurance, operational assurance and performance, safety, legal, information technology,
sustainability, people and culture, and finance. Function specific policies outline tha
assurance measures to enable each business to identify and manage risks appropriately

e Y (Cron ) (oo Y>Croson ) > Crotonen )

Internal and external audit make up the third line of defence, acting independently from
the first and second lines of defence and reporting directly to the Board and Risk and
Audit Committees.

In November 2019,
the Board Risk
Committee
approved the Risk
Appetite Statements
against each of the
12 Enterprise Risks.

These Risk Appetite Statements define
at a high level, the expectations of
management and the Board regarding
the nature and extent of risks the Group
is willing 10 take in pursuit of its strategy.
They assist in:

+ Maintaining alignment amongst the
Board and management about the
Board’s appetite for risk in order to drive
more informed and consistent decision
making

« Effectively allocating capital and
resources to projects that are more
likely to be approved by management
and the Board.

Risk Appetite
Framework

In May 2020, after extensive internal
consultation and testing, the Board Risk
Committee approved the Risk Appetite
Tolerances. These provide guardrails that
will assist in aligning Lendlease's appetite
for risk with our decision making and
review processes, namely:
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Implementation

The Risk Appetite Framework is

being integrated into the existing risk
and corporate

processes within Lendlease, as shown

in Diagram 1. This ensures a seamless

deployment of the Framework and an

i in the of tisk

* Providing a clear
Board approved risk limits, where there
is zero tolerance and where specialist
approvals and endorsements are
required 10 mitigate risks

* Providing a mechanism for identifying,
managing, and reporting on risks
through the lifecycle of projects and
investments

« Providing an appropriate avenue for
the 'Voice of Risk’ to be heard, and a
culture of proactive risk management
to be embedded within all levels of the
organisation.

Risk Appetite Framework deployment

within the organisation.

Continuous improvement

In the first 12 months of implementation,
the framework will be reviewed on a
quarterly basis. After this period, it will
be reviewed annually by the Group
Chief Commercial and Risk Offices and
approved by the Board Risk Committee.
Any changes outside of the annual review
cycle that encompass the addition of
new statements and tolerances will be
reviewed and approved by the Board
Risk Committee.

Board defines its

appetite and applies L y - " N

governance Board Defines its appetite for the 12 Enterprise Risks through the Risk Appetite Framework
Disruption - Cyber / Data - Regulatory - Culture - Business Continuity

@;Wme " Appetite deployment mechanisms

L‘i é;‘:gage Group Strategy; Investment in Digital; IT Policies; Management of Comptiance

Obligations; Business Continuity Policy; Limits Of Autherity (LOAs); Code of Conduct;
Formalised Investment Approval Processes

Business risks
managed at
regional level

Regions /
Businesses

Customer -

Performance

e c
Scalable Growth - Health, Safety and Wellbeing - Project Execution

Appetite deployment mechanisms

Strategy Approval; Policies; Regional Investment Committeas; LOAS;
B Approval Pr

Operational issues )
/ risks managed Projects /

at project / Investments
investment level

Appetite deployment mechanisms

Project Reviews; LOAs; Localised Policies; Project Approval Gates




Key risks and mitigation

Description
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Mitigation

The value we create

| s———
ealth, Safety
and Wellbeing

Failure to provide an environment that promotes health, safety and wellbaing impacts our
ability 10 achieve our corporate and social responsibilities

We are committed 1o the health, safety and wellbeing of our people. Through our Global Minimum
Requirements (GMRs), which include both physical safety and health and wellbsing, we empower
our people 1o operate in a consistent standard across all our operations.

@®

@uption

Responsiveness to disuption, ncluding digtal disruption as walla cther new methods
and materials emerging in the D and sectors

With the increasing dependence on technology, our strategic intent aims to turn disruption into
an opportunity by creating a cutture that fosters innovation and focuses on adopting leading edge
technologies to deliver innovativa sofutions and generate a competitive point of difference.

@@@ﬁmercial

Commercial performance fails 1o meet our corporate objectives

Our capital deployment guidalings mitigate risk and improve performance. Quarterly business
reviews assess business operations against approved strategy 1o drive consistent, focused and risk
assessed investment decisions.

@é?/gcution

)

Failure to execute strategy or projects affects our ability to meet our corporate objectives

Our risk management approach, including the use of stage gates across our property and
construction operations, which is articulated earlier in this section, contributes to the mitigation of
execution risk. To inform our investment decisions, we use internal research to develop a ‘house
view’ of property cycles in every region and the strength of our gateway cities.

Geopolitical

Global and local events or shifts in government policy occur in the regions in which
‘we operate, adversely impacting curabrlny\o achieve strateg-c objectives. Failure to
' mandates, and performance standards

We are commmed 10 growing our business in sectors that are supported by positive global trends.
We shifts and risk and our approach to
government in all regxensw mitigate against sovereign risk.

@.—9‘_
‘egulatory and
@ unterparty

» Non jance with regulatory and policy
clients/suppliers

by Lendlease or our

« Client, investor or supply chain ethics fail to meet Lendlease standards
« Faifure to adequately select, govern and drive value from counterparties

» Failure to comply with government regulations impacts our ability to access
government opportunities

To further improve our culture of compliance, we focus on aligning business priorities with the
necessary compliance and assurance measures. We are focused on maintaining an ethical supply
chain to ameliorate the risk of material substitution and modern slavery. We have an appetite for
relationships with parties who are aligned with our values.

©O®®

@)
@ orate

lture

Failure o create and maintain culturs which supports Londleasa’ core betaviours,
p values 10 drive strategy execution

Ourvalues drive our approach to business and defivery of long term value. We empower our people
to make business decisions that are aligned 1o our core values and behaviours, principles, and five
areas of valus ereation. To provide a ‘Veice of Risk, we have separate reporting routes outside of
those who can influence risk issues through optimism bias.

@E@O®®

er/Data Governance/

Failure of cyber resilience and defence *ys\ems Leakage, mlsappropnanon or

Physical and data security continue to be key focus areas globally We invest in preventative

t Protecti storage of data. control of syst physical asset and education of to achieve a security culture.
rotection infrastructure (ie. lifts, security, air conditioning)
us{emer Loss of existing customer (including government) relationships, or inability to tailor Bid ip training of key reinforces ing of

services to future customers’ needs, impacting Lendlease’s financial objectives

Recurrent customer survey feedback informs our business strategy. A single platform assists
customer data security and aligns customer service acioss all regions.

=
gn scalable
@wth

People: inability to attract, retain and upskill key talent necessary to deliver strategic objectives
Process: lack of scalable processes to support predictable growth

To deliver the desired level of performance, we oommua toinvest m growing our core capabilities
through active talent and targeted to attract, retain
and grow the best people. Our processes are designed to be :onsmem scalable and effective.

Corporate and
Environmental

Sustainability

Failure to comply with regulatory, societal and investor expectations of corporate and
environmental sustainability such as climate change and social responsibility

We are committed to creating the best places and optimising our corporate and environmental
suaamablrty performance (mcludmg c!’mate change and scmal rersponsmll‘xy) through our

and i into our business strategies.
We continually increase engzgsmem through training programs to promote sustainable behaviours
in the organisation globally. We have endorsed the TCFD recommendations on climate change
and have begun reporting Lendleases resrhence to the changes in both policies and the physical

(as noted in the section).
Business Failure to properly plan for and/or appropriately respond to events which may disrupt To achi isati resilience, we are to operating in a way that supports our ability
< Lendlease’s business to respond 10 threats and disasters without affecting our core business operations. We continue to @
Continuity invest in our peoples' learning and development to better prapare them in the event of disruption

through training programs and various threat scenario simulations o stress test the plan.
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inancial Disclosure (TCFD)
lifate change and society’s response
to-ft-are now recogaised as foundational
drivers of risk and opportunity within
he-global econorry. In 2018, Lendlease
commmed to incarporating the TCFD
Cfra Yework into our disclosure regime.
4 result, we are much better equipped
1&rovide our invastors and siakeholders
@wnh’mﬂghls into 30w we are building
feSilience to climate related risks and

EE opportunities.

@

@Task Force on Clirate Related

\
Climate Related

nd Opportunities

The TCFD framework could be seen as just
another layer of disclosure. However, for us,
it has helped transform the way Lendlease
s positioning itself to respond to the
climate crisis and the way in which we will
be communicating and executing on our
ambition to be a 1.5°C aligned company.

1n sharing our experiences and

outcomes from scenario planning for
climate impacts, we hope others will be
encouraged to commit to this important
evaluation and disclosure.

Our process for identifying climate
related impact:

When we committed to TCFD we
wanted 1o make climate change easier
10 understand and actionable by senior
leaders. Most business leaders are not
climate scientists; they are generally time
poor, with their own day o day priorities.
Getting them to focus on and understand
climate related impacts is probably the
biggest challenge 10 any organisation on
this journey. To address this challenge, we
created climate scenarios and a scenario
planning process tailored 1o our business.

Our tailored approach has generated a
high level of senior leader engagement,
with the outputs integrated into short
term business planning and long term
strategic thinking. This has helped us
set up new and ambitious sustainability
1argets, aligned with our TCFD work.

‘Our Board engaged with management
and attended a number of workshops
on the four climate scenarios to test
business strategy and how bestto
respond to key trends in line with TCFD
recommendations.

Engagement commenced with the
Globat Leadership Team (GLT). The GLT
was instrumental in deciding that our
Resignation scenario (RCP8.5) should only
be used to assess the inherent climate
change physical risks and nat for strategic
business resifience.

The top 200 senior leaders from across
our business were engaged in risk

and opportunity workshops. In these
workshops, participants identified risks
and opportunities that might arise, ranking
them in line with the Lendlease risk matrix,
Participants also identified actions their
business unit should take within the next
3-5 years to prepare for climate related
impacts. These actions will be integrated
into the FY21 business planning process.

The risks and opportunities identified have
been consolidated into 10 climate related
impacts per strategic scenario. This
output will continte to play an important
role in our response 1o the TCFD

first in our
analysis this financial year and informing
our financial disclosure in FY21.

Envision the
Tocess and world in 2050
timeline for
&lmplementlng

7 ati
[GFD into Scenario
Cthybusiness

Szonario
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Our Climate

Related Impacts

[alworidlwaried]
tyse

on global supply chains.

The business leaders identified
and ranked climate related risks
and opportunities, which have
been grouped into ten climate
related impacts for our stratagic
2050 Future Climate Scenarios.

Our Polarisation Scenario imagines the world falters on serious
climate action, with a resultant national self interest taking
precedence over multilateral cooperation. This scenario sees
higher levels of economic protectionism with significant impacts

| Opportunlty

Climate Related Impacts

Investment

Impact of climate change on assets and communities

|
L
Increase market share from public sector [

Accessand cost of capital

Availability of international products ||

Avaitabiility and cost of labour

Reduced availability of materials and resources
Impact of climate change on the way we work

Industry leadership in decarbonisation valued

tmpact of climate change on cities

often Lowar

Not
idontifiedes 1] frequancy of oo ap no

Highor

onimpact idenified impact

idontified impact

Climate related impacts

The most frequently identified risks across
the business, for this scenario, came from
the impact of climate change on the way
‘we work and on our assets, particularly for
our lavestments business. Conversely, the
impact of climate change on cities has a
high frequency of opportunities related to
adaptatian

The risk of nationalism on global supply
chains was identified as a key impact, with

Strategic resilience

Our business has many attributes for
strategic resilience in a Polarisation
Scenario. Existing public sector
partnerships position us well for likely
increased climate adaptation work for the
public sector. Our sustainability leadership
positions us well, where decarbonisation
and climate resilience and adaptation are
valued, such as at Barangaroo.

FY20
<
—_— -
Risks sno apgartunites What matics and
torgats are noodod
> Yo ‘manage fisks
our What are Which of and opporturitios?
o tha risks and tha high .
'noustry opportunities fikelihood and
in2050 ; >
in tho noxt highimpact
20-30 yoars? fisks and 10
ortunities "
ooad oriso Climata What actions
inthe noxt 10 folntee, | > dewotekenow
voors? impacts (23 yoars)?
. sconario |«
What risk What stratagic
WV:'::’:“’,::::: " managomant imparatives should
impacts of the risks {  procassesare € > weombodinthe
o neaded for the risks Londioaso 10 Yoer
and opportunities? and opportunities? Stratogy?

most risks identified for our Construction
business. Conversely, the impact oa global
supply chains was seen as an opportunity
for the Construction business due to
disaggregation of supply chains.
Although this scenario sees a more
severely impacted climate and less
global cooperation, the business

leaders recognised an inherent need for
decarbonisation, seeing continued value
in our leadership in sustainability.
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Ovr Paris Alignment Scenario sees a market led transition to a
lovver carbon future through global government commitment
te “he Paris Agreement. This scenario differs from our
Transformaticn Scanario in that it relies heavily on negative

Qur Transformation Scenar o sees a societally driven, controlled
and rapid decarbonisation >athway, where global emissions
peak in 2020 ard are close to zero in 2040. Instead of relying
on technologiczl fixes, the Transformation Scenario sees a
substantial reduction in em.ssions through lifestyle changes and
a reprioritisatior of capizal to community level investment.

fionsionnation:

[FaustAliganieny

[alwordIvagied]
\  yEe

nsf ; Avsidvamsd
erwssions technologies, such as carbon capture and storage, as ty 1S

a slress test ¢f a sizuation in which the economy is decarbonised
w'ttout eny sgnificant structural change occurring.

 t—

g

Risk Opportunity . Ris« Opportunity
~Climate Related Impacts T T Climate Related Impacts T
) tnvestment | imestmant o ion | Investment [0 jon| Ivestment
Increase speed of charge in clmata related mpacta Impact of ¢l nate change on ass«t= and communities - |
7 istat and L ; ; Increase markes share from publ= sector T - N M
@.cr‘e‘mmmcamnn N Access & cort¢f capital
Derand for decarbonisation o supply chain ) Availability o° irternational procicss
 {ncigpsed scrutiny over actions versus brand ng Availability & cest of labour 1
Defind for negative emissions anc geoengincering solutions Reduced avalabifity of materials snd rasource: ’
—Charging preferences away from new build ceve'opm ent | Impact of clinate change on the way w2 work
[=Derind for zero carbon ‘nfrastrucaure o Shiftin consure- d resi
Increase market share from public sector b Industry leaderdhip in decarbon st on valued 7_
Industry leadership in deca:borisation valuec 1 impact of climate change on cities I | i
rg,srgﬁnn - Lower - Higher Mot often . Lowo" Higher
\onifiedas {7} troquoncy of O é——— 00 —> B0 tequencyoef idontifiodas 7! frequoscs of Enln] oo [ q
Rpipact idontifiodimpact ideniifiod impact animpact idontiis dimaact idantif

Syoney: Batgpar

Climate related impacts

“The most frequently identified risks came
from the increased demand and need for
decarbonisation of construction supply
chains, creating a potential increase in the
cost of materials, as well as likety scarcity
of products and materials.

Risks were also identified if we did not
align our leadership in sustainability with
the legislative direction of a government
led decarbonised world. Conversely,
opportunities were identified if we aligned
early or even exceeded regulation.

An increase in carbon cost was identified
as both a risk and opportunity, particularly
for Development. Opportunities were also
identified related to new build no longer
being as valued and zero carbon solutions.
attracting greater value.

Strategic resilience

Our sustainability leadership creates
strategic resilience in a Paris Aligned
Scenario. We are well positioned to build
on our global track record of delivering
commercially successful green and
carbon neutral solutions needed for a
decarbonised world.

Climate related impacts

1 was anticipated that a shift in social
licence to operate would occur in a
societally driven decarbonisation scenario
and that this shift would present risks
across all aspects of business.

A rapid decarbonisation would likely

see a preference away from new build
developments, due 10 the emissions from
building products and materials (embodied
emissions). This shift in preference

would likely generate both risks and
opportunities across our business.

The speed of decarbonisation in our
Transformation Scenarios was highlighted
as presenting both transitional opportunities
and risks. The expectation for private

sactor investment in decarbonisation was
highlighted as an opportunity.

Strategic resilience

Our track record in social sustainability
leadership, combined with our leadership
in green real estate, would help position us
well for societally driven decarbonisation.
Our integrated business model, with a
focus on digital, will allow us to respond
quickly to the speed of change in this
future scenario.



processes

In addition to further
integrating climate related
risks and opportunities into the
Risk Appetite Framework, we
have also further developed
physical and transitional risk
assessments.

We have refined and piloted our physical
risk impact assessment process on
several assets and development projects
across the world. Using Representative
Concentration Pathway RCP8.5, our
greater than 4°C Resignation Scenario,
we have focused on eight key physical
impact areas. This process will continue
o be refined in FY21 and will form the
Starting paint for physical risk assessment
for financial disclosure.

hysical Risk Assessment

Integration into
risk management

In FY20, we introduced a transitional
risk assessment for a regulatory price
on carbon, using a shadow carbon price
within investment assessments.

Our leadership in TCFD

‘Our place based approach to scenario
planning and integration of the TCFD
recommendations into our business
processes has led to invitations to take
partin key TCFD forums and advisory
groups. This year we have been proud to
be members of, and active contributors, to:
« The TCFD Construction Preparers
Forum, which seeks to provide guidance
1o construction industry companies
undertaking TCFD disclosure
* The TCFD Secretariat Scenario
Advisory Group, which seeks to provide
practical guidance for climate related
scenario analysis.

elrg

Sea level rise

Heatwave

rp

Wind storm

Wildfire

(

Increased temperats res Sea level rise and storm
and heatwave surge

Fo

Water scarci‘vy Urban flooding

Cyclones, tornadoes and
extreme wind events

River flooding

Wildfire risk with resulting
poor air quality

Cold spetlt

Extreme rainfall events
leading to urban flooding

Drought impacts and =evere
H water restrictions

Extreme rainfall events
leading 1o river flooding

Increased duration cold
weather events

Our

disclosure
progress and
next steps
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In FY18, we made the commitment to disclosing
underthe TCFD recommendations and in FY19,
we disclosed our 2050 Future Climate Scenarios.
This year we integrated scenario planning

into our business through risk and opportunity
workshops to identify emerging risks and
opportunities. We integrated the outcomes of
the workshops into business planning, a strategy
refresh and setting new sustainability related
metrics and targets. In FY21, we will integrate the
outcomes of the risk and opportunity workshops
into our financial disclosure.

Actions FY19 FY20 Fr21
Governance Disclose the 's Board and oversight o
governanca around of climate related risks through the Board
climate refated risks and Sustainability Committee
opportunities
Establish a cross functional TCFD steering ._
committee chaired by Chief Commerciat
Risk Officer
Strategy Disclose the actual and Undertake risk and opportunity o
potential impacts of across the business to identify short, medium
climate related risks and and long term risks and opportunities for each
opportunities on the scenario
strategy and financial Assess the climate retated impacts on the %
planning where such business, strategy and financial planning O L
material is financial
Integrate climate related impacts into strategy .
refresh to build strategic resilience
Risk Disclose how the Climate related risk integrated into Risk Y
organisation identifies, Committee
Management | 1o ocses and manages
climate related risks Climate related risk assessments integrated into (o) .%
investment committee decision making process
Integrate climate related risks into Risk Appetite .
Framework (see page 65)
Establish global TCFD working groups to o>
coordinate the assessment of physical and
transitional risks and opportunities
Metrics Disclosa the metsics and Establish metrics and targets for managing O o
dT: + 1argets used to assess climate related risks and opportunities (see page
and 1argets | and manage refevant 54 for sustainability related metrics and targets)

climate related risks and
opportunities where such
information is material

Continued disclosure of scope 1 and 2 emissions.

Establish scope 3 emission reporting boundaries
and methodologies

Disclose scops 3 emissions

. Completed OCommenced .Ta(get completion year %Ongcing action
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Group highlights

The Group exparienced a challenging year with a Statutory
Loss after Tax of $310 million for the year ended 30 June 2020.
Engineering exit costs of $368 million after tax, along with
$19 million of goodwill impairment relating 1o the anticipated
SZmplgtion of the sale of Engineering, were brought to account
nd the)Core business was adversely impacted by COVID-19in
:lhe .second half. The distribution per security was 33.3 cents.
The Group s Core business generated Earnings per Security
(Ccrf 15.9 cents and a Return on Equity of 1.5 per cent.
>-Performance in the second half of the year was significantly
down across the Core operations with the onset of the COVID-19
pan demlc impacting performance from March 2020 onwards.
so lid Core operating EBITDA in HIFY20 of $628 million was
followed by a $65 million EBITDA loss in H2FY20 with each of the
three segments impacted. In the Development segment, anumber
of Ierge transactions were deferred, mandated site shutdowns,
G er productivity and lower new work secured impacted our
Struction segment and valuahon reducilons mpamsd our
segment due market

A nge of mitigating actions were implemented in response to
\={h5bnset of the pandemic. Overhead and employee costs were
|——fcad along with a review of project expenditure. In addition,

arange of undertaken the financial
C—position of the Group. $1.2 billion of equity was raised through an

Institutional Placement and Share Purchase Plan and additional

debt facilities of approximately $1.3 billion were arranged to

enable the Group to manage through a sustained downturn.

Ve i the bal: heet positions the Group to

ag the delivery of th: pipeline and take

vamaga of new investment opportunities.

Key Financials

In the Development segment, despite the below target profit
outcome, significant progress was made on growing and
converting the development pipeline. This included securing
additional major urbanisation projects, achieving planning
milestones and creating new investment partnerships to support
projects moving into delivery.

In Construction, the impact of COVID-19 was greater in our
international regions, particularly in cities where mandated
shutdowns were implemented. This included lower productivity,
projects being put on hold, and delays in the commencement

or securing of new projects. This led to losses in H2FY20 for the
segment across the Americas, Europe and Asia.

In the COVID-19 had a sighnifi impacton
real estate valuations across the Group's investments. Operating
earnings within Investments was resilien, rising in the year on
higher funds management fees, including performance fees, and
asolid performance from the military housing aperations.

The Non core segment recorded an EBITDA loss of $495 million,
which included accounting for $525 million pre tax in Engineering
exit costs.

C and and net finance
costs were all impacted in the yeariollowmg the adoption of AASB
16 Leases. It resutted in the reclassification cf$88 rml[lor\ in Core
operating | to finance The net
impact to the Income Statement on adoption of AASB 16 Leases is
an $11 million pre tax increase in expense in FY:

Net finance costs were $153 million. Net debt ended the period at
$0.8 billion, down from $1.4 billion in the prior year. The average cost
of debt was 3.4 per cent with an average debt maturity of 4.2 years.

Core Business EBITDA Mix

@)

Ver, Development
B Construction
Corg Businass
@Da}%lopmunt $m (sow) [ investments
Cahstruction $m ol (s2%) $563m
Investments $m 489 i71140 (71%) Cors Butinezs
Opgrating EBITOA 6m 1,493 & 4563 (62%) :
GcérpmxaCosts sm__(65) £2 (158) %
/Grdip EBITDA §m 1,328 [, 405§ (70%)
Bnpr-:l:mun & Amortisation $m  (94) (150) (70%)
( nanco Cons sm o9 BRGEY]  Gon)
$m 1,109 EFER921  (92%) . 3
rofit aftor Tax o 800 &= 2967 (80%) Core Business Profit after Tax
Non Core R o~ .
EBITDA sm (461 h(ase'-)"l o (s $804m ) $96m
Profit/(Loss) after Tox $m_(337) F1(406)1 _(20%)
G 1]
Revénue' $m 16,555 | 132891  (20%) q i
re Business Return on Equit
EEBITDA Sm 867 & (90)4  n/a’ Co u s quity
|Profit/(Loss)atter Tax 6m 467 I (310) 1 n/a’ N o, 4\} o,
Undarlying Operating Cash Flows m S Eareer tem D 12.8% 'w 1.5%
Net Assets m 6,357 p6,932% 9%
Not Debt m_ 1.425 BM 8331 (42%)
Effactive Tax Rate* % 247 EEin/a'y Core Business Earnings per Security
Earnings per Security conts  79.4% Lui(51.4)1  n/a’
Distribution per Sacurity cents 420 ¥:'33.31  (21%) iy 5
s Y20
Weighted avg Securities no{m) see* k96031 3% ‘w 136.7¢ ‘\f; 15.9¢
1 oue fo the | y 053.3.
[ ows 10 batterrof ect i 3. Lano

the 2020 Tax Repar
5.Fri9Tom

o Stotomants.

ot octthe shae ssue i FY20 (revious yraporien 3162 Acm(m »

Group outlook

While the duration of the impacts of the pandemic is uncertain, near
term effects from COVID-19 are continuing and we expect current
conditions to suppress first haf earnings. The Group entered FY21in
a s\reng ﬁnanaal position with me capacity to execute the delivery
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COVID-19 impacts on H2FY20

" e ;i
B gt Wi o 2 12 porfrmane s actad

cr A rvznmrzor by COVID-19 S stitelr

)
‘5o 1 1Delays in transactions across Hlg

of tha glo! dtake f other
investment oppor\unmes as market conditions improve.

Progress has been made on planning consents for projects across
the urbanisation pipeline, which supports the conversion of these
projects to delivery. Post year end, the Group established an
investment partnership to deliver Tower 1, One Sydney Harbour,
which is expectad to make a significant contribution to profitin FY21.

The development pipeline grew significantly during the year
from $76 billion to $113 billion. We remain focused on delivering
the urbanisation ponfallo safe!y. suslamably and pvofnably The

sz urbanisation projocts

o ot
i cfszn million in H:

o
,2353(u5)

portfolio of 21 major pr
cities provides Iongterm earmngs vnsqbllny anda slrong plaxform
to defiver enhanced ri returns

We expect to create more than $50 billion of i

which We Gperats including the aarly intfoduétion

investment grade product from our urbanisation pipeline. This
provides the opportunity for the Group 1o double current funds

: of travel bans and workplace changes to prevent the spread of 5]

under management of $36 billion as the pipeline is deli

Along with the $4 billion of investments and $29 billion of assets
under management, the Investments segment is expected to
provide a solid base of recurring earnings.

Portfolio Management Framework

The Portfoli isd d to maximise long-
term i alue. Tt for the year include the
54 per cent payout of first half ‘earnings and the second ha?fdlslnbutlou
from the Trust. No dividi declared for the C inthe

second haff, The Group s currsmly reviewing the framework.

Portfolio Management Framework

2 R ST TS S 4 i
' Delays were experienced in converting opportunities across our
urbamsa\len pipeline and the Communities busme./sexpensnced
ling itions, there were y site ¥
uctivity and delays in new work in our Construction &7
¥ sogment, and H2FY20 valuation declines of:SZ" mllllcn in th
 Group's ¢34 bl!ﬂon investmont portfolio;

A range of actlnns Wwere |mplen:an1ed 1o mmgale the financial
impact including overhead and émployee cost reductions and
areview of pioject expenditure. Employea €ost reductions
m luded; termporary pay reductions for senior leaders, reduced ks

Target FYis  FY20
Total Group Metrics =
Return on Equity 10-14% 74% (7% Y
Dividend payout ratio 40-60% 1% fRoan’ g
Gearing 10-20% 9.9% §757% .8 We" = maderverwf 6 global de
Core Business EBITDA Mix » Fo and take advamagsof new nvesmvem oppor\u me: 4
Development 40-50% 53% §57% " =
Construction 10-20% 9% fr18% B b
Investments 35-45% 33%  [Hes% il $113
Coro Business Segment Returns Development
Development ROIC* 10-13%* 1.6% Pipeline’
Construction EBITDA margin 2-3% 2.2%
Investments ROIC? 8-11%* 10.8% [ 2.8% uf $ 1 4 b
Segment Invested Capitol Mix AR
Davelopment 40-60% 57% brs6%1  Core Business
Investments 40-60% 43% fgeanlyy  Construction
) Backlog
Regional Invastoed Capital Mix (e
Australia 5070% 45%  fnazwi
Asia . 5-20% 15% Pl 17% 1 $36 b
Europe 5-20% 2% FE2oxTh Funds Under o
Americas 5-20% 18%  BE,19% 20 m
1.$6.8 mi ionin. ioit iy ease: ios, $2.9 mi ic i i iving Joint Venture. i Progr
on 22.June 2020, 2. Di o i inFyas 083. 3. ite (ROIC) i i Profit after
I ” " . R " , using wa Prof

Qave cpment eno va ve.



Development performance

The Development segment delivered EBITDA of $322 millicn, down

59 per cent on the prior year. EBITDA in H2FY20 declined t0$50 milfion

due to the various impacts of COVID-19. Progress on converting
'S::ponum\ies acvoss our urbamsatlon pipeline was ‘mpaaeﬁand

Aninvestment partnership with the Australian Prime Property
Fund Commarcial was formed to deliver tha 58,000 sqm Vietoria
Cross over station development in Sydney, which has an estimated
end value of $1.2 billion. A partnership was formed with PSP

weak trading
(5% dificult operating environment resufted in a retum on invested
[——capital of 4.7 per cent. This was well below the bottom end of the
target range of 10 per cent.
‘While the profit outcome for the year was below target, significant
B7ogress was made on growing and converting the development
pipgline. This included securing additional major urbanisation
(prcjecls achieving planning milestones and creating new
inveStment partnerships to support projects moving into delivery.

Two new major urbanisation projects with a combined estimated
(end value of $37 billion were added to the pipeline. In London, the

Waterfront P d 1o create more
th20/11,500 homes. In the Sen Francisco Bay Area, we secured a
project that will deliver more than 15,000 new homes.

one of Canada’s largest pension funds, to develop the
¢.$4 billion Milano Santa Giulia project. The forward sale of the first
1wo buildings at the precinct contributed o the resutt. The retail
and residential components of Paya Lebar Quarter in Singapore
completed.

There were 2,236 apartment settlements and completions in the
period. They comprise 1,366 apartments for sale settlements mainly
from urbanisation projects in Boston, London, Melbourne and
Singapore, and 870 apartments for rent completions at projects in
Boston and Chicage.

There were 1,898 land lot settlements across the Communities
portfolio, down 25 per cent on the prior year. Performance was
significantly impacted by the onset of COVID-19in the second
half of the year.

':Kq?/, Financials ($m) EBITDA ($m)
—
FY19 FY20 0, WmH BH
EBITDA 57%
Australia ss6 7 ofCore
@m 121 34 Operating
Ediope 12 ws  EBITDA
CAmericns 79 @
Total EBITDA 793. 322
Total PAT 584 233 FY16 FYi7 FYig

Return on Invested Capital

@pw‘ested Capital* ($b)
J

E a8 a8
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Development outlook

The estimated end value of the development pipeline grew

48 per cent on the prior period 1o $113 billion. We have a globally
diversified portfofio of 21 major urbanisation projects across nine
gateway cities.

The pipeline includes an approximate $99 billion of urbanisation
projects. These projects are typically held in capital efficient
structures, providing the Group with flexibility delivery and

There are more than 1,600 apartments for rent in delivery, with
Cascade at Lakeshore East, and an additional building at Southbank,
both in Chicago, and a further two buildings at Elephant Park in
Kondon alentering delvery during the year.

There are seven major ings in deli
376,000 sam, with ato‘lal esllmated end value of 555 bllhon These
with our

fiming, i line with markat cycles. While there is expectedtobe a

substantial increase in the annual production rate over the medium

tolonger term, the economic impacts of COVID-19 are likely to make
delivery the short term.

Post year end, the Group established an investment partnership

with Mitsubishi Estate to deliver the first residential tower at

partners. in addition, (heve isa funhsl 591,000 sgm which the business
is targeting to convert and commence delivery over the next five years.
Asignificant number of the 21 major urbanisation projects are
recent additions to the pipeline and are therefore in early stage
planning. Good progress has been made on planning consents

for several projects, including approvals being obtained for Milan

One Sydney Harbour, which will contribute to profit
inFY21. C ion on the 317 has

District and 30 Van Nessin San Francisco.

with approximately 75 per cent in presales.

Strong presales on apartments at TRX residences in Kuala Lumpur
and One Sydney Harbour have taken presales of apartments in
delivery to $2.3 billion.

Pipeline’ by Product

The C ties pipefine of 47,372 lots, providing

more than a decade o‘f supply. In our Australian Communities
business, enquiries have recently returned to pre COVID-19 levels,
with government stimulus measures boosting demand. Despite

an improvement in the near term outlook, the annual target for
settlements of 3,000 104,000 is unlikely to be met in FY21.

Pipeline' by Region
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Construction performance

The Construction segment delivered EBITDA of $101 million, down

52 per cent on the prior year. The entire profit was generated in
HIFY20, with the impact of COVID-19 resulting in a break even

result in H2FY20. For the full year, revenue declined by 21 per cent
T0,37.6 billon and the EBITDA margin of 1.3 per cent was below the

étnrgawa nge of 2-3 per cent.
——The.COVID-19 impact was greater in our international regions,

n
Cd cluded lower productivity, projects being put on hotd, and
ol

in the commencement or securing of new projects. This led
tolosses in H2FY20 for the Americas, Europe and Asia, offsetting a
( oﬁ\m Australia which delivered a solid EBITDAmsrglnouleome

ofthtee per cent for the full year despite

of integrated projects was also completed, including 845 West
Madison, Chicago, Cedarwood Square, Deptford Landings in
London and Paya Lebar Quarter in Singapore.

New work secured of $7.5 billion was down from $9.9 billion in
the prior year. Origination was impacted by lower activity in the
Americas, most notably the key New York market and some delays
in projects being brought to market, along with limited new work
in Europe. The Australian business proved resilient with new work
secured only marginally lower at $4.3 billion.

The new work secured is well diversified by sector and client, with
more than half derived from Australia during the period. Key new
projects from external clients during the year included HMAS

The busi a number of signif projects d

\he period. These included several Defence projects, commercial

ulldmgs at Wesley Place', Melbourne, and 60 Martin Place,

Saney. redevelopments at Kambri Precinct at ANU?, Canberra

and'Rod Laver Arena, Melbourne and a residential tower at
@40 Central Park South, New York. Construction on a number

Watson Australian Federal Police Melbourne
State Office®, the Curtin University School of Design and Built
Environment, allin Australia, and 4 Hudson Square, New York.
Integrated projects secured during the year included One Sydney
Harbour Tower 1, Victoria Cross over station development, Cirrus

- at Lakeshore East and residential for rent at Elephant Park.

EBITDA ($m)

‘:Ke‘yi Financials ($m)
—
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Construction outlook

The outlook for the Construction segment is subdued given
the current operating environment. In the absence of further
deterioration as a result of COVID-19, the operating performance
of me segment is expected 10 improve in FY21. The workbook

ial with backlog of $14 billion.
Approxlmately 75 per cent of major project backlog will generate
future revenue and margin for the Construction segment, with
margin on the remainder that is derived from integrated projects,
being reported through the Development segment.

Australia has a strong workbook with $7.5 billion in backlog
revenue. This accounts for mare than half of the backiog for the
Construction sagment and is expected 10 resutt in the region
contributing the majority of earnings in FY21. Key projects include
Sydney Place, the Crown Sydney Hotel Resort, several Defence
contracts and the Sydney Metro Martin Place and Sydney Metro
Victoria Cross Integrated Station Developments. In addition, the
business is well placed 1o secure government sponsored projects
as part of potential stimulus measures across a range of sectors.

Backlog by Region

Lendlsaze Annuzl Report 2020 Managing ano Messuring Value

The backlog revenue of $4.4 billion in the Americas is down
approxlmate!y 30 per cent as aresult of the dlﬂlcun operating

The high rise resi market in the
North East of the US, a sector in which the business has historically
had a high market share, is currently subdued. Recent success
in the health care secter, including life sciences, has partly offset
weakness elsawhere. The strong growth in the urbanisation
pipeline to approximately $30 billion in the region is expected 1o
provide opportunities for future construction backlog.

Europe and Asia combined account for approximately 15 per cent
of backlog revenue. Europe’s $50 billion urbanisation pipefine is
expected to providt ifi amount of work over
the medium term. in Asia, the business is fecused on the delivery
of The Exchange TRX in Kuala Lumpur and specialist sectors for
external cfients.

Beyond the current backlog, there is approximately $8 billion of
work for which the Group is in a preferred position, across both
external and integrated projects. The business is well placed to
convert asignificant proportion of this preferred work into backlog
revenue over coming periods.

Backlog Realisation

B Australia
D Asia

B Europs
B Americas

$14b

L/

Backlog by Sector
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Investments performance

The Investments segment delivered EBITDA of $140 million,
down significantly on the $489 million in the prior year.
COVID-19 had a significant impact on real estate valuations
Qacross the Group's investments with devaluations of $214 million

i\the{econd half, resulting in an EBITDA loss for the segment
ﬁ%ﬁs‘_million in H2FY20.

———Ownership EBITDA was a loss of $58 million compared to a profit

To further support the growing development pipeline and diversify
our capital strategy, the Group listed the Lendlease Global
Commercial REIT in Singapore. The REIT was seeded with the
Lendlease retail cents d three office
properties adjacent to the Group's Milano Santa Giulia project. The
Group has an ownership position of 25.3 per cent in the REIT.

EBITDA from Operating Earnings was $198 million, up substantially
on the $144 million in the prior year. A smallincrease in basa

of:$345 million in the prior year. Performance was adversely
Cimpacled by ions in valuations acros: p's c.$4 billion
g investment portfolio, including co-investment positions within
the funds platform, Retirement Living business and other asset
CF&' lions. The net reduction in valuations on a pre tax basis for the
(_n!lﬁoear was $188 million compared to total revaluation gain of
'$160 million in the prior year.

Thetrading performance of the Retirement Living business was
20 with 874 resales acfoss the established village portfolio, up
G@Ber cent on the prior year. However, a modest decline in average
-prices and delays in development activity which was affected
B7.COVID-19, impacted the carrying value of the entire portfolio,
Joftdenti iing trading perfc

foes was in line with higher average funds under

The ion of Paya Lebar Quarter
in Singapore, which generated a significant performance fee, was
the key driver of the strong growth in earnings.

The performance of the US Military Housing operations was solid,
with a recurring contribution of asset and property management
fees. Our retail asset management business has been working
with retail partners as they navigate through a difficult period, with
retail malls and centres experiencing restricted trading following
the onset of COVID-19. The impact on asset management fees
experienced late in the year is expected to extend into FY21,

EBITDA ($m)

o
':K§§l Financials ($m)
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Investments outlook

Future investment earnings will be supported by the two per cent
growth in funds under management (FUM) to $36 billion.
Additional FUM of $4 bitlion was largely offset by $2 billion in
divestments, which included the partial satisfaction of redemptions
in APPF Retait and $1.4 billion of devaluations. The launch of

the Lendlease Global Commercial REIT, progress on several
commercial buildings that are currently under development, and
strong growth in residential for rent, underpinned the additional
funds under management.

Continued growth in FUM will support operating earnings in future
periods. In addition to the current funds under management, there
is i $3.3 billion of fi FUM based on
development projects currently in delivery. This includes assets
being developed with investment partners including six office
buildings and approximately 1,600 residential for rent units.

A substantial uplift in the amount of institutional grade investment

Lendlease Annuaf Report 2020 Managing anc Measuring Value

on both occupier and investment partner demand will limit the
generation of new product in the short term. Howaver, the change
in market conditions is expected to provide opportunities for the
Group to grow the Investments platform outside of the internal
product creation capabilities. A mandate to manage a ¢.$2 billion
diversified property portfoio for TCorp was secured effective
from 1 July 2020.

The Group's investments closed the period at $4 billion. This
includes $2 billion of co-investments across our funds; a $1.4 billion
ownership interest in the Retirement Living business; and $0.6 billion
in other investments including the Group's interests in US Military
Housing, US telecommunications assets and retail at Barangaroa.

Di ion of i across the Group support
improved risk adjusted returns. Lendlease has refationships with
approximately 150 institutional investors and a strong track record
of performance. Continuing to deliver attractive outcomes for our

product will b d for partners and p
platf h pipeline is delivered
over the medium to long term. The COVID-19 related impacts

Funds Under Management® by Asset Class

partners will be critical for the ongaing success of the
Investments segment.

Funds Under Management' by Region
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Non core business
performance

The Non core segment comprises the Engineering and Services
bUsinesses in Austraiia.
=N P
he EBITDA loss for the year was $495 million, including
T$525 million of exit related costs that are discussed in more detail
below. The prios year result was impacted by the provision taken
gagains\ three underperforming projects of $500 million pre tax.

Exclliding exit related costs, the Non core segment generated
( EBI\’(DA of $30 million, including the impairment of $19 million in
(_ goddwil relating to the Engineering business.

‘Nét work secured in Engineering of $1.0 billion was down from

$2.0 billion in the prior year, reflecting the Group's lower risk

appetite ahead of the sale of the business. New work included
Clt)fe)%ulk earthworks contract at Western Sydney International

lairpbrt and additional works on the Southern Program Alliance.
Engineering business closad the period with a backlog of

h
@@.x ilion,
J

% Financials
—
FYt9  FY20 Var,
EBITDA $m _ (a8) | (as9)i (%)
Profit/(Loss) after Tax* $m (337) (s06)  (20%)
@;\mﬁwm Secured $b 3.0 2.4 (20%)
Batklog $b 54 54 (6%)

-

Revenue by Product -

The Services business delivered a robust ing operating
resul. However, costs of approximately $10 million associated with
the wind up of the Energy & Technology business detracted from
the otherwise solid result. New work secured of $1.4 bilfion was up
on the $1.0 billion secured in the prior year. Telecommunications,
Utilities and Infrastructure and Transpont, the three categories

that account for most of the $2.0 billion in backlog revenue, are
performing well and present an attractive pipeline of future
opportunities.

New Work Secured by Product
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o
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Progress on separation
of non core business

Further progress has been made on the exit of Engineering.

Having announced the sale of the Engineering business 10 Acciona
Infrastructure Asia Pacific (Acciona) in H1 FY20, the Group
subsequently received approval from the Foreign Investment
Review Board. The sale to Acciona is anticipated to complete
shartly, subject to outstanding conditions, which include third
party consents being satisfied.

The Melbourne Metro Tunnel Project, NorthConnex and Kingsford
Smith Drive projects are being retained by Lendlease. As previously
advised, the Cross Yarra Par ip ium for the

Metro Tunnel Project is continuing to work with the Victorian
Government on a confidential basis 10 resolva issues in relation to
the scope and costs on the project. NorthConnex is expected to

be operational in the coming months and the Kingsford Smith Drive
project in Brisbane is scheduled to complete by the end of CY20.

Lendlease previously disclosed a cost estimate 1o exit the

Non core segment of $450-$550 million pre tax. These costs are
now estimated to be approximately $550 million pre tax, with
$525 million pre 1ax ($368 million after tax) accounted for in the
year ended 30 June 2020. $15 million pre tax was expensed in the
prior year. Exit related costs include: implementation and selling
costs and estimated costs 10 cover concluding projects retained
by the Group.

The sale process for the Services business has been paused asa
result of current market conditions. While the business has been
performing well, it is non core and is expected 1o be divested in
future periods.




Financial position

and cash flow movements

QFiinlgqcial Position
=

— Var.
Ca%h and cash equivalents’ (14%)
IFVertories (@%)
Equity accounted investments 6%
Disposal Group assets held for sale’ 100%
Ottior assets (including financiaf) (%)
[Totlassots 3%
Batrowing and financing arcangements (12%)
Dfsddsal Group liabilities held for sale 100%
Olér liabilties (including financial) (%)
33l labilities
[Nafsssots 6,357 Pal 58 ?5.9321 . 9%
Inventories Other asset movements

L —invehtories decreased by four per cant. A modest rise in
Geyglopment inventories was more than offcet by a decfine in
\SoRstruction inventories and the reclassification of Non core

The four per cent decline in other assets reflects the reclassification
of assets to held for sale along with the reducticn in the Group's
investment in Lendlease International Towers Sydney Trust. The

construction inventories to assets held for sale. Capital

risein P m the year reflect: ing capital
i towers in the US and the

-across a range of urbanisation projects, including
South and Milan Innovation District more than offset residential
“—apartment completions.

Equity accounted investments

Eqily accounted investments increased by six per cent. The

|rs1|ng of the Lendlease Global Commercial REIT was the largest

(nbmnr tothe increase. The creation of the development

jOI t)vemure for the Victoria Cross over station development and

iditional capita! contributions in bmh the UK and US residential
partnerships ak

on
transfer of stabilised assets from development.

Total assets, total liabilities and net assets

Total assets rose by three per cent reflecting the growth in
Investment Properties and Equity Accounted Investments. The rise
in net assets reflects the modest growth in assets along with the
decline in borrawings following the equity raising.

@h movements ($m)
7

&

FY19  Undorlying Interest Underlying  Net  FYzo
cloxlng opersting andtex investing financing closing

:nh poid  cashfow andother cash'

adjustments
Q I Financing cash flow

Operating and investing cash flow

The Group measures underlying cash flows to better reflect the
cashfl L i Thi enables

an of cash measured as

operating cash flow relative to EBITDA. The measures are derived
by adjusting statutory cash flows, with the largest adjustment
relating to cash flow invested in Development.

Underlying operating cash flow was $762 million. The major
‘operating cash inflows during the period included apartment
settlements across our development projects. There was a cash
inflow of $588 million from presold apartment revenue through
the PLLACes? program. There was also a maturing PLLACes

ion which woutd have otherwise resulted in settlement

Net cash inflow from financing activiti other adj wa
$504 million. The $1.2 billion of equity raised more than offset the
decline in borrowings and distributions paid in the year, representing
the final distribution for FY19 and the HY20 distribution payment.
While the Group was active in securing additional debt facilities,
more debt was repaid. The Group entered the new financial year in
a strong financial position with $5.8 billion' of liquidity.

recaipts in the period. Adjusting for the $525 million of Engineering
exit costs, cash convarsion in FY20 was 175 per cent.

Underlying investing cash outflow was $810 million. The
major contributors included capital invested in establishing the
new $1.5 billion Lendlease Global Commercial REIT with a
25.3 per cent interest, and additional equity commitments and
rising to convert the

pipeling into production.

3.$45Wm mi ionof cash i i Di Group

8tFY20. 2. Presa o Leno ease Apariment Cash F ows.
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Group *unding
and debt facilities

Var.
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Net debt and geanng decllned wnh gearing below the bottom end of the target range. Interest cover of 2.8 times was lower due to lower

held for sale, The Groupsllquldny position is $5.8 billion’.
{
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Board of Directors’

=, information and profiles

IQT:he Lendlease Board is
@mined to exceptional
orporate governance
—palicies and practices which
are )fundamental to the long
term success and prosperity
I:_oﬁ;he Group.

Rl FVzo the Board continued its
Iongswn ing practice of reviewing its
~—corporate governance and reporting
([, Practices. The Corporate Governance
~-Statement is availzble on the Lendlease
—~website at: www.lendlease.com/au/
~“Eonipany/governance. For detailed
rmation on the skills, experience and

q
C([o’pases 921097 of the Annual Report.

Thé-Corporate Governance Framework
gis regularly assessed and amended
to-remain current. The Board's five
_\pa(rnanani committees continue to assist,
3dvige and make recommendations
to ths Board on matter: i
\hslr areas of responsibility,
Cn The committee charters. The Board
dalegmes authority for all other functions
and matters necessary for the day to day
management of the Group to the Group
$ E Chief Executive Ofificer, who delegates
isenior management as required.
..|rn\ns of Au(homy which are reviewed at
Clear( annually, are in place these outline
“th&matters si specifically reserved for
~determination by the Board and those
imatters delegated to Board Committees
orGroup Executive Management.

-

lifications of each of the Directors, refer

Michael J Ullmer, AQ

Chairman
(Independent Non Executive Director)

Term of Office

Mr Ulimer joined the Board in December 2011 and was appointed
Chairman in November 2018.

Skills, Experience and Qualifications

Mr Ullmer brings to the Board extensive strategic, financial

and management experience accumulated over his career in
international banking, finance and professional services. He

was the Deputy Group Chief Executive Officer of the National
Australia Bank (NAB) from 2007 until he retired from the Bank in
August 2011. He joined NAB in 2004 a5 Finance Director and held
a number of key positions including Chairman of the subsidiaries
Great Western Bank (US) and JB Were. Prior to NAB, Mr Ullmer
was at Commonwealth Bank of Australia, initially as Group Chief
Financial Officer and then Group Executive with responsibility for
Institutional and Business Banking. Before that, he was a Partner
at accounting firms KPMG (1982 to 1992) and Coopers & Lybrand
(199210 1997).

Mr Ullmer has a degree in mathematics from the University of
Sussex. He is a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants,
a Senior Fellow of the Financial Services Institute of Australia, and
a Fellow of the Australian lastitute of Company Directors.

Listed Company Directorships
(held within the last three years)

Non Executive Director of Woolworths Limited
(appointed January 2012)

Other Current Appointments
Chairman of the Melbourne Symphony Orchestra

Board Committee Membarships

Member of the Audit Committee

Member of the Nomination Committee
Member of the People & Culture Committee
Member of the Risk Committes

Member of the Sustainability Committee

Stephen B McCann

Group Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director
(Executive Director)

Term of Office

Mr McCann was appainted Group Chief Executive Officer in
December 2008 and joined the Board as Managing Director in
March 2009.

Skills, Experience and Qualifications

Mr McCann joined Lendlease in 2005. Prior to his appointment
as Group Chief Executive Officer, Mr McCann was Grou
Finance Director, appointed in March 2007 and Chief Executive
Officer for Lendlease’s Investment Management business from
September 2005 to December 2007.

Mr McCann s a highly regarded and experienced business
leader with over 25 years of executiva experience. Prior to joining
Lendlease, Mr McCann had 15 years’ experience in property,
funds management, investment banking and capitat markets
transactions gained through senior leadership roles at ABN
AMRO and as Head of Property at Bankers Trust, Previous roles
included four years as a mergers and acquisitions lawyer at
Freahills and four years in taxation accounting.

Mr McCann is a member of the Business Council of Australia and
the Property Council of Australia’s Property Male Champions of
Change. In 2013, Mr McCann was announced as the Property
Person of the Year by the Urban Taskforce Australia.

Mr McCann holds a Bachelor of Economics (Finance major) and a
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Colin B Carter, AM

(Independent Non Executive Director)

Term of Office
Mr Carter joined the Board in April 2012.

Skills, Experience and Qualifications

Mr Carter is one of the founding partners of The Boston
Consulting Group in Australia, retiring as a Senior Partner in
2001, and continues as an advisor with that company. He has
over 30 years of experiance in management consulting advising
strategy and issuas. His career
has included major proje:is in Australia and overseas. Mr Carter
has wide industry knowledge on corporate governance issues
and has carried out Board performance reviews for a number of
companies. He has co-authored a book on Boards, ‘Back to the
Drawing Board’, published by Harvard Business School Press.

In January 2020, Westpac Group appointed Mr Carter as one
of three members to an Advisory Panel assessing Board rlsk
and ility, and making
on how Westpac can improve its risk governancs, financial crime
and anti money laundry processes.

Mr Carter was a Non Executive Director of Wesfarmers Limited,
serving on that board for 12 years. Mr Carter holds a Bachelor

of Commerce from Melbourne University and a Master of
Business Administration from Harvard Business School, where he
graduated with Distinction and as a Baker Scholar. He is a Fellow
of the Australian Institute of Company Directors.

Bachelor of Laws from Monash University in Australia.

Other Directorships and Positions
Nil

Board Committee Memberships
Member of the Risk Committee

Listed Company Directorships
(held within the last three years)

Non Executive Director of SEEK Limited
(appointed March 2005, retired March 2018)

Other Current Appointments

President of Geelong Football Club
Director of The National Go¥f Club
Director of the Australian Ballst Foundation

Board Committee Memberships

Chairman of the Nomination Committee
Member of the People and Culture Committee
Member of the Risk Committee

Member of the Sustainability Committee
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@’ 1I|p M Coffey

@(Indapenden( Non Executive Director)

David P Craig

(independent Non Executive Director)

Term of Office
—McCoffey joined the Board in January 2017.

Term of Office
Mr Craig joined the Board in March 2016.

Skills, Experiance and Qualifications

E=—MirCoffey served as the Deputy Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of
Wegtpac Banking Corporation from April 2014 until his ratirement
g‘\ May 2017. As the Doputy CEQ, Mr Coffey had the responsibility

d with key

Westpac including industry groups, regulators, customers and
government. He was also responsible for the Group’s Mergers &
Acqulsmons function. Prior to this role, Mr Coffey held a number
St gxecutive positions at Westpac including Chief Financial

OH’ Ser and Group Executive, Westpac Institutional Bank. He has
s ,ocessfully led operations based in Australia, New Zealand, the

@Unned States, the United Kingdom and Asia and has extensive

fekperience in financial markets, funds management, balance
4h&dt management and risk management. He began his career
atthe Reserve Bank of Australia and has also held executive
poJ ions at Citibank.

MrCcﬂay holds a Bachelor of Economics (Hons) from the
GUmversny of Adetaide and has completed the Executive Program
rStanford University Business School. He is 2 graduate member
ofthe Australian Institute of Company Directors and Senior
Eellbw of the Financial Services Institute of Australasia.

Listed Company Directorships
(held within the last three years)

Nop Executive irector of Macquarie Group Limited
C(‘ppolmed August 2018)

Olhercurrem Appointments
Director of the Clean Energy Finance Corporation Board
Board Committee Memberships

Chairman of the Risk Committee
Member of the Audit Committee

Member of the Nomination Committee
Member of the People and Culture Committee

Skills, Experience and Qualifications

Mr Craig is a business leader with a successful internationa!
career spanning over 37 years in finance, accounting, audit,
risk management, strategy and mergers and acquisitions in the
banking, property and professional services industries. He was
the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) of Commonwealth Bank of
Australia from 2006 through the GFC, until he retired in June
2017. At C¢ Bank, he was ible for leading
the finance, treasury, property, security, audit and investor
relations teams.

Mr Craig's previous leadership roles have included CFO for
Australand Property Group, Global CFO for PwC Consulting
and a Partner at PwC (17 years).

As well as his role as CFO of Australand Property Group

(now Frasers), Mr Craig was responsible for Property for the
last 22 years of his executive career, including overseeing three
significant property transformations at CBA.

Mr Craig holds a Bachelor of Economics from the University

of Sydney. He is a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants, ANZ and a Fellow of the Australian Institute of
Company Directors.

Other Current Appointments
President of the Financial Executives Institute of Australia

Deputy Chairman of the Victor Chang Cardiac Research
Institute

Board Committee Memberships

Chairman of the Audit Committee

Member of the Nomination Committes
Member of the People and Culture Commitiee
Member of the Risk Committee

Baroness Margaret A Ford OBE

(Independent Non Exacutive Director)

Lendlease Annual Repart 2020 Gevernance

Jane S Hemstritch
(Independent Non Executive Director)

Term of Office
Baroness Ford joined the Board in March 2020.

Term of Office
Ms Hemstritch joined the Board in September 2011,

Skills, Experience and Qualifications

Based in London, Baroness Ford is a highly experienced

Skills, Experience and Qualifications

Ms Hemfm(ch has extensive semor axecuuva experience in

Non Executiva Director wl(h extensive sector
and andi ﬁnanclng

She hasa in urban and has

in regeneration, planning and public sector reform.

She currently serves as Chairman of New River REIT Pic, a

specialist real estate investment trust focused primarily on retail

and leisure property and also as the Chairman of STV Group Pic,

a Scottish media company.

Batween 2006 and 2012, Baroness Ford led the Olympic Park
for

change
and accounting. She also has broad experience across the
financial services, telecommunications, government, energy and
manufacturing sectors and in business expansion in Asia. During
2 25 year career with Actenture and Andersan Consulting, Ms
Hemstritch worked with clients across Australia, Asia and the US.
Ms Hemstritch was Managing Director Asia Pacific for Accenture
from 2004 until her retirement in 2007. She was a member of
Accenture’s glohal Executive Leadership Team and oversaw the

Lagacy Company the publi

and mai of the Queen
E||zabe(h Olymplc Park for the London 2012 Olympic Games.
Prior o this she was Managing Director of Social Infrastructure
and Development at the Royal Bank of Canada (RBC). She joined
RBC after stepping down as the Chair of English Partnerships,
where she spent six years leading a new approach to housing
and regeneration across England. Her earlier career was spent
working for various public sector organisations, including Scottish
Homes, the national housing agency in Scotland.
Baroness Ford holds a Master of Arts degree from the University
of Glasgow and a post graduate Masters degree in Applied
Economics. She was appointed to the House of Lords in 2006.

’s business in the Asia Pacific region,
which Vpanned 12 countries and included 30,000 personnel.
Ms Hemstritch has a Bachelor of Science in Biochemistry and
Physiology from the University of London and is a Fellow of the
Institutes of Chartered Accountants in Australia and in England
and Wales. She is a Member of Chief Executive Women.

Listed Company Directorships
(held within the last three years)

Non Executive Director of Telstra Corporation Limited
(appointed August 2016, retired January 2019)

Non Execullva Director of Tabcorp Holdings Ltd

Listed Company Directorships
{held within the last three years)

Chairman of New River REIT Pic
Chairman of STV Group Plc

Other Current Appointmants
Independent Member of the UK Oversight Board of Deloitte LLP
Independent Member of the Deloitte North/South Europe Board

Board Committee Memberships
Member of the Nomination Committee
Member of the Risk Committee
Member of the Audit Committee
Member of the Sustainability Committee

2008, retired October 2017)

Other Current Appointments

President of the Board of The Walter and Eliza Hall Institute
of Medical Research

Member of the Global Council of Herbert Smith Freehills
Global LLP

Board Committee Memberships

Member of the Audit Committee

Member of the Nomination Committee
Member of the People and Culture Committee
Member of the Risk Committee
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@2:1 beth M Proust, AO
N

(Ifdependent Non Executive Director)
1))

Directors’

Nicola M Wakefield Evans

(Independent Non Executive Director)

Term of Office
=Ms/proust joined the Board in February 2018.

Term of Office
Ms Wakefield Evans joined the Board in September 2013.

Skills, Expsrience and Qualifications

MS Proust is one of Australia's leading business figures and has
2d diverse career holding leadership roles in the public and
ivate sectors for over 30 years. Ms Proust spent eight years
at-ANZ Group including four years as Managing Director of
E3anida, Managing Director of Metrobanking and Group General
CManager, Human Resources, Corporate Affairs and Management
Services. Before joining ANZ, Ms Proust was Secretary (CEO)
f{ e Department of Premier and Cabinet (Victoria) and Chief
Gxeculive of the City of Melboume.

s Proust has extensive board experience in listed and private
omipanies, subsidiaries and joint ventures, as well as government
Jand fiot for profits. She was made an Officer of the Order of
Abstralia in 2010 for service to public

&amﬁo business, through leadership roles in government and
priate enterprise, as a mentor to women, and to the community

G raxllgh contributions to arts, charitable and educational bodies.
h1/Broust holds a Bachetor of Arts (Hons) rom La Trobe

(Uni\(ers'ﬂy and a Bachelor of Laws from the University of

Méglbourne.
L

Other Current Appointments

{ ( Chairman of Nestlé (Australia)

Chiirman of the Westpac Victoria Advisory Board
@x ‘man of Cuscal Limited
)

$kills, Experience and Qualifications

Ms Wakefiald Evans is an experienced business leader and non
executive diractor with broad ranging commercial, business
management, strategy and legal experience gained over a 30 year
international career. Ms Wakefield Evans held severat key management
positions at King & Wood Mallesons (KWM), including Managing
Partner International in Hong Kong where she was responsible for the
overall governance and strategic positioning of the business in the
Asia region. In addition to holding a number of senior management
and leadership roles, Ms Wakefield Evans has had a diverse career
as one of Australasia’s leading corporate finance lawyers.

Ms Wakefield Evans has extensive experience in the financial
services, resources and energy and infrastructure sectors. She
has extensive international experience having worked in Australia,
New York and Hong Kong. Ms Wakefield Evans was included in
the Australian Financial Raview and Westpac Group’s inaugural
list of ‘Australia’s 100 Woemen of Influence’ She is a member of
Chief Executive Women.

Ms Wakefietd Evans holds a Bachelor of Jurisprudence and a
Bachelor of Laws from the University of New South Wales and is a
qualified lawyer in Australia, Hong Kong and the United Kingdom.

Listed Company Directorships

{held within the last three years)

Non Executive Diractor of Macquarie Group Limited
(appointed February 2014)

Board Committee Memberships

Chairman of the People and Cutture Committee
Member of the Nomination Committee
Member of the Risk Committee

Member of the Sustainability Committee

Other Current Appointments

Chair of 30% Club, Australia

Director of the Clean Energy Finance Corporation
Director of UNSW Foundation Limited

Director of Australian Institute of Company Directors
Director of MetLife Australia

Director of Goodes O’Loughlin (GO) Foundation Limited
Member of the Takeovers Panel

Board Committee Memberships
Chairman of the Sustainability Committee
Member of the Nomination Committee
Member of the Audit Committee
Member of the Risk Committee

Robert Welanetz
(Independent Non Executive Director)

Term of Office
Mr Welanetz joined the Board in March 2020.

Skills, Experience and Qualifications

Mr Welanetz is based in the US and has significant executive,
advisory, strategic and operational experience in the property and
construction sectors, gained over an international career spanning
over 40 years.

In his most recent role, Mr Welanetz served as Chief Executive
Officer in the property division of Majid Al Futtaim (MAF), based
in Dubai, where he had overall responsibility for managing MAF's
property portfolio and development pipeline. Mr Welanetz retired
from that position in 2018. Prior to joining MAF, Mr Welanetz
spent over seven years in a global rofa in Blackstone’s Real Estate
Group advising and identifying acquisition opportunities in retail
real estate and providing strategic guidance for Blackstone's
portfolio of retail assets and retail operating companies.

Mr Welanetz also served as Chief Exacutive Officer of Shanghai
Kinghill Ltd, based in China, with responsibility for the operations
and delivery of retail and development projects in mainland China.
Prior o this, Mr Welanatz was President and Chief Executive
Officer, Retail a Jones Lang LaSalle Inc Americas.

Mr Welanetz holds a Bachelor of Science degree from Colorado
State University. He is a former Chairman of the International
Council of Shopping Centres and served on the board of the
Galileo Property Trust, an Australian shopping centre investor.

Listed Company Directorships
(held within the last three years)

Nit

Board Committee Memberships

Member of the Nomination Committee
Membaer of the Risk Committee

Member of the People & Culture Committee
Member of the Sustainability Comm'ma?

Steve B Dobbs
(Retired 20 November 2019)

Mr Dobbs joined the Board in January 2015 and retired
in November 2019.
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General Counsel and
Company Secretary
qualifications ard
experience

Karen Pedersen

Ms Padersen was appointed Group
General Counsel in January 2G13. Prior

1o this she was General Counsal and
Company Secretary for other large
property and construction companies.

Ms Pedersen has a Masters of Law from
the University of Technctogy, Sydney and a
Bachelor of Commerce/Bachetor of Laws
from the University of New South Wales.

o

_
AJ

Wendy Lee

" Ms Lee joined Lendlease in Septamber
2009 and was appointad Company
Secretary in January 2010. Prior t her
appointment, Ms Lee was a Company
Secretary for several subsidiaries of a targe
financial institution listed on the Australian
Securities Exchange. She has over 15
years of company secretarial experience.
Ms Lee has a Bachelor of Arts and a
Bachelor of Laws from the Univer=ity of
Sydney, a Graduate Diploma in Applied
Corporate Governance, and is a Fallow of
the Governance Institute Australiz.
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(" Tndustry experience

TheBoard views industry experiance’

kllls or experience gained in one or
( mo} uhhe care Lendlease operanng

Board skills
and experience

Directors’ average tenure Gender diversity
The Board considers it has an
appropriata mix of new, mid and longer
tenured Directors. At June 2020, the
average term of the Board is 5.5 years.

and/m InvestmemsA

been exceeded.

100% - 33% 40%

@of 10

BBard members

p’avs experience in

-oie’or more of the
Tcorg segments

The target of 30 per cent female Board
members aims 10 improve gender
diversity and focus its atiention on
achieving this objective. This target has

yoors
Have Directors’ Current female Current female
experience in v v v v Directors as at Directors as at
governance and June 2019 June 2020
financial acumen 3 2 4 1

C—=Tke Directors have a mix of local and international experience and expertise, as
( | as specialised skills to assist with decision making and to effectively govern
@ana direct the organisation for the benefit of securityholders.

The table below sats out the skills and experience considered by the Board to be important for its Directors to
have collectively. These skill areas are reviewed regularly to assess their ahgnmem and support the Group's strategic

initiatives for

planning and

direction. The skills matrix assists the Board with
@70& In determining the skills matrix, each Director undertakes a self assessment of their skills and expertise.

@Sﬁy‘s/hparie nce  Comments Total
/] A i 10 and ience in setting corporate poicies,
Governance practices and standards. °
; ; 4 Possessing industry knowledge, exposure and axpenence galned in one or more of the core
é‘; eri“; o Lendlease operating segments of D This includes 6
C“ Bgrienc acting in advisory roles for these industries.
International Exposure to international regicns either through experience gained directly in the region or through 8
COpsa'ra(ions the management of regional clients and other stakeholder relationships.
Heflthy Experience in programs implementing safety, mental health and physical wellbeing, on site and ©
and Safety within the business. Monitoring the proactive management ofworkplace health and safety practices.
L The ability to identify socially and
%""mmy Ability 10 set and monitor sustainability aspirations. 9
Stite Developing, setting and executing strategic direction. Experience in driving growth and executing 10
(\j i 9y against a clear strategy.
Risk in and ing risks that could impact business. Recognising and managing o
Management these risks by sound risk policies and
‘LT:'AI Experience in identifying and resolving legal and regulatory issues and having the ability to assist the 3
9 Board on these matters.
People and Experience in building workforce capability, setting a remuneration framework which attracts and 10
Culture retains a high calibre of executives, promoting workplace cutture, diversity and inclusion.
Executi Skills gained while performing at a senior executive level for a considerable length of time including
Le:zm's":i delivering superior results, dealing with complex business models, projects, and issues and change 10
P management,
Financial Understanding of the financial drivers of a business. Experience in financial reporting and corporate ©
Acumen financial management.
Tachnology Strong technology background including online IT workplace security s

and data analysis skills.
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As an international company and having r2gard to :he naterial scale of individual
projects, the Board program is formulatec to reflect th= geographic spread of
Lenclease businesses. While the Board commenced tt e financial year with an agreed
regional program, the onset of COVID-19 meant that some of the engagement
activities with our people and customers wvere tem porarily placed on hold. The Board
is ncw looking at ways to continue this ergagemet through the use of technology.

Engaging with Lendlease
The Lendlease Board views that

program activities, in addition o the
formal scheduled Board and Committee
meetings, are an important element of the
Board’s activities and enables Directors to
obtain the required deep understanding
of the activities and operations within
each region. The Chair works with the
Company Secretaryto forward plan the
program for the year. Depending on the
time of year and the region, the program
runs for a minimum of two days and up to
five ¢ays where deeper project reviews
are required. Each program comprises
formal meetings and additional business
briefings, presentations from internal and
external sources, project site visits, client
meetings and networking events with
employees and key stakeholders.
Directors are also encouraged to

make site visits outside of a scheduled
8oard program.

Curing FY20, the planred Board

program cf site visits, staff and customer
engagement and othen actiw:ties continued
until the onset of restrictions as 2 result

of the COVID-19 pand-mic. Board

and Commitiee meetings continued,
kowever, site visits anc customer and staff
engagemant with Boa'd members was
temporarily put on hotd. Induction activifies
forthe new Non Execrtive Di‘ectors
continuec through the use of technology.

Stakeholder engagerent

The Board members, «d b=the Chairman,
maintain an active and extensive
engagement progran” to represent the
interests of _endlease at v: rious industry
iunctions anc bodies. The Z1airman

as an advocate for Lendlease regularly
meets with customers, investors,
governmen-s and media, |1 February
2020, th2 Landlease 3oarc endorsed a
refreshed investor ergagement program
10 encovrage two way communications

with our investos community. As part of
this, a presentation detailing the scope of
the Board activities was made available on
the Lendlease website in Juna 2020.

Meeting with Lendlease pecple
In addition to these industry events,

the Chairman and Board members

met with local Lendlease management
and employees in the Austraa, Asia

and Europe regions. These events took
the form of employee “own hall’ style
events. The Board members encourage
‘employees 1o ask questions at these
sessions which provide the cpportunity for
open and honest debate on organisational
culture. The visit to the Americas region
was cancelled following the COVID-19
pandemic.




i
Y7
J

ysia

o Board visited Singapore and Shanghat

g in'Suly 2019,
+-Board networking session for the Asia

fFegional senior leadership team, to
G determine capability at the level below
fife GLT

+~Board networking session with the
( ¢ -gl senior leadership team
o Informal mentoring of various leadership
team members 10 provide guidance,

motivation and support in in caraer
development

+Attendance at Lendlease Singapore
Relgion ‘town hall’ style update including
‘Banet discussion with all Board members

followed by a broader networking
opportunity for Singapore staff

& Received briefing from external
speakers on insights into retail-led
opportunities in the Asia region

* Safety induction and guided site visit
of Paya Lebar Quarter mixed-use urban
regeneration project

Program

Reporting period between 1 July 2019 and 30 June 2020.

Board mestings are scheduled in Australia and each of the international regions where

Lendlease operates.

Typically, a program of additional activities is programmed for the full reporting period.
Due to the travel restrictions put in place for COVID-19, the additional activities of the
Board program were temporarily suspended between 20 March 2020 to 30 June 2020.

During the period impacted by COVID-19, the Board pivoted to respond to the crisis.
Board engagement and oversight has been elevated since the onset of the pandemic
with the focus shifting towards governance oversight of the Group’s COVID-19 response
in addition to ‘business as usual’ Board and Committee meetings. This included the
formation of a Board subcommittee which met weekly across a two month period in
response to the COVID-19 pandemic.

Europe
The Board visited London in October 2019.

« Board networking session for the
Europe regional senior feadership team,
1o determine capability at the level
below the GLT

» Informal mentoring of various leadership
team members to provide guidance,
motivation and support in in career
development

« Attendance at Lendlease Europe

Region employea update including

Q&A with staff and broader networking

opportunity for all regional staff

Received briefing from external speaker

on insights into infrastructure delivery

in the UK and collaboration between
public and private sectors in relation to
project delivery

 Guided walk of the Euston area for
mixed-use urban regeneration project

» Received a deep dive presentation of
the Thamesmead project and viewed
the precinct

« In conjunction with external

« Received a deep dive ion of
the Ardor Gardens senior living project
in Shanghai and overall China senior
living strategy, viewed the precinct and
met with key Government officials and
customers

guided tour of The Elephant, Elephant
& Castle projects to view Lendlease
placemaking capabilities

Australia

« Quarterly engagement with regional
business leaders to provide updates
and overview of key regional business
issues. (Undertaken by individual
directors, at regular intervals throughout
the reporting period. During COVID-19,
the sessions continued via video
conference)

* Overview and site walk of Melbourme

Metro project (September 2019 by

individual directors)

Attendance by Chairman at ‘town hail’

event and panel session in Melbourne

(September 2019)

» Viewing and site walk of One Sydney
Harbour residential precinct and
overview of project (November 2019)

.

» Deap-dive education session of
Lendlease Digital capability and function
(February 2020 by individual director)
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Board project

One of the key responsibilities of the
Lendlease Board is to cversee the strategy
50 the Group can pursue its integrated
business model in targeted gateway cities
around the world. During the first half of
1he financial year, the Board continued

its longstanding tradition of extending a
Board program whilst in region to conduct
site visits and attend deep dive reviews of
various projects.

The Silvertown Quays and Ardor Gardens
development projects are presented as
case studies of the activities that the Board
undertakes in reviewing and assessing
strategic opportunities. Site visits allow
the Board to see and experience firsthand
the challenges associated with a project’s
delivery, and Board conversations around
project challenges and opportunities are
appreciated in a fuller geographic and
strategic context.

Ardor Gardens, Shanghai

. Lendlease's development expertise in retirement living has been extended to Shanghai
These activities undertaken by the Board where we are delivering an initial ¢.850 senior living homes. The Ardor Gardens project,

are examples of how the Board oversees
management, defivering projects in
accordance with the Group's strategy,
through its program of activities.

in the context of the senior living strategy, is an example of how the Board reviews and
evaluates strategic opportunities over a longer term period. The China senior living
strategy was first presented to the Board more than five years ago. Due to its strategic
significance, the Board initially received progress updates ahead of a formal request for
approval to move forward in this sactor in China, Numerous factors were considered prior

Silvertown Quays, London 10 the Board arriving at its decision. These included the rationale for the strategy, macro

L economic indicators, financial and funding and
Commancing in early 2018, the Board strategy, safety and sustainability issues, and key risks. While not exhaustive, these
were introduced to the opportunity factors were indicative of the issues considered during iscussi

o secure via a joint venture with
Starwood Capital, a long term large
scale regeneration for residential and

The Board has continued to receive updates on the senior living strategy in China and
in July 2019, a number of the Board members visited Ardor Gardens. By visiting the
commercial use. Silvertown Quays site, the Board gained an appreciation for its location and proximity to infrastructure,
offers the regeneration of an existing and in n)esxing with key stakeholders, the Board further understood the complexities of
heritage asset ~ the Millennium Mills this project.

- and the delivery of significant new
public realm. In making its investment
decision, the Board considered numerous
factors relevant to the development's
viability. These included focusing on the
alignment to strategy, understanding of
risk limits, the environment, health and
sustainability profile of the project and
knowledge sharing from other London
urban regeneration projects. In October
2019, the Board received a deep dive
presentation from the Project Team
which covered several aspects of the
development including the planaing
and scheme masterptan process,
‘community consultation program,
goverament relations, socioeconomic
and sustainability factors and technical
innovation. The Board visited the area
1o view the site and to observe how key
stakeholder consultation process was
shaping the delivery of the project.




Supporting value creation

—The Board continues

geo’recogmse that
¢ five focus
(@rgas of value
Creation, supported
d isciplined
C dvernance and
@1Jsk management,
ntribute to
performance and
d/ve the long-term
——value of our business.
p\an:,ug the year, in addition to the
responsibilities and tasks set out in |
he charter documents, the Board
Gnd Board Committees deliberated
onthe following specific matters and
undsnonk a number of activities to
Cs? ort value creation. While these do
not represennhefun scope of Board

3cliyities, they highlight some of the
@ar’e‘a' of focus by the Board.

“THic year, given the unprecedented
COVID-19 pandemic crisis, a
sigiificant amount of Board attention

was~ focused on the management
respcnse 10 the crisis.

@8

-

@
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Health and Safety Financial
Material Issue: Material Issue:
Operating safely across our Delivering i retumns.

and projects. Maintaining the health and
wellbeing of our employees and those
who engage with our assets and sites.

Maintaining strong capital management
to enable investment in our future
pipeline.

The Board and Sustainabifity Committee
undertook the following activities as part
of their continued review of the Lendlease
Health and Safety Framework and the
unwavering commitment to the safety of
our people and those who interact with
Lendleass assets and sites.

Board activities and actions:

Reviewed the way health and safety issues
are reportad. Supportad reporting a broader
range of leading and lagging indicators to
provide a more rounded approach as well
asthe resulting performance.

Discussed the measures and actions taken
at a project and regional level in response
to a fatality resulting from a critical incident
on a project in Kuala Lumpur whereby a
worker passed away from an infection
whilst recovering from surgery in hospital.

The Board and Audit and Risk Committees
undertook the following activities to help
fulfil the Board’s oversight responsibilities
in delivering returns to securityholders
and by adopting a prudent approach

10 capital management with a view

1o maintaining a strong balance sheet
throughout market cyclas.

Board activities and actions:

A major focus area for the Board in
FY20 was the response to the COVID-19
pandemic. In order to keep focus on
business resilience during this time, a
Board subcommittee was formed with
the objective of oversighting cashflow,
balance sheet and liguidity scenarios,
culminating in a decision to raise capital
in April 2020.

Approved an equity ra.smg viaan
and

Received a cross commitiee referral

on the audit of safety incidents on a
Lendlease project and requested that
management investigate and report

on these incidents until the matter was
closed out to the satisfaction of both the
Sustainability and Audit committees.

Security
Purchase Plan as a prudent measure to
strengthen the balance sheet and position
the Group o daliver the development
pipeline and take advantage of
opportunities as markets stabilise.

Oversight and approval of workforce

Received reports on the ways that
management were responding 1o the onset
of COVID-19 and the significant disruptions
across Lendlease’s operations and
broadening of health and safety objectives.

Endorsed global standards in response to
COVID-19 addressing project shutdown
protocols, social distancing applications
on site and in regional offices, and the
protocols in the event of confirmed cases.

Pre COVID-19 Board members assessed
our health and safety cutture and received
presentations during site visits in Asia,
Europe and Australia. Questioned frontline
leaders and employees on Lendlease’s
Global Minimum Requirements (GMRs).

and cost reduction initiatives
across the business to reflect the changing
environment as a result of the COVID-19
pandemic.

Oversight of an extensive review of the
Risk Appetite Statement, Risk Appetite
Framework and Risk Tolerances against
enterprise risks, to maintain alignment on
the appetite for risk in order 1o drive more
informed and consistent decision making.
Approved the Risk Appetite Statement,
Risk Appetite Framework and Risk
Tolerances following this review.

Endorsed the deployment of the Risk
Appetite Framework (RAF) through the
|ntroduc(|on of a RAF template for ail
decisions.

Post COVID-19, Board members received
reports from management on the innovative
use of technology during safety site visits.

Our Customers

@

Our People
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Sustainability

Material Issue:

Understanding our customers and
responding to changes in the market.

Material Issue:

Attracting, developing and retaining
dlvurse talent, Ensuring we have the.

and dalivering i
customer driven solutions to win the
projects we want to win and ultimately

right capability across the
to delnver results for all stakeholders,

Material Issue:

Msnaging and optimising our

in the context of
facing the built environment, including
climate change and social pressures

deliver the bast places.

The Board, People and Culture Committee
nd ination Ci i

suchas g h and housing
affordability.

The Board and its committees undertook
the following activities as part of its
support of the Group’s customer focused
approach and to embed a process of
continuous improvement based on
customer insights and actions.

Board activities and actions:

Continued o engage with clients,
investors and other stakeholders at various
industry functions, site visits and events.

Continued to provide feedback on
initiatives 1o improve the reporting of
customer satisfaction and advocacy to
the Board and Risk Committee to drive
continuous improvement in the customer
experience. This included the reporting
of C-SAT and NPS scores for each of the
Americas, Asia, Australia Construction

& Property and Europe regions.

the following activities 1o help attract,
develop and retain diverse talent and to
monitor the investment in developing
leaders and capabilities.

Board activities and actions:
Reviewed and discussed the Group's

talent managemem and strategic
resourcing strategy and endorsed actions

The Board and Sustainability Commitiee
engaged in the following activities to help
deliver inclusive, healthy and adaptable
places that can thrive through change.

Board activities and actions:
Contintred to support the commitment to

reconciliation in progressing the work 1o a
second Elevate Reconciliation Action Plan.

1o provide greater Pro
COVID-19 engaged with regional senior
leaders and the Board 10 gain greater
visibility of the emerging pool of potential
internal successors to the GLT.

Refreshed the review of formal development
plans for the Global Leadership Team by
creating a new baseline at which to chart
progress against these plans.

Responded 1o COVID-19 by endorsing

Engaged with management and attended
anumber of workshops on the four
Lendlease Climate Scenarios created to
test business strategies and respond to
key trends in line with recommendations
of the Task Force on Climate Related
Financial Disclosures (TCFD).

Endorsed new, challanging sustainability
targets for carbon and social value to
bagin the next chapter of sustainability.

Received regular reports on key customer
experience initiatives underway in various
regions including ‘deep dive’ rolling
reviews across various business units.

Recaived various external reports on

the measuring of Board effectiveness as
viewed by external investors. Monitored
1he reporting of the program of activities
to respond to the insights gained from
1he report.

variou Y
intiatives. An up to six month reduction of
20 percent in fixed remuneration for the
Global Leadership Team and a voluntary
reduction of up to 20 percent of
Non-Executive Director base fees.

Supported the establishment of a
Hardship and Wellbeing Fund in response
10 COVID-19, seeded in part by the
voluntary fee reduction agreed by
Non-Exacutive Directors.

Received presentations from external
customers to brief the Board on key
customer relationships relevantto a
particular business.

Continue to review the progress on the work
in evolving the Group's purpose and values.

Endorsed the launch of two global

shanng Practices bassd on
h A

These bring toge(har senmsec\or leaders
and subject matter experts to develop
specialist IP for our people.

Endorsed a newly developed ‘Risk Index’
in the six monthly Peopla Survey. The
‘Risk Index’ provides insight into how
our people feel about escalating issues
with their manager and with reporting
instances of unethical conduct.

Attended a ‘deep dive’ discussion on
Modern Slavery risks in our global supply
chains and oversaw the development of
timetable towards submission of the 2020
Modern Slavery Statement.

Endorsed a new global Supplier Code of
Conduct setting out the expectations of
suppliers, contractors and their supply
chains across a range of areas.




Board of Directors’ information

Interests in Capital

LThe interests of each of the Directors in the Stapled Securities of the Group at 17 August 2020 is set out below.
The cju)rren( Non Executive Directors acquired Lendlease securities using their own funds.

Securities Held Socurities Held

Securities Hetd Benoficielly/ Totel  Securities Held Beneficially/ Total

Curront Directors Directly 2020 Indirectly 2020 2020 Directly 2019 indirectly 2019" 2019

MJ Ulimer i - 110,000 110,000 - 100,000 100,000

.B McCann i 547,200 291,527 838,727 481,478 268,540 750,018

Qs,(‘;am. R - 18,061 18,061 - 15000 15,000

PM Coffey i - 21,216 23,216 - 9,810 9,810

D P Craig H - 63,061, 63,061 - 50,000 50,000

ey i - 4,065+ 4,065 - - -

U Aomatritch i - 23,061 23,061 - 20,000 20,000

@%I'“ﬁ“’"“ t - 53,061 53,061 - 25,000 25,000

N ¥ Wakofield Evons. i - 34,020 34,020 - 30248 30,248

“‘R‘V\{é'la netz i 7,000 - 7,000 - - -

CFormtor Diractor

S BDobbs* { - 12,000 12,000 - 12,000 12,000

17S'B D d to be o Non Executi atthe end ¥

Directors’ Meetings
g( Board meetings
ThieBoard meets as often as necessary
o-tulfil s role. Diractors are required 1o
(Gvﬁ'me sufficiant time to the Group to
perform their ibiliti i

a comprehensive review of the Board and
its committees was undertaken. A range
of opportunities was identified to enhance
the effectiveness and efficiency of the
Board process and the responsibilities
reserved specifically for the Board and

Board meetings. During the financial
4/éat ended 30 June 2020, 16 Board
meetings were held. Five meetings were
eld'in person: three in Australi
intAsia and one in the UK. In addition,
ithef? were three video/teleconference
meétings scheduled in the FY20 Board
g caligndar. From March 2020, the Board
( progeeded to meet using technology
nly-dile to the mandatory travel and
group meeting restrictions put in place
in response to the COVID-19 pandemic.
Twojof these meetings were already
seheduled in the FY20 Board calendar
Gs‘imperson meetings but proceeded
using video/teleconference technology.
-Ar additional six meeting wera held via
video/telaconference to discuss specific
matters, and matters were dealt with as
required by circular resolution.

@fﬁﬁuding adequate time to prepare for

From time to time special subcommittees
are formed to give the Board better
guidance and provide ovarsight
concerning specific matters. During

the reporting period, eight Board
subcommittee meetings were also
constituted to deat with specific matters.
The Board recognises the essential role of
committees in guiding the organisation on
specific issues. Following the appointment
of the new Chairman in November 2018,

its Following this review,
there are now five standing Board
committees 10 assist, advise and make
recommendations to the Board on matters
falling within their areas of responsibility.

The five permanent committees of tha
Board are:

Audit Committes

The Audit Committee assists the Board
with its oversight responsibilities in
relation to accounting policies and
practices, tax matters, treasury reporting,
monitoring of internal financial controls,
internal and external audit functions and
financial reporting of the Group.

People and Culture Committee
The People and Culture Committee
assists the Board with its oversight

i in relation to
people management, diversity, talent and
remuneration/compensaticn policies for
the Group.

Risk Committes
The Risk Committee assists the Board with
its oversight responsibilities in relation
to risk management and internal control
systems, risk policies and practices, and

i 6 Risk C ittee also

Investment Committee. Given the review
of major transactions moving to the Risk
Committee, all members of the Board
including the Managing Director and CEO,
are members of the Risk Committee.
Sustainability Committee

The Sustainabifity Committee assists

the Board to monitor the decisions and
actions of management in achieving

L¢ iration to be a i
organisation. Sustainability is viewed as
encempassing how Lendlease conducts
business through the pursuit of workplace
safety, a commitment to corporate social

solutions and employee diversity,
development and opportunity. Lendlease
s strategically and culturally committed
to achieving commercial success in ways
that honour ethical values and respect
people, communities and the natural
environment.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee advises
and supports the Board to fulfill its
responsibifities to securityholders; to
assure that the Board is comprised of
individuals who in combination bring
a mix of expertise, skills, experience
and perspectives and contribute to
the discharge of diligent oversight and
effective corporate governance of the
Group. The Nomination Committee
also oversees activities for Director

has another important role - to review,
and if approved, recommend to the
Board for approval major transactions as
referred to the Committee by the Global

and oversees the reviews
of Board, Committee and Director
performance.
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Attendance at Meetings of Directors 1July 2019 to 30 June 2020

The number of Board and Board Committee meetings held, and the number of mestings attended by each
Director during the 2020 financial year, are set out in the tables below.

(MH) Number of meatings held. (MA) Number of mestings attended.

Board Board Subcommittee Meetings® Committee
Membership (Chairman M J Ullmer) (Chairman M d Ullmer) (Chairman C B Carter)
MH! MA MH MA MH MA
M J Ulimer 16 16 8 8 7 7
$ 8 McCann (CEQ) 16 16 7 7 - -
CBCorter 16 16 - - 7 7
PM Cotfey 16 16 5 5 7 7
D P Craig 16 16 6 6 7 7
MA Ford’ 7 7 - - 2 2
J 8 Hemstritch 16 14* 3 3 7 7
E M Proust 16 16 2 2 7 7
N M Wakefield Evans 15 16 7 7 7 7
RF Welanetz* 7 7 2 2 2 2
SB Dobbs® s 5 - - 3 3
People and Sustainability Committeo Audit
Culture Committee Risk Committeo (Chairman, Committes
Membership (Chairman E M Proust) (Chairman P M Coffay) N M Waksfield Evans) (Chairman D P Craig)
MH MA MH MA MH MA MH ™A
M J Ullmer 5 5 7 7 B 5 5 5
$ 8 McCann®{CEO) 5 s 7 7 5 5 5 s
CBCarter 5 5 7 7 5 5 - -
PM Cotfey 5 5 7 7 - s B
DP Craig 5 5 7 7 - - 5 5
M A Ford® - 2 2 B 1 | 1
J S Hemstritch 5 B 7 7 - - 5 B
EM Proust B 5 7 7 B 5 - -
N M Wakefield Evans - 7 7 B 5 5 5
RF Welsnetz* 1 1 2 2 3 1 - -
S8 Dobbs® - - 3 a 3 3 3 3
1 i i i office during the year. 6 cut ting: schedule
2. M AFord and ir tothe Board on 1 March 2020. Tt i of
i MA Ford ond RF the v i i i i i
Baard. tings attended o3 i i i ir B Dobbs retired from the Board on
ot intll S B Dobbs’ retirement. 4. J S Hemstitch was unable to attend 2 of the 6
unscheduled o Y - N o tho
ti i ling. 6. i ofthe Ce Group

ces * d
CEO and Managing Director, has astandinginvitation to the Sustainability and Audit Committeer.



Remuneration Report

Message from the Board

ks year has baen challenging and unprecedented. It has
Tequited the Board and management to rapidly navigate and
rGspohd to the uncertain health, safety and financial impacts
——of COVID-19.

Ch‘e‘.Board's primaryfocus has been the safety of our employses,

and other andthe
strength of our balance sheet. Refer to the Board's response

The value of the FY20 Deferred Equity Award for the Group
CEO is equivalent to 35 per cent of his STA target (23 per cent
of his STA maximum) and the value of the FY20 Deferred Equity
Awards for executives is equivalent to between 25 per cent to
40 per cent of STA targets (between 17 per cent to 27 per cent
of STA maximums).

The Board determined in August 2020 that the FY20 Deferred
Equity Award was the right approach given that it:

. ises the achi of non financial performance

related decisions made during FY20.

For'the first nine months of the year, the business performed
waell. As the pandemic situation has evolved and as a resuht of

prcmdmg for the costs of separating the Engineering business,
@ns with those previously advised, a statutory loss was
rec!

Cﬁo COVID 19 on page 107 for a summary of key

‘orded for FY20.
Vinking decisions and
@n’ 3Bplying our Executive Reward Strategy (ERS), a number
ffinancial and non financial factors have been considered
by the Board when determining remuneration outcomes for
Key Management Personnel (KMF) in FY20. Key points are
TFigtighted below:
Financial outcomes
[=——Given the financial result for the year, no Short Term Award
@(srg) has been made to the Group CEO or senior executives in

relgtion to financial performance. No adjustments were made
\o F¥20 STA scorecard targets 10 account for the impact of
COVID-19.

‘Accordingly, the receipt of 2 modest amount of COVID-19
ralated assistance from governments, had no influence on the
quamum of awards, nor did the completion of the capital raising.

CNon financial outcomas
w ‘achieved a signifi in per a
\Wide range of safety metrics and our Critical incident Frequency
Rate(CIFR) is at its lowest level since records began in 2012,

However, tragically, a fatality was reported during 2020. This

et has been accounted for in the Board's assessment of

@ramunerallon outcemesfurthe Group CEO and senior executives

based on either 4 for safety

Weachieved a significant increase in leadership effectiveness
Tores as measured by their teams. This will remain a key focus for
{_us

's 33 we grow and deliver our global pipeline.
‘Our net promoter and customer satisfaction scores have improved
in an otherwise andth and
g implementation of our digital strategy has continued to progress at
Face and a new business brand has been launched.

Ciur Development pipeline grew by an impressive 48 per cont over
thelyea

the Group for success in FY21 and beyond, the Board considered
lhaj;he recognition, in part, of the achievement of non financial
performance was fair and appropriate.

FY20 remuneration outcomes

For executives, the Board determined that no cash STA would be
awarded in FY20 and it was more appropriate toissue an FY20
Defesred Equity Award albeft at a reduced quantum. Half of the
award is scheduled to vest in September 2021 and the balance in
September 2022,

[l ‘Given the key contributions made during the year that position

outcomes that support long term value creation
+ Considers the balance between motivating, recognising and
with interests
« Considers that although a final dividend for FY20 will not be
paid from Lendlease Corporation Limited, securityholders will
receive distributions of over $191 million relating to FY20

Provides the Board with additional review points prior

1o vesting

« Provides a retention element given that executives will be
required to wait up 1o two years for the award 1o vest. The
Board is very mindful that the retention of highly capable
executives is critical 1o our ability to deliver the pipeline into
the future.

Looking ahead

In FY21, the Board will continue 1o review and assess the

effectiveness of our ERS as we contemplate what is required

1o motivate and retain our senior executives to navigate

the challenges and realise the opportunities that lay ahead.

We look forward to informing you of progress.

R PO

SN PSRl

[
Michael Ulimer, AO

Chairman Chairman,
People & Culture Committee

Elizabeth Proust, AC

Board’s response to COVID-19

The key remuneration-related decisions.
that the People & Culture Committee
and Board made during FY20 in response
10 COVID-19 include:

Workforce management actions

With a focus on reducing short-term costs
and preserving jobs we implemented the
following workforce management actions:

“The Fixed Remuneration for the Group
CEO, Group Leadership Team (GLT) and
other senior leaders was temporarily
reduced by 20 per cent from 1 May 2020.

Non Executive Directors were able to
temporarily reduce their base fees by

20 per cent from 1 June 2020.

Other workforce management actions
across the Group included reduced hours
of work, furlough / stand downs and, ina
limited number of cases, redundancies.

Hardship & Wellbeing Fund

The impacts of COVID-19 have been
espacially challenging for some of our
people. Through no fault of their own,
some have experienced hardship, even
after exploring alternative sources of
support. For this reason, we established
the Lendlease Hardship & Wellbeing
Fund which provides grants to support
our people who need short-term help to
cover essential expenses of everyday life.
A portion of the savings achieved through
the workforce management actions
outflined above have been used to seed the
Hardship & Wellbeing Fund.

In the two months since the creation of
the Hardship & Wellbeing Fund,

99 Hardship & Wellbaing Fund grants
have been approved for payment.

Directors’ Report and has besn 35
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Temporary release from mandatory
securityholding requirement

The Group CEO and GLT members were
provided with the opportunity to request
atemporary release from the mandatory
securityholding requirement, such that the
required holding of Lendlease securities
is halved. The Group CEO did not request
this release.

Access to wage subsidy support

‘Wherever we operate, Lendlease has
continued its partnership approach to
helping governments respond to the public
health and economic crisis presented

by COVID-19, We acknowledge that our
government partners have adopted the

Substantially lower FY20
Group incentive pool

After taking into consideration FY20
financial and non financial performance,
the Board approved a Group incentive pool
that was significantly lower compared to
prior years. The quantum of the incentive
pool recognises the statutory loss, key

- contributions made in FY20 that position
the Group for success in FY21 and beyond
as well as the importanca of motivating and
retaining our high performing employees
1o navigate the challenges ahead. The
funding rate for the FY20 Group incentive
pool is aligned 1o the FY20 Deferred Equity
Award outcomes for the Group CEO and
senior executives.

‘same approach and crucial
role of the property and infrastructure
sactors in the economy. As our company
has been negatively impacted by
COVID-19 in most markets, Lendlease has
been eligible and accessed wage subsidy
support in markets where it was offered.
Government support globally totalled

$15 million (in Australia $7 million) and

has been accounted for as a reduction in
‘employee expenses,

Board discration applied to executive
FY20 short term remuneration outcomes

For ives, the Board ined that
no cash STAwould be awarded in FY20 and
it was more appropriate toissue an FY20
Deferred Equity Award albeit at a reduced
quantum. Half of the award is scheduled to
vestin September 2021 and the balance in
September 2022.

No adiji toFY20

As aBoard, we have i the
amount of wage subsidy support accessed
by the Group when datermining FY20
remuneration outcomes,

STA scoracard targets

During the year the Board made no
ad'us(men!" 1o FY20 STA scorecard targets

FY21 Fixed Remuneration to remain
unchanged from FY20 levels

There were no Fixed Remuneration
increases awarded to KMPs that remained
in the sama role during FY20. For FY21, the
Board determined that Fixed Remuneration
will remain at FY20 levels for the majority
of employaes across the Group.

for the impact of COVID-19.

Target setting for 2020

Long Term Award (LTA)

In relation to the 2020 LTA, the Board
deferred its decision on setting the average
Return on Equity (ROE) target until the sale
of the Engineering business was complete.
The impact of COVID-19 will be cansidered
when this target is set, following the sale.

' Snapshot of FY20 Remuneration Outcomes R W"’mw 1o

,_,; d Executive Reward Strategy on 3 page

e

N

""e Execltive rémuneration outcomes and disclosures’

£ £1.5 Remuneration governance &2 17 i

" 9./ How risk management is incorporated into exécutive reward TP Milliw L121

#1 h.-How executive rewards are linked to perfmmance

[ ek
;i Thrs?eponfovms part oflheM*— T gl } Exadutivé contracts IR, ik
R

aud“ed in acoordanca with the
R =,

i Equny based remuneration ﬂ%ﬁ‘%ﬂ
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Remuneration Report

a. Questions and answers b. Executives and Non Executive Directors covered by this report

The following executives and Non Executive Directors were considered KMP for the year ended 30 June 2020.

We regularly receive feedback regarding our ERS from To support these objecti we believe that thi ofthe e - o ! ir
aecumyhdders Below is a summary of the key questions that we ERS is better described as an RSA, illustrated below. Former executives and Non Executive Directors who were KMP during the year are also covered by this report.
CFave Bdon asked, or anticipate being asked, and our responses.

Our reward structure is unlike found in
gcomer large listed organisations as it reflects the most important
aspects of our business strategy, namely the long dated nature of
“our'business, where profits emerge over an extended period of
im. Accordingly, the ERS has a relativety high weighting toward
(_seckiities that have long dated vesting and deferral periods.
1. Why was a Deferred Equity Award made to KMP in
FY20 when financial goals were not achieved?
Ls lease has paid no cash STA in FY20.
Lanc{lea«e uses a bslznced scorecard to assass the annual
that 50 per cent
@:nanmalgmls amd 50 per cent non Ainancial goals.
fe’FY20 Deferred Equity Award racognises that atthough
TtheF Y20 financial goals were not met, significant progress
wa‘s‘mzde against most of the non financial goals that support
long term value creation. The FY20 Deferred Equity Award
also the importance of
rewarding and retaining our key executives.

“TheBoard considered that paying a cash STA would not have been
@ However, an equity award that aligns the interests

P senior executives with securityholders intothe future was
dered to be fair and in the best intarests of the Group.

gz. ‘Why was an equity award issued rather than a cash award?
—Qur-current ERS is structured to pay any STA as cash.
hn Boaw determined that an equity award would be more
apprcpnme with half of the award vesting in September 2021
afJine balance vesting in September 2022.
»’mpg an equity award that is deferred equally over two years
prévides the Board with additional review points prior 1o vesting
and delivers a retention element given that senior executives will
belrequirad o wait for up to two years for the award to vest.

dends

wny was an award made to KMP in FY20 when di
Were reduced?

ERS Remuneration ERS Remuneration
Elements Elements

Fixed Remuneration

Fixed Remuneration

Short Term Award Restricted Securities Award
TTA

LongTerm Minimum' Short Term Award
Award (LTA)  T7A
Award

Long Term Award

The value of the RSA s fixed at the time of grant but will vary with
the security price over the deferral period (up o six years).

Theq of Total Target ion is

6. Is the RSA just Fixed Remuneration?

The RSA is an important component of our ERS as it aligns our

‘senior executives to securityholders and supports long term value

creation.

It is important to recognise that the RSA is not the same as

Fixed Remuneration given that:

» The RSA is deferred and vests between three and six years
after itis granted

« The value of the RSA is directly finked 1o the security
price and therefore may be lower or higher than the original
allocation value

+ The Board has discretion to forfeit part or all of any unvested
RSA where it considers vesting would provide a participant
with a benefit that was unwarranted or inappropriate.

7. Does Lendlease pay distributions on the RSA?

Distribution equivalent amounts are paid as cash on the RSA.

This practice aligns senior executive reward outcomes to

securityholder interests and paying distributions on this type of
award is not uncommon.

: olwnhslandmg the statutory loss for the year, securityholders

r. Whilst a final dividend has not been paid
from Lendlease Corporation Limited a small final distribution will
be paid from the Lendlease Trust. The reduced incentive pool for

E l the Hear represents a lower proportion of amounts distributed to
-securityholders than in any of the past five years.

What impact does the capital raising have on remuneration
deélsmns and outcomes?

Performance securities and performance rights for existing
|awards ‘on foot’ were not adjusted following the capital raising as
listhe practice in many large listed organisations.
5. Why is the LTA Minimum referred to as the Restricted
Securities Award (RSA) in this report?
The RSA (LTA Minimum) was incorporated into the ERS:

* To promote alignment with securityholders as a portion of
target remuneration is defivered in Lendlease securities

» To support long term value creation
* To better align reward to risk management.

Distributions are not paid on the LTA, unless and untii vesting
conditions are met.

Name

Group CEO

Stephan McCann Group Chief Executive Officor and Managing Diractor
Current

Johannes Dekker Group Head of Engineering and Building

Tarun Gupta Group Chief Financiol Officer

Denis Hickey Chiof Exocutivo Officer, Amerieas

Anthony Lombardo Chief Executive Officer, Asia

Neil Martin Chiof Executive Officer, Europe since 10 September 2019
Kylie Rampa Chisf Executive Officor, Property Australia

David Andrew Wilson Group Chief Commercial and Risk Officer

Former Senior Executive

Daniel Labbad Chief Executive Officer, Europe until 9 September 2019

Note: The term ‘senior tives’ used thi ion Report refers to all thy

Non Executive Directors

Current Non Executive Directors

Chairman
Colin Carter Independent Non Executive Director
Philip Coffey Independent Non Executive Director
David Craig Indepandent Non Executive Directer
Margaret Ford Indepandent Non Executive Director since 1 March 2020
Jane Hemstritch Indepandent Non Executive Director
Elizabeth Proust Independent Non Executive Director
Nicola Wakefield Evans Independent Non Executive Director
Robert Welanetz Independent Non Executive Director since | March 2020

Formor Non Executive Director

Non i until 20




Remuneration Report

c. Snapshot of FY20 remuneration outcomes

T
X Target &

Tho FY20 targat remunoration mix is:

Remunoration N
== b e 3 Fixed Romuneration STA 78
=
o ¥ {§ oo o 34 ] o

A$000s

2,200 1,200 500 500 1,200 500 3,200 1,100
Total Target Romuneration | Group CEO - 7,100 | Typical Lendlease Senior Exacutive - 3,300
The Fixed ion for the Group CEO i i roduced by 20 por cent from { May

2020 as part of the Group's response to COVID-19. Somo of
Hardship & Wellbeing Fund.

‘There ware no Fixed Remunaration increases awarded to KMPs that remained in the same role during FY20.

this action were usad to seed Lend!ease’s

No eash STA was paid in FY20:

% of Target STA Paid % of Moximum STA Paid

FY20 FYie Frzo FYio
Group CEO 0% 0% 0% 0%
Senior Executives o% 25% - 50% 0% 7% -33%

See page 124 for more details.

The Board approved in August 2020 that an FY20 Deferred Equity Award would be fair and appropriate given that it:
. i i f non financial that term val Z

« Considers the balance between motivati tawarding exacutivos wit L interasts

» Considers that although a final dividend for FY20 will not be paid from Lend!ease Corporation Limited, securityholders
will receive distributions of over $191 million relating to £ Y20

« Provides the Board with additional review points priot to vesting

* Provides a retention that executives will i waitupto ¥! the award to vest.

The FY20 Deferred Equity Award will be issued in or around September 2020 as Lend!ease securities that vest over two

years, with haff vesting in September 2021and the balance in September 2022. .

The value of the FY20 Deferred Equity Award for the Group CEO is equivalent to 35 per cent of his STA target (23 por cant
of his STA maximum) and the value of the FY20 Defarred Equity Awards for exacutives is equivalent to batwean 25 per cent
t0.40 per cant of STA targets (betwoen 17 per cent to 27 per cant of STA maximums).

See the Remuneration Awarded table on page 115 for more details.

The vesting

for the two LTI ject to ing during FY20 are set out below:

. Overall
Vesting  Vesting
Outcome _Outcome

Period Tast Hurdle Outcome

Rofative Total 1541 percentile ranking

2016 Securityhotdor 0%
m ;‘ﬂ::’oéso:; Yeor 4 Return (TSR) compared to comparator group 16.0%
Award ROE Average 4 year ROE performance 30.4%
was 11.5%
. 26th percentile ranking compared
00 ot Relativa TSR 401t Poreentie ok o%
M | 30dune20ts  YoU3 A 3yoar ROE porf ex
Award Werago 3year ROE performance
RoE was 1.0% 25.0%
Ses page 126 for more details.
Mandatory As part of the Group's response to support out people during COVID-19, the EO and GLT provided
it with th ity te quest: P \4 th \4 i i that the
iRequirement required hlding of Lendlease securities is halved. The Group CEO did not request this relaase.
» § S0 Equity Holdings & Transactions for the year endad 30 June 2020 on page 133 for more details.
FEffoctiveness Review 3 In FY21, the Board will continue to reviow h i of our ERS hat s required to
of ERS for FY21- "3 i ratain our senior executives to navigate the challenges and realisa th that lay shead.
Non Executive Di to tamporarily ir base faes by 20 per centfrom 1June 2020 as part of tha Group's
S responso to COVID-19. i i tendiease’s Hordship & Wellboing Fund.
%+ ..} Therewere noincreases to NED fees during FY20.

d. Executive Reward Strategy on a page
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Qur Strategy > Sets us up for the long term so we can continue to deliver on our vision

Our strategy is

internationally. See the ‘Our strategy’ sectior

ouri model to create the best urban precincts in key gateway cities
n on page 18 for further information.

Our Remuneration Principles” > Reinforce and actively support our Vision and Strategy

! Executive Remuneration at Lendléasé
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Our Remuneration Framework ’
Aligned with At Risk - Performance At Risk - Performance
Securityholders Hurdles Hurdles & Security Price
v

" % | Longer dited #Bif | Riskmanagément 3

H andzlignedk@ focused with
remunam:en‘%‘i profile, refiecting | inirm

at risk; which A ;the importance fé
»| o urbanisation 15
for outstanding " | ‘projects ; iy

our earnings

> Reflects our remuneration principles and supports our Vision and Strategy

v

v

Fixed Remuneration

Restricted Securities Award
(RSAY

Short Term Award (STA)

Long Term Award (LTA)

Set to attract and retain
highly capable executives

Focussed on retention and long
term value creation

Focused on priority areas
in the current financial year

Focused on future years,
with a six year time horizon

Delivered as:

Base salary and superannuation
for Australian executives and
base salary for executives
outside of Australia

Consistent Fixed Remuneration
setfor similarly sized roles 1o
simplify pay setting, support
mobility and team approach

Delivered as:

Rights

Deferral period:

Up to six years with awards.
delivered in four equal tranches
overY3,Y4, Y5 and Y6
Distributions:

Distribution equivalent amounts
are paid as cash on the RSA
during the deferral period

The value of the RSA is fixed at
the time of grant but will vary
with the security price over the
deferral period

Delivered as:
Cash

Performance period:
Qne year

Performance measures:
Financial (50 per cent) and Non
Financial (50 per cent) measures
aligned to Lendlease's focus
areas of value creation

Delivered as:

Performance rights
Performance period:

Three years with vested awards.
delivered in four equal tranches
over Y3, Y4, Y5 and Y6
Performance measures:

50 per cent relative TSR

and 50 per cent average ROE
Distribution:
Paid as an adjustment of
additional securities or cash
for any awards that vest

Remuneration Governance > Robust governance is critical to the integrity of our remuneration framework

The People & Culture Committee and the Board review our remuneration principles and remuneration framework as well as
determine the STA and LTA outcomes for the Group CEQ and senior executives, which remain subject to malus consideration. The
Board retains an overarching discretion to reduce or forfeit any unvested awards if it considers that vesting of such awards will result

in the participant receiving a benefit that was

for securityholder approval at the AGM.

the Group CEO RSA and LTA is submitted

1. Provious y LTA Minimum,
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e. Executive remuneration outcomes and disclosures

QTheBoard undertook an assessment of the Group CEO’s scorecard and the results are included below:

Performance Measures
C—F&r.Year Ended 30 June 2020

Area of Focus

Reason Chosen

Result

Lendlaase Annual Report 2020 Governance

Performance Assassment

T N
( —g Financial Perfarmance - 50 per cent Weighting

Oangn offinancit measures that includes

pécific targets f
2 profsaftor Tax
- EBITDA
sh flow from operating and investing
Qvelhends
e assesamont of the overalfinancial hoalth of

thB business:
Com;zvmg the quality of the result relative to
tht(argnB set

A breadth of financial measures, i
combination with the forward-lookiny
assassment of the financial health of the
business, focuses the Group CEO on the
delivery of financial results in the shost term
while taking decisions with an emphasis 0n
the long term interests of securityholders.

e
L1

BELOW ABOVE

Asummary of the result against each financial measure is below:

Profit aftar Tax Behind Target The Group experisnced a vary challanging yaar with 2 Statutory Loss ofte Tax of 310 milionfor the
Year ended 30 June

E8ITOA Behind Target Asolid Caro upmemg EBITDA in HIFY20 of $628 million was followed by a $65 million loss in H2F Y20 as
our t in operating condi vesult of the
p:mdamx:. Coro operating EBITDA for the full year was $563 millio he Non core ssgment reoovded an
EBITDA loss of $495 million which included accounting for o taxin
costs. The EBITDA for the yoar onded 30 June 2020 wes » $30 million logs.

Operating end Behind Target ‘Actual cash flow was (§232 million), which is bolow target primarily as a fesut of a delay in apartment

Inves ing Gash Flow

Ovarheads Behind Targat Focus on businass efficiencies saw overheads lower than targeted, but reduction in NPAT resulted in

Overhead / GPM ratio not being met.

l___/
Non Financiol

50 por cont

Alignedto our Five Focus Areas of Value Creation)

th ond Safety

)

eal y
our people. The Critical Incident Frequancy
Rate (CIFR) helps us assess how effective we
are at eliminating life threatening incidants.

—-e
N —

BELOW ABOVE

Notwithstanding the prograss mad during tho year, thore was one fatat incidant racorded. Tragically, Mohammed Nurul Amin passed away in hospital
whila in the Affin Bank Berhad project in Malaysia, This tragic incident has been considered in ossessing
the Group CEO's overall performance.

Our CIFRis at the lowast (0.7) since records began in 2012 Last Time Irjury Frequency Rate (LTIFR) for the year is 1.5, the lowest sinca records bogan in
2000. Strong fecus on saf I times and has imary concarn during COVID-19. The Group CEQ
continuos to provida isible haalth and safoty Isadarshi, notwithetanding the [mited number of $16 vits ale 1 be oranged in the sacond half o the
financial year.

@[maﬂ

Steatagic Initiatives and Managing Risk

S

Effective capital management drives longer
term securityholder retumns.

f———o
S E—

BELOW ABOVE

asition as a result of the successful complation of the
($260 million), with gearing below 10 per cent and total liquidity above $5 billion at

30 June 2026. n addition to these measures, significant progress has been made on our strategy, including the San Fracisco Bay Area projact

(c. $22 billion end value), PSP Investments partnership in Milan (c-$4 billion end value), PLLACes an One Sydney Harbour and a new joint venture with
Mnsub Estate In addition, th the business i complete in e:\vly Fya1.

Ther i including i ourfirst identiol and Urban ion) to drive
cans:skancy aiappmath onall mpelma projects globally.

Inrespor the i i '.- f COVID-19, th FY2iina
In respo "

ulCusmmels and Innovation

08

Satisfied customers drivo long term
valuo. Innovation contributes to better
performance ~ capturing and responding to
distuption creates opportunity.

e

BELOW ABOVE

Customer centricity has been i ithin th business. Key have igned dedicated account lead d all
ivi i experience research is now woll asnblxshsd across all regions and is supported by

rogional CEOs.

NPS' and C-SAT” global lid with small i hieved in FY20 in a tough operating er
Our digital strategy, as a founding member alongside Microsoft, Dell and Anys in establishing the Global Digital Twin Consortium, has baen progressed.
The taunch of our property Iifecycle platform, Podium, will help us continue to load in this spac.

nment.

uvPoapr

Having the right people in [eadership'

roles s critical to long term success.

Group CEO sponsors key people
atives.

The Group CEO actively promotes diversity
and inclusion to grow capability.

o

BELOW ABOVE

senior leadership akey focus in FY20 following moxmgmn t boi od in FY19. Activo focus, communication
and visiblty of seniar leaders, suppurlad by the Laad: P , +17in Loadership

1 por contand a 4. point increass in our Change Manngam.nt Index (shoad of our targed).
‘The retention rate for talent segments was 91 per cant in FY20, ahead of our target of greater than 90 per cent. The proportion of women in leadarship
roles has increased across the Group from 26.1 por cent to 26.9 per cent.

OF

stainability

For

Capialinvestors, poicy-makars, customors

Who can dalver efficiant, healthy. resiliont,

[ | J

culturally
that deliver long term value.

BELOW ABOVE

Out now Sustsinabilty Statogi Framowork has been endrsed by our GLT, including theformation of the Carben Targot Sub-Camittao to dotorming
appropriate torgets for the coming years. Significant progress the d Financial Disclosuro
(TCFD) framawork as wall as the publishing of our 2050 e Girmae Soomiion

1. Leaoership 10 es inc uoe  number of eve sin the

ovo ro0s.

. i oyaty. 2. C-SAT:
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e. Executive remuneration outcomes and disciosures continued
Gemparison of remunaration tables
In (hls\‘ectlun the valve of rsmunsvamn for the Group CEQ and each senior executive is reported. In addition to the required statutory

onthe

we have included a further 1able setting out the remuneration awarded on page 115, and graphs

E=%h&Wwing remuneration received on page 116, to provide a more complete illustration of our approach to executive remuneration.
An-explanation of the differences is set out below.
Comr

Awardad Tobla

Remuneration Received Graphs

Statutory Table

disclosed relates to both time in their current rols (as KMP) and any.
other role they have held at Lendlaase during the financial year.

Only shows remuneration for the time
the senior exacutive was KMP.

Fiemunmnmh

& am

{Doferrod Short- « |
———_Tern Incanllvc
~(ST))

Qe

This includes the contractually awarded
amount of Total Package Value (TPV)/
8aso Salary from 1September 2019 or
later and reflects the 20 per cent Fixed
Remuneration reduction that applied
from 1 May 2020 a5 part of the Group's
response to COVID-19,

ttexeludes annual leave and long service
leave accruals.

For individuals employed for part of the
yoar, only remuneration paid during the
employment period is included.

This includes the amount of TPV/Base
alary received during the financial
year and reflects the 20 per cent Fixed

The statutory disclosures inctude a
value for cash salary, non manetary
banefits, superannuation and other
long term benefits in ine with statutory

Remuneration reduction that applied
from 1 May 2020 as part of P
ra3ponse to COVID-15.

It excludes annual leave and long service
la:va accrua

disclosure
Non monetary benefits also include the
movement in annual leave accruals, Cash
salary also reflects the 20 per cent Fixed
pplied

ch:mgad during the year, remuneration
received reflects the different amounts
of TPV/Base Salary pai

from 1iay 2020 a5 part of the Group's
response to COVID-19 and the value of
distribution equivalent amounts paid as
cash on the RSA

The STA that will be paid as cash in September 2020 in raspect of the financial year.

N/A -The STl was replaced by the
STAin FY19.

N/A - The value of Deferrad STl that

The accounting expanse attributed

vested during the yaar is included in Prior to this financial year for Defesred STI

ST)and LTI Awards.

1ds granted in Septembar 2018
and the Executive Deferrod Award
(EDA) grantad to a limitad number of
exacutives in September 2019.

The sum of Fixed Remuneration and
ash,

N/A

N/A

2 el
-Total Short Term
(Iremune on; 3 STACash

~Déferrod Equity ']
.

The vatuo of the Deforred Equity Award
to boissuad in or around September
2020 that vests over two years with
half vesting in Septembar 2021 and the
balance in Saptember 2022.

N/A - valye will be reflected in FY21 and FY22.

The vatue of Rights awarded at the
time of grant. The value varies with the
security price over the deferral period.
The RSA vests in September 2022,
September 2023, September 2024 and
Septambar 2025.

Tho valuo of Rights which vested during

Tha RSA s raported in the Securky

the year. The
value of Rights at the grant date. No RSA
vestod during FY20.

tion of the statutory
dlsclosuv-s This is the accounting
expense attributed to this financial year
for RSA's granted in the 2019 and 2020
financial years.

The LTA replaced the LTl in FY19.

‘The Remuneration Awarded table shows
the target face value of the 2020 LTA
offered in September 2019,

The 2020 LTA vests in September 2022,
September 2023, September 2024 and
September 2025 and the awards are.
subjoct to relative TSR and average ROE
performance hurdles {explained in detail
on page 126).

N/A

The LTA s reported in the Security
Based Payments section of the statutory
disclosures. This is the aceounting

pense attributed to this financial year
for LTA granted in the 2019 and 2020
finaneial years.

(§pdcrsTiand?
LTHAwards

sﬂcumy Price . af
Growthand > &

Distributions ]

N/A - not disclosed in this table.

Tho valuo of any Defarred STl awards,
including the EDA and LTl awards which
vested during uus financial year. Tha

Prior STIand LTI Awards are reported
as part of the Security Basad Payment
section of the statutory disclosures.

awavds st tho grant dato.
Tho Deferred STI awards which w*ted

This accounting expense

attributed to this financial year for the

2018 Defarrad STl Award and the LTI
ted in the 2016, 2077 and

Sepumbovzon 18 y
The LTIs which vested in Sapnmbur 20|9
wera granted in September 2015 and
September 2016.
N/A The valus of security price growth and N/A

distributions paid between the grant date
andthe vesting dato for ST|, RSA and LTI
awards which vested during the year.

This akso includes the value of distribution
equivalent amounts paid as cash on the RSA.

1. Provious y LTA Minimum.
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Remuneration awarded by the Board for the year ended 30 June 2020

The remuneration awarded is set out in the table below.

The Board has reviewed senior executive remuneration and no further increases are anticipated for FY21, with the exception of Neil Martin
who will transition to the target remuneration for the CEO, Europe role during the year.

i Total Short Term AL Risk ~
A$000s' Short Term STA i Futura Periods
% of % of
Target Maximum Doferrod LTA LTA

Fixed STACash STACash Equity 2020 2020
Name Remuneration’ STA Cash® Paid Paid 2020  2019* Award® RSA®  Target Max*®
Group CEQ
Stephen McCann 2,27 0 0% 0% 2527 2,200 420 500 3,200 5550
Current Senior Exe
Johannes Dekker 1,161 o 0% 0% 1161 1,325 125 500 4100 3,200
Tarun Gupta 1,160 0 0% 0% 1060 1,325 s 500 3100 3,200
Denis Hickey 1,610 0 0% 0% 1610 1,880 278 500 1100 3,200
Anthony Lombardo 1105 o 0% 0% 1105 1,320 166 500 4100 3,200
Neil Martin® 1,001 0 0% 0% 1,001 - 198 313 687 2,000
Kylio Rampa 1,160 o 0% 0% 1160 1,450 125 500 1,100 3,200
David Andrew Wilson - 1,205 0 0% 0% 1205 1,372 75 500 1100 3,200
Former Senior Executive
Daniel Labbad"® 263 - - - 263 1,582 - - - -

Remuneration received for the year ended 30 June 2020

Remuneration received during the year includes Fixed Remuneration, prior ST and LTI awards and the security price growth and
distributions on these awards which vested during the year.

The Board determined in August 2020 that a cash STA would not be awarded in FY20. Prior STl awards that vested during the year were
granted in September 2017 and 2018 and were released in September 2019, Prior LT) awards that vested during the year were tested based .
on cumulative performance between the start of the year in which they were granted and the year ending 30 June 2019, These awards.
were also released in September 2019,

Security price growth and distributions represent the shared ‘gain’ senior i have over the life of
awards. The table below illustrates the change for the awards that vested during the year
Grant price Vest price § Gain Distributions

Award Granted per security § (1Sept 2019) per sacurity § paid per security § Total §
2017 STI September 2017 171 17.02 (0.09) um 1.02
2018 ST September 2018 19.79 17.02 @7 0.42 (2:39)
2016LTI September 2015 15.16 17.02 186 2.37 423
2007071 Soptember 2016 13.49 17.02 3.53 [Red 5.30

The impact of security price movements on unvested awards that are scheduled to vest in September 2020 will be included in the
FY2i Remuneration Report. This will reflect the security price decline immediately following the escalation of the COVID-19 pandemic.
For example, the security price movement on the 2018 ST was a loss of 37.5 per cent between the grant date and 30 June 2020.
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Remuneration Report

e. Executive remuneration autcomes and disclosures continued Statutory disclosures - Remuneration of the Group CEO and senior executives for the years ended 30 June 2020 and 2019
Remuneration recaived for the Group CEO other senior executives during 2019 and 2020 Statutory duscbsurgs ara included in the |gble below. §hon Term Benefits, Post Employment Benefits a.nd Other Long '!‘erm Eenafl_ts
relate to remuneration for the year. Values in the Security Based Payments columns reflect the accounting expense attributed to this
year for STI, RSA, LTI and LTA awards from prior years, and the accounting expense attributed to the RSA and LTA from this year.
) Post
Short Term Employment
Remuneration Received for the Group CEO during 2019 and 2020 A$000s" Benafits Benefits Security Based Payments’
Non Other
A$000s 6.547 Cash STA Monotary Suporannu-  Long Term Deferred
@ " Name Year Salory*  Cosh®  Benofits' ation® Benefits®  Sub-totel LTI/ LTA STI Tota
Group CEO
2,084 Stephen McCann 2020 2,130 - - 26 36 2,192 1,815 219 4,226
2019 2455 - - 25 53 2,213 2375 ES 5,063
Current Senior Executives
[2.263] Johannes Dekker? 2020 1180 - 260 10 38 1,488 1,700 76 3,262
@@ 2019 e s 287 " 230 1844 708 318 2,870
Tarun Gupta 2020 1164 - 18 21 - 1,203 735 157 2,095
i 2018 1,166 125 - 21 - 1,312 757 635 2,704
Denis Hickey 2020 1634 - 180 . - 1,824 715 108 2,643
2019 1,558 324 251 - - 2,133 588 467 3,188
— Stephen
Stephen Anthony Lombardo 2020 1129 - 2680 - - 1,409 692 114 2215
@ 2019 1094 227 21 - - 1612 655 426 2,692
W Fixeo Remunoration’ [ Prior STI& LTI Awaros Bl Security Price Growth* Neil Martin® 2020 849 - 8 - - 857 303 438 1,598
Eg Kylio Rampa 2020 1164 - 45 21 19 1,249 750 159 2158
2019 149 250 3 2 1 168 538 593 2,572
CR‘e‘; uneration Received for senior executives during 2019 and 2020 David Andrew Wilson 2020 1,209 - 9 21 20 1,259 995 7 2330
2019 1,287 125 - 21 18 1451 735 278 2464
3,253
Former Senior Executive
Daniel Labbad™ 2020 454 - 355 - - 809 865 121 1795
2019 1426 o273 284 - - 1,981 669 519 3,169
Total 2020 10,913 - 1165 99 1 12,290 8,570 1462 22,322
Total 2019 1,028 1,449 16 ) 299 13,987 7,025 4,110 25,122
2019 2020 209 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020
Johannes Tarun Denis Anthony Neil Kylie David Andrew
Dekker® Gupta Hickey Lombardo Martin Rampa Wilson
u L‘ " : 1 i i p aces): GBP0.63(app ieo to Danie
B Fixoo Romunoration K1 STACast® I8 Prior STI& LT Awaros €1 Security Prico Growtht Labbao ano Nei Marti i Y {app ieo to Danis Hickey) 2019 remuneration is reporteo in AUD beseo on the 12 month
averago histork FY0 s ima p aces): GBP 0,65 (spp ico to Danie Lebbao), SGD0.97 (appico to Anthany Lombaroo) ano USD 0.71

app 00 to Denis Hickoy). A
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e. Executive remuneration outcomes and disclosures continued
QRecom:n ation of 2020 statutory remuneration with Remuneration Received for the Group CEQ

V Jwing table shows th diff between the Group CEO's tion Received on page 116 and the Statutory Discl page i7.
Remunerst
—/o relating to Prior’ relating to Curvemt Year

e( 669 | 4226

3609 | (682 e 219 -
@ [ ) o | i

@5 en 210 26 36
d! Toul o Deferred Controctial  Actud Othor LA [[SMEwpenze  tTExpenze | Totat
Vested  STIVested Dmﬁhuhn Fixed Rem Cazh Supora- LongTem  Expenze (owards (awards | Stotutory
Ro‘mpd T Sept 19 Salary wtion® Benefits' (2020 grant) on foot) onfoot)
in202r
M Loss WAoo

Long Term Incentive performance
During 2020, two LT| awards were subject to performance testing. The performancae hurdles were relative TSR and average ROE.
C"Each hurdle is tested over a three and four year performance period. The outcomes are shown below.

6 LTI Award
: (; Théjeuryeanelalwe TSR1est was conducted in July 2019, Lendlease’s relative TSR performance achieved the 12th percentile when
Compared to the comparator group over the period from 1 July 2015 to 30 June 2019. As a result, none of the tested award vested.

The four year average ROE test was also conducted in July 2019, Lendlease's four year average ROE performance was 11.5 per cent
-overithe period from 1 July 2015 to0 30 June 2019. As a result, 34.4 per cent of the tested award vested.

|7 LTI Award
he hree year relative TSR test in July 2019. L ive TSR p achieved the 26th percentile when
comparad o the comparator group over the period from 1 July 2016 10 30 June 2019, Asa result, none of the tested award vested.

Them(ee year average ROE test was also conducted in July 2019. Lendlease's three year average ROE performance was 11.0 per cent
‘g}lhe period from 1 July 2016 to 30 June 2019. As a result, 25 per cent of the tested award vested.

The four year relative TSR and four year ROE tests for this award are scheduled for July 2020 and the results will be shown in the 2021

‘Remuneration Report.
qus, sting Rolative TSR Vesting
0~ 2016 LTI Award 0% Vested
. 2017 LT) Award 0% Vested
80

2017 LTI Award 11.0%

H 25% of awards vested
[ % 40
Iy A ¢
R—=

2.
§ o
H Averago ROE % for
£-/50-|
-

1 Avor
267 } 2016LT Award 11.5%
. | 380 of awasdsvested i
10 B “— Vesting schedute
o T T T 1
10% % 0% 3% 185 15% 16%

Average ROE achieveo over performance perioo

1.Rof octs tho i tho RSA. 2. Act
awross Fixgo Remunaraion 83 Actua CothSo ary e i >

y awaroco

@ i v Leno easefor
tho L i G ther Lo Torm Bonal of ongterm i ong service ey
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f. Remuneration governance
Robust governance is a critical part of L
Board

The Board has overall ibility for executive ion at Lendlease. The Board assesses the performance of, and determines
the remunaration outcome for the Group CEO.

People & Culture Committee
The Commmees agenda reflects the importance of human capnal tothe Group s strategy and business planning, and it assists the Board
in iate policies for people across the Group. The People & Culture Committee is also
accountable for reviewing and making recommendations to me Board on the goals, performance and remuneration of members of the
GLT. A description of the People & Culture Commities's scope can be found on page 104,
Management

makes ions to the People & Cunure Commmee in relation te developmg and implementing the ERS and
structure. The Group CEO also provides his ixed d STA outcomes for his direct reports for approval
by the People & Culture Committee.
Independent remuneration advisor
Untit 30 June 2020, the Board appointed independent remuneration advisor was PwC. The Board engaged EY in July 2020, Strict
governance protocols are cbserved 1o ensure advisors' advice to the People & Culture Committee is made free from undue influence by
KMP. The following arrangements were made to ensure that advisors' advice was free of undue influence:

o Advisors are engaged by, and report directly 1o, the Chair of the People & Cutture Committes

* The agreement for the provision of any remuneration consulting services is executed by the Chair of the People & Culture Committee
on behalf of the Board

« Any reports defivered by advisors were provided directly to the Chair of the People & Cutture Committee

« Advisors are permitted, where approved by the People & Culture C i Chair, to speak 10 10 company
processes, practices and other business issues and obtain management’s perspectives.

The Board is satisfied that any advice provided by either advisor is made free from undue influence from any of the KMP.
During the year, advisors did not provide a remuneration recommendation as defined in Section 98 of the Comporations Act 2001.
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f. Remuneration governance continued

%mmunemion levels

Londisaso on mix and fovals
E——"above the market median if outstanding performancais achieved

1 rewnrds for on target parfrmance, and tetal rewards

gCRemunarallcn i reviewad annualy b the Pecople & Cuture Comittes for the Group CEQ and senior sxecutives (orduring he year i

lhe{; areany role new senior
C " Tha People & Culture C¢

Primary Sources. i a number of sources for ing Group CEO and senior executive
of Data remuneration including:
© = Dataprovided by the Board's i i i imilar roles i ies of a similar size, such as:
- Ce i ios listed on the ASX that are 26 and 75 by mark i i
i L ployed by the trust)
.-G in ASX listed ies with revenue of betwsen S0 and 200 per cent of Lendlease’s revanue
. » Publicty isations i ;
!« Pubished.
* The People & CultureC dopted a tiered i jth a target
for senior executives at each tier as part of i in2019,
ition i ior, which i i he market median and
75th percantile, inst a number of * 3
The Peapte & Culture Commi jing princiy ideri d its applicati ing pay:
te and complexity isations i fair ison can be
N isations with simil d operational ities as Londlease)
e i i imilorly sized roles, i facilitating mobility among
" senior executives
» For senior executives based outside Australia, target payis adjusted ta living, housing and
ditferances, to achieve similar pay lavets.
M lndatory securityholding
e ing requires th p CEO and senior lives to hold a mini ber of Lendle: lies so that
h have a slgmﬁcam personal investment in Landlaase and they consider long termssmmyhnldervalue when making decisions.
@ eGroupCEOandotharsemor ives are required and tain a holding of Lendl
r&afe fence to their Fixed Remuneration (divided by the security price to determine the number of securities that must be held). In the case cf

ha Group CEO - the requirement is 150 per cent of TPV
 Sgnior executives - the requirement i 100 per cent of TPV or 00 per cent of base salay for senior executives outids of Austratia
G‘rn andatory securityholding for each senior executive is outlined in the Equity Based Remuneration tables on page 133.

ec mlas and unvested awards under the previous STl and LTI do not count towards this mandatory holding. The RSA counts towards the

Parsonally held securities may be counted towards the mandatory securityholding requirement as does the RSA. Unvested deferred
( EL
g mandatory securityholding.

Until such time as the senior executive meets the r , for senior lives based in Australia,
Lendlease imposes a disposal restriction on 50 per cent of any senior executlves Dsferred STI, RSA, LTI or LTA that vests. This
dlsposal restriction means that the senior exacutive will not be able 1o sell these securities until such time as Lendlease agrees to lift
e disposal restriction.

C&a‘rya’x executives based outside of Australia are required to achieve the mandatory holding requirement within six years of their
appointment toa KMP role.

Securities Trading Policy

| The Lendiease Securities Trading Policy applies to all of the Lendl p.In with the policy, Directors and
samior sxecutives may only dealn Lendiease securiies during dasignated perods Dnec(ols and senior executives must not enterinto
that operate to fimit th k of unvested to Lendlease sacurities. No Director or senior

executive may enter into a margin loan arrangement in respect of unvested Lendlease securities.

Hedging

Deferred STI, RSA, LT} and LTA awards are subject to the Securities Trading Policy, which prohibits executives from entering into any type
of ‘protection arrangements’ (including hedging, derivatives and warrants) in respect of those awards before vesting.
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g. How risk management is mcorporated into executive reward

The Board has placed a significant focus on i risk inta the reward
Yo Th i of a separato Risk Committoo, of which all Directors are a member, has allowad the Board agenda to bo
restructured to focus on stmtegy, culture, customel outcomes, reputation, performance and succession planning. Drawing
ol risk ols d For risk be considered in an integrated fashion
+ The Chairs of both tha Risk Committee and the Audit Committee are members of the People & Culture Committee
« The Board has overall ibility for ot exacutivas
* The People & Culture Committee regt y i ide of :Iudmg
. i ion, and 1 through Our Peopl
A Holistic * Arisk adj is considered in th ination of the per of senior executives
 Parformanco » The Group Chief Financial Officer and the Group Chief Commercial and Risk Officer jointly present to tho People & Cutture
. SSO:::;’:‘:;‘T; Committee on the ‘Health of the Business' when the Committee is considering year and STA outcomes
Outcomes * The Board ing of both i non financial STAand i is in
executive scorecards.
Mandatory * The Group CEO': and maintain a securityholding of 150 per cont of his TPV
‘= Senior ti maintain a L ling of 100 per cent of their TPV or base salary for
sanior oncutivu outside of Australia
holdir bele heir mandator i ling level, a restriction is placed on half of any
socum'esth:t vest (for senior executives in Australia).
Deferral  The RSA hos a six year time horizon, vesting progressively over Y3, Y4, Y5 and Y6

 The LTA for senior executives has a six year time horizon, tested after thae years and progressively vesting over the next
threo years ~ roflocting the long-dated nature of our projects. The LTA represents approximately half of senior executives’
Total Target Remuneration.

Forfeitura and * Awards lapse if senior executives resign to work for competitor organisations.

Malus + {f senior exocutives are considsrad to b a ‘good leaver’, awards are rstained beyond the cessation of mployment.
The Board believes that thi: executives to mak in the long term interests of
the Company
{  Tha Board ratai ing disereti duce o forfeit period beyond the

any
performance tasting pariod) i it considers that vesting of such awards would result in the participant receiving a benefit
that was unwarranted or inappropriate.

Board Discration

The Board makes, revi decisi ing executive i ye

* = The Board its to steer

basedona culmwof auwunbabvlﬂy Recent axnmn!as include:

- Supporting the voluntary 20 per cent Fixed Remuneration reduction for executives in respanse to COVID-19 and
matching it with a similar reduction to Non Executive Director base fees.

- Looking beyond solely ial measures and ising non supports long
creation in FY20

=~ The announcement the Group CEO made concerning his zero STA for FY19.
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h. How executive rewards are linked to performance

Riyeyear performance summary
»hs’g‘%phs below outline some key indicators of Group
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Restricted Securities Award (RSA)'

This section presents a summary of the key features of the RSA plan.

Performance and funding for Short Term Incentives
Incentives are funded from an incentive pool which represents a

petformance over the past five years. maximum that can be awarded. Using an incentive pool provides RSA Design How the RSA Warks
for a fair sharing of proﬂ; bet;/een secur'nbyhold:rs and e]mployees Objective « The key objectives of the RSA are:
. by capping the amount of profits that can be paid to employees. T " ith rtion of targot is doli P "
(li SE‘t_UtQI'Y Profit after ‘Tax (PAT) Italso forges a strong link between Group performance and short To P ong 1o ':' ) @ portion e targe fs dolivered in L
Attrlbutable to Securityholders ($m)' term reward outcomes because they are influenced (up or down) = Tosupport long term valuo creation
by the available pool. ‘ - To better align reward to risk monagement.
758.6 792.8 Group PAT is one factor that determmesme overall size of the Quantum » TheRSAisset at ssoo 000 for the GuupCEO and for senior executives™. Refer to the targat remuneration mix set out in the
99~2 - incentive pool. An assessment of overall profit make up, heatth of page 110
I I | | | | L’:\Z‘fi“e:s and other financial and non financial facters are also Ins(mmant & B delivered to a limited numbar of senior executives as an | f rights to acqui afaco
idered. . ity
(310) Group PAT, i by the cost: with the » The Board intends that the RSA be settled in Lendlease sacurities, although the award may be settled in cash at tho Board's.
of the Engineering business, was a statutory loss for FY20. discretion
kY16 224 FYis  FYi9 FY20 Following an overal assessment °"lf"ar'|'°'a' and "°’l‘)ﬁ‘""a"°'a' Dotermining the  » The number of rights allocated is based on average pri stapled the
performance and the overall heatth of the business before and number of Rights ASX over the 20 trading days prior to the release oltholullya:u tosults for ial year ending 30 June p: g th
i o \ during the COVID-19 situation, the Board approved a small pool of grant date
I:T‘Q(al Dividends/Distributions ($m) incentive awards to recognise significant contributions. The pool . - -
wa lower than FY19 and an even smaller portion OoferralPeriod = 3«‘29 nx: deferred for three years and released in four equal tranches over a further three year period, at the end of Y3, Y4,
compared tothe five prior years. The Board acknowledges the on
3494 384.9 399.6 importance of continuing to motivate our employees through  Distributi val are paid a5 cash on the RSA during the deferral period
recognising their contributions.
191 osnieng . Malus o The Board may adjust the number of rights downwards prior to the date of vesting in the case of a material misstatement of
Group CEO scorecard and performance in 2020 the Group's financial accounts.
STA outcomes are based on financial and non financial measures « Tho number of rights can be reducad in circumstances whera tho Board considers that delivery of al or part of the award
\_fns FY17 FY18 an FY20 1o senior priority areas for would result in a benefit that is unwarranted or inappropriate
delivery in the current financial year. PR o Ifth for cause, th d RSA lapses
50 per cent of awards are assessed against a set of team targets o IFth for poor the Board can ad]ust unvestad RSA prior to the vesting date

E'armngs per Stapled Security (EPSS) (cents)?

(ex lucing treasury securities)

‘25 3 1352 137.0

B g

@ws

:Aqrgual Total Securityholder Return (%)3

FY17 FY18 FY19 FVZO

38
$ ( (13) I_l l-&l (33) 2)

O(FVIG FY7  FYte  FYi9  FY20
Return on Equity (ROE) (%)*

* executive. While

for Group financial performance against metrics that include:
o Profit after Tax

For good leavers', including executives who resign but

iith the Group,
the RSA may remain on foot subject to the original vesung conditons, |

« EBITDA

« Overheads

« Cash flow from operating and investing.

The overali financial heaith of the business is afso included
in the assessment.

50 per cent of awards are assessed against a range of
non financial performance measuresincluding:
« Safety performance
® Progress against strategic initiatives
* Sustainability
« Our people - retention of critical talent and targets

for women in leadership positions
» Our customers - measures in line with our customer framework.
The Board is committed 10 the safety and wellbeing of employees.
The Board considers safety leadership behaviour and outcomes in
assessing the overall performance of the Group CEO and each senior
is not structt
a'gateway’ measure, are clearly

EO and senior that poor health and szfaly

outcomes may lead to reduction in STA outcomes for the year.

13.0 12.9 12.7
The fatal incidentin FY20 has been considered in assessing the Group
CEQ's STA outcome. The Group CEO's cash STAis O per cent of his

@7 target and his FY20 Deferred Equity Award is equivalent to 35 per
cent of his STA target (23 per cent of his STA maximum). Refer to the
Fyie Y7 FYia FYio Fy20 Group CEQ's scorecard on pages 112 and 113 for further details.
1.AL i vau ion oo 2. ing
AASB133 the Y
'nbaro' #t8p 6o 1o eo securities institutiona rity Purchasa Pan
ing the yeer. FY19 EPS! X s pr L Y tion yie
to0 23 the ennv v o yho i

ROE}
‘beginning, ha f yeer ano year eno s oo savin

1. Previous y LTA Minimum. 2. The FY20 RSA for Ne Martin was $312,500.
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h.How executive rewards are linked to performance continued

S%erm Award (STA)
o

STAs are based on

againsta s of financial and non financial measures

g‘l’;sec\ion presants a summary of the key features of the FY20 STA plan and shows the key differences between the STA and the
Cpszious Short Term Incentive (STI), for which some awards remain on foot. The key features of the STA are outlined in the table below:

occured in FY20 has been considered in assessing the Group CEO's STA

STA Design How tho STA Works
STA Quantum  The 2020 STA has been set with reference to the Group CEO and senior executive target remuneration mix sot out in the
‘) Snapshot of FY20 remuneration outcomes on page 110.
STA funding « The pool of funds available to reward executives under the STA plan i ined by direct pfi
non financial performanc:
*+ Indstarmining the pool of funds avalable,the Board axaminas safoty parformanca and the ovarall bealth of the business,
which considers a broader set of and how we have managed r
';T'nang-|- and = The minimum possil tcome is zero and the TA outcome is limited to 150 per cent of the senior executive’s
Opportunity target STA opportunity.
STA Key « STAout are based on i inancial year, primarily measured thiough the use of the Group CEQ
- Performance and senior executive scorecards
——Indicators  The Group CEOF by the Board) and gainst the scorecard i ised on pages
#2and 13
D + Landiease is comitted to the safety and wallbsing of al of its employsas. The Board cansidars safaty loadership behaviours
the overall the Group CEO and each senior executive. While the assessment is
not stru:tured formulaically or as a ‘gateway’ measure, expoctations are clearly communicated to the Group CEO and senior
@  health and safety may lead to a reduction in STA year. The fat:

@w the STAis

Deliverad

» The People & Culture Committes considers feedback fram the diract reports and teams of each sanior executive. In this way,
the STA considers 'what' is achieved as well as "how’ itis achieved.

+ The STAis delivered as cash in September following the end of the performance year.

Y

Prior Short Term Incentive (ST)
Key.features of tha 2018 STI plan ara the same as the FY20 STA, except for the following which apply to the 2018 STI plan only.

@@oﬁm

How the STI Works

Hgw the STHis

or

s

=

Trastmont of
" Deferred STIon
Termination

.

« The STl award is delivered as a mix of cash and Deferrad ST, which is settled i

by the Baart

For STl awards ‘up to targot’, 50 per cont of th dwas paid in cash in September h

year. The remaining 50 por cent is doferred ~ half of which vasts one year after the grant and the other half vests after twe

years. Deferred ST] awards are hofd in an employee share plan trust until vesting

« For ‘above target’ STl awards, the abova target porti delivered one-third as cash and two-thirds deferred on the same
basis as set out al

Lendlease sacurities or cash as determined

+ Distributions aro not paid on any unvastad Dferrod STl for the Group CEO and sarior oxacutives; howaver,the valuo of any
distrbutions mads duringthe vestig periodstaken nts 6 the amount of L
cash provided on vesting.

= Tho Board has tha discretion to forfeit part or all of any unvested Deferred ST) awards prior to their va:tmg whera it considers
vesting would provide a participant with a or “The Board may delay g of any
uavested Deferred ST in the event it is reviewing ise dis ion to reduce or awards.

* Malus provisions work olongside the Deferred STI terms to provide discretion for the Board to adjust unvested awards on
tormination of employment. In particular:

- Itan employes is terminated for fraud or other serious unvested lapse
- Where an employee for poor he number of unvested Deienad STl awards can be
odjusted downwards
- Deferred STI awards re forfeited by the individual i they resign during the vesting period
« For‘good leavers!, the Deferred STl awards may remain on foot date, subject

In exceptional circumstances (such as death or total and permanent dxs:bxlny), the Board may exercise its discretion and pay
the award at the time of tarmination of employment.
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FY20 Deforred Equity Award
This section presents a summary of the key features of the FY20 Deferred Equity Award plan.

FY20 Deferred
Equity Award How the FY20 Deferred Equity Award Works

Objective e

The key objecti f the F° lity Award are to:
- Rocogniso i of non financial outcomes fong term value creation
- Consi balance b motivating, ising and rowardi h interests

- Recognise that although a final dividend for F Y20 will ot b' paid from Lendlease Corparation Limited, securityholders
will receive distributions of over $191 million relating to F’

~ Provide the Board with additional review points prior to vesting
~ Provide a retention elemont given that executives will be required to wat up to two years for the award to vast.

“Quentum e

Refer to the Remuneration Awarded table on page 115 for more details

TheFY20 Deis"sd Equity Award is delivered to senior executives as a grant of rights to acquire securities on a
face value basi

The Board intends that the FY20 Deferred Equity Award be settled in Lendlease securities, although the award may
be settled in cash at the Board's discretion

Ulnstrument &+ e
Eligibility
Determiningthe _ »

<number of Rights

The number of rights allocated is based on the VWAP of stapled securities acquired on or off market around September 2020

Deforral Period . » The FY20 Defarred Equity Award E years, with ing i and the batance in
= September 2022
Distributions: - » Distributions are not paid on any unvestad FY20 Delenad Equity Award for the Group CEO and senior executives, Howaver, in
; vosting of the FY20 Dforred Equity Award, tho valuoof any
. : I g he vosting poriod s b
* Malus T

The Baard may adjust the number of rights downwards prior to the date f vesting in the case of a mat
the Group’s financial accounts

The number of rights can be raduced in ci hore th
would result in a benefit that is unwarranted or inappropriate

misstatement of

of all or part of the award

o Ifth ive i i cause, Equity p:
e Ifth ive i i for poor the Board can Equity Award prior to the
© vesting date

For good leaves’ inclcing axacutives who resign but do not engagain ativiles tha aro compatiive it the Group,
the FY20 Deferred Equity Award may remain on
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Haw the LTA Works

" h. Howiekecutive rewards are Imked to performance contlnued

§L0ns Torm Award (LTA). ) . -« The Board believes' measures, th other features of ‘st sk remunsratioh ot Lendiesse, pravida a-
Thel key features of the LTA plan are set ou‘l in the table ba|ow Page 127 shows 1he key dlffarences bmween this awavd and LTI awards . PR suitable l‘nk to Im\g(erm u:uv{tyholdev value creation because: )
gf/m Prior years, some of which ramin on foot. . T - - TSRincentivise ives to deliver returhs tha : L coutd a:hisvainlhemarlun
. T T A P + and promots ont to maintain a strong ityholder itcomes . T
T . - ROE reflects the capital intensh f Lndlease’ andis on  term measure of
CLTA Dosign " * * How the LTA Works ptable earnings ital invested and respect; of deval
5 managing, acquiring and disposing of assets, | : : :

" The Group’s currently stated ROE target range is 10 to 14 per cent
The Board Beliaves that the vesting range provides a reafistic goal at tho lowér and (in the coritext of risk frea rates of return,
cost of capital and market conserisus) and a strateh at the upper en

« ‘The hurdles are -mewsd  annually by thi Board with the oim of setting an avarags ROE hurdlo lange{hai will drive
itho tisk taking. The Board also has governance protocols in place ta meniter
lovels of net debt and is conscious uf the .mnm that debt can have'on the ROE result .
. Whilé the Bo; held by stake S, wo blieve th: {hosa maasures
- provida the appropriate balance batween market and non market mossuton. - - -

Reward gonior oxocutives for delivering Londleasd’s stratogy liveri toined lohg term
=, Align the interests of senior executives and securityholders.

c.

Ap annual grant of performanca rights is made to a limited number of senior exocutives on a face value basis.

The number of pw’om\ance rights allocated is. ba.-ad onthe VWAF of smplnd secun(las(mdad on the ASX over tha 20 tmdmg
of thefullyear resul for n oding tho grant dst -

The number of r'ghs is .

The award is delivered as a target number of
adjusted up or down at vesting based on parformanco over il assessmont period.
The'Board intends that the awards be settled in Lendlease securities, although the award may be sc!ﬂed in cash or olher ’
means at the Board's discretion. .

" The amount of LTA achiaved at target has been set with référence to:
* Tho Group CEO and senior oxecutive target remunoration mix setouton page 10 , . ** « |
« Having regard to the benchmark data and markst positioning as described on page 120,

Threé years. The parformance period was chosen as the Board blieves that the timeframe appropriotely réflocts o nity to earn an award get foi s both ice hurdles. B .
balance batwsen reward that motivates executives whila reflecting tha long tail of profitability and risk associated with [

 today’s docisions’.

Onco tho award has heen dotermined, awards are retained nnd ralnﬂs-d in four nqun] tranches over
. d. B . . B

There is no retesting'of the LTA. If the nnrfwm:mn hurdle is not met at the time of testing, the awards are forfeitad.

Distributions are not paid on the LTA, unless and until vamng Conditions are met.

6..}(1\.. thres

. “The Board may adjust th ber of 4 s rights pri tnhodara of vesting in the case of 3 material |
misstatement of the Group’s financial accounts P
& Tha number of performanca rights can ba raduced in clrcumskancnswham the Board
. the award would resultin a'benefit that is unwarranted of inappropri .

'mmemnm delxvery ef allor sort of

Average Retum On Equity )

§  Relative Total Sa:unlyhdder Relum(ﬂTSR)

* T5Ris measured by the growthin security price and :my "« ROEis calcylated by demu lhn amuml statutory Pmm ° L

iod - - after Tax by the waighted ave forthe o If the executive'is terminated for cause, the unvestad LTA lapses

* Ifthe exocuiivojs torminated for pogy porformance. the Board can nd|usl un md LTA prior to lho vesting date

«. Relative TSR is measured agamsucompamas_muxcompnss. . AvsrageROEwnllbebasedon theaverage of ROE fesuts . o .
3 001’ tralian Securiti hi ‘over the three year performance period . N . including sesign but do are wmh!heGroupy
(ASX) 100 index : S » Target and maximum ROE araset by the Board foreach .-, . F the LTA om “°"'°°““°"
i dif TSR thraa year period and are set with referance totho Group's . .. Prior LT Awards g - = = T g

. hi
ator above the Téth pur:ulml

Purtfulm Mal\nyumlnt Framework. .
- " Key difforences between the LTI plan forthe years 20i7- 2018 and the currem (A plan are asfoliows:

« 2017 LTI awards were allocated on a fair value basis,
target number of performance securities were awarded under the LTI plan. There is no oppnnunny(o earn an award above target for.
outperformance, nor is there'a minimum award'delivered if performance hurdles are'not met

At the 50th 50 per cant SOpercent  Batwaen Pro ratastraight line Pro rata straight fine : P77 e ForLTiawaids, 50 per cent uﬂhe grant valug is aésessed over athied year period, and the remairing 50pér centis assessed aﬁerfouryears .
— - — — 10 per cont and vesting between  vesting batwean : ! o .
< At the” - Pro’ ight line . torgetROEsat” .. 13.5percontand 3125 per centand Under tha LTI plan, i c 4 or-total and dlsabllﬂy).ﬂle Board may exercise its discretion
51st and below . vesting betwaen ' vesting between _ by the Board 00 por cont 100 per cant “to pay the award at the time of termi nt.

: the75th - : -"-S4percentand: - 56 per centand:
©.- W6 percant - 194 percent

Atthe 50th percantile . 50 pir cont vesting

75th or greater 150 per cent 200psrcont  Attorgetset 100 per cont 100 por cont The vesting schedules for LTI awards on foot are shown below: A
AN by tho Board R 3
he Boar L : 100
Botwoentarget  Pro rata straight line Pro rata straight line .
sotbythoBoard ' vestingbetween  vesting betwean e
: *.and 4 percent .. . 100 porcentand . 100 per centand, £
- cL 150 per cent 200 per cant g
At18 per cont 150 per cant 200 per cant Belawtho S0t No vesting S
or groater L . .. L. percent " CE s
]
H
g
5.
®

. *Atorabovethe Sist . . Pro rata vesting'on .
. L *+" porcentile but below . straightline'basis .
> - the75th percentile **  batween 52 percent - R .
: . and 98 per cant - 0

Atthe75th o% . . t10% R R st 1sn %

S Tt T orgrester -

160 pe

Averago ROE achieved over perfdrmance peri

o0 a3 om RSA. Given {his oecek
get LTA, &n jious y LTA Minimum) that vests at oifferent

1. During tha yoar the Boaro osterminao that tho LTA Minkmum is bistter
. scheou @ ref ecis th i ' mbi
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i. Executive contracts j. Equity based remuneration
QKMP employment contracts Deferred securities |
EachKMP has an ongoing employment contract. All KMP have termination benefits that are within the limit allowed by the

SNy ? . FairVoluo  Total Fair Expenso For
Corporations Act 2001 without securityholder approval, Per

Value At the Year

‘Contracts also set out the treatment on termination for other reasons including, but not limited 1o, resignation, termination with STI Aweard oforrod Grant  Ended 30
= . P . Performance Grant Vesting Number  Security’ Date”  June 2020 % %
Cnonca and termination for cause. The Group may make a payment in lieu of notice. Name Plan Year Dato Dote  Granted s s s Vested Forfeited
g Koy-terms for each KMP are sat out below: Py
Stephen McCann Deferred STI 207 Sept2017  Sapt2019 26,725 16.37 437,512} 100% -
Notica by i -
C‘D‘“ Lendlease on with Natice by Landleasa . Deferred STI 2018 Sept2018  Sept 2019 22,434 19.50 437510 FE . . & -] 100% -
Deferred STH 2018 Sept2018 Sept2020 22,434 19.50 437,510 ki, 4 218,755 | = -
Gf’:‘m CEO Total : 71,593 1,312,532 ity 218,755
Cs'np\p). MeC: {2months 6 months Inth hero the Group CEO is not employed for tho full pariod of noti ti g Exocutives
en McCann months 6 months  In the case where the Group GEO s not employed for th full pariod of notice, a payment in 5 - - -
L lisu of notice may be made. The payment in lieu of notice includos pro rata Fixed Remuneration Johannes Dekkart  Siga-On Auord May2018 Sopt 209 8,535 W57 150.0001f:£18750) 100%
A and th cash value of statutory ontitloments and bonfits Sign-On Award - May2018_ Sept2020 5690 7.7 100,000 BF % 42,857] - -
ﬂ — Deferrad STI 2018 Sept2018  Sept 2018 1,264 19.79 25,015 P BRas; < 100% -
‘Cuirent Senior Executives Deferred STI 2018  Sept2018 Sept2020 1,264 19.79 -
—3 .
)] Total - 16,753
[—Jukiannes Oekker' 2months 6months  Notice payment is based on TPV, Payment for accrued loave is based on TPV less Torun Gupta Deferred STI 207 Sept207  Septoom 19,285 e .
superannuation i 4
Deferred STI 2018 Sept2018  Sept 2019 15,842 19.79 -
C—aruh Gupta Gmonths  Smonths  Notice payment is based on TPV. Payment for accrued leave is based on TPV lass Deferred STI 08 Gecid0le Geptaca0 5643 i8R SISSIONM RHESTO - -
= superannuation Total 50,969 957,045 §1_" 156,760 ;
\U} Denis Hickey Deferred STI 2077 Sept2017 Sept 2019 17,966 ALl 307,434 §;,| hendll - 100% =
Danis Hickey Smonths  Emonths  Notico payment is based on base salary and other minimum benefits as required by applicable Deferred STH 2018 Sopt2018_ Sopt2019 10,556 1979 208,868 Bk w . .1-1_ 100% ;
United States legislati
" s legislation Deferred STI 2018 Sept 2018  Sept 2020 10,554 19.79 208,868 ¥, ¥104,434° - =
Total 4 4 i
“Anthbny Lombardo 2 months 6 months  Notice payment and accrued leave is based on base safary ote! 39,07 725170 $5.4104,434
Anthony Lombardo  Oeferred STI 207  Sept2017  Sept 2019 9,753 Al 166,893 g5 %, 100% -
/ o Deferred ST 2018  Sept2018 . Sept 2019 1,517 19.79 227,926 § 7w 100% -
Neil Martin 6months & months  Notice payment and accrued leave is based on base salary Deferred STI 2018 Sept2018  Sept2020 1,517 19.79 227,926 P 113,963 ] . -
Q Total 32,787 622,745
Kyli4 Rampa 6months  Emonths  Notico payment is based on TPV, Payment for accruad loave is basod on TPV lass Neil Martin Deferred STI 207 Sept2017  Sept2019 ngst 741 202,965 Lt T - 100% -
& superannuation Deferred STI 2018  Sept2018  Sapt 2019 1,606 19.79 229,668 k5 100% -
m Deferred STI 2018  Sept2018  Sept 2020 11,605 19.79 229,668 i1 114,834 - -
iDavid Andrew Wilson 6months 6 months  Notice payment is based on TPV. Payment for accrued leave is based on TPV less " -
G IJ superannuation EDA 2019 Sept2019  Sept 2019 1,329 16.86 191,007 | i 190,987 100%
EDA 2019  Sept2019  Sept2021 1,329 16.86 - -
@mer Executive : EDA 2019 Sept2019 Sept2022 1,329 16.86 -
g Total 69,058
Daniel Labbad Smonths  6months  Notice payment and accrued leave is based on bose salary Kylie Rampa Oaferred ST 2007 Sept2017  Sept2019 B0 kAl -
Deferred STI 2018 Sept2018  Sept2019 16,039 18.79 -
Deforred STI 2018 Sept2018  Sept 2020 16,039 19.79 317,418 k.., 158,709 - -
Additional disclosure for the Group CEO contract = L L — e :" earos
.- N N PP . otal ) O J o
In 3ddition, the Group CEO has a non compete notice period of 12 months and a non solicitation period of 12 months. - = :
3 L P cEo: David Andrew Wilson Deferred STI 2017  Sept2017  Sept2019 5,698 wn 97,5048 v x . 3-)  100% -
termination the Group CEO: ! . Deferrod STI 2018 Sopt2018 _ Sept2019 7719 1979 152762f = wm-) 100% b
e May continue o receive an STA award for the latest financial year based on an assessment of his performance by the Board Deforred ST 208 Sept70 Sept 2020 e 7 152762 Hmdre.sel - -
o—LITA and LT1 will be treated in accordance with the plan rules at that time Fwn 2136 405,008 Bl 76,381
« Deferred ST awards from prior years will remain on foot in certain mutually agreed termination circumstances. Former Senior Executive Lt |
Daniel Labbad Deferred STI 2017 Sept2017  Seopt2019 18,234 n 312,020 FHEEA -7 100% -
Deferred STI 2018 Sept2018  Sept2019 12,234 19.79 24216 .53 F7ER -1 100% =
. Defeorred STI 2018 Sept2018 Sept 2020 12,234 19.79 242,16 B - 121,058 - -
Total H 42,702 796,252 §x* 121,058 |
1. The fairve i the Def T i 2. At vesti ini va veisni ano i ir ve
it 3. Johannes i i i

s the fair va somu fp ico by h % o
1. NoticabyLono i vesrs of arpp oyment i 12 months therosfer. emp oyar. The hag vesteo, or wi vest,ouring X y
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j. Equity based remuneration continued

%ﬁrm Incentive Awards

FairValue  Total Fair Expenso
Per Value  For the Year
— . Peformance  AtGrant  Ended30
Plan Grant Vesting  Number Security* Date™™* June 20 %
-Nameo (For the Year Ended) Date Date  Granted s $  Vested Forfeited
gcem, CEO
Stophen McCann  Juna 2016 LTI (50%) Sopt2015  Sopt2019 101,818 10.56 1,075,198 | = (473,650) 16% 84%
@ Juno 2017 LTI (50%) Sept2016  Sept2019 122,440 1.33 1,387,245 [ (405,810) 12% BB%
June 2017 LTI (50%) Sept2016  Sept2020 122,440 144 1,400,718 .- 350,78 - -
Juna 2018 LTI (50%) Sept2017  Sept2020 100,388 13.07 1,312,071 §4 4. 382,208 - -
June 2018LTI (50%) Sept2017  Sept2021 100,388 323 1,328433 Y- 386,889 - -
@ June 2019 LTA (25%) Nov2018  Sept2021 44,476 9.94 4420911 sitor,271 - -
June 2019 LTA (25%) Nov2018  Sept2022 44,476 9.94 442,091 B 107,271 - -
@@ June 2019 LTA (25%) Nov2018  Sopt2023 44,476 9.94 4420011 . 107,271 - -
June 2019 LTA (25%) Nov2018  Sept2024 44,476 9.94 442,091 ffin, 107,271 - -
June 2020 LTA (25%) Sept2019  Sopt2022 64,240 2255  1.448,612 F1 286,641 - -
j June 2020 LTA (25%) Sept2019  Sept2023 64,240 2255 1,848,612 |7 +:286,641 - -
June 2020 LTA (25%) Sept2019  Sopt2024 64,240 2265 1,448,612 Pl 266,641 - -
— June 2020 LTA (25%) Sept2019 Sept2025 64,240 2255 1,448,612 ., : 286,641 - -
Tota) 982,338 14,066,173 [:41,815,454 |
\Guttent Senior Executivas
Ustannes Dekker* June 2019 LTA (25%) Nov2018  Sept2021 19,238 11.49 220,999 ki 563,624 - -
June 2019 LTA (25%) Nov201d  Sept2022 19,234 .49 220,999 EHii * 63.624' - -
E June 2019 LTA (26%) Nov2018  Sept2023 19,234 1.49 220999} . 153,624 - -
June 2013 LTA (25%) Nov2018  Sept2024 19,234 .49 220,999 Hlfini. 53,626 - -
@ Retention Award Jan2019  Jan2022 261168 11.94 3,000,000 [{ 1,000,000 - -
June 2020 LTA (25%) Sept2019  Sept2022 27,780 22,08 613,382 bis, 124,399 1 - -
June 2020 LTA (25%) Sept 2019  Sept2023 27,780 22.08 613,382 B 1 %121,399 1 - -
@@ June 2020 LTA (26%) Sopt2019 Sept2024 27,780 2208 613,382 b +.1121,399 - -
& June 2020 LTA (25%) Sept2019  Sept2025 27,780 22,08 613382 B 4121,399 - -
Tots 439,224 6,337,524 [51,700,092
G‘rlaj‘ Gupta Juna 2016 LTI (50%) Spt2015  Sept2019 23,679 10.56 250,050 B (10.142)]  16% 84%
June 2017 LTI (50%) Sept2016  Sept2019 33,272 1.33 376,972 FPEF (110,278) | 2% 88%
June 2017 LTI (50%) Sept2016 Sept2020 33,272 .44 380,632 B @ 595158 - -
@ June 2018LT1 (50%) Sept2017  Sept2020 31,638 1307 - -
June 2018 LTI {50%) Sept2017  Sept2021 31,638 13.23 418,571 B 121,931} - -
Juno 2019 LTA (25%) Nov2018  Sopt202 19,234 11.49 220,999 bgins - 53,624 - -
& Juno 2019 LTA (25%) Nov2018  Sept2022 19,234 11.49 220,999 BB 53,624 - -
June 2019 LTA (25%) Nov2018  Sept2023 18,234 .48 220,999 K. - '63,624° - -
@ Juno 2019 LTA (25%) Nov2018  Sept2024 19,234 .49 220,999 |F -~ 153,624 - -
June 2020 LTA (25%) Sept 2019 Sept 2022 27,780 22.08 613,382 fE 121,359 1 - -
June 2020 LTA (25%) Sept2019  Sept2023 27,780 22.08 613,382 P4+ 121,399 ; - -
June 2020 LTA (25%) Sopt2019  Sopt2024 27,780 22.08 613,382 24 121,389 ¢ - -
June 2020 LTA (25%) Sept2019  Sept2025 27,780 22.08 613,382 F#%:1121.399 - -
Total 341,555 5,177,258 | . 734,723
1. For LTE at vesting, the minimum vo vo fs i ano va uais tha fsi mutip feo by 3 2. For the LTA for the
ting, i i ip leo by 13.5% of
va ue'a the folf va uomu £ip 100 by 150% of the pog is. 3. For the LTA ' i
vesting, the ast i i o loo by 31.26% of rentoo ano tho esti ia the folr
va uomu tipico by 200 o
va uation of inc uoi i ¥ LTA Minimurn),

peg i 4. The foir va
unoer ying the 8 ack-Scho es methooo ogy 1o prooucea Monte-Car o simu stion
p aces. 5. Joh ic revis

mooa ith Auatra i
the Engineering eno Services businessos.
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FairValue  Total Fair Expense
Per Value  For the Yoar
Performance  AtGrant  Ended 30
Plan Grant Vesting  Number Security® Date™™  Juno 2020 % *
Name (For the Yeer Endad) Dato Date  Granted s $ §  Vested Forfoited
Current Senior Exacutives continuad
Denis Hickey June 2016 LTI (50%) Sept2015  Sept2019 16,576 10.56 175,043 fijusk (77,106) 16% B4%
June 2017 LTI (50%) Sept2016  Sept2019 22,626 1.33 256,353 ko3l (74,979) ¢ 12% 88%
June 2017 LTI (50%) Sept2016  Sept2020 22,626 11.44 258,841 $ffi¥ 64,710 - -
June 2018 LTI (50%) Sopt207  Sopt2020 21,904 13.07 286,285 FHF2118,196 | - -
June 2018 LTI (50%)  Sept2077  Sept2021 21,904 13.23 289,790 {#flr 84,417, - -
June 2019 LTA (25%) Nov201B  Sept 2021 19,234 1149 220,999 {3 53,624 - -
Juno 2019 LTA (26%) Nov20i8  Sept2022  19.23¢ 149 220,999 bk 53,6241 - -
June 2019 LTA (25%) Nov2018  Sept 2023 19,234 1.49 220,999 FZHR 53,624 1 - -
June 2019 LTA (25%) Nov2018  Sopt2024 19,234 149 220,999 R . 53,6241 - -
June 2020 LTA (25%) Sopt2019  Sept2022 27,780 22.08 613,382 fiF%: 121,399 | - -
June 2020 LTA (25%) Sept2019  Sept2023 27,780 22.08 613,382 ez 121,399 | - -
Juna 2020 LTA (25%) Sept2019  Sept2024 27780 22.08 613,382 3R 121399 | - -
June 2020 LTA {25%) Sept2013  Sept2025 27,780 22.08 613,382 B 121,399 | - -
Total 293,692 4,603,836 = 715,330 |
Anthony Lombardo June 2016 LTI (50%) Sept2015  Sopt2019 23,679 10.56 250,050 F¥E (10,142) | 16% 84%
June 2017 LTI (50%) Sept2016  Sept2019 26,618 11.33 301,582 P (88,219) | 12% 88%
June 2017 LTI (50%) Sept2016  Sept2020 26,618 .44 304,510 PEATT 76,128 | - -
June 2018 LTI (50%) Sept207 Sept2020 24,034 13.07 314,124 Rl 21,907) - -
Juna 2018 LTI (50%) Sept207  Sept2021 24,038 13.23 © 317.970 fiaf 92,626 | - -
June 2019 LTA (25%) Nov2018  Sept2021 19,234 11.49 220,999 FlE ' 53,624 - -
June 2019 LTA (25%) Nov2018  Sept2022 19,234 11.49 220,999 $id, - 53,624 - .
June 2019 LTA (25%) Nov2018  Sept2023 19,234 11.49 220,999 § 55 53,624 - -
June 2019 LTA (25%) Nov2018  Sept 2024 19,234 .49 220,999 §.fF - 53,624 - -
June 2020 LTA (25%) Sept 2019  Sept 2022 27,780 22.08 613,382 P 5~ 121,399 - -
Juno 2020 LTA (25%) Sept2019  Sept2023 27,780 22.08 613,362 A 121,399 | - -
June 2020 LTA (25%) Sept2019  Sept2024 27780 22.08 613,302 §45,.7 121,399 | - -
June 2020 LTA (25%) Sept 2019  Sept 2025 27,780 22.08 613,382 I 121,399 | - -
Total 313,039 4,825,760 Ext?; 692,392
Neil Martin June 2020 LTA (25%) Sept2019  Sept2022 17,362 22.08 383,353 g, ", 1 75,6872 - -
June 2020 LTA (25%) Sept 2019 Sept 2023 17,362 22.08 383,353 J'0 i1 75,872 - -
June 2020 LTA (25%) Sept2019  Sept2024 17,362 22.08 383,353 §- 7 75,872 - -
June 2020 LTA (25%) Sept2019  Sept2025 17,362 22.08 383,353 §gRi 75,672 - -
Total 69,448 1,533,412 I 303,488 |
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Remuneration Report

j. Equity based remuneration continued

%ﬁrm Incentive Awards continued

Fair Value Total Fair xpense
Por Valua  For the Year
— Performance  AtGrant  Ended 30
Plan Gram  Vosting  Numbor Socurity’ Date™™  June2020 % %
Namo (For tho Year Ended) Date Date Granted $  Vested Forfeitod
Cc.mun Senior Exacutives continued
Kylig Rampa June 2016 LTI (50%) Sept2015  Sept2019 9,672 10.56 100,024 & (44,059 16% 84%
@ June 2017 LT (50%) Sept2016  Sept2019 19165 .33 21713915 (63509)]  12% 88%
June 2037 LTI (50%) Sept2016  Sept 2020 15,165 1.44 219,248 } 54,812 - -
June 2018 LT) (50%) Sept2017  Sept2020 21,904 13.07 286,285 I~ - 18,196 - -
June 2018 LTI (50%) Sept2017  Sept2021 21,904 13.23 289,790 f 84417, - -
@ June 2019 LTA (25%) Nov2018  Sept2021 19,234 11.49 220,999 fi'i. L 53.624" - -
June 2019 LTA (25%) Nov2018  Sept2022 19,234 .49 220,999 k' '53,624" - -
@ June 2019 LTA (26%) Nov2018  Sept2023 19,234 11.49 220999 53,624 - -
June 2019 LTA (25%) Nov2018  Sept2024 19,234 11.49 220,999 §*++. 53.624° - -
June 2020 LTA (25%) Sept 2019 Sept 2022 27,780 22.08 613,382 121,399 § - -
June 2020 LTA (25%) Sept 2019 Sept2023 27,780 22.08 613,382 7712 121,399 | - -
June 2020 LTA (25%) Sept 2019  Sept2024 27,780 22.08 613,382¢° * 121,399 - -
June 2020 LTA (25%) Sopt2018  Sopt2025  27.780 22,08 613,382 §x " 121,399 | - -
Total, 279,666 4,450,010 145,749,949 |
@6&}? Andrew DE Award (50%) May 2016 May2021 80,000 13.42 1,073,600 fi , ~214,781| - -
Wilsan® DE Award (50%) May2016  May2023 80,000 13.42 1,073,600 3 153,415 - -
June 2016 LTI (50%) Sopt2015  Sept20i9 14,208 10.56 150,036 1 . (66.094) | 16% 84%
@ June 207 LTI (50%) Sept2016  Sept2018 15,971 133 180,961 141, (62,954)  12% 88%
June 2077 LTI (50%) Sept2016  Sept2020 15,971 1.44 182,708 FhiP 45,676 | - -
@ June 2019 LTA (25%) Nov2018  Sept202i 19,234 .49 220,999 § & * 53,624° - -
June 2019 LTA (25%) Nov2018  Sept2022 19,234 1.49 220,999 ¥ 53,6241 - -
June 2019 LTA (25%) Nov2018  Sept2023 19,234 .49 220,999 §EE- 53.624! - -
June 2019 LTA (25%) Nov2018  Sept2024 19,234 11.49 220,999 E- 53,6241 - -
E l June 2020 LTA (25%) Sept2019 Sept2022 27,780 2208 613,382 [ .7 121,399 - -
June 2020 LTA (25%) Sept2019  Sept 2023 27,780 22.08 613,382 B 121,399 | - -
@ June 2020 LTA (25%) Sept2019  Sept 2024 27,780 22.08 613,382 §_.;, 121,399 - -
June 2020 LTA (25%) Sept2019  Sept2025 27,780 22.08° 613,382 f&_* 121,399 - -
394,206 5,998,419 § " 994,936
r Senior Executiva
N . June2016LT (50%) Sept2015  Sept2019 18,943 10.56 200,038 Fiif (88,018) | 16% 84%
Dl b 2017 (71 (50%) Sept2016  Sept201 27,683 133 313,648 IOLY] 12% 88%
&, June 2017 LTI (50%) Sept2016  Sept2020  27.683 1n.4a 316,694 1+ 92,368 - -
June 2018LT) (50%) Sept2017 Sept2020 27,076 13.07 353,883 §° “rF 44,437, - -
@ June 2018 LT) (50%) Sept2017  Sopt2021 27076 13.23 3582151 " 166,773 - -
June 2019 LTA (25%) Nov2018  Sept2021 19,234 11.49 220999 § % 185,209 - -
June 2019 LTA (26%) Nov2018  Sept2022 19,234 11.49 220999 § - 1 185,249 - -
June 2019 LTA (25%) Nov2018  Sept2023 19,234 1143 220,999 § 185,249 - -
June 2018 LTA (25%) Nov2018  Sept 2024 19,234 .49 220,999 § »} _185,249| - -
Total 205,397 2,426,474 1~ 864,712
6. Dovic i istingui in two equa years. Refer to Note 3¥(e) of the
Notes to Congo ioatoo Financio Statements. 7. Danie L X Yesr ence0 30
i to unvesteo LTl ano LTA whi i woeo vear Thesa

o
10the origina vesting conoitions.
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.
Equity holdings and transactions for the year ended 30 June 2020

“Total Securities/
Number of Performance
s Securities Securities Rights That May
Roquired Under Held at Sacurities Count Towards
the Mandat Boginningot Recolved Other Securitios the Mandatory
Securltyholding Financlal During Changsto  Held atEnd Of Securityholding
Year  atPeriod End' Yoar the Year* Securities _Financial Yoar RSA'  Requirement
Group CEO
Stephen McCann (2020 i1 248,000 . 1 i 750,018 S 5 88,709 2 e w - man - 838,727 = _~58.720 -, _ 2z 897,867
2019 169,500 766,136 213,386 (229,509) 750,018 24,026 774,042
Current Sonior Executives
Johannes Dokker 12020 ¢ 7% 90,000 = e + 18,225 = 3= 12,892 _ S oL 2T w5876 Ll p 85893
2019 62.000 16,225 14,225 24,048 38273
Tarun Gupta 12020 == 90,000, 116,41 yliuuns 73,913 5, iz - 190,324 3 68,776 kg, ;s 249,100}
2019 62,000 168,332 78,079 (120,000) tis.a1 24,048 140,459
Denis Hickey" {2020 ;3 60,000, __+ - 61,443 $24,192;____ (57.000) 28,635 5 68776 . -8T.4N}
2019 76,000 49,063 37,494 (25.19) 61,44 24,0 85,491
Anthony Lombardo {2020 5718511 84,000 7, ,3 110,658 £ __3%242: 29,906 |t - %5 (79,906) L1 &1 60,656 7 " 58,776 wasghy; 119,430 )
2019 54,000 136,708 _el61a (87.668) 110,654 24,048 134702
Noil Martin 12020 75,000 = - - £18,391 2% #(18,39) o v  OH21,708 . W2),704
Kyfia Rampa 12020 . i 90,000 iyt iblli 61,925 [ir 35,216 72 -2 - (50,080) L2511 47,0611, L5B776 . 15105837}
2019 62,000 1,478 50,447 61,925 24,048 85,973
David Andrew Wilson {2020 194,000 49,364 23,386 0% oo n - - 72,710 g, - 5B.776 __*s 131486
2019 64,000 22,997 49,210 (22,843 49,364 24,048 73,412
Formor Senior Executivo
Danief Labbad® 12020 - Y3t 67,001 20,642 STy 87,643 ghiRl, 4 25,048 SE G54 61|
2019 66,000 67,001 33,184 (33.184) 67,001 24,048 91,049
Total 12020 Tn wor. o 111,231,081 . T wnin 327,207 % 8. (205, # 1,352,871 5 - 457,128 wen 1,809,999 +
Total 2019 1,211,715 537,639 (518,313) 1,231,014 192,360 1,425,401

Loans to KMP

No loans were made to KMP or their related parties during the current year or prior year.

Other transactions with KMP

From time to time, Directors and executives of Lendlease or its consolidated entities, or parties related to them, may purchase goods from

the C l Entity. These terms and no more f: than the d into by unrelated
f
1
.

1 ¥ Nei ime in

P! i i ficer, Europe ro e. As pert of COVID-19, Denis atemporary
i i i f the origina it i
. 2. For senior exacutives, sectrities recei ity il vehk

3. Unoer the RSA

yeers. This yho oing
37,494 061,843 to i - 6. Danie Labbao ceaseo as e

ho o ot that oato.

Donia Hiclay has b




Remuneration Report

k. Non Executive Directors

£xNon Executive Dirsctors' fees
Nop Exgcutive Directors receive a Board foa and fees for chairing or pariicipating on Board committees. The Chairman does not receive
[&xtra feks for participating on committees.

——Themaximum aggregate remuneration payable to Non Executive Directors is $3.5 million per year, as approved at the 2015 Annual

Eie—neral Meeting.

Board and committee fees
@ Nomination  Poople & Culture Risk Audit Sustainability
Board o Committes it i it
Chair Foa AS 640,000 48,000 48,000 48,000 48,000
Membor Foo AS 160,000 36,000 Nil 36,000 36,000

Board and committee fees are paid as cash. Superannuation contributions are paid in addition to the Board and committee fees outlined
abovle in accordance with superannuation legislation and are capped at the Maximum Superannuation Contribution Base. The current Non
ocutive Directors are not entitled to retirement benefits other than superannuation. However, some former Non Executiva Directors'
ﬂe retirement benefits or securities which were previously accrued.
Thére were noincreases to NED fees during FY20.

As'8n intemational company and having regard to the material scale of individual projects, the Board program is formulated to reflect the
geographic spread of the Lendlease Board meetings in Australia and in each of the regions where Lendlease
erates. Generally, the program runs over two or three days and includes a number of activities outside of the formal meeting. These
€lide business briafings, presentations from external sources, project site visits, client meetings and networking events with employees
a\nd( ey stakeholders. Where deeper project reviews are required, the program may take up to five days.
The programis an important element of the Board's activities to enable the Non Executive Directors to obtain the required deep
gnmiers1amﬁng of operations within the regions.

All Nen Executive Directors may be required to travel 1o attend Board meetings. This can involve significant additional time, particularly
ilien visiting project sites in the regions where Lendlease operates. Where significant additional time has been spent travelling to fulfil the
js'guirements of the program, fees are paid to compensate Non Executive Directors for the extra time commitment.

Jravel Fees Fee (Each Way) AS
/TraVgttoss than & hours i
(Y Travel between 4 and 10 hours 2,800
£—Travd over 10 hours 6,000

d

For pe

1. App Tes o Davio Crawforo sno Phi ip Co ebatch.
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The table below sets out fees paid to Non Executive Directors during 2020 and 2019.

Short Term Post Employment
A$000s Benefits Benafits
Committee
Committee  Membership Travel
Year Base Foes' Chair Fees Feos Fees  Superannuation® Total
Non Exscutive Directors
Michael Ulimer {2020 § Bain 620 P m*m IR S ,{’ﬂss 21577 5668
2019 460 15 36 552
Colin Carter ]20 ' ) ‘E\sﬂ,qﬁr‘ 36 o gty in® 72 § VHIER RS 6| B T2ty M 5.292!
36 72 26 313
Phifip Coffoy Lt 316
313
David Craig 36 % L3F 18 ] i z‘m
36 301
Margaret Ford” 2 R D *“"ZI l’amﬁ m&vmm o1
Jane Hemstritch

Elizabeth Proust

Nicola Wakefiold Evans jeo20 Ww Tt

2019
Robert Wetanets* 120201} §
Former Non Executive Directors
Phillip Colebatch® 2019 67 - 30 24
David Crawford® 2019 267 - - 24
Stove Dobbs’ J2020 P a6t s SRR MER 30 SEREA AN 0]

2019 160 - 72 63
Totat 12020 || 4t 1743 28 - w1396 ndifHl7el b e & Uk o BRGNS |
Total 2019 1,914 200 447 351 186 3,098
1. Non i v J i 40 COVID-19. 2.

egis ation. 3. Margarot N {ive Oi on1March
2010 4. Robert We anetz was eppointeo as a Non Executive Directoron 1 M-lch 2020. 5. Ph i e 116 November 2018.
aNon i .
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k. Non Executive Directors continued

[——nNonjExacutive Directors' equity holdings

Securitios Held at Other Net Changa Securities Held at
Year Beginning of Financial Year t it End of Finencial Yoar

NGH Exocutive Diractars

@a-l Ulimer

Colin Carter

o B o #100,000 7 Mm TRIR10,000 Gk {T HENES 2110000
60,000 50,000 100,000
g "T15,000 ey G L f ‘:gi!"s:osu- ‘L 18,061

[N 15,000 M 15,000
@ACoﬂw i £9,810 & ﬁ}f., FTE1,406 4, <o b L < 21216 )
F~\ 9,810 - 9,810
@o’;&écmg R A ] 150,000 - I, (ML L Zal T 15,061 o 65,061
2019 24,870 25,130
Maigaret Ford" f2020 > T Y 1]

Jane Hemstritch {2020 . - " 20,000 T T 3,061
2019 20,000 . -
Elizabeth Proust {2020 FTET A © 25,000 7o,
2019 10,000
Nicolo Wakefield Evans | 2020 30,248

2019 16,766
RBGrt Wolonotz? 12020 .. GHEEEHBBH W oo~ om T F
C ortner Non Executive Directors

it T v 000§

hillip Colebatch? 2019 18,323 . . 18,323
David Crawford* 2019 81,315 84,332
’(s}lnl Dobbs* # 112,000 bt A, 12,000
& B 12,000 - 12,000
Tota" "3 8% Pisk, B 262,058 YHEHRIAML AT 03,407 LR BRI D, O I 345,545 §
@] 260,084 104,629 364,713
Plichase of Lendlease securities by Non Executive Directors
{704 urrent Non Executive Di ired Lendlease securitios using their own funds. .
1. As Margarot i i operi 2. A y Non
B iva Directt 1 3. Phi ip Ce 10 be @ Non Executive Director on 16 November 2018. The eno bs ence
of securities for 2019 represents the ba ance he o st thet oate. 4. i ceaseo tobe s i i . i
ance he 5. Stove tive Director on . The eno ba ance: i
& i it ¥ 1 Co abaich (15,323 ano Dovio Crowforo (34, 332) gvan that they

in yesr.
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Directors’ Report

The Directors’ Report for the financial year ended 30 June 2020 has been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the
Corporations Act 2001. The information below forms part of this Directors’ Report:

s=Pringipal activities on page 5
%;«}raﬁng and Financial Review on pages 4 to 89 incorporating the Performance and Outlook on pages 76 to 89
s~Biographical information for the Directors and Company Secretary on pages 92 t0 97
= Officers who were previously partners of the audit firm on page 97
s-Directors’ interests in capital on page 104
@eard and committee meetings and attendance on pages 104 to 105
--Rje)munaraticn Report on pages 106 to 137

o Lead Auditor’s Independence Declaration on page 140.

a aDividends/Distributions

Th 2019 final dividend/distribution of $169 million (30.0 cents per secumy, unfranksd) referred to in the Directors’ Report dated
19-August 2019, was paid on 16 September 2019, Details of dis in respect of th year are as foilows:

© o
Interim divi istributi 30.0 cants per security paid on 7 March 2020' ) 169
Fingdvi istributions of 3.3 cents per security by Directors to bo payable on 15 September 20207 | 22
Total dividends/distributions 191
1..Comeriseo of i : istrioution of 7 2 asse Trust.

pri 3.3 cents por unt eno ease Trust. " -

@-}igniﬁcant Changes in State of Affairs

Thefe have been no significant changes in the Group's state of affairs.

c. Events Subsequent to Balance Date
OnJ July 2020, the Group disposed of a 25 par cent interest in One Sydney Harbour Ri Trust. The Group recarded a gain on sale of

519ﬂ1|l|’on (net of transaction costs). The remaining 75 per cent interest retained by the Group provided a revaluation of $128 million
based on the transaction price.

grSecurity Options
Ndsecurity options were issued during the year by the Company or any of its controlled entities, and there are no such options on issue.

s-indemnification and Insurance of Directors and Officers
RUIZ12 of the Company's provides for i in favour of each of the Directors named on pages 920 97 of this
veporl the officers of the Company or of wholly owned subsidiaries or related entities of the Company (Officers) to the extent permitted
by the Corporations Act 2001. Rule 12 does not indemnify a Director, Company Secretary or Officer for any liability involving a lack of
god faith.
In-édnformity with Rule 12 of the Company’s Constitution, the Company has entered into Deads of lndemnity, Insurance and Access
‘with each of the Directors named on pages 92 to 97 of this report and for officers of the Company and Directors of related entities of
the Company. The indemnities operate 10 the full extent permitted by law and are not subject to a monetary limit. The Company is not
aware of any liability having arisen, and no claims have been made during or since the financial year under the Deeds of Indemnity,
Cnsufance and Access.
Fonunrelated entities in which the Group has an interest, Deeds of Indemnity may be entered into between Lendlease Corporation
Limited and the Director or Officer. Since the date of the last report, the Company has not entered into any separate Deeds of Indemnity
with a Director or Officer of an unrelated entity.
No indemnity has been granted to an auditor of the Company in their capacity as auditor of the Company.
In"accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, Rule 12 of the Constitution also permits the Company to purchase and maintain
insurance or pay or agree 10 pay a premium for insurance for Officers against any liability incurred as an Officer of the Company or of a
related body corporate. This may include a liability for reasonable costs and expenses incurred in defending proceedings, whether civil
or criminal, and whatever their outcome. Due to and of the policy, no further details in respect of
the premium or policy can be disclosed.
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{. Environmental Regulation
The Group is subject to various state and federal environmental regulations in Australia.

“The Directors are not aware of any material non with envi lions pertaining 1o the ions or activities
during the period covered by this report. In addition, the Lendlease Group s registered and publicly reports the annual performance
of its Australian under the requii of the National and Energy Reporting (NGER) Act 2007 and Energy

Efficiency Opportunities (EEQ) Act 2006.

All Lendlease busi continue to operate an i Health and Safety Management System, ensuring that non

risks and ities for envi impi are identified, managed and reported accordingly.

g.Non Audit Services
During the year, KPMG, the Company’s auditor, performed certain other services in addition to its statutory duties.

The Board has considered the cther services provided duringme year by the auditor and, in accordance with written advice provided by
resolution of the Audit Committes, is satisfied that the provision of those services during the year by the auditor is compatible with, and
did not ise, the auditor i Act 2001 for the following reasons:

+ All other services were subject o the corporate governance procedures adopted by the Group and the Audit Committee is satisfied
that those services do not impact the integrity and objectivity of the auditor

The other services provided do nct undermine the general principles relating to auditor independence as set out in APES 110 Code of

Ethics for Professional Accountants, as they did not involve reviewing or auditing the auditor's own work, acting in a management or

decision making capacity for the Group, acting as an advocate for the Group or jointly sharing risks and rewards.

A copy of the Lead Auditer's Independence Declaration, as required under Section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001, is included at

the end of the Directors’ Report.

Details of the amounts paid to the auditor of the Company, KPMG, and its related practices for audit and other services provided during
the year are set out below.

Consolidated

June 2020 June 2019
s $000s.

Audit and Other Assurance Services .
Audit services . 7253 ¢ 7141
Other assurance services ! 524 495
Total audit and other assurance sarvices N 7757 7.636
Non avdit services 557 714

Total audit, non audit and other assurance services 8,314 8,350

h.Rounding Off

Lendlease Corporation Limited is a company of the kind referred to in the ASIC Corporations (Rounding in Financial/Directors’ Reports)
Instrument 2016/191 dated 24 March 2016 and, in withthat amounts in the C Financial and this
report have been rounded off to the nearest million dollars untess specifically stated 1o be otherwise.

This report is made in accordance with a resolution of the Beard of Directors and is signed for and on behalf of the Directors.

Lo LA M/
T R

MJ Ulimer, AO S BMeCann
Chairman Group Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director
Sydney, 17 August 2020 Sydney, 17 August 2020
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6301 Auditor's Independence Declaration uncer
Section 3076 of the Corporgtions Act 2001

To the Directors of Lendlease Corporation Limited

I declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, in relation to the audit of Lendlease Corporation
Limited for the financial year ended 30 June 2020 there have been:

i. no contraventions of the auditor independence reguirements as set out in the
Corporations Act 2001 in relation to the audit; and

ii. no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

A£#rG

KPMG D M McLennan
Partner

Sydney
17 August 2020

KPMG, an Australian partnership and a member firm of the
KPMG network of indepandent member firms affiiated with  Liability imitad by a scheme approved
PMG sonal Cx ive (KPMG Gonal’). a o ional Standards Legislation.

Swiss entity.
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Consolidated Financial Statements

Income Statement’ -

Year Ended 30 June 2020
: June2020  June 2019%
$m $m
Revenue from contracts with customers 14,889
Other revenue 152
Cost of sales {13,929)
Gross profit 1112
Share of profit of equity accounted investments 338
Other income ! . 293
Other expenses . (863)
Results from operating activities from continuing operations 880
Francs coonus v
Finance costs 3 (142)
Net finance costs (125)
(Loss)/Profit before tax from continuing operations. 755
Income tax benefit/(expense) (198)
{Loss)/Profit after tax frem continuing operations 557
tox from di i (90)
(Loss)/Profit after tax a67
(Loss)/Profit atter tax attributable to:
Members of Lendlease Corporation Limited 313
Unitholders of Lendlease Trust 154
(Loss), after tax attril to ity 467
External non controlling interests -
{Loss)/Profit after tax 467
Basic/Diluted Earnings per Landiease Group Stapled Security (EPSS) from Continuing Operations
Shares excluding treasury shares . (cents) 95.4
Shares on issue ’ (cents) 947
Basic/Diluted Earnings per Lendlease Group Stapled Security (EPSS)
Securities excluding treasury securities - (cents) 80.0
Securities on issue (cents) 79.4
1 i i i Refar to Note 32 'Di: i Operations’ for further detail.
2 A th i i e:

5 ond i Fur ! it
it Ptan during the year. The Basic/Diluted EPS and Baxic/Diluted
EPSS have been restated torefisct this changa. .

The accompanying notes form part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Statement of Comprehensive Income

%nded 30 June 2020

Note

June 2020 June 2019*
$m $m

==

@;}1 comprehensive (expense)/income after tox
7/

(L533)/Profit after Tax ae7
ECOlher Comprehensive Income/(Expense) After Tax
Cj\'\s that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Cyovemems in hedging reserve ()
Movements in foreign currency translation reserve 92
Total items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss' 3
Q@ thatwill.nui be recla : e:'l 1o profitor h:ss
innon interest reserve )
/’B}\ﬁned benefit plans remeasurements (39)
L Total iterns that will not be reclassified to profit or loss Eibtg Bw 2} (aa)
Tota) comprohensive (exponse)/income after tax 454
15731 comprehensive (expense)/income after tax from continued operations attributable to:
Members of Lendlease Corporation Limited 390
)
Unitholdars of Lendlease Trust 154
@‘;\E\;lcompmhensiva ({expense)/income after tax from discontinued operations attributable to:
Mémbers of Lendlease Corporation Limited (90)
Eml i income after tax attril % asa
Extotnal non controlling interests -
C= a3 (322)1 asa

the year.

For pers

The accompanying notes form part of these consofidated financial statoments.

Statement of Financial Position
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As at 30 June 2020
June 2020 June 2019

Note $m $m
Current Assets.
Cash and cash equivalents 1,280
Loans and receivables 2,050
Inventories 2,238
Other financia! assets o7
Current tax assets 1
Other assets 70
Dispesal Group assets held for sale -
Total current assets 5,756
Non Current Assets
Loans and raceivabtes 688
Inventories 3,345
Equity accounted investments 3,452
Investment properties 501
Other financial assets 1403
Deferred tax assets 101
Property, plant and equipment 548
Intangible assets 1,457
Defined benefit plan asset 160
Other assets 87
Totol non current assets 11,422
Totol assets 17,178
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables 5,724
Provisions 332
Borrowings and financing arrangements 225
Other financial liabilities 6
Disposal Group liabilities held for sale 32 1 gl -
Total current liabilities Fhalin, 8 5,653 6,287
Non Currant Liabiliies ;
Trade and other payables 1,401
Provisions a5
Borrowings and financing arrangements 2,490
Other financial liabilities 1
Deferrad tax liabilities 597
Total non current liabilities ERBS F¥ 5,163 ) 4,534
Total liabilities B FoPRr5410,816) 10,821
Net assets R e 6,9321 6,357
Equity ?
Issued capital 1,300
Treasury securities (68)
Reserves 105
Retoined earnings . 3,815
Total equity attributable to members of Lendlease Corporation Limited 5,152
Total equity attributable to unitholders of Lendlease Trust 1182
Total equity attributable to securityholders 6,334
External non controlling interests 23
Total equity 6,357

The accompanying notes form part of these consolidated financial statements.



Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Statement of Changes in Equity

o ‘earEnded 30 June 2020
———/

RESERVES

Foreign
Hedging Currancy Translation
Reserve

$m

Non Controlling
Interest
Acquisition
Reserve

$m

L
Menbers of
Lerdlease
Retained  Comparation
Earnings Limited
$m $m

®

External

Non
Controliing Totz!
Interests: Equits

(28)

(s2)

3,865 . . & 5,169}

Cﬂalance as ot 1 July 2018
“Total Comprehensive Income

Prot\ii for the period
Co“w comprehensive income (net of tax)

92

®)

313 nf’é%!ﬁ
39) &5 bl & 5(13)

T5t4l comprehensive income

)

274 & W11 300

Other Comprehensive tncome (Net of Tax)
é\h"meslmsm hedging

g'ﬂ/e}:l of foreign exchange movements

Effctive cash flow hedges

®
100

®)

@u"ﬁnad benefit plans remeasurements

'GtHigr comprehensive income (net of tax)

92

®

Tragoactions with Owners of the Company
Capital contributed by non controlling interests
istfibution Reinvestment Plan
5tfibution Rei Plan (ORP)
On market buyback of securities
[—Dividends and distributions
Treagury securities acquired
TN e
il'rencury securities vested
Faiz.value movement on allocation and vesting of securities
ASSEt disposal and transfers
Other

TGt5l other movements through reserves

23 § Wii6,3573

@h\nu 03 0t 30 June 2019

Inip4ct of change in accounting policy®
Baldnco as ot 1 July 2019

(97)

Hoth! Comprehensive Income

g Profit for the period

-Other comprehensive income (net of tax)

(0]

IR v ks
3,773 i ,.\*:Ezs,uo

fs ﬁ;?,:-(saz)l
RS o)

. ;%f:g&;(‘?}i
23 i3 {6 3151
%

(0]

(329) B % * 5(349)1

Cn"é:a| comprehe income

'©1§ér Comprehansive Income (Net of Tax)
Nt jnvestmont hedging

gEﬁ St of foreign exchange movements

Etfective cash How hedges
Defined benefit plans remeasurements

0]

(0]

g Other comprehensive income (et of tax)
Trandactions with Owners of the Company
CCa Bitel contributed by non controlling interests
Distribution Reinvestment Plan (DRP)

Hare issue via insti (ot of ion costsP

iShare issue via Security Purchase Plan (net of transaction costs)®
Dividends and distributions

Treasury securities acquired

Treasury securities vested

Fair value movement on allocation and vesting of securities
Transfer as a result of asset disposal*

Other movements

(30)

PRI
- \gf (23)
() 3B )

Total other movements through reserves

(30)

(179) & &390]

‘& 49391

Balance as ot 30 June 2020

38

3,265 fat. T : Hs1811

25 F'7.. 76,932F

1 Changesin Equity

H 5

2. OndMay 57 miiion new stopl
z M e

3 e
s v securiti Y

Nate 35 'Impact of New and Revized Accounting

The accompanying notes form part of thesa consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Statement of Cash Flows

%ﬂded 30 June 2020

June 2020° June 2019
Note $m $m
Cashi Flows from Operating Activities iy ’M’R
gccnsh recaipts in the course of operations 17,026
Cn:g payments in the course of operations (16,902)
@ast received 13
interest paid in relation to other corporations (152)
Interest in relation to lease lisbilities* -
E{Bi)ends/dis"ibmions received 105
TAgome tax paid in respect of operations (30)
et Lash provided by operating activities 60
:(mv Flows from Investing Activities
:_S_r.wl} redemption of investments 571
Acquisition of investments (378)
qyisition of/capital oni properties (53)
Net:loan drawdowns from associates and joint ventures (22)
@Digposal of consalidated entities (net of cash disposed and transaction costs) 266
Disposal of property, plant and equipment 1
E@ismun of property, plant and equipment (165)
Acquisition of intangible assets (66)
( Nog tash (used in)/provided by invasting nctivities 167
Eash Flows from Financing Activities
@N proceeds from share issue -
Proceeds from borrowings 4,640
epayment of borrowings (4,347)
o L)}ends/dnsmhunons paid (258)
Anymams for on market buyback of stapled securities (174)
@nems for on market buyback of stapled ities - Distributi i Plan M)
Aerease in capital of non eontrolling interests . 22
Repayment of lease liabilities® -
&NE sh provided by/(used in) financing activities (126)
@rCush Flow ltems
EHJe{t of foreign exchange rate cash and cash 14
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 13
'Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of financial year 1477
Cash and cash equivalents at end of financial yoar* 14 ig"":' 001,562 1,290
1. Juno20t9 AASBATTL axp
2. $451 million st i Di ol han :ﬂl ;):unu 2020. Refer to. nm;wcm and Cash imimmﬂummu-
. detall. . L e inNote 32
“Discontinued Operations’.

“The accompanying notes form part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Basis of Preparation
The consolidated financial raport is a general purpose financial report which:

» Hos bean preparad in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards (AASBs) adopted by the Australian Accounting Standards Board,
and the Corporations Act 2001

» Complies with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) adoptad by the International Accounting Standards Board

« Is presented in Austrafian doftars ($). At June 2020, afl values have been rounded off to the nearest million dollars unless otherwise indicated,
in occordance with ASIC Corporations (Rounding in Financial/Directors’ Reports) Instrument 2016/191

« Provides comparative financial information in the Income Statement, Statament of Comprehensive Income and relatad Notes has been
restoted for discontinued operations during the year. The comparative information in the Statement of Financial Position, Statement of
Changes in Equity, Statement of Cash Flows and related Notes has not been restated. Refer to Note 32 ‘Discontinued Operations' for
further details

* Includes certain other comparative balances that have been reclassified following the adoption of AASB 16 Leases

» Is prepared under the historical cost basis except for the following assets and liabilities, which are stated at their fair value: derivative
financial instruments, fair value through profit or loss investments, investment properties, and liabilities for cash settled share based
<compensation plans. Recognised assets and liabilities that are hedged are stated at fair value in respect of the risk that is hedged. Refer to
the specific accounting policies within the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Stntsman\s for the basis of valuation of assets and liabilities
measured at fair value.

Significant accounting policies have been:

* Included inthe relevant notes to which the palicies relate, while other significant accounting policies are discussed in Note 36 ‘Other
Significant Accounting Policies”

» Consistently applied to all financial years presentad in the consolidated financial stotements and by oll entities in the Group, except as
explained in Note 35 ‘Impact of New and Revised Accounting Standards’.

The preparation of o financial report that complies with AASBs requires to make j estimates and

* This can affect the ion of ing polici
may differ from these estimates.

d the reported 1 assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results

» Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Rovisions

« Thesignificant policias hightight i abou in applying policies that have the most
significant effects on reported amounts and further ormton abeut estimatad uncertainties that have a significant risk of rasulting in
material adjustments within the next financial year.

* These significant estimates and jt have b i in thy of the COVID-19 outbreak and the impact ot

the current economic conditions.
The Group presents assets and liabilities in the Statement of Financial Position as current or non current.

» Current assets include assets held primarily for trading purposes, cash and cash equivalents, and ossets expected to be realised in, or
intended for sale or use in, the course of the Group’s operating cycle or within the next 12 months. All other assets are classified as non
current.

o Current fiabilities include liabilities held primarily for trading purposes, liabilities expected to be settled in the course of the Group’s
operating cycle and those liabilities due within one year from the reporting date. All other liabilities ore clossified as non curent.

The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis. In preparing the financial statements, including assessing the going concern
basis of the Group has the COVID-19 pand

The Group hos:

« Raised over $1.2 billion through its recent equity raising. See Note 17 ‘lssued Copital

o Over $4.2 billion in undrawn facilities. See Note 16 ‘Borrowings and Financing Arrangements’
« Over $11 billion in cash and cash equivalents. See Note 14 ‘Cash and Cash Equivalents’

« Net positive cash infiow from operating activities. See Statement of Cash Flows.

Following this assessment, the Group is wall placed to manage its financing and future commitments over the next 12 months from the date of
the financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Section A: Performance The following tables set out other financial information by reportable segment.
- - s ; Depreciation NonCurrent  Group
%Eev\nmgs before Interest, Tax, Depraciation and Amortisation (EBITDA) and Profit after tax (PAT) are the key measures used to assess the Sogment [ T Share of and MateriolNon  Segment o
‘Group's performance. This section of the Financial Report focuses on disclosures that anhances a user's understanding of EBITDA and . | R iy Results EAV Amortisation  Goeh ftema® et Aasor
PAT!Segment Reporting below provides a breakdown of profit and revenue by the operational ectivity. The key line items of the Income tevenue e"°‘;“’ pense  Results s mortisa fs"“ ash ftems 5“’; 55; s
£ —_Siitement along with their components provide detail behind the reported balonces. Group performonce will also impact the earnings m m $m m m $m m m
per stapled security and dividend payout therefore disclosure on these items has baen included in this section. Further information and Year Endad June 2020
analysis on performance and allocation of be found in the Per d Outlook section of tha Directors’ Report. fear Endad June
. - Core
=Segment Reporting
Development 2,384 6 ) 67 (@3) (36) 5,150 7,281
ccounting Policies Construction . 7627 - ® 7 @8) (] 1,310 3,565
The Group’ nts are D c i and Non core. Ti p has identified th segments
based on the distinct products and services provided by each sagment, th target returns profile and allocation of resourcas for each Investments 390 ! ) {100) (17) (63) 3,032 4,236
epment, and vn(arnzl reports thatare raviewed and used by the Group Chisf Exacutive Offcar and Managing Director (the Chief Opereting -
Q) S serformance, resouresn +and managing he Group. otalcore segments 10,361 7 ) e (&) 9 sas  tsom
“The Group h:s"zrmngnd the segments around business activity rather than geography due 1o the Group's business model being broadly Non core 2,880 6 (|) 3 (88) 9 279 1,828
onsistent in all regio
Shgment performance is based on EBITDA and PAT. EBITDA and PAT are used to measure performance as management belioves thot such Total segments 13,245 13 (19) 13) (152) (107) 9,771 16,910
ifformation is the most relevant in evaluating the results of certain reportable sagments relative to other entities that operate within these
industries. The Group does not consider corporate activities 1o be an operaung segment. Corporate activities a4 5 (147) - (92) (37) 627 838 -
e oparating segmants are as follows: Statutory result X 13,289 18 (166) 13) (244) (144) 10,398 17,748
Development Year Ended June 2019
[——Operates in all four geographic regions. lts products and services include the development of inner city mixed use developments, apartments,
Communities, retirement, retail, commercial assets and social and economic infrastructure. Construction margin earned on internal projects is Core
recognised in this segment,
YW, Development 3,355 9 @ 184 (12) 21 5,275 7101
Construction
Operates across all 1ourgeegmph|c regions. s products and services include the provision of project management, design and construction Construction 9,680 - ) 23 2 @ 1,440 3,710
‘sarvices, fence, mixed use,
Investmants 348 1 [0) 126 @) 138 2,597 4,028
Investments
Seryices include owning and/or managing investments across all four geographic regions. The Investments segment includes a leading Total core sogments 13,383 10 ® 333 (31 156 9312 13,839
( mv‘ Stment management platform and also includes the Group's ownership interests in property and infrastructure Co-lnvestments,
Reu ement Living and US Military Housing. Non core 3,81 - - 5 (28) 3 450 2,089
co
Nonccre includes the provision of project designand i ices in the Australian i sector. These Total segments 16,524 1o © 338 (59) 159 9,802 16,928
rodcts and services represent tha Engineering and Services businesses. The Chief Operating Dacision Maker recsives separate information Corporate activities 5 7 (136) _ (63) @ 276 250
sbout jiven the Group in February 2019 that the Engineering and Servlces buslnssses are no longer a required
pa of the Groun 's strategy. The results of the di: the finas included in this Statutory result 16,555 17 (142) 338 (122) 151 10,078 17,178
S‘ represents the Engineering business that the Group intends to sell, mluding the projects retained by the : " PV —
GGro p. Refer to Note 32 ‘Discontinued Operations' for further detail. E bty
i fcialinformation regarding tha parformance of each reportable segment and a raconciliation of these reportable sagments to the financial 2 Enuty Accaunted tavestmenta. o } ] .
Stataments is included below. 3 mp: b far fosses.
O PROFIT INCOME TAX PROFIT *
EBITDA? BEFORETAX _ (EXPENSE)/BENEFIT AFTERTAX
June 2020 June 2019 June 2020 June 2019 June 2020 June 2019 June 2020 June 2019
$m $m $m $m $m $m $m $m
&ca‘ﬁ
Development 322 793 300 787 (67) (233) 233 554
( Congstruction 101 21 67 198 (25) (57 42 141
Iivestments . 140 489 " 482 3) (114) 104 368
|Total core segments 563 1,493 484 1,467 (108) (a04) 379 1,063
Nencore (495) (469 ! (s74) (489) 168 1 152 408), (339
Total segments 8 1,032 (90) 978 63 (252) (27) 726
Reconciling items y .
Corporate activities 4se) 165) (392) (358) 109 99 (283 (259)
Total Group (90) 867 ; (a82) 620 172 (153) ¢ (310) as7
Discontinued operations’ 54 (135) (22) 5 - 32 (20)
Results from centinuing operations (90) 867 (536) 755 1941 (198) ©  (342) 557
Interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation’ (220) (400)
Statutory result {(Loss)/Profit after tax) (310) 467

1. Refer to Nate 32'Diccontinued Operations' for further detail.
: petatior 9
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Saction A: Performance continued

%mem Reporting continued

| mt——

NON CURRENT ASSETS'

June 2020 June 2019

$m $m

@I_\usiralia 5,462
1176

@pe 1158
Americas 2,006
Total segment 9,802
CQOJp‘wa(e activities 276
Statutory result 10,078

TReoperating segments generate revenue in the following regions.

REVENUE*

Total Core

Segments  Non Core

Total
Segments
$i

Corporate ~ Statutory
Activities

‘éariEnded June 2020
CAustralin

Asx

Fmericas
@T‘a}!zi

&Yﬂar]Eﬂded June 2019

Australia 2,712 4,052 210 6,974 3,141 10,115 31 10,146
@ 8 401 63 ag2 - 482 - a82
Europe 544 941 13 1,498 - 1,498 - 1,498
s@}i:_as 81 4,286 62 4,429 - 4,429 - 4,429
Total 3,356 9,680 348 13,383 3,141 16,524 31 16,555

izad of Reve

1
QL Hmereveme

L,

! customer amounts to 10 per cent or more of the Group’s revenue.

2. Dividends/Distributions’

Londleasa Annval Report 2020 Financlal Statements

COMPANY/TRUST
ents June 2020 June 2019
Per Share/Unit $m $m
Parent Company Interim Dividend
December 2019 - paid 17 March 2020 221 -
Oecember 2018? -
Lendlease Trust Interim Distribution
December 2019 — paid 17 March 2020 79 -
December 2018 - paid 20 March 2019 120 68
Parent Company Final Dividend
Jdune 2020 .
June 2019 - paid 16 September 2019 9.5 53
Lendlease Trust Final Distribution
June 2020 - provided for (payable 15 September 2020) 3.3 -
June 2019 - paid 16 2019 20.5 £y 16
Total 237
L v
2 v
3 i

Dividend Franking
The amount of fra

credits available for use in subsequent reporting periods as o1 30 June 2020 is $17 million, based on a 30 per cent tax

rate (30 June 2019: $16 million). This is calculated after adjusting for franking credits which will arise from the payment of income tax provided

in the financial statements and tax losses wtilised in the current financial year.

3. Eernlngs Per Share/Stap!ed Security (EPS/EPSS)

qunhel demlls in the F'n:mca Area of Focus secllon of tha Annual Repon
e e e gy ....B
Basxc EPS/EPSS is | i byd P

34
m

dunngmehmncml year, adjusted for b

i (edEPS/EPSSlsde(ermlnedbyad]uslmame o

i number of ordinar ing for 1t
roup currently does not have any dilutive potentiol o
nensm included in outstanding shares.”, $iys

:g;.»mm culcu|nnnn of basic and dlluteﬂ enrmngs pei C¢ Company shm pveseme
g

effects of ol dilutive potential ordinary shares/securities. The
inary shares/securities: Dilution ccurs when treasury shares and employee share

S

) x= (£
Thg icsuad nits o1 Landiogss Trust (LLT) avs prasantod soparmisly ithin oauity, and thareford the proft atributable to L
342 01

1the income Stotemant” i

JUNE 2020 JUNE 2019°
- Shares/ Shares/
Securities Securities
Excluding Excluding  Shares/

Shares/
Treasury  Securities

Basic/Diluted Earnings Per Share (EPS)t
(Loss)/profit attributable to members of Lendlease Corporation Limited

Securities _on Issue

Trensury Securities
Securities _on Issue

(Company) 313 313
Waighted average number of ordinary shares 584 588
Bosic/Diluted EPS 53.6 532
Basic/Diluted Earnings Per Stapled Security (EPSS)"
{LossV/profit attributable to securityholders of Lendlease Group a7 a7
Weighted average number of stopled securities - 584 588
Basic/Diluted EPSS cents BTN (51.8) 4+ M (51.0) 1 80.0 79.4
i tinuir i ti d dizcontinued
disclosed in Note 32 ‘Dizcontinued Operationa’.

2 i , the 30 June i rber of stapled securitios hove

6 i y 0 the year. The Bazic/Diluted EPS and BadesDiloted

EPSS have been restated torefiect this change.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Accounting Policies continued

Section A: Performance continued

%Revenue from Contracts with Cus!omers . Sale of Development Propartias
) | , The Group devetops and sells residential fand fots and buitt form products, including residential apartments, commercial and retail
I:Afcounlms Policies buildings. Safes of residential land lots and apartments typically are recognised ot a point in time, with each contract treated as a single
Provision of C ion and ervices performance obligation to transfer control of an asset to a customer. land fots and ap: are on
with the customer.
(( Construction services include project design nstructi in the defence, mixed use, .
S ial and residential s services |nclude developmem 1eesenrned on deve'opment of inner city mixed use The sale of retail, commercial and mixed use assets may | include land, ion, and i service
rotail, ial assets and social and economic infrastructure. components. Where there are multipls contract, the ion price is allocated based on the stand-alone
( ) N N | ) 3 - . selling prices of each componant, typically using the residual approach, and revenue is recognised based on the policies noted above.
._Sontracts with to provide C or D services can include either one performance obfigation or multiple Sales of commercial and retail buildings are recognised when the customer obtains control of the asset basad on the specific terms and
-performance obligations within each contract. The Group assesses each of its contracts individually end where there are separate conditions of the sales contract.

performance obligations identifiad, the transaction pric is allocated bassd on the relative standalone salling prices of the sernces : y i i
sprovided. Typically, the Construction or Development services in contracts ore not considerad distinct as the services ore high y The Group discounts deferred proceeds to reflact the time value of money where the period between the transfer of control of a '

\erra(med and en integrated bundle of services, therefore are accounted for os a single parformence obligation. , davalopment property and receipt of paymont from the customer exceads one year. Defarred proceeds from customers are recognised
’ in trade and other receivables where the right to receive payment is unconditional. Deposits received in advance from customers are

he transaction price for sach contract may include vn(llhlu consldululvon in the form of contract variations or moditications, and recognised as a contract liability until the performance obligation has been met.
contract claims ). Variable may also include performance or other incentive fees. The o o R '
@ansndlnn price is the amount of consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled to receive in exchange for transferritg 3 The measurement of revenue from the sale of properties is an area of 9 as it requires "
&/ omised geods or servicas 1o a customer per the contract. : to exercise judgement in valuing the individual components of a development property sale, given the due consideration to cost inputs,
. * market conditions and commercial factors. The recognition and detarmination of when control passes requires management \
:@nabre consideration is only included in tha transaction prica for a contract to the ensnt it is highly probable that o significant. andis an area of
rAyersal of that revenue will not occur, which is an aren of Factor: n assessing whether the = L ) T
— revenue with : should be 208 includa the |onowmg, Procaads from the sale of residential land lots and apartments are received upon settlement, which will typically occur between 6-12
soemEd” weeks following practical completion on the asset. Proceeds from the sale of retail, commercial and mixed use assets are received in
Status of negotiations with customers accordance with the specific terms of sach contract.
The contract or other evidence provides a legal basis for the Modifications The Group may enter a PLLACes (Presold Lendiease Apartment Cash Flows) transaction for certain residential apartment buildings

from time to time. This involves the Group receiving an upfront cash infiow from third party investors (investors) in exchange for selling
the investors the rights to the cash proceeds that are due from customers once the apartments are completed. When customers settle
. . . . - their apartments the Group does not receive any cash proceeds nor does it pay any amounts to the investors as the customers pay the
related costs are and in view of the work performed X investors directly. On entry into a PLLACes transaction the cash inflow is disclosed as an aperating cash intiow in the Statement of
Cash Flows which typically occurs over o yaar in advance of the revenue recognition from the sale of the apartments. At the same time,
8n Other payables - PLLACes is also recognised within Trade and Other Payables and is de-recognised as revenue once settlement of

Additional costs incurred were caused by circumstances that were unforeseen at the contract date and for which unmlau-um
contractually exists B

Evidence supporting the Modification is objective and verifiable, which mey include independent third-party advice

Commercial and market factors specific to the Modifications the apunmems occurs. .
Vii. Historical experience in resolving Modifications. . o e - - - e e e e e d
“This assessment is reviewed each reporting period or when facts and circumstances change during the reporting period. June 2020 Juno 2015"

{ [Revanus is recognised over time, typically based on an input mathod using an estimate of costs incurred o dato o5 @ percentage of
/ total estimated costs. These contracts ars typically exacuted on the customer's land so they control the asssts as it is being builtor ths

Revenue from the provision of services

customer benetits from the service as the work is performed. Di between amounts as revenue and amounte billed |
tocustomers are recognised as contract assets or liabilities in the Statement of Financial Position. ' Core Construction services 7,626 9,678
G he measurement of revenue is an area of uses 1o estimate: Non core Construction services 1,441 1,644
Jf  Progress in satisfying the performance obligations within the contract, which includes estimating contract costs expectedtobe - Construction services 9,067 1,322
incurred 1o satisfy performanca obligations Dovel Csorvi o83 58
. - L . L evelopment services X
ji.  The probability of the amount 1o be recognised as variable consideration for approved variations and claims where the final price P!
has not been agreed with the customer. Investment services 310 260
Revenue is invoiced based on the terms of each individual contract, which may include a periodic billing schedule or achievemens of Total revenue from the provision of services 10,460 12,320
g specific milestones. Invoices ore issued under commercial payment terms which are typically 30 days from when an invoice is issed. Revenue from the sale of development properties ) 1.2n 2,569
-A-provision for loss making contracts is recorded for the differance batween the expectad costs ot fulfilling a contract and the ‘ Total ravenue from contracts with customers® 1,671 14,889
C pecled remaining economic benefits to be raceived where the forecast remaining costs exceed the forecast remaining benefit:.
1 Further geography inNote 1 i
P’°""'°" of Investment services < 2 Theperformance i baoes i e g ic on operati further Inthe Performance and Outlock section of the
i funds asset leasing and origination services. 5 e et ; dons dur Operstions*for further detail.
Each contract with a customer to provide lnvestment services is typically one performance obligation with revenue recognised over
ime as services are rendared. Typically, our performance obligation is to manage a client’s capital and/or property for a specifiec

period of time and is deliverad as a series of daily performance obligations over time. N

The transaction price for each contract may include variable consideration in the form of performance fees. Variable consideration is

* only included in the transaction price for a contract to the exlenl itis hlthy probable lhat a slnnlhcﬂm raversal of that revenue wil not
occur. The Group assesses probability of receiving variable usinga of and market factors, and
historical expsrience.

Revenue is invoiced either monthly or quarterly based on the terms of each individual contract. Invoices are issued under commersial
payment terms which are typically 30 days from when an invoice is issued.



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Section A: Performance continued

Sﬂare of Profit of Equity Accounted Investments
Accounting Policies

tivestments in associates and joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method. The share of profit recognised under the equity

is the Group's share of the investment's profit or loss based on ownership interest held. Associates (including partnerships) are

-metho
E( antities in which the Group, as a result of its voting rights, has significant infiusnce, but not control or joint control, over the financial and
perating policies. A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the

et assets of the arrangement.

( For associates, this is from the date that significant influence commences until the date that significant influence ceases, and for joint
Véntures, this is from the date joint control commences until the date joint control ceases.

June 2020 June 2019
% Note $m $m
Ssociatas’
s@k of profit 120 (14) 24
i Venturas®
:sﬁm of profit 12b 1 314
‘Total share of profit of equity accounted investments 3) 338
' Muuzt;nc:;x;m-mm ispaid by oA Howest
§ N
6" Other Income
gc;r':couming Policies
Net gains or losses on of i including entities and Equity are
C hen an unconditional contract is in place.
Net gains or losses on fair value are ised in with the polici inNote 13 ‘Other Financiat Assets"
June 2020 June 2019
g, $m $m
N &bgain on sale/transfer of investments
@o/r)\leﬁdated entities' 183 7
ther financial assets ot fair value 5 20
g(?qmmccou nted investments 35 -
Other assets and liabilities - 3
g Total net gain on sale/transfer of investments 223 97
No\gain onfair value measurement
@zstmenl properties 2 85
anlue through profit or loss assets - o7
{Total net gain on fair value measurement 24 182
-Othar 105 14
Total other income 352 293
1. During the vubd. i of 025 per ce Trust.
N < 9 Pro iuaton et
uvduddoﬂ gain  of $64 million, At wJun-ZﬂZﬂ , MSG South. Equi Investmenta’ for further

. Refer to Note 32*Discontinued Operations' for further detail.
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7. Other Expenses

Accounting Policies
Other expenses in general are recognised as incurred.
Employee Benefit Expenses
Employee benefits are expensed as the related service by the employee is provided and includes both equity and cash based payment
transactions. Employee benefits recognised in the Income Statement are nat of racoveries.
For cash bonuses, the Group recognises an accrued fa

the profit tothe Group's
further detail.
Share Based Compensation
The Group operates equity sattled share based compensation plans that are linked to Lendlease’s security prica. The fair value of the
equity received in exchange for the grant is recognised as an expense and a corresponding increase in equity, in the Equity Compensation
Reserve. The total amount to be expensed over the vesting period is determined by reference 1o the fair value of the securities granted.
The fair value is primarity i using a Monte-Carlo simulation model. Refer to Note 34g ‘Amounts Recognised in the Financial

* for further detsil. considers the fair value assigned to be an areo of estimation uncertainty as it requires

judgements on Lendlease’s sscurity price and whether vesting conditions will be satisfied.

y for the amount expected to be paid. This is based on a formula that takes into
certoin adj Refer o Note 34a ‘Short Term Incentives’ foi:

At aach balance sheet date, the Group revises its estimates of the entitlement due. It recognises the impact of revision of origina!
estimates on non market conditions, if any, in the Income Statement, and a corresponding adjustment to equity over the remaining vesting.
period. Changes in entitlement for equity settled share based compensation plans are not recognised if they fail to vest due to markat
conditions not being met.

Superannuation Accumulation Plan Expense

All employees in the Australia region are antitled to benefits on retirement, disability or death from the Group’s superanauation
accumulation plan. The majority of these employees sre party to a dafined contribution plan and recaive fixed contributions from the
Group. The Group has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are recognised as an

employee benefit expense whan they ara dua. The Group also operates a defined benefit ion plan, ip of which is
now closed. Refer to Note 33 ‘Defined Benefit Plans’ for further detail.

impairment

The carrying ot subject 1o impais tests, are reviewed at each halnnce shaet date to determine whether thers
is any indication of impairment. if any such indication exists, the asset’s amount d. The ion of this

amount is dependent on the type of asset, The material assets’ accounting policies will contain further information on these calculations.

Animpairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are
recognised in the Income Statement.

Reversals of Impairment
tmpairment losses on ossets con be reversed (o(her(han g il thereis o i inthe ount.
The increase could be due to o specific di thati may no longer exist or there is a change in esllmates used tc

determine the recoverable amount.

Animpairment loss s reversed only 1o the extent that tha osset's carrying amount does not excaed the carrying amount thot would have -
been ined, net of o , i no impai loss had been

Operating Lease Expense

Short term lease and low valua lease payments, including outgoings, are recognised in the Income Statemant on a straight fine basis over
1he term of the lease.

Depreciation and Amortisation

Depreciation on owned assets is charged to the Incoma Statement on a straight line basis over the estimated useful lives of items of
property, plant and equipment. Amortisation is provided on leasehold improvemants over the remaining term of the lease. Most plant i
depreciated over a period not exceeding 20 years, furniture and fittings over three to 15 years, motor vehicles overfour to eight years anc
computer equipment over three years.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated using the straight line method from the commencement date to the earlier of the end of the usetul lifs
of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term.



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Section A: Performance continued

%her Expenses continued

June 2020 June 20195
—_ sm $m
Profit before income tax includes the following other expense items:

E Employee benefit expenses'2 2,373 2,227
-Supgrannuation accumulation plan expense 36 39
Nef'defined benefit plans expense 1 5
Expenses include impairments raised/(reversals) relating to:

Loans and receivables 4. 1
@Deny inventories 30 [0}
Eq/u'ny accounted investments 24 6
Oier assets 6" -
gelyluss on fair value measurement of fair value through profit or loss assets 57 -
Lease expense (including outgoings) 33 95
%geciminn on right-of-use assets? 66 -
Depreciation on owned assets* 80 58
mortisation® 54 50
N\?&oreiqn exchange loss @) 6
B) i jocts

((' - w’«, COVID3 pnnic i occorsed Avsrl half of FY20. This totafled $15 milion

o conr o i '... i !

@ "”’

Q June 2020 June 2019
ey $000s $000s.
Adkhors Romuneration
"Amounts received or due and receivable by the auditors of Lendlease Group for:

Addit services 7,233 7141

@«ﬂe), assuronce services 524 495
Total audit and other assurance sorvices 7,757 7,636

(No)\kmqi( services' 557 714
Toto! oudit, other assurance and non audit services 8,314 8,350

ing the Group.

=
@)
LL,

L Raport 2020

8. Finance Revenue and Finance Costs

Accounting Palicies
Finance revenue is recognised as it is earned using the effective interest method, which applies the interest rate that discounts estimated
future cash receipts over the expacted life of the financial instrument. The discount is then recognised as finance reventse over the

remaining life of the financial instrument.

include interest, isation of di premiums relating to borrowings and amortisation of costs incurred in
with the of new ings facilities. Costs incurred in i ith the of ings are
capitalised and amortised over the fife of the borrowings. Finance costs are expensed immediately as incurred unless they relate to
acquisition and development of qualifying assets. Qualifying assets are assats that take more than six months to prepare for their intended
use or sale. Finance costs relatad to qualifying assets are capitalised.

June 2020 June 2019
$m $m

Finance Revenue
Other corporations 6 8
Other finance revenue 4. 5
Total interest finonce revenue 10 13
Interest discounting 2 a
Total finance revenue 12 7
Finance Costs
Interest expense in refation to other corporations' 159 156
Interest expense in relation to lease liabilities? 25 -
Less: Capitalised interest finance costs® (33) (25)
Total interest finance costs 151 131
Non interest finance costs 14 n
Total finance costs 165 142
Net finance costs (153) (125)
1A e 16 Loases, it m expenzai
H ; ; o et g et ios 5.5 June 2019: 4.0 per cert), whichis tha

3 ig!
effactive interect rate.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Section A: Performance continued a. Income Tax Expense June 2020 June 2019
$m $m
.. Taxati
}ﬁxa* on , , Rocognised i the treom Statament
Accounting Policies Current Tox Expense 1
Iiicome tax on the profit or loss for the financiel year comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognised in the Income i Currentyear (8) ! 82
‘Statement except 1o the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity, in which case it is recognised in equity. Under current  * Adjustments for prior years @ @
Australian income tax law, LLT is not liable for income tax, including capital geins tax, to the extent that unitholders are attributed the Benefit of tax losses recognised [OH {2)
toxable income of LLT. Total eurrent tax (benefit)/expense (62) + 76
Cunant taxis ;he: expsmid Iu‘x p.ay.uble or;(hs |axfih|e |ncoma'lor1he flv,l;unclal yax; :;mg appfc;hle (axlmles (and tax laws) at tha . . Deferrad Tax Expense
h in i N '
etein eac and any adjustment to1ax payable in respect of previous financial years. X 0 Origination and reversal of temporary differences 77 7
Deferrad tax is the expacted tax payable infuture periods as a result of past or events and is coleulated by comparing the ¢ Temporary differances recovered o
accounting balance shest to the tax balance sheet. Temporary differences are provided for any differences in the carrying amounts of i porary : @ 6
sgets and liabilties between the accounting end tox balance shests. The following temporary differences are not provided for: ; Net tax losses recognised 18) 3]
G e initial recognition of taxable goodwill . Change in tax rate o)} 1
< The initial recognition of assets or liabilities that offect neither accourting nor taxablo profit Total deferred tax (benefit)/expense (10) * 7
o relating to i in ies 1o the extent that they are not likaly to reverse in the foresseable future. Totatincome tax i {rom continui i @194) 198
;Munsurcmsm of deferred tax is based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying smount of assets and Habilities, Totat income tax expense/(benetit) rom discontinued operations - 22 (a5)
E:u5|na applicable tax rates (and tax laws) at the balance sheet date. Total income tax (benefit)/expense? (172) " 153

RScognition of deferrad tax assets is only o the extent it s probable that future taxable profits will be available 5o as the related tax asset
=il be realised. Deferred tox assets may include the following:

Raconciliation of Effective Tax Rate

|
! ‘ : {Loss)/Profit befora Tax (482): 620
. * Deductible temporary differences Income tax using the domestic corporation tax rate 30% (145) : 186
o-Unused tax losses i . N .
o e Adjustments for prior year @) s)
o Unused tax credits.
) i 3
Management considers the estimation of futura taxable profits 1o ba an area of sstimation uncertainty a5 3 chang in any of the Non assessable and exempt income ©0), &1
e$tumptions used in budgeting and forecasting would have an impact on the future profitability of the Group. The Group prepares Non allowable expenses* 22, 8
*“financial budgets and forecasts, covering a five year period, which are reviewed on a regular basis. These foracasts and budgets form Net write oft/(recognition) of tax losses through income tax expense 12} 8
thé basis of future profitability 1o support the carrying value of the deferred tax assets. The per of the Group s bya - Temporary differences racognised through income tax expense 5" 7
vagioty of ganeral aconamic and business conditions, hich are ouside the cortr of the Group,includingthe evel of nltin, nerest Utifsation of capitol lossos on disposal of assets . ®
Tates, exchange rates, commodity prices, ability 10 access funding, and demand conditi fiscal, monetary - 5 Effoct of tox rtes in foreign juriedistions$ (m, P
b reguiatory pofcies. . |
Other 13 4

Plhsentation of deferred tox assots and libilitias can be offset i thare i a legally enforceable ight to offset current tax iabiltiss and
Fesets, and they relata 10 income taxes leviad by the sama tax authority on the same taxable entity or on different tox entities, but are Income tax (benefit)/expense (172) 153
onded 1o be settled on o net bosis or 10 be relised simultaneously.

Deferred Tax Recognised Directly in Equity

@Qmﬁﬂ

ik
Tn‘x Consolidation Relating to: '
EE The Company is the head entity of the Austrolion Tax Consolidated Group comprising all the Australian wholly owned subsidiaries, Impact of adoption of new accounting standard ®) -
@xcluding LLT. As a consequence, all members of the Australian Tex Consolidation Group are taxed os a single entity. Defined benefit plans remeasurements 1 (8)
CI Foreign currency translation reserve (10)! 7
Non controlling interest acquisition reserve ) @1 3
Total deferred tax expense ised directly in equity @e)! 2
@ b. Tax Effect Relating to Other Comprehensive income June 2020 June 2019
Tox
Bofore  (Expense)/ Net Before (Expense)/ Net
E l To Banefit of Tax Tax Benefit  of Tax
$m $m $m $m $m $m
Movements in hedging reserve i (19) - (19) (61) - 1)
@ Movements in foreign currency transtation reserve s 10 [OH 99 [yl 92
innon interest isition reserve 0] - (U} ®) - ®)
Movaments in defined benefit plans remeasuremants 1 [0} 3t (a7) 8 (39)
Total other comprehensive income net of tax (21) ) (12) (14) 1 (13)

perations fe or detail.

Includes Landleasa Trust Group profit.
Includ, i i

» opaaps

s Thi
corry back.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Section A: Performance continued

9. Taxation continued 1 duly . " o . 30 June
o
}/Duhrred Tax Assets and Liabilities June 2020 June 2019 2018 inIncome in Equity Exchange 2019
= — Fem $m $m $m $m $m
— Assets Liabilitias Assats  Liabilities
$m $m $m $m June 2019
E@‘“i”‘ Deferred Tax Assets and Linbilities Movement in temporary diffarences during the financial year:
Dofarred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following: Loane and recaivabl
Cmns and receivables 2 (53) - ) ans and receivables (129) 64 . 1 (69)
Ir(\’llun\ories 62 (459) 67 (a24y Inventories (264) (88) - (5 357)
Other financial assets 5 (54) 2 (61 Other financial assets (58) @ - ® (59)
Other assets 104 (13) 93 (96 Other assets 3 @ . @ ®
quu'ny accounted investments 4 (403) 7 (398) Equity accounted investments (292) (50) (1) 2 (391)
\svestment properties - 67) - @ Investment properties - () - - ®
p‘é?peny, plant and equipment 32 18) 3 &1 Property, plant and equipment (29) (@ - 0] (38)
Intangible assets - (21 - (23 Intangible assets ) ® ) ) @3
et defined benefit plans 21 (38) 23 (29} 3
Net defined benefit plans (10) @ 8 - o)
[——Tiade and other pavables 120 - 192 - Trado and oth o
v R
Provisions 135 - 18 0] ° ‘° E otherpayables 13 55 4 192
i d financing c9 - 20 - PfOVls“T"S o 125 ) - 3 "
Other financial and non financial liabilities 18 @ - - Borrowings and financing arrangements 6 0 N . 20
Unlised revenue tax losses recognised 157 - 75 - Othes financial liabilities 10 (10) - - -
It8ms with o tax base but no carrying value £4 (20) 65 (20): Unused revenue tax losses recognised 99 33 - (&) 75
Total deferred tax assets/(liabilities) 933 (1,126) 665 (R Items with a tax base but no carrying value 58 (10) &) - 45
Deferred 1ax set oft (e92) 692 (564) 564 Total net deferred tax assets/(liabilities) {359) (77 (2 (58) (496)
G:Nug.gafema tox assets/(liabilities) 141 (434) 101 (597)
Other/
1July Recognised Recognised Foreign 30 June: June 2020 June 2019
@ 2019  inlncome  inEquity  Exchange 2020- $m $m
n $m Sm $m $me Unrecognised Deferred Tax Assets ‘
&Junﬂ 2020

Deterred tax assets have not been recagnised in respect of the following ftems:
‘Mavement in temporary differences during the financial year:

N Unused revenue tax losses 5 a3
Loans and recaivables (64) 13 - - [E)] Unused copitel fax! 2 .
used capitel tax losses
Rontorio @57 @9 - ® e pused cop °
“Sther financial assets (59) 9 . ' @9 Net deductible temporary ditferences 78 65
Biratassets @ o . , ot Totalunrecognised deferred tax assets 153 124
Equity accounted investments 399 (16) 10 @ (399) Of the unrecognised deforred tox assets of $153 million, only $37 milfion expires by 2039. The remainder of the unrecognised deferred tox
g:& Investment properties (8) (30) - 9) 7, assets have no expiry date.
Rroperty, plant and equipment (34) ®) 5 4814 '
Intangible assets (23) 2 - - [£2)]
t defined benefit plans ) ) ) ) ) 10. Events Subsequent to Balance Date
Trade and other payables 192 7 = 9)190 On 1July 2020, the Group disposed of a 25 per cent interest in One Sydney Harbour R1 Trust. The Group recorded a gain on sale of $19 million
pay: (o)
Provisions [ 33 ) . (net of transaction costs). The remaining 75 per cent interest retained by the Group provided a revaluation gain of $128 million based on the
- transaction price.
Borrowings and financing arrangements 20 30 - o a9
Other financial and non financial liabilities - 1 . 15 16
Unused revenue tax losses recognised 7 20 62 157
Items with a tax base but no carrying value a5 13) - 34
Total net deferred tax assets/(liabiliti (a96) 10 had (293)




Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Sectmn B: Investment

S Irvvss\memm the stslopmsn( pipeline, joint ventures in property projects, the retirement sector, and more passive assets, such as

- ~~proferty funds, drives the currentand future performance of the Group. This section includes disclosures for property such as lnventories

% _and indirect property assets such as Equity Accoumed Investments and Other Financial Assets contained within the Statement ol
l—'———'—_m‘mncm» Position.

g’:lnventor‘ies
@:couming Policies : T

Development Properties N

Property acquired for developmentand sale n the ordinary course of business s carried at the lower of cost and Net Realisoble Value (NRV).
@r o cost of davalopment properties includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the property, preparing it for sale and borrowing

cbbs incurred.

“The NRV is the estimated selling price, less the estimated costs of completion nnd selling expanses. Mxnnusmnm :onsldevslhe estimation

fiboth selling prices and costs of completion to be an erea of estimation as taka into co market
/ canditions affecting each property and the undarlying strafagy for salling the property. .

l:The racoverable amount of each property is assessed at each balance date and j s raquired to vhether a
provision is raised where cost (including costs to complo(e) exceeds NRV.

inbentories are axpensed as cost of sales in the Income Statement i ing j in ining the following:

[ The apportionment of cost of salas through sales revenue :
[————*-The omount of cost of sales, which includes costs incurred to date and final forecast costs

——s_The nature of the iture, which may includ: isition costs, ts, b ing costs and th incurred in
D preparing the property for sale. . -
éns(ruaion Contract Assets _
Th of C ion and Deve work in prog! ists of costs attril to work performed, including
recoverable pre contract and project bidding costs and emerging profit after providing for any foraseeable losses. In applying the
accounting policies on providing for these losses, accounting judgement is required.

Cunstvucn «contract assets are presented as part of inventories for all contracts in which i
rogre.s billings. If progress billings and recognised losses exceed costs incurred plus recognised profits, um. the ditference is presented
m Trode ind other payables 85 8 Construction contract Imbll'ty.

June 2020 June 2019

(1 $m $m
Cur ent .

G@elopmem proparties' . L1337 1,031
Coﬁlmcuon contract assets o 912 1,180
Otier - 7. 27

— -
Total current 2,256 2,238
Non Current
DEvelopment proparties' 3M3 3,345

C(YR‘S; non current 3413 3,345
Toth) inventories . 5,369 5,583

property projects, How ir 08 anl:b. While the
ca i i er Expenzes)to

|2~ Equily Accounted Investments

Accounllng Pollcles N . > n !
Equity Accounted Investments (Associates and Jemwenmres)

As outlined in Note 5‘Share of Profit of Equity s, i in‘Associ d Joint Ventues are equity accoisted. |
The share of investment recognisad-under the equity method is the L the i 's net assets based held.
Investments in associates and joint venturas ara carriad at the lower of the equity ac arrying-amount and the

amount. When the Group’s share of losses exceeds the carrying amount of the equity accounted investment (ncludlng assets that form

part of the net investment in the associate or joint venture entity), the carrying amount is reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is

discontinued except to the extent that the Group has obligations in respsct of the associate or joint venture.

Dividends from associates and joint ventures represent a return on the. qup 's investment and, as such, are opplied as a reduction 1o the.

carrying value of the investment. Unrealised gains arising from jith equity nted i aro eliminated against

the investment in the associate or joint venture to the extent of the Group’s interest in the associate or joint venture. Unrealised losses

are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment. Other movements in

associates’ and joint ventures’ reserves are recognised diractly in the Group's consolidatad reserves.

Service Conce:s»on Arrangements (SCAs)

The G s its i in project h SCAs thraugh Public Private Partnerships (PPPs). These i
provide facilities and mail with of 25 to 30 years. They also incorporate i

contractual obligations 1o meke aveilable the individual assets for their prescribed use and, where necessary, overhaul or replace major

ftems of plant and equipment reIMed to the assets with payment nb(umsd through periodic draw downs 'rem the relevant povernmsm

authorities.

Joint Operations. . . oo

Ajoint operation s a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have jGiat control of the arrangsment have fights to the assets and

obfigations for the liabilities relating to thé arrangemant. . 1
joint operations are forby a e by.fine basis in accordance with the accounting |

standards opplicable tothe particular assets, libilites, revenuss and expensas in relation to the Group's interest n the Joiit operation.

June 2020 June 2018
Note $m $m
Associates . }
Investment in associates 120 T el 277
Less: Impairmont 120 o8 @
Total nssociates - 26133 __ 20
Joint Ventures ) H
Investment in joint ventures 126 . 308 3,105
Less: Impairment 2 [CON (13)
Total joint ventures 3,158 | 3,182
Total equity accounted investments - 11 3,452
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Section B: Investment continued

. . INTEREST SHARE OF PROFIT NET BOOK VALUE
12, Equity Accounted Investments continued June2020  June2019 June2020 June20i9 June2020  June2019
INTEREST SHARE OF PROFIT NET BOOK VALUE b. Joint Ventures continued % % $m $m m $m
June202C  June2019  June202C  June2019 .une2020  June2019 Asia . ' .
a.Agsociates X % m $m $m $m Development
Australio : . . The Exchange TRX 600 60.0 ) - 350" 364
Oavelopment i Investments .
Lendlease Communities Fund 1 208 208 - - s a CDRJV Lid (313@s0merser) 2.0 2.0 ’ s 3 o6
Paya Lebar Quarter 300 300 (10) 130 379 382
lavastments Total Asin ) 135 736 842
Lendlease Sub Regional Retail Fund' 10.0 10.0 ® 0] 2 36 & -
~ i g urope
GC;J(hgr - - 5 - Development
fem’l Australia (8) [0 36 40 Hungate (York) Regeneration Limited 50.0 50.0 2 [0} 8 6
Fer Intown SRL Joint Venture - 50.0 - [0] - 38
L cments i LRIPLP 200 200 1 9 7 39
nVéstment
_ : . . LRIP2LP 500 - 7 - 10 -
enidlease Global Commercial REIT 25.3 - (10) - 261 - MSG South 500 . 2 R 2 .
CG#JIease Asian Retail Investment Fund 1 487" - 15 - 4. - Silvertown 50.0 50.0 ) 3) 2 6
Lendlease Asian Retail Investment Fund 2 394 382 - (V] 35 30 Stratford City Business District Limited (International
Quarter Lond 500 500 1 a 125 130
C—Condlesse Asian Retail Investment Fund 3 204 204 19 , 23 180 201 luarter London) .
a Victoria Drive Wandsworth 500 500 ) (5) 38 40
\Totil Asia 3 . {9) 22 480 231 |
\_/l; nvestments
Eiohe , . Treviso 500 . 50.0 . - 1 1

Coev Hopment . Other - @ 1 8
"Other - - - 4 Total Europe 3 1 300 281
Totpl Europe - - R a Americas - B

C N Development ’
Amieticas

‘ . 277 Fifth Avenue 400 400 s) - 54 64

r/lvﬁtmanks 845 Madison 375 375 38 - 88 4
Other . 3. 3 2 2 Lendlense Towers LLC * - 50.0 (26) &) - 30
ger!inui:ns ! 3 3 2 2 Americas Residential Partnership 500 50.0 2, 37 302 341
Total Group ) ; | (3) ; 24 818 277 Other ) y 1 - 21 9
GL'emlmpairmem | X - - (! [ Construction .
— Lendlease Turner Joint Venture 500 ' 50.0 7 24 - -
Totgl associotes (1) | 24 513 270 - -~
= Toto! Americas 7 58 a65 488
Qﬁ{ﬂ”ﬁ‘,g.w“ 4 D o o o oot vk g d ot Total Group ; 1 318 3,198 3,195
Less: Impairment - - (a0) 03)
E l INTEREST SHARE OF PROFIT NET BOOK VALUE Total joint ventures ! 314 3,158 3182
June2020  June2019 June2020  June2019  Jane2020  June2019 ol - : ) 4 24 513 270
b-Joint Ventures % % $m $m $m $m Total equity accounted investments 13) 338 , 3,671 3,452
CAus‘ aiia . B
Development . .
Mcirculnr Quay Tower 200 ¢ 200 ° 3] 8 w' o3
N@lbourne Quarter Rt ' 50.0 50.0 5 - &7 66
Melbourne Metro' 300 30.0 - - - -
Victoria Cross 7.0 - - - 123 -
Other 7, 3 23 16
Investments , .
Lendlease Retirement Living Trust 7.0 5.0 (29) 100 ;1,367 1,397
Other v . @ ot - w2
Total Australia D) 120 1697 1,584,
1. Batancei h auity o ichi .

tof the money posit p in thejont venty
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Section B: Investment continued c. Material Associates and Joint Ventures Summarised Financial Information continued
12. Equity Accounted Investments continued LENDLEASE GLOBAL LENDLI
COMMERCIAL REIT PAYALEBAR QUARTER __ RETIREMENT LIVING TRUST'
Watgrial iates and Joint Vent. ised Financial
The.table below provit ised financial i ion for those associates and joint ventures that are material to the Group. Material Statement of Financial Position June2020  June2019  June2020  June2019  June2020  June 2019
assotiates and joint ventures have been ined by ing individual i net book value with the total equity accounted $m $m $m $m $m $m
iavestment carrying value and share of profit, along with consideration of relevant qualitative factors. The information disclosed reflacts the Current assets
( amounts presented in the financial statements of tha relevant joint ventures and associates and, where indicated, the Group’s share of those Cosh and cash equivalents ™
motints. They have been amended to reflect adjustments made by the Group when using the aquity method, including fair value adjustments sheq
G i ing policies. The nature and principal activities of the material associates and joint ventures s ond Other current assets 75
Q’V}Bﬂmelﬂ of property assets. Total current assets 109
LENDLEASE GLOBAL LENDLEASE Non current assets
COMMERCIAL REIT* PAYALEBAR QUARTER® _ RETIREMENT LIVING TRUST* Investment proparties 7,288
G % . June2020  June20i9  June2020  June2019  June2020  June 209 Other non current assets 2
Income Statement $m $m $m $m $m $m
T o Total non current assets 3,263
/:\se'nue and other income - 361 ",126 165 7,290
o Current liabilities
Costof sales - (346) HeD) (26) . 2ot i
e esident liobilities 4,759
TOther expenses - @4y (60) (54)
. . 5 g Financial liabilities (excluding trade payables) -
[—UYnealised foir value (losses)/gains - 68
- o Other current liabilities 63
Depreciation and amortisation - 0]
Total current liobilities 4,822
[—Interest expense - (19)
; ©ox axpans Non current liabilities
Tcoine tax expense - -
(g ;‘\ P Financial liabilities (excluding trade payables) 586
Rrofit/(loss) for the period - 133
Reeh ® Other non current liabilities 146
Otiiér comprehensive income/{expense) - ® - i p—
‘otal non current liabilities
Crml comprehensive income/(expense) - 125 P—
ot assets. 1,845
‘Group's ownership interast - 75.0%
G\§ y N . Recor tion to Carrying Amounts
( roup's total share of: Opening net assets 1 July 1720
@E}"ﬁ/"’”)“" the period - 100 Total comprehensive income for the period 125
Qther adjustments - - Acquisition/contributions R
tl Total profit/(loss) for the period - 100 Distributions
?!:‘;’”’"’”‘"““" income/expense) - - © . Foreign currency translation for the period ) -
{ othi comprohensive income/(expense) - LERFF (29) 148 fusisE (29)1 — 94 Closing mot assets T nos] EIRYTT oas
. i iz iz foir 5 i ir terest
5 i ' <
expense. F R y y
2°Th, fing i in thi iate ore office and retailinvestn i zured ot air value. At 30 June 2020, valuations wera undertaken that took into % ownership T 2? J’F i ;‘3_?‘ 75.0%
‘sEongmy. Additionall i idonsrelath A > pacto Group’s share of net assets Wﬂ;# 262 - i 2389 1,384
s . A # ving it e .
5. eoverdle, I hic 4 oanoted shove. ; " Other adjustments ,m»ﬂ%ﬁz&) - PR (10)‘ 13
" : i i i i B Carrying amount at end of period 12611 - b -39 382 § i 1,354 4 1397
L‘ . N e ic. . v at tor value _ 1.9%, 05 1 i the period dif N due. N . . N N
el jindl increase in tho di in tho fir ¥ 4% ot June, i
ipcluding the impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic.
C\(} Material joint ventures had $32 million (June 2019: $99 million) in capital expenditure commitments.
“TH table below provi ised finencial i ion for those associates and joint vantures that are individually immaterial to the Group. The table . ised finand tor those associ {oint ventures that ara indhidually immaterial to the Group
below provid inan v '
ASSOCIATES JOINT VENTURES ASSOCIATES JOINT VENTURES
June2020  June2019  June2020  June 2019 L June 2020 June2019  June2020 June 2019
Income Statement $m $m $m $m Statement of Financial Position $m m m $m
Aggregate amounts of the Group’s share of: Aggregate corrying value of individually immaterial equity %@'?.ﬁ e ‘i
corry , [T
Profit/(loss) from continuing operations 84 accounted investments ¢ PR oS8T 270 a7, 1,452 1,403
Other comprehensive income/(expense) @)
Aggregate amounts of Group's shore of total comprehensive income/
(expense) of indivi i ial equity L
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Section B: Investment continued

13.\Other Financial Assets
~“Acddunting Policles
—Fihancial Assets at fair value through profit of loss on initial recognition are measured at fair value (generally transaction price) and

ated ot foir value. costs are recorded as expenses when they are incurred. Any goin or loss arising from a
change in fair value is racognised in the Incame Statement.

[y
QqunclnlAsseis st amortised cost are presented within loans end receivables in Note 21.

N

Fair Value June 2020 June 2019

Level $m $m
erem Measured ot Fair Value |
Fnlvanua Through Profit or Loss - Designated at Initial Recognition !

@Lgmlease International Towers Sydney Trust Level 3 j 87
Degivatives Level 2 16 10
Totdl current | 161 97
N} Current Moasured ot Fair Value !

Fair'Value Through Profit or Loss - Designated ot Initial Recognition

Lendlease International Towers Sydney Trust Level 3 T s 181
=——1:5ndlease One International Towers Sydney Trust Level 3 53 54

Australian Prime Property Fund ~ Industrial Lovel 3 101 96

\A\y_szt\ruﬁan Prime Property Fund ~ Commercial Level3 372 l 360

éu‘sAlmﬁnn Prime Property Fund - Retail Leval 3 7] 74

g Lendlease Public fafrastructure Investment Company Level 3 40 | 40
Milgtary Housing Projects Initiative Level 3 21| 21

CLendlensa Asian Retail Investment Fund Level 3 . -l @
Parkway Parade Partnership Limited Level 3 ) 721 43
Gthyrinvestments Level 3 94 "
B tbatives Level 2 8 -

Level 1 - 10
Total non current 1 1,076 * 103

@;& other financiol assots ] 1,092 { 1,200
1= Retor to Note 25 Fair Value for cotails of the bas for fair vatue ano the vatuat a

@)X

Cu.—nm-vm.m Reconciliation
Thc reconciliation of the carrying amount for Level 3 financial assets is set out as follows.

June 2020 June 2019
$m $m

@?mn amount ot beginning of financial year 1 1,180 } 1,529
(Disposals) ()] (as3)
Net ised in Income ! ey 106

Mmhgy movements (@) 1 38
‘Cirrying amount at end of financial year ¥ 1,068 1 1,180

The potential effect of using possible i ions for valuation inpt

not have s material impact on the Group.

Section C: Liquidity and Working Capital

The ability of the Group to fund the continued investment in the property and infrastructure pipeline, invest in new opportunities and *
meet current commitments is dopendent on avallable cash; undmwn debt facilities and access to third party capital. This section contains
the financiol asset ash fi tofina 's activities, including existing
commitments end the liquidity risk exposure nssm:la(sd with ﬁnanclal liabilities. The section also contains dlsclosures for the Group’s
trading assets, excluding inventories, and the trading liobilities incurred as a result of trading activities used o generote the Group's
performance.
[

[

14. Cash and Cash Equivalents

v
Accounllng Policies

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks, bank overdratfts and other short term hlghly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash within three months and which are subject to an insignificant risk of ~
changes in value.

! Bank overdratts (if applicable) are shownasa cuvrem liability on the Sla(emen( of Financial Position and are shewn 450 reduction to the
| €ash balonce in the Statement of Cash Flows.

June 2020 June 2019
Notes $m $m
Continuing i . |
Cash } . 937i 731
Short term investments' 1 559
Total cash and cash equivalents in the Statement of Financial Position i - g 1,290
Disposal Group Assets Hald for Sale i C !
Cash . 62 -
Short term investments 2 309k -
Total cash and cash equivalents elassified as Disposal Group assets held for sale 7% a1} -
Total cosh and cash equivalents 3 1,5621 1,290

1. Short term investments earnea variable rates of i v 1.5 per cant per the year (30 June 2019: 2.3 per cen).



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Section C: Liquidity and Working Capital continued
15, Notes to Statement of Cash Flows

June 2020 June 2019
$m $m

Reconciliation of Profit atter Tax to Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities
E(Loss)lProﬁt after tax (including external non controlling interests) 467
"Amortisation and depreciation 122
\gain on sale of investments, plam and equipment (99)
Q i of equity 6
IMpairment of inventories -
Impairment of loans and receivablas -
i| IPtirment of intangible assats -
Cllnpaumem of property, plant and equipment -
Netunrealised foreign exchange loss and currency hedging costs 8
@Neuair value loss/(gain) on investments ©n
SHafe of it) of equity i (338)
pivid istril from equity 43
E—_Eﬂ/}‘!alua gain on investment propertias (©5)
Other (19)
Net cosh provided by operating activities before changes in assets and linbilities 8

onges in Assets and Liabiliies Adjusted for Effects of Purchase and
Bfosal of Consolidated Entities and Operations During the Financial Year

Détrease in receivables 644
DEcTease/(increase) in inventories (220)
Decrease in other assets 9
ncrease in net defined benefit plans - 3)
@ ase/(decrease) in payables (a39)
nctdase in operating derivatives assets/liabilities -
(Increase)/decrease in deferred taxitems 130
Increase in current tax (23)
Inctease/(decrease) in other provisions (32)
&Nmnsh provided by operating activities' 60

S
G'Ljﬂﬂhn:“‘ A h + ows relating to by inuing ano operations.
ings and Fil ing Arr

EAcccunnng Follcles

wid,
g Borrowings are recugmsad i od nl :\mor\lsnd N
€Bst using the eﬂemve intérest rate method. Undsr the smortised cost method the difference belw_een the nmnum initially ‘recognised ;

L L RHT

.

A

d the redsription value s recorded i he Incoms Statémant over the pariod of tha borrowirig of an ffgctive intarsst basis. Boriowings
@e re'srred oin : this section using g thei s when describing the t67ms and conditions PR By g
T S R 3 .

: June 2019
$1
MW.yowings - Measured at Amortised Cost

Current
Commercial notes 225
Total current 225
Non Current
Commercial notes 1,502
Bank credit facilities 988
Total non current i 22614 2,490

Total borrowings 1970 .- 52,395 % 2,718

Lendlease Annua! Raport 2020 Financlal Statements. —@

June 2020 June 2019
$m $m

T,
b. Finance Facilities e Ao

The Group has access to the following lines of credit:
Commercial Notes

Facility ovailable 1727
Amount of facility used (1,727)
Amount of facility unused -
Bank Credit Facilities

Facility available 3,495
Amount of facility used (988)
Amount of facility unused 2,507
Bank Overdrafts

Facility available and amount unused 124

Commercial notes include:

= £300 million of guaranteed unsecured notes issued in October 2006 in the UK bond market with a 6.125 per cent per annum coupon
maturing in October 2021

US$400 million of guaranteed unsecured senior notes issued in May 2016 in the US Reg. S markat under Lendlease’s Eure Medium Term
Note Programme with a 4.5 per cent per annum coupon maturing in May 2026

* $$300 million of guaranteed unsecured senior notes issued in April 2017 in the Singopore bond market under Lendlease’s Euro Medium
Term Note Programme with a 3.9 per cent coupon maturing in April 2027

$225 million of unsecured medium term notes issued in May 2013 ($125 million) and June 2014 ($100 million) in the Australian

bond market with a 6.0 per cent per annum coupon which matured and was repaid in May 2020

 $80 million of unsecured medium term notes issued as an A$ private placement in December 2018 with a 5.4 per cent per anaum coupon
maturing in December 2028

 £300 million COVID Corporate Financing Facility from the Bank of England maturing March 2021 drawn to $134 million as at 30 June 2020.

Anumber of bank credit facilities were entered into in the current period. Thesa include:

« $800 million syndicated loan facility with Tranche A $400 million and Tranche B $400 million beth maturing in May 2022. As at 30 June
2020, tranches A and B were undrawn

© CNY873 million bank facility maturing in January 2025 drawn to $29 million os ot 30 June 2020,

Existing bank credit facilities include:

« £400 million club bank facility maturing in March 2023 undrawn as ot 30 June 2020

 $1,800 million syndicoted cash advance facility with Tranche A $960m maturing December 2021 and Tranche B $900 million maturing
September 2022. As ot 30 June 2020, tranche A and tranche B were undrawn

« $960 million A$ syndicated loan facility, maturing in March 2024, As at 30 June 2020, the $725 million tranche A was fully drawn and the
$235 million tranche B was undrawn.

The bank overdraft facilities may be drawn at any time and are repayable on demand.
The Group has not defaulted on any obligations in relation to its borrowings and financing arrangements.
INTEREST EXPOSURE CURRENCY
Fixed  Floating Total A$ uss £ CNY S$  Towl

June 2020 N A " T ‘W‘“ L
Within one year

Between one and five years
More than tive years

Total

June 2019

Within one year 225 - 225 225 - - - - 225
Between one and five years 543 980 1,523 835 - 688 - - 1523
More than five years 959 8 967 78 567 8 - 314~ 967
Total 1,727 988 2,715 1138 S67 696 - 34 2,715
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements continued

.Section C: Liquidity and Working Capital continued 18. Capital Management
6. Borrowings and Financing Arrangements continued The Group assesses capital management as part of its broader strategic plan. The Group focuses on interrelated financial parameters,
June 2020 June 2019 including Return on Equity, earnings growth and borrowing capacity. The Group also monitors its gearing ratio, leverage rotio, interest
) coverage ratio and weighted average cost of debt and maturity profile. These are all taken into account when the Group makes dacisions on

how to invest its capital and evaluate its existing investments.

€ Movement in Bo ngs and Financing The Group's capital ineludes total equity, borrowings and other interest bearing libiliies. When investing capital, the Group's objactive is to
((Btance at beginning of financial year deliver strong total securi returns and to maintain an i grade credit rating by maintaining an appropriate financial profile. The
N from y's/Fitch long dit ratings at 30 Bae3/BBB- ively (June 2019: Baa3/BEB-).
The capital structure of the Group can be changad by equity issuance, paying distributi i the DI

Plan and changing the leve! of debt. For further information on how the Group allocates and manages capital, refer to details of the Portfolio

Othar
Management Framework in the Financial Area of Focus and Perfermanca and Outlook sections of this Annual Report.

Balince ot end of financial year

C ssued Capital
Acc}vun\lng Pohcnes

CEM\C\‘ of foreipn exchange rate movements

19. Liquidity Risk Exposure

Further informatian on fiquidity risk s disclosed in Note 23 ‘Financial Risk Management. As disclosed in Note 26 ‘Contingent Liabilties) in certain
2 pany he of particular Group entiies in respect of their obligations including bonding and bank
1bued Capital - e - Saq 5 Issued bank have cash z ifthe bank guarantee facility is not renewed by the provider.
R o E BT RS A " N
(Ofdinary'shates are classrhsd as equny Incramental costs diractly annhu\nblet he istue o' ordmavy shares are recognised asa " T, AL30 June 2020, the Group does not anticipate o signiticant liquidity risk in relation to the following financial liabilities. This s due to its
deduction from sauity. e 13, 7 Ly" ¢ SERENTE § continued strong cash tlows and the Group's financial profile, as supported by the $1.2 biflion equity raising, significant committed undrawn
i When share cnpm mmgmsed as equity is mpu,ch sed, the amount ¢ of facilities and low gearing ratio. Refer to Note 14 ‘Cash and Cash Equi Note 16 i d Financing and Note 17
="rscognissd as s change in squfty. Repurchased share Issued Capital’ for further details.
Lt PN M PO i, The Greup has provlded collateral of $nil (June 2019: $nil) against letter of credit facilities.

— The cash tow ities of financial liabilities including estimated interest payments.
LENDLEASE CORPORATION LIMITED LENDLEASE TRUST M
. ore
June 2020 June 2019 June 2020 June 2019 Corrying Contractual  LessThan OnetoTwo Twoto Five Than Five
No. of No. of No.of No.of Amount CashFiows  One Year Years Years Years
Shares Shares Units Units Note $
_ _ m m $m m $m m $m Toma 2020
Issued capital at beginning of financial year {4 * 584 1,207 »‘1 S 584 F W 4921 584 920
AP &, Non Derivative Financial Liabilities
D\l'\mbutlon reinvestment plan (DRP) Y 3 - 3 - 1
# 2
(__sMroissue via institutional placemant (net of i : 3 R R Trade and other payables', 22
rénsaction costs)4 u Lease liabilities® 22 [
S'; re issue via fe);tmtv Purchase Plon (net of §,™ . . ?gi”ﬁ 138 R R Borrowings ond financing arrangements 16a f &0, 305 R 667 ':g 1
costy ] : Other financial lisbilities T
Issund capital ot end of financial year EN 584 1,300 k:4,2708 #h111,536 584 921 Total | JBL7,627 4, ¥, 8,509
s_‘S k ot b f i | year® 3 10) 145) #(20) (67, (10) 3 - o =
|‘<1 ack at beginning of financial yea E : ; d EREST ); : i :3 : . Derivative Financiol Linbifities s 2 ,?%
o market buyback of stapled securities® . i 10) + “: (10) 34
= = - . Quttow) - m u,assmﬁg» mm e
Buyback ot end of financial year § T wx(20) FRT (285) | (20) ) i (67) | (20) (67) i gt o 1 ot i % 4.3*«’
a|nnce reflected in Retained Earnings/ § P é“] A - f 5;2 N e nflow LE AT LU SRR . o = -
asewes‘ kg o ; Total L', prdm el bt B oty 15 [ -4 &é \{.(1) Ahiin (1)
|55ued apital ot end of financial year B 3688 171,889 ) 564 .688..%,11,836 564 921 June 2019 ’
Gns Moy 2020, s jon e e ! . Non Derivative Financial Liabilities
$9.60.
i Reserves for Trade and other payables' 22 5,566 5,785 4,513 662 559 51
LunﬂlcauTnﬂt
i: iltion i it i 5. Trust. Borrowings and financing nts. 16a 2,75 3,295 354 19 1,749 1,073
lnmann of Securities Totol 8,281 9,080 4,867 781 2,308 1,124
A5t 30 June 2020, the Group had 688 milfion stapled securities on issue, squivalent to the number of Landleass Corporation shares and Derivative Financial Liabifties
Lendlease Trust (LLT) units on issue as at that dote, The issued units of LLT are not owned by the Company and are therefore presented 0
[separately in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position within equity. (Outtlow) - (438) (a28) (2) 0] [0}
“Security Accumulation Plans Inflow 7 432 432 - - .
The Group’s Distribution Reinvestment Plan (DRP) was reactivated in February 2011. The last date for receipt of an election notice for Total 7 @ 4 {a) V)] [V}
participation in the DRP is 25 August 2020. The issue price is the arithmetic average of the daily volume waeighted average price of ——
Lendtease Group stapled securities traded (on the Australian Securities Exchange) for the period of five consecutive business days L Trodea e @
immediotely following the record date for determining entitlements to distribution. If that price is less than 50 cents, the issue price will be 2. Balanceindudss Dizpozal Group liabilties hetd for sdle.
50 cents. Stapled securities issued under the DRP rank equally with all other stapled sacurities on issue. 3L bilties o i L ? ired under AASB 16 Leases. June 2019 comparatives aro $ril

3 lease liabilities were not recognised under AASE 17 Loazes.
<. Terms and Conditions
ndlease C ion Limited i inary shares fully paid. A stapled security represents one share in the Compony Other contractually committed cash Hows the Group is exposed to ere detailed in Note 20 ‘Commitments'.
stapled to one unit in LLT. Stepled secur have the right to receive declared dividends from the Company and distributions from
LLT and are entitled to one vote per stapled security at securityholders’ meetings. Ordinary stapled securityholders rank after all creditors in
repayment of capital.

The Group does not have authorised capital or par value in respact of its issued stapled securities.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements continued .

Section C: Liquidity and Working Capital continued 21. Loans and Receivables
20. Commitments
June 2020 June 2018
$m $m
| —— —
ACapital Expenditure Commitments ; z;' e
CAt balance date, capital i i d or but not provided for A 4,.0.,""’
inghe financial statements are as follows:
(lemlmn one year a6
Bud between one and five years -
snd
?‘5: later than five years *information and analysis, bssod oty Group's historicol i
@Mp\l . . a6  forword ooking nformaton, The amount of theprovison s recognised in in the Inccme Stotormont.
vt et oo ;
@ June 2019
< Sm June 2020 Juna 2019
b.IpVestments Note Elul $m
A balance date, capital commitmants existing in respect of interests in squity accounted Current
and other i but not provided for in the financial statements Trade receivables 1,012
:1.235 follows: : Less: Impairment 13)
ithin one year 292 999
Duo\:elween one and five yeors 340 Related parties 75
Retentions . 330
CQE—"‘“’ than five years - Contract debtors 2t 389
Total 632 Acerued income . 2ta 57
Other receivables 241
. ) Less: Impairment @
& Operating Lease Commitments
Total current 2,050
Oparating lease commitmants are no longer required under AASB 16 Leases as these are now recorded as Leasa lisbilities. The difference
Tj&,u? Joan the operating lease commitment disclosed at 30 June 2019 and the Lease liabilities recorded on adoption is due to discounting of Non Current
m Ibase payments. Related parties 8
Less: Impairment (U]
Retentions 351
Other receivables 300
) Total non current 688
Total loans and receivables 2,738

As at the reporting date, $501 million of the trade debtors were current (30 June 2019: $640 million) and $261 million were past due {30 June
2019: $372 million). Of the past due amount, $245 million was not impaired (30 June 2019: $359 million). ‘Past due’ is defined under accounting
standards to mean any amount outstanding for one or more days after the contractual due date. Of the total trade debtors, 23.1 per cent (30
June 2019: 18.6 per cent) are aged greater than 90 days. Other than trade debtors, no other loans and receivables are considered past due at
30 June 2020 (30 June 2019: $nil).

June 2020 June 2019
$m $m

Provision for Impairment

F@fp@r

Carrying amount at beginning of financial year 1
Bad ond doubtful debts impairment loss net of provisions written back 2
Utilised bad and doubtful debts impairment provision -
Other movements (including foreign exchange rate movements) .

16

Carrying amount at end of financial year

aso f total loans and
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Section C: Liquidity and Working Capital continued -

21. Loans and Receivables continued
Thakregit quality of all loans and recaivables, including those neither past dua nor impaired, is azsessed and manitored on an ongaing basis.
i The &lrrent reporting period, additional r 10 nssess ifity in ‘ight ef tha COVID-19 pandemic. As the majority
[———of'the Group's customers are Government entities for the Construction business and are institvtisnal investors in the Cevelopment and
:Invenmem businesses, no additional risk has been identified. Impairment as noted above was ‘mmaterial in FY20. The impairment provision

relates to specific loans and receivables that have been identified as being impaired, including related party loans where the Group's interest in
a-dovelopment was via an equity accounted investment.

June 2028 June 2019
Q . sm
5-Contract Assets : 3

Current

Céntract debtors 349

@)ﬂvucﬁun contract assets 1180

Acctued income 57

@J"gz'al contract assets' 1,586
. bocames

M

22. Trade and Other Payables
T
Accoun\mg Pollcles ‘g “"
;Emdocmmu ’-?
(G
e d s

Fhe discount, |f material, mhen racogmsed 3san axaerise ‘over the ramaxnmpterm ’!‘, S
@gnnmﬂmn:ommn .m.es,‘ PR i Fab M

4

T

—Constriction co'nvac\s:w :
eficaad the costs incurrad to date| plus vecogmsed pmm onthe Contract are recognised es a fat lit
@@mmmns R i ﬁ&‘? W&ﬁ rﬁm’ﬁ §§ ‘ﬂ“@

Sare 2 Gayabla for the pupon a'sacumynnd'ortheprov onoldelsc\ inazcor ancewnh‘cnmame'ms
= Ialemlonnmoums are naccordancewl\hcon‘tractu:l|urms A e -

G

l G:o up uses n: maemamal borrow-ng ra(e asthe dlsmum rate.
ooy

June 2019

@ Ny
dee and accrued creditors 3,136
Construction contract liabilities 1,608
Retated parties )
Retentions a76
Deferred land payments 98
Unearned Income! 19
Lease liabilities? -
Other payables - PLLACes* 164
Other 309
Total current 5,724

5. ifi PLL tions. PLLAC

ted separately, i Snil

2 As i
under AASB 17 Leazes.
5 k

for further details,
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Juna 2020 June 2019
Note $m

Non current

Trade and accrued creditors 7
Retentions i 309
Deterred land payments 635
Unearned income’ 183
Lease liabilities? -
Other payables - PLLACes** -
Other 267
Total non current Bt it 2,408 | 1,401
Total trade and other payables T 1w 6,901 7,125
1 i pLL i
2 Asoresultol of. 816 L L otely, jzed
under AASB1T7 Leases. .

3. RefertoNote.
As a result of the adoption of AASB 16 Leases, the Group has recognised amounts for Right-of-use assets and Lease liabilities. As at 30 June
2020, the Group recognised right-of-use assets of $359 million within Property, Plant and Equipment and $50 million within Investment
Properties.

June 2020 June 2019

$m $m

a. Contract Liabilities
Current ‘
Unearned income*? 19
Censtruction contract liabi . 1,408
Total current Fo ¥ ol 1,500 1,523
Non Current ; '& wdu m
Unearned incoms' . P I‘ ;a.‘.. .77} 183
Total non eurrent S B 77} 183
Total contract fiabilities §4 " D ,677] 1,706

2 i ‘batance b i L

iz iobiiti 3 E%)

Diacantnued Operatons for further dotain
During the year, the Group recognised $846 million in revenue from contracts that held a contract liability balance at the beginning of the
financial year. The total transaction price relating to the Group’s Unearned income on the Group’s development contracts at June 2020 is $758
million relating primarily to various UK and Australian projects. The difference between the Unearned income amount noted in the table above
and this amount primarily relates to the remaining development value of apartments versus the deposit amount received. Revanue from these
contracts is expected to be realised as control over each asset is lmr\sfelred to the customer.

The total transaction price allocated to unsati the Group’s ion contracts as at June 2020 is

$13.9 billion for the core business (June 2019: $15. shlumn) 'and $5. biflon for the Non core business (June 2019: $5.4 billion), which is the
construction backlog reported in the Performance and Outlook section of the Directors’ report. This includes new work secured during the
period. Of the total construction backlog, 47 per cent is expected to be realised within the next 12 months o June 2021 (June 2019: 53 per cent
1o June 2020), 25 per cent to June 2022 {June 2019: 25 per cent to June 2021) and the remaining 28 per cent realised post June 2022 (June
2019: 22 per cent post June 2021).
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Section D: Risk Management

D,
é unp Jaictability of firancial arkets'shd seeks to minitiss adverse affscs 1 s Groupsperlrrianca. Treasuy policies have beer - ‘?L,‘

——approved by the Board for ma

 this risk. This section Contains’

liabilities is al:
Py

@r‘oup manages these risks. The impa
T e Bt 260

23\Financial Risk Management
C‘m he Group operates across numerous jurisdictions and markets. The Lendlease Asset and Lia

ity Committee oversees the management of

W& Group's treasury risks, within the parameters of a Board approved Treasury Policy, and maintains o Group wide framework for financial risk
management and raviews issues of material risk axposure within the scopa of the Treasury Policy. A summary of key risks identified, exposures

Cand)mnnngemem of exposures is detoiled in the table below.

RisKs Identified

Dafinition

Exposures

Management of Exposures

Fol“gn Currency

The risk in local currency terms
that the value of a financial
commitment or a racognised
asset or liability, will fluctuate
due to changes in foreign
currency exchange rates

Foreign currency earnings
Net investments in

foreign operations
Transactions settled in
foreign currency

Further information on
exposures is detailed in Note
23a ‘Foreign Currency

Risk Exposure’

Physical financial instruments, including
natural hedges from matching foreign
assets and liabilities

Derivative financial instruments, mainly
foreign exchange contracts
Contracting out

Speculative trading is not permitted

sonal Us:

The risk that a counterparty will

not be able to meet its obligations
in respect of a financial instrument,

resulting in a financial foss to the
Group

Recovarability of loans and
receivables

Recoverability of other
financial assets and cash
deposits

Further information on
exposures is detailed in Note
23b ‘Credit Risk Exposure’

Policies in place so that customers and
suppliers are appropriately credit assessed
Treasury Policy sets out cradit limits for
each counterparty based on minimum
investment grade ratings

Liquidity

B

oe

The risk of having insufficient

funds 1o settle financial liabilities

as and when they fall due

.

Insufficient levels of
committed credit facilities
ent of financial

s

Further information on
exposures is detailed in Note
19 ‘Liquidity Risk Exposure’

Maintaining sufficient levels of cash

and committed credit facilities to meet
financial commitments and working
copital requirements

Managing to funding portfolio benchmarks
as outlined in the Treasury Policy

Timely review and renewal of credit
facilities

Interest Rate

¥

Fo

The risk that the value of a
financial instrument or cash flow
associated with the instrument
will Huctuate due 1o changesin
market interest rotes

Financial assets, mainy cash
ot bank

Financial liabilities, mainty
borrowings and financing
arrangements

Further information on
exposures is detailed in
Note 23¢ ‘Interest Rate

Risk Exposure’

.

Physical financial instruments
Desivative financial instruments,
mainty interest rate swaps

Monaging to hedging limits in respect
of recourse funding as outlined in the
Treasury Policy

Speculative trading is not parmitted

Equity Price

The risk that the fair value of either

atraded or non traded equity
investment, derivative equity
instrument, or a portfolio of such

financial instruments, increases o

decreases in the future

Alltraded and/or non traded
#inancial instruments
measured at fair volue

Material investments within the portfolio
ere managed on an individual basis. The

Group's portfolio is monitored closely as
part of capital recycling initintives
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a. Foreign Currency Risk Exposuro

“The net asset exposure by currency is detailed below.
Agm US$m £m CNYm MYRm  Other m?

G ;ﬂ‘

9‘5%. 11,084 nh‘”tw .33

une 2019
Net asset/(liability) exposure (local currency) 3,380 645 476 © 462 18 569 1,047 37

June 2020' P
Net asset/(liobility) exposure (local currency) ¥ ™ 3,390 !

1. Balance includes Dizposal Group aszets and liabilities held for sole.
2. Other i and dizclosed i

Sensitivity Analysis

The sensitivity snalysis of the Group’s Australian dollar denominated Income Statement and Statement of Financial Position to foreign currency
movements is based on 8 10 per cent Hluctuation (June 2019: 10 per cent fluctuation) on the average rates during the financial year and the spot
rate at balance dote respectively. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant, and excludes the
effects of the foreign exchange contracts.

A10 per cent movement in the average foreign exchange rates would have impacted the Group's Profit after tax os follows:

10% WEAKENING LEADS TO 10% STRENGTHENING LEADS TO
INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN PROFIT AFTERTAX  INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN PROFIT AFTER TAX

June 2020 June 2019 June 2030 June 2019

$m $m $m

usb 14 ﬂ' o W(s) 12)
asP 3 .ﬁ,ut’ > ©
SGD 8 ©
EUR - 1
CNY 1 (U]
MYR (2 '
24 - e 08)] (22)

A10 per cent movement in the foreign exchange spot rates at batance date would have impacted the Group's net assets as follows:

10% WEAKENING LEADS TO
INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN NET ASSETS

10% STRENGTHENING LEADS TO
INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN NET ASSETS

June 2020 June 2019 June 2020 June 2019

$m $m $m

usD 103 (83)
aBP 86 (86)
SGD 51 (#6)
EUR 20 ()
CNY 13 )
MYR 40 (33)
313 LW@"’M (330} (276)
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Section D: Risk Management continued

% Financial Risk Management continued
(BB Tt Risk Exposure

[—""<"TRe maximum exposure to credit risk at balance date on financial instruments recognised in the Statement of Financial Position (excluding
investments of the Group) equals the carrying amount, net of any impairment.
t * The Group is not exposed 1o any significant concentrations of credit risk on either a geographic or industry specific basis.
~Credit risk on financial instruments is managed under a Boord approved credit policy that determines acceptable counterparties. Derivative
Guntsrpnnxcs and cash deposits are limited to recognised financial intermediaries with a minimum investment grade credit rating as
d;

stermined by a recogrised rating agency.

+_Réfer to Note 21Loans and fori ion relating to impairment on loans and

« Incertain circumstances, the Group will hold either financial or non financial assats as collateral to further mitigata the potential cradit risk
@. selected transactions. During the current and prior year, the Group did not hold financial or non financial assets as collateral. At any point

‘in'time, the Group will hotd other collateral such as bank guarantees and performance bonds to mitigate potential credit risk as o resutt of
defoult by a counterparty o otherwise.

@czl terest Rate Risk Exposure

I®)

THe'Group’s exposure to interest rate risk on its financial assets and liabilities is set out as follows:

3 CARRYING AMOUNT
June 2020' June 2019
$m $m
—Fixed Rote ]
Firghcial assets . i 770
‘_\a} I ey At
Eindjicial liabilities G (2,103) 0,808)
~ (1,930) § (1,036)

@Vmiabla Rate

Finapcial assets

476
( Fia)cial liabilities - (990)
e e i 508 | (514)

=
1/ 3 assets and liabilitic forsale.
=4
&Snnsim‘ny Analysis

Cl 0 June 2020, it is estimated that an increase of one percentage point in interest rates would have decreased the Group’s equity and Profit

'h“srl«nx by $6 mitiion (June 2019: $21 million decrease in the Group's equity and Profit after tax). A one percentage point decrease in interest

m/, ‘would have increased the Group’s equity and Profit after tax by $6 million (June 2019: $21 million increase in the Group's equity and Profit

Bffer tox). The increase or decrease in interest income/(expense} is proportional to the increase or decrease in interest rates. Interest rate
@atives have been included in this calculation.

24. Hedging

‘—-Accounung P0|lcl95t

= in 3

@T'h‘a Group uses dummllve ﬁn:ncml instruménts 10 hedge its exposure to olelgn exchange and interest rate risks orising from
oPeratmg, financing and investing activities. Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at fa value on the daté a

derivative contract is entered into and subsequently remeasured at fair value. Hedge accounting recognises the offsetting effects on

proﬁt or loss of changes in tha fair value of the dérivative financial instruments and the hedged item. The accounting for hadges that

% meet the :menz 'orhed g are

accounting afe classifiad es eithér fair Valus hedges, cash fiow hedges of investrment hedges
e

The Group has minimal hedges designated at fair value. The Group primarily uses forward foreign exchange contracts as cash flow hedges
tor highly probable sale, purchase and dividend transactions. The Group also uses forward foraign exchange contracts to hedge cross barder
intercompany loans and transactions which mainly net off in the Income Statement. Interest rate swaps and interest rate options are used to
‘manage the Group’s exposure to interest rates arising from borrowings. These are treated as cash flow hedges and are mainly on borrowings
within equity accounted investments.

The Group has foreign exchange derivative contracts primarily held in USD, EUR, SGD, JPY and MYR at reporting date to hedge specific
foreign currency exposures. The total gross payable exposure, including Disposal Group, is $936 million (June 2019: $249 million).

There are 56 foreign currency contracts that will mature in more than one year (June 2019: 72 foreign currency contracts).

L Raport 2020

25. Fair Value Measurement

Mﬂnaﬁemenl considers the valuation of assets at fair valus

" thisTaprasents tha badt Sitimation ¢ 50 01 fair Valué ot the mpomng dme 1he tair values may differ i thera is sVolatility in market prices or
LY @‘-&d

recognised a1 amounts 1hat represent o reasonable approximation of fair valus, with the exception of the following borrowings.

JUNE 2020 JUNE 2019
y
! Carrying Corrying
Amount  Fair Value Amount  Fair Value
$m $m
Current !
Commercial notes 225 238
Non Current
Commercial notes 5 1,502 1,640
The fair value of ial notas has b lculated by di ing the d h lows by thy i bond

rates and credit margin applxcnhla 10 th relevant term of the commercial nate.

2. Basi of Determining Fair Valus

The determination of fair values of financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value are summarised as follows:

« The fairvalue of unlisted equity investments, including investments in property funds, is determined based on an assessment of the
underlying net assets, which may include periodic independent and Directors’ valuations, future maintainable earnings and any special
circumstances pertaining to the particular investment. Fair value of unfisted equity investments has also taken the COVID-19 pandemic
into consideration to determine fair value at 30 June 2020. This has included more frequent independent valuations of underlying
investment properties to account for current market conditions. This has resulted in a net fair value loss in Other financial assets of $17
million. Refer to Note 7 ‘Other expenses’

 The fair values of other financial assets and financia! liabilities g derivative i are with
generally accepted valuation techniques; these include the use of recent arm's length transactions, reference to o\herasse\s that are
substantially the same, and discounted cash fiow analysis

The fair value of derivative instruments comprises forward foreign exchange contracts, which are valued using forward rates at balance
date, and interest rate swap contracts, which are measured ot the present value 01 future cash flows esllmmed ond discounted based on
applicable yield curves derived from quoted interest rates and include of ty risk

b. Fair Value Measurements
The different levels for valuation method have been defined as follows:

» Leve! & The fair value is determined using the unadjusted quoted price for an identical asset or liability in an active market for identical
assets or fabifities

Love! 2: The fair vatue is catculated using
asset or liability B

market data other than unadjusted quoted prices for an identical

o Level 3: The fair value is calculated using inputs that are not based on observable market dato.

During the period, there were no material transfers between Level 1, Leve! 2 and Level 3 fair valus hierarchies.
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Section D: Risk Management continued

226, Contingent Liabilities
&he Gr&up has the following contingent liabilities, being liabilities in respect of which there is the potential for a cash outflow in excess of any
‘provisiGn where the likelihood of paymentis not considerad probable o cannot be measured reliobly at this time.
+There are o number offegal claims and exposures that arise from the normal courss of the Group's business, pariicularly in respect of claims for

def: d under ities. In many cases, there |suncemm\yaslowhethernﬁllure liability wlllans mspsc\mmoss
items, Where it is probable there will be liabilities from such claims, a provision has been made for
+”In"centain circumstances, the Company particular p entities in respect of their obligations. Thus includes
Bonding and bank guarantee facilities used pmmnly by the G i i 1l 05 per for certain of the
Gdmpany’s subsidiaries.
-‘Sjacurmesclnss Action
On 18 April 2019, Lendlease Corporation and Lendlease ible Entity (Lendl jitha class action
proceeding filed in the Supreme Court of New South Wales on 18 April 2019 by David Wiliam Pallas and Julis Ann Pallas as trustaes for the
G FPJIus Famity tion Fund, Y ice Blackburn. On 7 August 2019, Lendlease Corporation and Lendlease Responsible
( :Emnyﬂ d with a class sction ling filed in the Supreme Court of New South Wales on 6 August

4019 by Martn John Fletcher, representad by Phi Finnsy McDoneld. On 21 November 2019, the Suprems Court ordered consolidation o the
tWo cl The ing alleges that Lendlease was in breach of its continuous disclosure
\o/b‘lga\:ons under the Corporations Act 2001 and made representations about fts Engineering and Services business that were misleading or
{dageptive orlikely to mislead or daceive. It s currantly not possible to determine the ultimate impact of these dlims, f any, on Lendlease
GFoup. Lendlease Group denies the allegations and intends to vigorously defend this proceeding.

IS

~or p@[@@naﬂ

Section E: Basis of Consolidation
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P
X Tm; saction provides inforimation on how the Group

d 'u-elypssav nitic
i B P

datior and lhose excludsd ’§ W&

27. Consolidated Entities

Has 1 the power “to direct the. relevnnt activit

Has axpoaure or rluhts to Variablg T rotumc 'r

.2 Has the ab.m;' 1o usaits p’KwE‘r over lhs invastee to affe

e e s
oncial pasiioR 37d hartormemea o1 1he Group aa whola. T

The financi: idiari included in the i inanck from the date that control until the date
that control ceases. The financial statements of subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as tha parent company, using consistent
policies with adjy made to bring into lir dissimilar ling policies that may exist.

External non controlling interests are allocated their share of total comprehensive income and are presented within equity in the consolidated
Statement of Financial Position, separately from the equity of securityholders. )

“The material consolidated entities of the Group listed below were wholly owned during the current and prior year. Refer to the following section

for details on the disposal of entities.

PARENT ENTITY

EUROPE

Lendlease Corporation Limited
AUSTRALIA

Capella Capital Lendlease Pty Limited
Capella Capital Partnarship

Lendlease Building Pty Limited

Lendlease Building Contractors Pty Limited
Lendlease Communities (Australia) Limited
Lendlease Development Pty Limited
Lendlease Engineering Pty Limited
Lendlease Finance Limited

Lendlease Infrastructure Investments Pty Limited
Lendlease International Pty Limited
Lendlease Real Estate Investments Limited
Lendlease Responsible Entity Limited
Lendlease Services Pty Limited

Lendlease Trust'

Lendlease Construction (Europe) Limited
Lendlease Construction Holdings (Europe) Limitad
Lendlease Europe Finance plc

Lendlease Europe Limited

Lendlease Residential (CG) Limited

Lendlease (Elephant & Castle) Limited

ASIA

Lendlease Japan Inc.
Lendlease Singapore Pte. Limited
AMERICAS

Lendlease (US) Capital, Inc.

Lendlease (US) Construction, Inc.

Lendlease (US) Construction LM, Inc.
Lendlease (US) Public Partnerships, LLC
Lendlease (US) Public Partnerships Holdings LLC

Lendlease Development, lnc.

1. Lendleasa Trustis aconsalidated entity of the Group m the parent entity is deemed to control it. Lendleaza Trust is not wholly owned.

entities.

During the current and prior year, no
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Section E: Basis of Consolidation continued

27,_Consolidated Entities continued

(=The T5bwing material disposals of consolidated entities occurred during the current and prior year.

I Ownership Gross Considerotion

Interest Disposed Date  Raceived/Receivable

% Disposed $m
Jung 2020
Gl
Australia

Victoria Cross Commercial Head Trust 25.0 21 December 2019 31
Infr‘)b,zots
Woihicos

@ngcas Residential Partnership 50.0 19 July 2018 172

2a§ mployee Benefit Vehicles 4
e

“Th& Company spansors a number of employee benefit vehicles, including employee security plans and employes security ownership vehicles.
These vehicles whila not legally controlled, are currently reguired to ba consolidated for accounting purposes.
T Employee Security Plans

VA1 30 June 2020, employees own approximately 1.0 per cent (June 2019: 1.0 per cent) of the issued copital of the Group through various
1ivs Lendlease employee security plans and ownership vehicles, details of which are outlinad below:

C‘ scurties in the Group and is funded by Lendlease and empl lary sacrifice
«~Americas: US Robbi Trust (Rabbi Trust) was established in 2004 ond updated in 2005 for the acceptance of employee profit share
contributions used to acquira Group securities for US based employees. This part of the plan is not currently accepting new contributions
. s})pmee Share Acquisition Plan (STI) (ESAP STI): ESAP ST was established in July 2014 for the purpese of acquiring and allocating
Securities granted as the deferred component of Short Term Incentive (STI) awards, which are funded by Lendlease subscriptions. Securities
@am currently allocated to employees across Australia, Singapore, Malaysia, the United Kingdom and the United States.
i}

N
-Australia: Employee Share Acquisition Pian (ESAP): ESAP was established in December 1988 for the purpose of employees acquiring
g - My y e

ligibility
The eligibifity rules for each plan are determined by refarence 1o the regulatory, legal and tax rutes of each country in which the Group
perdtes. -

GDisvihmicns and/or Voting Rights
LA

in the various operating security plans are entitled to distributions and voting rights for allocated securities. The plans
Feflact this intention subject 1o regulatory, tegal and tex constraints. The trustee may exercise these rights in accordance with any fiduciary or
( governance rules pertaining to the deed or trust laws in the legal and tax jurisdiction within which the trust operates.

b.Employee Security Ownership Vehicles
g Inaddition to the plans discussed above, Landlease has an employee security ownership vehicle, Lendleass Retirement Benefit Fund (RBF).
RBF was in 1984 with appraval for the benefit of employees. RBF holds Lendlease securities. The Lendlease
@scurhies in RBF are not available for allocation to employaes other than in the event of a change of controf of the Group and, in
o

ceordance with RBF's trust deed, the capital of the trust is not available 1o the Group. The RBF trustes has discration as to the distribution
f the RBF funds. In 1992, a deed poll was executed which allows for the distribution of the income of RBF to the Company to fund
employea benefit activities through the Lendlease Foundation. As a result of changes 1o the constitution and governance structura of
the RBF trustes on 22 June 2017, Lendlease currently does not have control of RBF and thersfors RBF is currently not required to be
consolidated for accounting purposes.

*  The RBF arrangement is subject to periodic review 10 assess its ongoing role and operation.
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29. Parent Entity Disclosures

The following summarises the financial information of the Group’s parent entity, Lendlease Corporation Limited {the Company), as at and
for the year ended 30 June 2020

-y . h : COMPANY

-; - : + June 2020 June 2019

3 $m $m
Results l
Profit attar tax ? no
Other comprehensive income after tox -
Total comprehensive income after tax 10
Financial Position :
Current assets l 5738
Non current assets 1 1,978
Total assets N 7,716
Current liabilities 4,844
Non current liabi 'S ] e et .2,1 6
Total lia B a et 6791 4,850
Net assets ] BTl 3,892 2,866
Issued capital 1,300
Treasury securities i - N (8)
Reserves ! 19
Retained earnings \ _ 1,455
Total equity i 2,866

In respect of the contingent liabilities of the Group disclosed in Note 26 ‘Contingent Liabilities’, the Company parti

ates in the provision of
guarantees to Group entities. -
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ﬁielated Party Information
amalidated Entities
bal J 0

—

p and any unrealised gains or losses arising from intragroup transactions, are efiminated in praparing
Feconsolidated financial in subsidiari ied ot their cost of acquisition less impai inthe Company’s
g{ financial statements.
Lendlease Corporation Limited provides financing and treasury services, which includes working capital facilities and long term financing
086 rtain subsidiaries. Interest is earned or incurred only on long term loans provided to or drawn with subsidiaries based on project specific
Cris/k‘s):nd returns. Outstanding balances arising from working capital facilities and long term financing are typically unsecured ond repayable on
emand. .

Inaddition, are provided to particular ities in respect of their obligati These include bonding and bank guarantee
fagilities used primarily by the Construction business as well as p for certain D, busi ial buitt
Gl:ob\ developments. Guarantee fees are charged under normal terms and conditions.
“Thefollowing represents the transactions that occurred during the financial year and the balances outstanding at year end between Lendlease
Corporation Limited and its consolidated entities.
C(_// . - COMPANY'

June 2020 June 2019
= $000s
S sactions

Guarantee fees " 29,497

Dividend income 306,217
@@}s‘ income 10,249

Ihterest expense 106,282

Outstanding Batancas (Net of Provisions Raised)

Ruﬁivﬂblss 4,730,795
@blas 4,772,546

rajority titi Lendleaze Finance Limited, a wholly owned subzidiary of the Company.

3
@@)adﬁona that oceurred during the financial year between entities in the Lendlease Group included:
« Provision of project design services, i and engineering services projects
ision of services

@ W’r?v‘xsion of investment management services
TR

s Pivision of payroll, transaction and management services

=-Receipt and payment of superannuation contributions
Reimbursement of expenses made on behalf of subsidiaries
Uoanga d between

» Premium payments and receipts for the Group's insurance policies
+ Dividends received or due and receivable from subsidiaries.

p

f

Fo
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b. Associates and Joint Ventures
Interests held in associates and joint ventures by Lendlaase are set out in Note 12 ‘Equity Accounted Investments’.
Transactions between the Lendlease Group and its associates and joint vantures principally relate to:

o D bid and advisory servicas and the sale and purchase of development
properties with Lendlease managed funds -
« Construction: provision of project building, engineering and ion services

« Investmants: provision of property and i property and asset ervices.
There were no non interest bearing loans provided tojoint ventures at 30 June 2020 (June 2019: $nilk -
Except as noted above, transactions and outstanding balances are typically on normal terms and conditions.

Revenue earned by Lendiease during the year as a rasuit of transactions with its associates and joint ventures is as follows:

June 2020 June 2019
$000s $000s
Revenue
Associates . 5,808
Joint ventures . ; a7 1,197,964
Total TRRPREE, 339,022 1,203,769
Other i ing balances with associates, joint ventures and other related parties have been disclosed in Note 4 Revenuo

1{rom Contracts with Customers’, Note 6 ‘Other Income’, Note 7 ‘Other Expenses’, Note 8 ‘Finance Reventte and Finance Costs’, Note 13 ‘Other
Financial Assets’, Note 21 ‘Loans and Receivables’ and Note 22 ‘Trade and Other Payables’. Transactions with joint operations are included in the
Income Statement and # Finaneio Position. : o

¢. Key Management Personnel
The key management personnel compensation is as follows:

June 2020 June 2019
$000s $000s
Short term employee benefits* 1 16,501
Post employment benefits® 285
Security based payments 1,135
Other long term benefits 299
Total 28,220
1 2 4
benafits tochort term employee benfita. .

Information regarding Directors’ and senior ives ion is provided in the ion Report within the
Directors’ Report. .
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%ﬂngible Assets

[“——Aecounting Policies -

B

Bodwill reprasents the excess of the purchass price ovar the fair value of the Group's share of tha nat identiiable assets and contingent

&
( 1 liabilities of the acquired business ot the date of

Goodwill on

—gdodwill. Goodwill on acquisition of associates i

isinclided in intangible assets as
cluded in the carrying value of investments in ossociotes.

(%a‘odwill is tested annually for impairment and carried ot cost less accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is not amortised. Gains and
l losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

7~ For the purposas of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated 1o cash generating units (CGUs) (or groups of CGUs), thatare expaned 1o
i of assets that

{ benefitfrom the business combination in which the goodwill arese. CGUs are an i

rycoveruble amoum of the CGU \o which the goodwill is allocated. The Construction CGUs use the value in use basis, which requires the
up P to arise from the CGUs and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the recoverable

@;Ifwh the goodwill. Monagement considers this is an area of estimation uncertainty as these calculotions involve an estimation of the

Management agreements and other intangible assets acquired by the Group are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
limpairment losses (sea Note 7 ‘Other Expenses’). Amortisation is charged o the Income Stetement on a straight line basis over the

@i?ounh

I?\ummed useful lives of the intangible assets, ranging from three 1o 20 years.

June 2020 June 2019

Note $m $m

——aagtmwin ) 1213 1,232

g mn;ngamem agreements 36 i 39

E)\t#e)r intangibles 208 ¢ 186

Tulnlintnngihlc assets i 1,457 § 1,457

.en.mw.u
Developmen( 32§ 32
@'gtu]gnndwlll f.. 1,213} 1,232
=
Reconciliations
Dieconcili:nions of the carrying amounts for each category of goodwill are as follows:
Gcan ruction

Catrying amount at beginning of financial year 1,200 1185

Transterred to Disposal Group (19) -

EH&TT ol foreign exchange rate/other movements - 15

Carrying amount at end of financial year 31b | 4,181 1,200

%Iovment

ing amount at beginning of financial year ) 32 30

Effcet of foreign exchange rate movements - 2

32 32

[Carrying amount at end of financial year
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b. Goodwill Allocation

Goodwill relating ta the Construction business is allocated to CGUs identified as set out below. During June 2019, the Group identified an

additional segment, Non core - Engineering and Services, as noted in Note 1‘Segment Reporting’. As a result of this change in segments, the

Group Iﬂemmed o corresponding change in CGU for goodwill impairment testing. The Construction Australia CGU was split into two CGUs,
Australia Core and C. Australia Non core. Construction Australia Non core contains the Services business.

Goodwill has been re-allocated to each CGU on a relative value basis.

The goodwill from the Engineering business, held within Construction Australia Non core CGU, was transferred to Disposal Group assets
hetd for sate during the year.

June 2020 June 2019
$m $m
Construction B i
Australia Core o 573 573
Australia Non core’ 151 170
Europe - Fr 208 248
Americas T .. 203 201
Asia ... 8 8
Total construction goodwill i . 1181 1,200
1. Goodwill to the to Dispozal for sale during the year, Thiz haa subsequently been
impaired within the Dizpasal Gm\m assets held for sale. Refer to Note 32 ‘Discontinued Cperatiens' fer further details.
<. mpai Tasts and Key ions Used - C
The amount of the C tion CGUs i based on value in use (VIU) calculations. For the Construction CGUs, the
used for ining the t of each CGU are based on past experience and expectations for the future, u

both internal and external sources of data and relevant industry trends.

No impairment arose as a result of the review of gooduwill for the Construction CGUs other than in the Disposal Group for the year snded 30
June 2020. Based on information nvallnble and market conditions at 30 June 2020, a change in the

in this assessment would not result in impai of C ion goodwill. The ble change in the took the COVID~|9
pandemic into consideration.

The following describes the key assumptions on which management has based its cash fiow projections when determining ViU relating to the
Construction CGUs.

Cash Flows
The VIU caleulations use pre tax cash flow projections based on actual operating results, and financial forecasts covering o five year period
which have by d by These 1 ts are based on estimates to determine income, expenses, copital

expenditure and cash Hows for each CGU.

Growth Rate

The terminal value growth rate used to extrapolate the cash flows beyond the five year period is 3.0 per cent (June 2019: 3.0 per cent). The
growth rate reflects the forecast long tarm average growth rate for each CGU and the countries in which they cperate.

Discount Rate

The discount rates applied 16 the cash tlow projections vary between 9.4 per cent and 13.1 per cent (Juna 2019: between 10.0 per cent and
13.2 per cent). The Group’s weighted average cost of capital is used as a starting point for determining the discount rate, with appropriate

adjustments for the risk profile relating to the relevant CGUs and the countries in which they operate. The discount rates used are pre tox.
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32. Discontinued Operations

T

félate 10 & component o including i 'assets and liabilities that have been classified as held 2%

[——Lforsale ond represent a separate major line of business o gaographical area of operation. The group of assets and theircgisesponding i Tabilteg

= (ogether referred 10 0z a Dispasal Group), may only be classitiad o5 held fo sale oncs tha following eritarisaremet: ~

The Eiiying amount wil b6 rocoversd pnnc.palry hroligh a sale transaction rathar than thiough cemmumg use
. —

St v o

i Hiindy
@lspcsal group is msasumd at (ha lowar of its carrying amoum and fair value tess costs to sell Whevehllvalua is
a

Compa ratives have also been reshlad for the Incnms Stateme ent, Stnmmant of Com
disglose the results of h om continuing oparati ,,,xﬁ"‘"

On.25 Fabruary 2019, the Group that its Engineering and Services

are no lenger a required part of the Group's strategy.
Manbgement at that time committed to 2 plan to exit from Non core operations of Engineering and Services. On 18 December 2019, the Group

htbfed into an A tosellits business for a purchase price of $180 million. In Juno 2020, the purchase price was

izod to $160 million. The di represents the business 10 be sold, excluding the projects retained by the Group.
TREransaction, which at 30 June 2020 was subject to conditions including clisnt and third party consents, is expected to completa in the first
—half 4t FY21, On 28 April 2020, the Group announced the sales process for the Services business has been paused given the uncertsinty in market
conditions. The Services business no longer meets the accounting criteria to be held for sale, therefore it has not bean included in discontinued
operations or assets and liabilities classified as held for sate at 30 June 2020.

o e Group previously disclosed a cost estimate to exit the Non core segment of $450-§550 million pre tox. These costs are now estimated to be
PR Csmstaly 8350 mifion s to, wih 3525 milfion pre 1ax (§368 million aftar tax) expensed in tha year ended 30 June 2020. $15 miffion pre
mh s expensed in the prior year. Exi related costs include: implementation and selling costs and estimated costs to cover concluding projects

ihed by the Group which have been recorded in Continuing Operations.

{30 June 2020, the results of the Engineering and Services businesses have been presented separately from the Construction segment as Non
core. Refer to Note 1‘Segment Reporting' for details.

C@ otth diconined sprations,reprsaning the

2D
7
Resbhs from Discontinued Operations

business to be sold, are as follows:
June 2020 June 2019
$m $m

Revenue from contracts with customers 1,497

Cost of sales (1.509)
(Gwss profit/(loss) (12)

Otfarincome 2
@aim\am on Disposal Group held for sale'

Gther expenses (125)

Profit/{ tox for di (138)
&Incams tax (expense)/benefit as

Ttal profi after tax for di i ions as presented in the Income Statement b3 ™. - " 32 (30)

L
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June 2020 June 2019
Shares/ Shares/
Securities
Excluding _ Shares/ Shares/
Treasury  Securifies Securmes
Securities  onlssue on lssy
Basic/Diluted Earnings Per Share (EPS) from Continuing Operations . P
" ST 5
(Loss)/profit from continuing operations attributable to members of Lendlease JN 49
Corporation Limited (Company} $m [ s (579) 403 403
Weighted avarage number of ordinary shares m | i 5995000, ¥603 584 588
EPSfi inui i cents [ ¥(62.4)1, 32 (62.0)§ 69.0 68,8
Basic/Diluted Eornings Per Share (EPS) from Discontinued Operations
i i tions attril f Lendlease
Corporation Limited (Company) $m (90) (90)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares m S84 588
EPS fi i i i cents (18.4) (15.3)
Basie/Diuted Eamings Por Stapled Sacurity (EPSS) from Continuing Operations
from continuing i of .
s Group $m 557 557
Weighted average number of stapled securities m 584 588
Bosic/Diluted EPSS from cents 95.4 207
Basic/Diluted Earnings Per Stapled Security (EPSS) from Discontinued
Operations
iy A o
Lendlease Group $m (90) (90)
Weighted average number of stapled securities m 584 s88
EPSS from di i i cents L_ ;ﬁﬁq 5.3 W"Wa 3] (15.8) (18.3)
The net cash flows for disconti i ing the business to be sold, are as follows: .
June 2020 June 2019
Cash Flows from Discontinued Operations $m
Nt cash Inflow from operating activities 263
Nt cash outflow from investing activities 12)
Net cash outflow from financing activities
Netincrease in cash and cash equivalents 281
The major classes of assets and liabilities held for sale at 30 June 2020, representing the Engineering business to be sold, are as follows:
June 2020 June 2019
Disposal Group Assets/(Lisbilities) Held for Sale $m $m
Cash and cash equivalents % -’;‘ ot ﬁ i 451 -
Loans and receivables S -
3 hah g
Inventories W, .
Other assats' L -

Total Disposal Group assets held for sale o s, vt T

Trade and other payables

Other liabilities T

,‘5. AR &, "45293' N

Total Disposal Group liabilities held for sale

Disposal Group net nssets held for sale

1 of Property, i
2. Tha Group hat no assets ortiabilities recorded o3 held for sale t 30 J
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33.\[)eﬁned Benefit Plans

Accounting Policies

Group companies operate pension plans. The plans are generally funded through payments 1o insurance companies or trustee

dministerad funds as determined by periodic actuarial calculations.

Adefined benefit plan is a pension plan that defines the amount of pansion benefit an employee will raceive on retirement, usually
dependent on one or more factors such as age, years of service and compensation.

"The asset or liability recognised in the Statament of Financial Position in respect of defined benefit plans is the present value of the

fefined benefit obligation ie. ‘the pension liability’ at the bafance shest date less the fair value of plan assets. The present valua of

the pension liability is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outfiows using interest rates of high quality corporate or
gavernmenlhnnds that:

\Are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid

\hm ferms to maturity approximating the terms of the related pension liability.

hs detined benefit obligation is calculated at feast annually by independent actuaries using the projected unit credit method, which in
r\mprsuc\erms proportions the benefit based on service. Managemant considers the valuation of defined benetit plans undertoken by the
ncmanss to be an area of estimation uncertainty as a number of key assumptions must be adopted to determine the valuation.

-Actuarial losses/(gains) will arise whera there is a difference betwean previous estimates and actual experience, or a change to
dssumptions in relation to demographic and financial trends. These actuarial losses/(gains) are recognised in the period they occur,

——directly in other income as They are included in retained earnings in the Statement of Changes in Equity
‘and in the Statement of Finoncial Position.
Past service costs are i i in the Income Stats t,
@ June 2020 June 2019
Note $m $m
gmn Jlease Superannuation Plon ) 1
'Srdlease UK Pension Scheme 338 157 139

et defined benefit plon asset 156 140

7-Lendlease UK Pansion Schome

@‘I;endllaase Construction Holdings (Europe) Limited (UK Construction) sponsors a funded defined benefit pension schema (the Schame) for
4faittying UK employees. The Scheme is administered by a separate board of Trustees which is legolly separate from UK Construction. The
Scheme’s Trustees are composed of representatives of both tha employer and employaes. The Trustees are required by law to act in the
intarbst of all relevant beneficiaries and are ible for the i policy with regard 1o the assets plus the day to day sdministration of

"benehls
OTh TheScheme is a funded defined benefit schems, with the final salary section providing retirement benafits based on final salary and the index
linKed section providing retirement benefits based on career average salary. A seperate section, the Personal lnvestment Section, provides
Ce:«rem;nt benefits on a defined contribution basis. The UK C 1o members’ Personal Fund accounts are

notihcluded in these disclosures.

“The final salary section closed to future accruals on 31 August 2008 and the index Ivnked section closed o future accruals on 31 January 2012.

Thers ware no Scheme smendments affecting defined benefits payable, curtailments o poys
g deficit funding contributions plus four per cent of members’ basic salaries to cover the Schame's expected edministration costs and costs of

Benefits payabla on death in service. The Scheme expects to pay $33 million in contributions to its defined benefit plan in 2021, This includes
Che qqnnual deficit racovery payment of $28 million, following the triannial valuation for 31 March 2017 where deficit repair contributions have

bel

) agread for the period to March 2024. These contributions reduce the actuaria! deficit.

The‘defined benefit plan is exposed to actuarial risk and market isk. The following i tion provides additional detail on risk.
June 2020 June 2019
$m $m
i. Statement of Financial Position Amounts
The amounts recognised in the Statement of Financial Position are detarmined as follows:
Defined benefit obligations (1,324) {1,208)
Fair value of plan assets 1,481 1,347

Net defined benefit plan assot 157 139
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June 2020 June 2019
$m $m

ii. Reconciliation of Defined Benefit Obligations

Defined benefit obligations at beginning of financial year 1,208 1,077
Included in Income Statement

Interest cost 28 30

Included in Other ive Income

Actuariol loss/(gain) arising from:

Financial assumptions 135 116
Experience adjustments ] 7
Demographic assumptions 3 3 7
Other ’
Benefits paid . (a9) (48)
Etfect of foreign exchange rate movements ! (28) 19
Defined benefit obligations ot end of financia! year . 1,324 1,208
iii. Reconciliation of the Fair Value of Plan Assets
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of financial year 1,347 1,228
Included in Income Statement
Interest income 32 35
Administration costs H @ “@
Romeasurements Included in Other Comprehensive Income N
Actual return on plan assets excluding interest income 73 83
Other
Contributions by Group cempanies™ 5, 3
Benefits paid H (a9 (48)
Etfect of foreign exchange rate movements (33) 22
Fair value of plan assets at end of financial year 1,481 1,347
iv. Expense Recognised in the Income Statement
Net interest cost 3) )
i costs 2 4
Net defined benofit plan (income)/expense ) @
v. Fair Value of Plan Assets
Plan assets comprise: !
Global equities £ a37 422
Investment funds 388 a7
Infrastructure 115 82
Government index linked bonds a91 335
Other assets 54 o1
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the financial year 1,481 1,347

The investment funds target an absolute level of return. The plan assets can be categorissd as Level 1, where the fair valu is determined using

an quoted price for an identical asset, or Level 2, where the fair value is derived either directly cr indirectly from observable inputs,
or Level 3, where inputs are e for which market datais i Atyearend, i $1,408 million (June 2019: $1,246
million) and $73 million (June 2019: $82 million) of total plan assets ware categorised as Level 2 and Level Sraspectively. UK Construction and
Trustees have agreed a long for reducing i tisk as and when iate. This inclusies an liability motching policy

line with the liabilities of the plan
m growth assets and 25.0 per cent

which aims to reduce the volatility of the funding level of the pension plan by investing in assets that perforn
0.5 to protect against inflation being higher than expected. The current benchmark allocation is 75.0 per =
matching assets (June 2019: 75.0 per cent growth assets and 25.0 per cant matching assets).
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£33. Defined Benefit Plans
June 2020 June 2019

Discount rate (%) 23
gCRPHpﬂmion %) 34
AVerage pension increase in payments (%) 27
@L mortality (years):
Male 24.9
Remale i 26.4

bilities are calculated using a discount rate set with reference to corporate bend yield. If assets underperform this yield will create o

deficit
@/} dotresse i corporate bond yield willincreasa the value placed on the Scheme’s labilites, afthough this will be partally offset by n increase
in'the value of the Schame’s corporate bond holdings. The majority of the Scheme's benefit obligations are linked to inflation and higher
infigtion will lead to higher fiabilities, although in most cases this will be capped to protect against extreme infiation. The majority of the assets
ace)sither unaffected by or loosaly correlated with inflation, meaning that an incracse in inflation will also increas the deficit. The majority
ot te Scheme's obligations are to provide bensfits for the lifa of the mambar, so incraases in life expectancy will result in on increase in the
liabilities. The mortality assumptions are basad on standard mortality tablas which allow for expected future mortality improvements. The
assumption is that a member aged 63 will live for a further 24.9 years (June 2019: 24.9 years) if they are male and 26.4 years if they are female
pormemed
(JGe 2019: 26.4 years).

AET?O June 2020, the weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation was 19 years (June 2019: 19 years).

Sensitivity Analysis

E(Rewonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would
ave'atfected the defined benefit obligations by the amounts shown below.

"o 1% 1Yeor 1Year
O 0.4% 01% Increase RPl ~ DecreaseRPl  Increasein Decrease in
increase in Decreasein  Inflation and Inflation and Future Future
DiscountRate  Discount Rate Pension Payment Pension Payment Mortality Mortality
@ $m $m $m $m $m

{idre 2020
g:Deﬁnnd benefit asset/(obligations)

June 2019

CDeﬂned benefit asset/(obligations) 2t (20) (15) 13 () @

The, sensmvny analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that
( the’ chsnue in essumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

Non poRsioner bensfits ars linked to RPIin the pariod up to retiremant. Onca in paymant, pension increases are linked to RPY but with o zero
ice. The infiation sensitivity reflects a change in RP! inflation

per cent floor and different caps applying to different periods of

g and the associated increases in payment.

O
L,
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34. Employee Benefits

Detailed information regarding the Group's Exacutiva Raward strategy is provided in the Remunerotion Report within the Directors’ Report.
The key incentive plans are as follows:
*  Short Term Incentive (STI)

»  Short Term Award (STA)

o Long Term Incentive (LT))

o Long Term Award (LTA)

»  Distinguished Executives Award (DE Award)
*  Executive Deferred Award (ED Award).

a, Short Term Incentive (STI)

The STI plan is an annuol incentive plan whereby a number of receive benetits which are upon the achi of both
Landlease financial and non financial targets, and individual goals. The total value of the potentiat banefit varies by individuat and s tested
against relevant market levals for each role.

»  The STi plantypically comprises a cash which is paid in following year end. For more senior employaes, where
the potential benefit is typically higher, the plan also includes a deferred component.

*  Deferral periods are generally for one or two years. The deferred component is normally awarded as Lendlease securities and in some
instances as cash. Securities are held in Lendlease employee security plan trusts on behatf of for the deferral p to
Note 28a ‘Employee Security Plans’). For 10 raceive the def infull, they must generally be empluyed by the
Group at the time of vesting. N

b. Short Term Award (STA) .

The STA plan is an annual incentive plan which replaced the STI for a limited number of senior executives from 2019. It is designed to focus
senior executives on priority areas for delivery in the current financial year, including key Group financial targets, safety and other non financial
targets aligned to the Group's areas of focus.

‘Whilst performance is assessed against a set of Group metrics when determining awards, the Board will assess the overall performance and
contribution of individual senior executives, with a particular focus on safety.

The total value of the potentiol benefit varies by individual and is set with reference to both internal peers and external market levels. The STA
plan is intended to be awarded as cash in September following year end.

c. Long Torm Incentive (LT))

The LTI plan is designed to:

*  Motivate executives to achieve the Group’s long term strategic goals and prowde reward where the Group delivers better value to
securityholders than its peers

o Align the interests of executives and securityholders, gwenmm the reward racewed is linked to m Group’s sscumy price and average
Return on Equity performance.

Asummary of arrangements for LT! awards is provided in Note 3d4d below. .

d. LongTerm Award (LTA)

The LTA plan replaced the LTI for a limited number of executives from 2019. It was designed to motivate and reward key executives to deliver
on the Group's long term strategy and to allow them to share in the value created for securityholders. Specifically, the objectives are to:

s Create rawards that are aligned to earnings

*  Align the interests of securityholders and our most senior executives

o Promote team behaviours and an enterprise leadership mindset

*  Retain the senior executive team.

The intended outcome is that reward and strategy are better aligned.
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MQployse Benefits continued
Afrangaments for LTI Awards

TTiDesign

How the LTI Works

| se——]
SCPorfom\nnﬁ-
‘Securities

Pe.rformunce

G [Period (applicable
to'FY17 and F¥18
Giams)

Porformance »
SFiod (appicable
= vas and F~20

~Termination o*
" employment

g _performance
Hurdles
@@ﬁng Schedu
=TSR

* Anannual grant of ‘performance securities’ is mode to a limited number of executives.
* The Board intends that tha awards be settled in Lendlease securities, although the award may be settled in cash or

other means at the Board's discretion.

* On vesting, each performanca security entitles axacuuvss 10 one Lendlease stapled security, or at the Board’s
discretion, cash or other ins:

o Inthe event of o change in control of the Group, the Board has the discration 1o datarmina whather the vesting of
some or all performance securities should be accelerated.

* 50 per cent of the performance securities are assessed over a three year period. If the performance hurdle is not
{fully achieved at this time, those performance securities that have not vested will lapse.

 The remaining 50 per cent of the performance securities are ossessed after four years.

» H the performance hurdle is not met, the awards are forfeited.

o There is no retesting on any portion of the LTI grant.

« 100 per cant of the performance securities are assessed over o threo year period. If the performance hurdle is not
fully achieved at this ime, those performance securities that have not vested will lapse.
o If the performance hurdle is not met, the awards are forfeited.

« There is no retesting on ony portion of the LTl grant.

o If the executive resigns or is terminated for cause, the unvested LTI is forfeited.

« Ifthe executive is terminoted and i the Board considers vesting would provide a benefit that was unwarranted o
inappropriate, the Board can adjust unvested LTI prior to the vesting date.

« For'good leavers’, the LTI grant may remain on foot, subject to the original performance hurdles.

» In exceptional circumstances (such as death or total and permanent disability), the Board may exercise discretion
and settle the oward atthe time of termination of employment.

Financial Years 2017 to 2020

o 50 per cant subject to Lendlease’s Total Securityholder Return (TSR} compared to the companies in the S&P/ASX
100 Index. The S&P/ASX 100 companies are determined at the start of the performance period.
« 50 per cent subject to Average Return on Equity (ROE) hurdle.

Relative TSR percentile ranking

of relative TSR perfc
wvest if the hurdle is met.

securities thot

. to
FY17 to FY20

@m”
g Vesting Schedubs

= ROE
(ap\plicable to FYT7
G
& )

Below the 50th percentile

No vesting

At the 50th percentile

50 per cent vesting

At or above the ist percentile but below the 75th
percentile

Pro rata vesting on a straight line basis between 52 per cent
and 98 per cent

At the 75th percentile or greater

100 per cent vesting

Average ROE over the performance period

of ROE p it vestif the
hurdle is met

Less than 11 per cent

No vesting

At per cent

25 per cent vesting

Greater than 11 per cant but below 15 per cent

Pro rata vesting on a straight fine basis between 25 per cent
and 100 per cent

15 per cent or greater

£,
Vesting Schedule
- ROE
(applicable to FY'8
to FY20 Grants)

100 per cent vesting

Average ROE over the performance period

Percentage of ROE performance securities that vest if the
hurdle is met

3. 10 percentorless

Novesting

Above 10 per cent but below 14 per cent

Pro rata vesting on a straight line basis between C per cent and
100 per cent

14 per cent or greater

100 per cent vesting

Lendlease Annual Raport 2020 Financial Statements. —@

Arrangements for LTA Awards

LTA Design

How the LTA Works

Performance
Rights.

“Performance
Period (applicable

"0 FY19 and FY20
Grants)

+ Terminstion of
Employment

Performance
Hurdles

Vesting Schedule
- TSR (applicable
to FY19 and FY20
Grants)

Vesting Schodule

- ROE (applicable
to FY19 and FY20
Grants)

» Anannual grant of ‘performance rights’ is made to a limited number of executives on the Globol Leadership Team.
* The grant of ‘performance rights’ includes the minimum number of securities that will be raceived following vasting
(the LTA minimum). The value of the LTA minimum is fixed at the time of grant but will vary with the security price

over the deferral period.
» During the year the Board determined that the LTA minimum is better described as a Restricted Securities Award

(RSA).

» The Board intends that the awards be settled in Lendlease securities, although some or all of the sward may be
settled in cash at the Board's discrotion.

o Performance rights are rights to receive a variable number of Lendlease securities o at the discretion of the Board,
cash with an equivalent valus, upon vesting.

« Outcomes against performance hurdles will determine how many Lendlease securities will be received following
vesting between a minimum and moximum number.

o Inthe event of a change in control of the Group, the Board has the discretion to determine whether the vesting of
some or all performance rights should be accelerated.

* 100 per cent of the performance rights are assessed over a three year period and the number of Lendlease
securities that may be delivered on vesting is determined. The first tranche wifl vest |mmsdm(a|y thereatter, and
the second, third and fourth tranches will be deferred and will vest progressively four, five and six years after the
grantdate.

« If the performance hurdle is not met, the swards above the minimum award number are forfeited.

. ® There is no retesting on any portion of the LTA grant.

 If the executive resigns and becomes engaged in activities that are
cause, the unvested LTA is forfeited.

« If the executive is terminated and if the Board considers vesting would provide a benefit that was unwarsanted or
inappropriate, the Board has the discretion to lapsa some or all performance rights prior to tha vesting

o For ‘good leavers', the LTA grant may remain on foot, subject to the original performance hurdles.

ith the Group or is terminated for

Financial Years 2019 and 2020

« 50 per cent subject to Lendlease’s Total Secur Roturn (TSR d to the
100 Index. The S&P/ASX 100 companies are determined at the start of the performance period.
+ 50 per cent subject to Return on Equity (ROE) hurdle.

inthe S&P/ASX

Porcentage of Target LTA plus RSA Vesting

Relative TSR percentile ranking

Group CEO Senior Exacutives

At the 50th percentile 50 per cent vesting 50 per cent vesting

At or above the 51st percentile but
below the 75th percentile

Pro rata vesting on a straight line basis Pro rata vesting on a straight line basis
between 54 per cent and 146 per cent  between 56 per cent and 194 per cent

At the 75th percentile or greater 150 per cent vesting 200 per cant vesting

Average ROE over the Porcentage of Target LTA plus RSA Vesting

performance period

Group CEO Senior Exacutives

Pro rata on a straight line basis
between 13.5 per cent and
100 per cent

Pro rata on a straight line basis
between 31.25 per cent and
100 per cent

Between 10 per cent and the target
ROE per cent set by the Board

At the torget ROE per cent set by the

Board 100 por cent vesting

100 per cent vesting

Pro rata vesting on a straight fine
basis between 100 par cent and
150 per cent

Pro rata vesting on a straight line
basis between 100 per cent and
200 per cent

Between the target ROE per cent set
by the Board and 14 per cent

At 14 per cent or above 150 per cent vesting 200 per cent vesting




Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Section F: Other Notes continued
%.Employee Benefits continued
Distinguished Executives Award
he-Distinguished Executives Award (DE Award) is a program established to recognise and reward Lendlease technical mastery and significant
‘Conribution to the business. DE Awards are generally deferred over five and seven years. The deferred component is awarded as Lendlease
securities and held in Lendlease employae security plan trusts on behalf of the employees. For employees to receive the deferred component,
they.must generally be employed by the Group a1 the time of vesting. DE Awards are velued based on the average price of on market
‘Rurchases made in respect of these awards at the time of grant.
C T \recutive Deferred Award
Thé,Exacutive Deferred Award (ED Award) is an award that was made to a fimited number of exacutives and senior managers in recognition of
1heir role in supporting the Lendlease transformation program.
Ths €0 Award comprises a one off grant of Lendlease deferred securities which vest in three equal tranches, with the final vesting three years
er\gmm Securities are held in Lendlease employee plan trusts for the deterral period. Refer to Nota 28a ‘Employee Security Plans’ for
Glmmr details. For employaes to receiva the deferred components in tull, they must generally be employed by the Group at the time of vasting.
Amounts Recognised in the Financinl Statements
7
@LTI 2nd LTA awards are valusd using Monte-Carlo simulation mathodology where the security price can be projected based on the
holes formula. Retention awards are valued by discounting the security price by the expected dividands

1o be paid 'rom h ion date until the vesting date (if applicable). The model inputs include the Lendlease Group security
Pnse a risk frea interest rate, expected volatility and dividend yield. During the financial year ended 30 June 2020, a $55 million expense was
[—rechgnised in the Income Statemen in relation to equity settled security based payment awards (June 2019: $50 million).

35. impact of New and Revised Accounting Standards

and Rovised Adopted 1July 2019
?S{. 1July 2019, the Group adopted tion 23 i Income Tex Treatment: fion 23 did not have a material i on
heGroup.
Fiara 1 July 2018, the Group adopted AASB 16 Leases and consequential amendments. AASB 16 provides a new madel for accounting for leases.
YASB 16 s based on the principe thatalteases the Group anters a5.a esses will ba recoghised on balance sheet, ith a ight-of-uso asset
(( and Iease hab\lrty on the rig| asset and interest expense on the lease liability, Lease expense
and interest exp ill effectively be front loaded to the start of the lease period, even when cash lease payments are

EBpstant throug hout the period of the tease.
( T") ili modified i h to transition to AASB 16, Ihsre'om comparatives have not been restated.

Compamtlvas continue to be accounted for it with th Ip'’s previous policies outlined in the 30 June 2019 annual
@c‘lm‘grdmd financial report.

Paytnents associated with short tarm leases and leasas of low value assets are recogrised on a straight line basis as an expensa in the Income
Statement. Short term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or tess. Low valua assats comprise IT aquipment and small tems of offica
Aurniture.

d equipment, the same line
ion of investmant property are

fn which it presents undartying assets of the same nature that it owns. Right-of-use assets that meet the def
msemed with

C t"eroup presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition of investment property in Property, plant
o

investment property.

CBTssd on analysis performed, s a lessor, there was ial impact to the G doption. As o lessee, on adoption, the Group has:
2-Rdcorded a right-of-use asset of $437 million,lease liabilities of $(514) million, derscognition of existing lease balances under AASB 17 Leases
‘of $18 million and a net deferred tax asset of $17 million in the Statement of Financial Pasition for its material operating lease commitments. The
sum of these adjustments is $(42) million
= The net ditference of $(42) million was recorded as a reduction to equity o reflect the cumulative impact on initia) adoption of the standard
. TE netimpact to the Income Statement for the year is a $11 million increase in expense.

< On‘ndopuon the Group has measured lease liabifties at the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the Group's
incfemental borrowing rete as of 30 June 2019. The incrementel borrowing rate applied 1o the lease libilities on 1 July 2019 was 4.8%.

In applying AASB 16 for the first time, the Group h: ied the following i fients permitted by the standard for leases:
» The ability o not reassess whether o contractis, or contains, a lease at the date of initial epplication (prior to1 July 2019)

+—The application of a single discount rate to a portfolio of loases

* The use of hindsight in determining the lease term

* The decision to exclude a lease for which the lease term ends within 12 months of

itial application.

New disclosures have been included where required. Changes to disclosures include reclassification of pricr period balances to better align the
presentation of comparative information to the new disclosure requirements.

Lond! ! Roport 2020

Changes to accounting policies from 1 July 2019

The Group's accounting poficies have been revised to reflect the guidance of the new leasing standard with effect from 1 July 2019, Refer below
torfurther details.

Recognition

As a lessee, the Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a tease if the.
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract
canveys the right to control the use of an idantified asset for a period of time, the Group assesses whether:

o The contract involved the use of an identified asset

 The Group has the right o obtain substantially all of the aconemic benefits from the use of the asset throughout the period of use

* The Group has the right to direct the use of the asset. The Group has this right when it has the decisi king rights that are to
changing how and for what purpose the asset is used.

For the leases of land and buildings in which it is a lessee, the Group has el d not non and account for the lease

and non asasingle lease

The Group's primary leasing activities are for office space in the regions and cities in which it operates, There are no material future cash outflows
to which the Group is potentially exposed that are not reflected in the measurement of lease fiabilties, and there are no material restrictions or
covenants imposed by the Group's leases.

Measurement

The Group recognises a right-ot-use assst and a lease liability at the | date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at
cost, which comprises:

« The initial amount of the lease fiability

« Any lease payments made at or before the data less any lease incentives received

 Restoration cost.

Right-of-Use Assets

Right-of-use assets which meet the definition of property, plant and equipment form part of the property, plant and equipment balance and are
measured at cost less in with AASB 116 Property, Plant and Equipment.

Right-of-use assets which meet the definition of investment property form part of the investment property batance and are measured at fair value
in accordonce with AASB 140 /nvestment Property.

Lease Liabi
Lease liabilities are initially measured at the present value of the lease payments discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate.
cannot be determined, the Group's incremental borrowing rate is used. Generally, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.
Lease payments included in the measurement of lease liability comprise the following:

« Fixed payments offset by any lease incentives

 Variable lease payments, for lease liabilities which are tied to a floating index

* Amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee

* The exercise price of purchase options (it it is reasonably certain that the option will be exercised)

 Payments of panalties for terminating leases, i the lease term reflects the loase terminating early.

ies

Lease liabilities are subsequently measured by:

« Increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability

+ Reducing the carrying amount to eflect the lease poyments made

. ying amount upon the f cartain a change in the lease term or lease payments).

When a lease liability is ing adi is made to the carrying amount of the rig and is recorded in the
profit or lass if the carrying amount ohhe right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

Deprsciation and Amortisation

Right-of-use assats are depreciated using the straight line method from the commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the

right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term.

Presentation

Htems relating to leases are presented as follows:

* Right-of-use assets are recognised in the Statement of Financial Position within the same line item as that within which the corresponding
underlying assets would be presented if they were owned by the Group, within either Property, plant and equipment or Investment property

® Lease liabilities are recognised within Trade and other payables in the Statement of Financial Position and split betwaen current and non current
liabilities

 Depraciation charge for right-of-uses assets is recognised within Other expenses

o lnterest expense on lease liab

s s recognised within Finance costs.

Relevant information on the Group’s leasing hes been included in the following notes: Note 7 ‘Other Expenses', Note 8 ‘Finance Revenus and
Finance Costs' and Note 22 ‘Trade and Other Payables’.



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Section F: Other Notes continued
35. Impact of New and Revised Accounting Standards continued

&Shoﬂtjﬂn leases and leases of low value assets

[C_—TH&Group has elected not 1o recognise rig! assets and I ilities for short term leases that have a lease term of 12 months of fess and
leases of low value assets. The Group recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight line basis over the
S ( Tease tarm.
ow and ions Not Yet Adopted
) Impact on Financial Statements

AASB2014-10 AASB 2014-10 amends AASB 10 and AASB 128 to Based on preliminary analysis performed, the
Amendments to Australian clarify the requi not expected to have o material
7 tandards - Sale o ibution of assets bet investorandits  impact on the Group.
Gonlnbulran of Assets between associate or joint venture.
ﬂ" thvestor and its Associate or The amendment becomes mandatory for the

omt Venture and consequential June 2023 financial year and will be applied

dmems prospectively.

35; Other Significant Accounting Policies

a. Foreign Currency Transiation

[C___Functional and Presentation Currency
5T includad in the financial statements of each of the Group's entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
ewronmem in which the entity operates (the functional currency). The consolidated financial report is presented in Australian dollars, which is
1h& Company's functional and presentation currency.

E CTm:n:‘snmonr and Balances
Foreign currency transactions are translated into Australian dollars using the exchange rate on the date of the transactions. Assets and
liabil\niss denominated in foreign currencies are tronslated to Australian dollars at balance date.
Forsjgn exchange gains of losses are recognised inthe Income Statement for monetary assets and liabilities such as receivables and
Poyables, except for qualiying cash flow hedges and qualifying net i hedges in foreign which are inother
@ Zomprehensive income. Refer to Note 24 ‘Hedging’ for further detail.
ronslation ditferences on non monetary items, such as equities held at fair valus through profit or loss, are reported as part of the fair value
goin o loss.

Group Entities

hg Jesults and Statement of Financial Position of all Group entities that are not presentad in Australian dollars (none of which has the currency
‘dra-hyperinflotionary economy) are translated as follows:

l‘evenue and expenses are translated ot average exchange rates (unless this average is nota imation of the.
( sate, in which case revanue and expenses are transtated at the date of the transactions)

» Assets and fiabilities for each Statement of Financial Position presented are translated at the closing rate at balance date

o All resulting exch i ore ised in income, in the foreign currency transtation reserve.

GBoAwil and fair value adj ising on the f aforeign entity are treated as assats and liabilities of the foreign entity and

\ﬁkqslaled atthe closing rate.
Cb.Glnds and Services Tax

Revenue, expenses and assets are raconmsed nel of (he amount of goods and services tax (GST), except where the amount of GST incurred is
t In

from the taxation auth the GST is ised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or o5
part-of the expense.

Receivables and poyables are stated with the amount of GST inctuded. The net amount of GST recovarable from, or payable to, the Australian
Taxation Office (ATO) is included as o current asset or liability in the Statement of Financial Position. Cash Hlows are included in the Statement
of Cash Flows on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from investing and financing activities which are recoverable from,
or payable to, the ATO ore classified as operating cash flows.

Lendlease Annval Report 2020 Financial Statements

Directors’ Declaration

In the opinion of the Directors of Lendlease Corporation Limited {the Company):

1. The financial and notes and the i ined in the lion Report in the Directors’ Report
are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:

a. Giving a true and fair view of the financial position of the Consolidated Entity as at 30 June 2020 ond of its performance for the
financiol year ended on thot date; and

b. Complying with Australion Accounting Standards (including the Australian i tions) and the C:
Regulations 2001,
2. The financial and notes also comply Financial Reporting Standards as disclosed in the Basis of Preparation.

3. There are reasonabdle grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and when they become due and payable.

4. The Directors have bean given the declarations required by Section 295A of tha Corporations Act 2001 from the Group Chief Executive
Officer and Group Chief Financial Officer for the financial year ended 30 June 2020.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Directors:

5

Py l'_~_;-'_v.,.~
MJ Ulimer, AO
Chairman

S B McCann
Group Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director

Sydney, 17 August 2020
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= Independent Audtor's Report

For personal use onl

To the members of Lendlease Corporation Limited

Report on the audit of the Financial Report

We have audited the Financial Report of The Financial Report of Lendlease Group comprises:
Lendlease Corporation Limited as the
deemed parent presenting the stapled
security arrangement of Lendlease Group
(the Financial Report).

* Consolidated statement of financial position as at
30 June 2020:

Consolidated income statement, Consolidated
staternent of comprehensive income, Consolidated
statement of changes in equity, and Consolidated
staternent of cash flows for the year then ended;

in our opinion, the accompanying Financial
Report is in accordance with the Corporations
Act 2001, including:

Notes including a summary of significant
accounting policies; and

giving a true and fair view of the
Lendlease Group’s financial position as at
30 June 2020 and of its financial * Directors' Declaration.

performance for the year ended on that The Lendlease Group consists of Lendlease

date; and Corporation Limited and the entities it controlled at the
* complying with Australian Accounting year end or from time to time during the financial year

Standards and the Corporations and Lendlease Trust.

Regulations 2001.

Shares in Lendlease Corporation Limited and units in
Lendlease Trust are jointly traded as a Stapled Security
on the Australian Securities Exchange under the name
of Lendlease Group.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Qur ibilities under those are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the Financial Report section of our report.

We are independent of Lendlease Group and Lendlease Corporation Limited in accordance with the
Corporations Act 2001 and the ethical i of the it ional and Ethical
Board's APES 110 Code of Ethics for i A (the Code) (including i

Standards) that are relevant to our audit of the Financial Report in Australia. We have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KPMG, an Australian partnership and a member fim of the
KPMG network of independent member firms affiiated with  Liability imited by a scheme approved
KPMG fonal C: ve (K] jonal’).a  under i

Swiss entity.

‘Standards Legislation.

ihiaks

Key Audit Matters

The Key Audit Matters we identified Key Audit Matters are those matters that, in our
for Lendlease Group are: ional juds were of most signil in our
audit of the Financial Report of the current period.

* Construction Revenue Recognition
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the Financial Report as a whole, and in forming our opinion
Recoverability of Development thereon, and we do not pravide a separate opinion on these
Property [nventory matters.

* Sale of Development Properties

Construction Revenue Recog

Asset Valuation

Refer to Note 4 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers® to the financial report

The key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

The Group performs various building, Our procedures included:

engineering and services on ® Evaluating and testing ‘s review and
contract works (projects) for a wide range of approval of revenue and cost forecasting;
customers. The Group contracts ina variety | e Selecting a sample of contracts for testing using:
of ways. Each project has a different risk - Data Analytic routines based on a number of

profile based on its individual contractual quantitative and qualitative factors, related to size
and delivery characteristics. and risk of projects; and

As a result-of COVID-19, disruption was - the Group’s project reporting tool.

experienced across certain projects, ® For the sample selected, we:

particularly in international cities where - conducted visits to a selection of project sites and
were ir used up-to-date site photographs, where site

These impacted productivity, expected visits were not possible, to evidence physical

timing of completion and expected costs to progress;

complete. - inquired with key project personnel to assess the

project schedule, forecast costs, risks and
opportunities, with involverent from KPM
engineeri ialists where iate;

read relevant contract terms and conditions to
evaluate the inclusion of individual characteristics
and project risks in the Group's estimates;
tested a sample of incurred costs to supplier
invoices or other underlying documentation;
Estimating total forecast costs to complete - tested forecast costs for labour, subcontractors,
during project life is complex and requires equipment, materials, and project overheads by
judgement. Typical cost estimates include comparing to actual incurred spend and

labour, subcontractors, equipment, comnritted future contracts, with specific
materials, and project overheads. Changes consideration of the impacts of COVID-19;

Construction revenue recognition is a key
audit matter as judgement is required to
assess the timing of recognition determined
by the Group. Revenue on construction
contracts is earned over time, typically using
costs incurred as a proportion of total
forecast costs as the measure of progress.

to these cost estimates could give rise 1o - tested the variations and claims (including COVID-
vananc.es in the amount of revenue 19 related impacts) recognised within revenue
recognised. against the criteria for recognition in the
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The revenue on construction contracts may
also include variations and claims, which fall
under either the variable consideration or
contract modification requirements of AASB
15. These are recognised on a contract-by-
contract basis when evidence supports that
itis highly probable that a significant
reversal in the amount of revenue
recognised will not occur.

The of revenue on tructi
contracts resulting from variations and
claims was a focus of our audit due to the
audit effort in assessing this across bespoke
projects and contracting arrangements.

accounting standards via inspection and
assessment of:

°

o

o

correspondence between the Group and the
customer;

the Group's legal basis for the variations and
claims, including, where necessary, external
legal opinions;

the Group's analysis of the amounts they
consider meet the recognition requirement of
highly probable, using our knowledge of the
Group’s historical experience in resolving
variations and claims, and considering the
commercial factors specific to each variation
or claim and quatity of information
underpinning the amounts recognised.

Sale of Development Properties (AS1,211m),

Refer 1o Note 4 'Revenue from Contracts with Customers' to the financial report

The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

The Group develops for sale both built form
products (for example residentiat
apartments, and commercial and retail
buildings) and residential land communities.
It is the Group's policy for development
revenue to be recognised when control
transfers to the purchaser, based on an
assessment of the contractual terms of
sale.

This was a key audit matter due to the
volume of transactions that occur across
multiple jurisdictions. In addition, the
assessment of cost of sales includes
judgement as cost allocation for site
infrastructure costs is typically based on the
proportion of revenue for each unit, lot or
building as compared to total forecast
project revenue.

Whilst COVID-19 resulted in some delays in
residential and i

Cur procedures included:

Evaluating and testing management’s review and
approval of development revenue and cost
forecasting;

Selecting a sample of settlements, across multiple
jurisdictions, during the year. For the sample
selected we:

compared revenue recognised to contractual
terms of sale and cash settlements;

of when

the Group's

control transfers by a detailed analysis of the
contractual terms of sale against the criteria in the
accounting standards;

assessed the Group's cost allocation
methodology against the requirements of the
accounting standards;

tested the application of the cost allocation
methodology by comparing allocated costs to
revenue recognised in the year relative to the
total project revenue;

these do not impact the Group's revenue

1 policy for residential apartments
and residential land communities as
revenue is recognised on settlement.

total project revenue by comparing

expected sales prices to published industry
forecasts and comparable sales prices achieved in
the year, being alert to the impacts of current
challenging market conditions.

kbl

Recover.

ility. of Development Property Inventory, (AS4,450i

Refer to Note 11 ‘Inventories’ to the financial report

The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Itis the Group's policy to capitalise
development costs into inventory over the
life of its projects. Development costs
include the purchase of land, site
infrastructure costs, construction costs for
built form products and borrowing costs.

Itis the Group's policy to carry inventory at
the lower of cost and net realisable value.
The recoverability therefore of these
capitalised development costs is a

and their assessment is based on
forecasts of:

* sales prices
* construction and infrastructure costs to
complete the development.

Where a development is forecast to be
loss making and the inventory is no longer
considered to be recoverable, the Group
considers it to be impaired and it is their
policy for an expense to be recognised.

This was a key audit matter for us due to
many developments being long term
which increases the level of forecasting
judgement and audit complexity in
assessing estimated sales prices and
future costs to complete the development.
We considered the heightened risk in
estimating future sales prices, the timing
of sales, and future costs as a result of the
impact of COVID-19 to these assumptions.

significant judgement made by the Group,

Our procedures included:

* Selecting a sample of projects for testing using:

- Data Analytic routines based on a number of
quantitative and qualitative factors, related to size,
duration and risk of projects; and

- the Group's project reporting tool.

* For the sample selected, we:

- compared expected sales prices to published
industry forecasts and comparable sales prices
achieved in the year, being alert to the impacts of
current challenging market conditions;

- tested a sample of forecast construction and
infrastructure costs to underlying supplier
contracts, historical experience of similar costs,
and our industry expectation of cost contingency
levels and cost escalation assumptions;

- assessed expected sales prices, the volumes of
sales expected each period and holding costs in
light of current challenging market conditions,
using our industry knowledge.

Assessing disclosures included in the financial report

highlighting the key factors in determining

ility of de property i
using our understanding obtained from our testing and
against the requi of the i

This included consideraticns of the impacts of COVID-
19.
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Asset Valuation

Refer to Note 12 '"Equity accounted investments’ (A$3,671m), Note 13 ‘Other Financial Assets’
(A$1,092m) and Note 25 ‘Fair Value Measurement’ to the financial report

The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

The Group is required to assess the value of
equity accounted investrments and other financial
assets at each reporting date. The fair value of
the properties held by various investment
entities directly impacts the Group's interests in
these assets.

Valuations of assets are generally performed by
the Group using internal valuation methodologies
{discounted cash flow or capitalised income
approach) or through the use of external
valuation experts. External valuations are
obtained on a routine basis by the Group each
year, with the remaining investments being
valued internally.

Other financial assets are predominantly
investments in entities which in turn own
commercial and retail property. Accordingly, the
Group's valuation assumptions are predominantly
the capitalisation of earnings rates, discount
rates, future rental income, and leasing
incentives.

Equity accounted investments include the
Group's interest in the retirement living business.
The key assumptions used by the Group in
determining the value of retirement villages are
discount rates, changes in village residents,
current units/homes rarket prices and pricing
growth rates.

COVID-19 has had a significant impact on reat
estate valuations across the Group's
investments.

The assessment of the valuations of these
assets is a key audit matter as they:

* are inherently judgemental, amplified by the
impact of COVID-19. There were fewer
market transactions as a result, which are
ordinarily strong sources of evidence
regarding fair value;

Our procedures included:

¢ Selecting a sample of valuations performed by
the Group, based on the significance of the
asset to the Group’s financial position and
performance;

* Assessing the scope, corpetence and
objectivity of external valuation experts engaged
by the Group for assets valued by external
valuation experts;

* Assessing the impact of market uncertainty
caveats included in valuations performed by the
Group's external valuation experts to determine
the impact, if any, on our testing of key
assumptions;

* Evaluating and testing management's review
and approval of internal valuations based on the
Group's policies for internally valued assets;

. ing the valuation for
consistency with accounting standards and
industry practice for the asset’s class;

* Comparing, with market data published by
commeicial real estate agents, previous
external valuations, our knowledge of the
industry, and/or our knowledge of the asset and
its historical performance, key assumptions
such as:
- discount rates
- changes in village residents

units/home current market prices

pricing growth rates

capitalisation of eamnings rates

future rental income

leasing incentives

*  Assessing disclosures included in the financial
report highlighting the estimates and
judgements in determining fair values of the
Group's equity accounted investments and
other financial assets. We used our
understanding obtained from our testing,
including considerations of the impacts of

kbab

* contain certain forward looking assumptions,
this year with higher estimation uncertainty
from the business disruption due to COVID-
19, which are inherently challenging to audit;
and

* lead to additional audit effort, often due to
the high number of differing assumptions and
models, across varying asset classes.

Other Information

Other Information is financial and non-financial information in Lendiease Group’s annual reporting which is
provided in addition to the Financial Report and the Auditor’s Report. The Directors of Lendlease
Corporation Limited are responsible for the Other Information.

COVID-19, against the requirements of the
accounting standards.

Our opinion on the Financial Report does not cover the Other Information and, accordingly, we do not
express an audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon, with the exception of the
Remuneration Report and our related assurance opinion.

In connection with our audit of the Financial Report, our responsibility is to read the Other Information. In
doing so. we consider whether the Other ion is fally i i with the Financial Report or
our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

We are required to report if we conclude that there is a material mi: of this Other ion,
and based on the work we have performed on the Other Information that we obtained prior to the date of
this Auditor’s Report we have nothing to report.

s of the Directors for the

The Directors of Lendlease Corporation Limited are responsible for:

* preparing the Financial Report that gives a true and fair view in with ian A
Standards and the Corporations Act 2001;

implementing necessary internal control to enable the preparation of a Financial Repori that gives a true
and fair view and is free from material misstaternent, whether due to fraud or error; and

assessing Lendlease Group's ability to continue as a going concern and whether the use of the going
concern basis of accounting is appropriate. This includes di ing, as matters related to

going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate

the Lendlease Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.




For personal use only

* Our objective is:

* to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Report as a whole is free from material
risstatement, whether due to fraud or error; and

to issue an Auditor’s Report that includes our opinion,

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
with A lian Auditing will always detect a material misstaternent when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error. They are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of the Financial Report.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Report is located at the Auditing
and Assurance Standards Board website at:

http:/iwww auasb.gov.au/auditors_responsibilities/ar 2020 pdf. This description forms part of our Auditor's
Report.

Report on the Remuneration Report

Opinion Directors’ responsibilities

In our opinion, the Remuneration The Directors of Lendlease Corporation Limited are

Report of Lendlease Ci i ible for the ion and ion of the
Limited for the year ended 30 June Rermuneration Report in accordance with Section 300A of the

2020 complies with Section 300A of Corporations Act 2001.
the Corporations Act 2001.

Our responsi ies

We have audited the Remuneration Report included in pages
106 to 136 of the Directors’ report for the year ended 30 June
2020.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the
Remuneration Report, based on our audit conducted in
accordance with Australian Auditing Standards.

ALZHG

KPMG D M McLennan
Partner

Sydney
17 August 2020
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Securityholder
_information

[——Securities exchange listing and code
Cendlease Group is listed on the Australian
Sectrities Exchange and trades under the
code LLC.

Ithe United States, Lendlease securities
(ar\s)t\[aded on the ‘over the counter'

market in the form of sponsored American

‘Depositary Receipts (ADRs) under the

Key sources of information
for securityholders

We report the foliowing to
securityholders each year:

» Annual Report
o Half Year Financial Report
+ March and September

symbol LLESY. Each ADR one
rdinary security. Information about ADRs
(EL, aVkilable from the depositary, The Bank
‘of New York Mellon (www.adrbny.com).
Voting rights
Each stapled security in Lendiease Group
and_gach ADR entitles the holder to one
ot Rights to Lendlease Group securities
(—grabled under Lendlease Group's
emiployee equity incentive plans do nat
carry voting rights.
——Siiare Accumulation Plan
@VT&SMM Accumulation Plan is
designed to be a convenient way
forsecurityholders with a registered
ddress in Australia or New Zealand
10 build their securityholdings without
incurring transaction costs. The laws of
-other countries make it difficult for us
( 10 offer securities in this way. Lendlease
ediirityholders are able 1o reinvest their
gistributions 10 acquire more Lendlease
sp’é'ur'rties through the Distribution
qipvestment Plan {DRP) or the Share
Election Plan (SEP). Securityholders may
also-make contributions of between
500 and $2,500 to acquire new
G\.!e\nallaase securities under the Share
iPufchase Plan (SPP). Together the
DRP, SEP and SPP constituta the Share
gAc cymulation Plan. -
THe-fulés of each of these plans are
set out in the Share Accumulation Plan
Information Sheet. Copies are available
&oﬂw Lendlease website. Please note
hat the Share Election Plan and the Share
Purchase Plan are currently suspended.

o .

Electronic communications
Securityholders have the option of
receiving the following communications
and all other Company related information
electronically:

« Annual Report
* Distribution statements
« Notice of Annual General Mestings.

Lendlaase makes the Annual Report
available in an online varsion. A hard copy
of the Annual Report will only be sent to
those securityholders who elect to receive
itin that form. In addition, securityholders
may elect to receive notification when the
Annual Report is available online.

Securityholders who wish to register their
email address should go to the website of
the Lendlease share registry
www.investorcentre.com/ecomms.

For registry contact datails, see page 220.
Privacy legislation

Under Chapter 2C of the Corporations
Act 2001, a securityholder’s information
(including their name, address and details
of securities held) is required to be
included in Lendlease’s public register.
This information must continue to be
included in Lendlease's public register

for seven years after a person ceases

1o be a securityholder. These statutory
cbligations are not altered by the Privacy
Amendment (Private Sactor) Act 2000.
Information is collected to administer

the securityholder's holding and if some
or all of the information is not collected,
then it may not be possible to administer
the holding. Lendlease’s privacy policy is
available on its website.

Dispute resolution

Thera is a dispute resclution mechanism
that covers complaints by securityholders.
For more information, please contact
Lendlease Investor Relations at

+612 9236 6111 or email us at
investorrelations@lendlease.com.

Distribution and Share Accumulation
Plan issue price history
For historical distribution and

Share Accumulation Plan tssue Price
information, please see the below

link to our website
www.lendlease.com/av/investor-centre/
distribution-and-tax.

!

Security information ata élence at 1 August 2020

(comparative 1 August 2019)

2019
Number of securityholders 3 63,121
Units issued 564,131,072

Percentage owned by 20 kargest securityholders

72.18%

Inerim dividend/distribution

§30.0 cents per secrity FIioag} 12.0 cents per security

Total dividend/distribution -

§33.3 Conts per security Bufs lf® 42.0 cents per security

Dividend payout ratio

FNA IR s

N ¥
Spread of securityholdings as at 1 August 2020
(comparative 1 August 2019)

2019

110 1,000 securities

1,001 10 5,000 J
5,00110 10,000 i
10,001 t0 100,000

2,231 FhHELCFEEE N ) 1760

100,001 securities and over

EESH .

Total number of securityholders

Securityholders with less than a marketable parcel

28,947

Securities purchased on market

The following securities were purchased on market during the financial year for the purpose of funding employee incentive awards

through Lendlease securities.

Number of Securities Purchased Average Price Paid Per Security

Stapled Securities '

11,971,036 $16.85

ividend os iningful in FY20




Securityholder
information

>

[ Rank Name Units % of Units
-+ HSBC Custody Nominees (Australia) Limited 208,004,440 30.22
C? J PMorgan Nominees Australia Pty Limited 131,088,694 19.05
Giticorp Nominees Pty Limited 61,379,423 8.92

@ 4)] National Nominees Limited 42,136,610 6.2
5~ BNP Paribas Nominees Pty Ltd <Agency Lending DRP A/C> 17,790,146 258

5, BNP Paribas Noms Pty Ltd <DRP> 15,549,473 226

Q e LLEmployee Holdings Custodian Pty Limited <Castle Account A/C> 14,075,522 205
82/ HSBC Custody Nominees (Australia) Limited <NT-Comnwith Super Corp A/C> 5,557,573 0.81
@59\\ Argo Investments Limited 4,480,092 0.65
hol/ LL Employee Haldings Custodian Pty Limited <ESAP STI A/C> 4,174,080 0.61

. BNP Paribas Nominees Pty Ltd Hub24 Custodial Serv Ltd <DRP A/C> 3,003,387 0.44

127, Custodial Services Limited <Beneficiaries Holding A/C> 2,787,498 0.41

13 Netwealth lnvestments Limited <Wrap Services A/C> 2,165,644 0.31
14 Citicorp Nominees Pty Limited <Cotonial First State INV A/C> 2,002,395 0.29
153 Avanteos Investments Limited <Encircle Ima A/C> 1,738,214 0.25
\is)) LL Employee Holdings Custodian Pty Limited <ESAP Account> 1,583,948 0.23

17 BNP Paribas Noms (NZ) Ltd <DRP> 1,468,741 021
@ CS Fourth Nominees Pty Limited <HSBC Cust Nom AU Ltd 1 A/C> 1,205,107 018
1 HSBC Custody Nominees (Australia) Limited-GSCO ECA 1,086,864 0.16
20)) Australian Executor Trustees Limited <IPS Super A/C> 1,063,881 015
-Tota! Top 20 holders of fully paid ordinary shares 622,341,732 75.89
165,925,855 2an

@ya.a‘y Remaining Holders Balance
[

E.Esubstﬁnlial securityholders as shown in the Company’s Register at 1 August 2020

Name Dato of Last Notice Rocoived No. of Urits % of lssued Capital
Cé_Laé,kRock Group 08/01/2020 34,049,935 6.03
29/4/2019 33,903,122 601

The Vanguard Group
@n

Glossary

Co-investment: The total market value
of Lendlease equity investad across
Lendlease managed funds as at period
end. Represents the Group's assessment
of the market value.

< ion backlog realisation: The

Lendlase Annual Roport 2020 Other Information

Investments: Includes equity invested
in Lendlease managed funds and direct
investment in property and property
related assets. Represents the Group's
assessment of market value.

proportion of Construction backiog
revenue which is expected to be earned
across future years.

Construction backlog revenue: Current
year Construction backlog revenus is the
total revenueto be earned across future
periods.

Critical incident: An event that had

the potential to have caused death or
permanent disability.

Development pipeline: Estimated
remaining end value of all of the Group’s
secured development projects based

on values as at period end; includes 100
per cent of joint venture projects and
therefore will not necessarily correlate
with the Group’s Profit after Tax.
Distribution payout ratio: Distribution
divided by Profit after Tax.

Distribution per security: Amount of
interim and final distribution per stapled
security from the Company/Trust.
Earnings per security: Profit after Tax
divided by the weighted average number
of securities on issue during the year
(including treasury securities) unless
otherwise stated.

EBITDA: Earnings Before Interest, Tax,
Depreciation and Amortisation.

Effective tax rate: Income tax expense as
a percentage of Profit before Tax.

Face value of a security: The value of a
Lendlease security at the applicable time.
Funds under management (FUM): The
total market value of investments across
Lendlease managed funds.

Gearing: Net debt 10 total tangible assets
tess cash.

Global Minimum Requirements.

(GMRs): GMRs are Lendlease's minimum
environment, health and safety standards
designed to control the risks across our
operations.

Good leaver: A senior executive who is
leaving Lendiease for a reason such as
retirement, redundancy, or resignation
where the senior executive is not joining a
competitor, and who may remain eligible
for part or all of an incentive opportunity.
Green Star rating: Green Star is a national
voluntary environmental rating system
used by the Green Building Council of
Australia to evaluate the environmental
design and achievements of buildings.

The

performance of our Investments.

business which includes our funds under
assets under

Residential for rent: Residential
apartments, typically in the form of an
entire building, that are made available
for rent as separate dwellings. Lendlease
and its investment partners maintain
ownership of these apariments.

Return on Equity (ROE): ROE is calculated
using annual statutory Profit after Tax

co-invested equity in Lendlease managed
funds and direct investment in property
and property related assets.

Key Management Personnel (KMP):
Those executives who have the authority
and responsibility for planning, directing
and contrelling the activities of the Group
directly or indirectly (as per Accounting
Standard AASB 124 Related Party
Disclosures).

KPls: Key Performance Indicators.

Long Term Incentive (LT1)/Long Term
Award (LTA): An incentive scheme which
provides Lendlease equity (or cash, in
some circumstances) to participating
executives that may vest, in whole or part,
if specified performance measures are
met over a three or four year period.

Lost Time Injury Frequency Rate (LTIFR):
An indicator and industry standard
measuring a workplace injury which
prevents a worker from returning to duties
the next day. LTIFR refers to the number
of lost time injuries within a year, relative
10 the total number of hours worked in the
financial year,

Market capitalisation: The number of
securities on issue multiplied by the
security price at year end.

Net debt: Borrowings, including certain
other financial liabilities, less cash.

New work secured revenue: Estimated
revenue to be earned from construction
contracts secured during the period.

New work is sacured and forms part of
Construction backlog revenue when
formal contracts are signed.

People and Culture Committee: The
Board subcommittee that helps the

Board fulfi its responsibilities in people
management and reward policies. It is

1 divided by
the arithmetic average of beginning, half
year and year end securityholders’ equity.
Securityholders: An individual or entity
that owns Lendlease securities.

Senior executive: Employees who hold

a position at executive level according

to the Lendlease Career Job Framework.
This generally includes Regional Business
Unit Heads, Regional Function Heads and
in some cases, direct reports to Group
Function Heads.

Settlements (units): Apartments - units.
cash settled in the period on completed
units in Australia, Europe and Americas,
and units which have reached practical
completion in Asia; Communities and
Retirement - units settled in the period on
completed land lots or units; Commercial
~ buildings that have achieved practical
completion during the period.

Short Term Incentive (STI)/Short Term
Award (STA): Incentives awarded with
direct reference to financial and non
financial performance over a one year
period. Measures are designed 10 focus
individuals on priority areas for the current
financial year.

Total Package Value (TPV): Salary

plus the value of salary package items
such as motor vehicles and parking and

Y
paid on behalf of an employee.
Total Shareholder Return/Total
Securityho_lder Return (TSR): The

ina y
price, dividend yield and any return of
capital over a spacific period. It is often
expressed as a percentage.
Urbanisation pipeline: Estimated
remaining end value of all of the Group's
secured development projects (excluding

made up entirely of i Non
Executive Directors.

Profit after Tax (PAT): Profit after

Tax attributable to securityholders,
determined in accordance with Austrafian
Accounting Standards.

Public Private Partnerships (PPP):

A joint procurement arrangement for
infrastructure development contracts
between the public and private sectors.

projects and
projects) based on values as at period
end; includes 100 per cent of joint venture
projects and therefore will not necessarily
correlate with the Group’s Profit after Tax.
Weighted average number of securities:
The time weighted number of securities
outstanding during the period.
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